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10. The decisions of the Court regarding con­
finement are in accordance with the exist­

ing laws of confinement. The United Nations
Minimum Rules do not pertain to this, even
if they give valuable hints and elucidation."

Decision of the State Supreme Court of Stuttgart
on 30.7.75 in the process against Andreas
Baader, Gudrun Ensslln, Ulrike Meinhof, Jan-Carl
Raspe.

1. INTRODUCTION---------------

The present oocumentation is based on the Articles of the

"International Covenant for Civil and Political Rights" as drawn

up by the United Nations and ratified on 3.1.76 - it is a Covenant

of Human Rights to which about half of all UN member states

acceded, amongst them the FRG (but not e.g. the USA, Israel and

South Africa). Under the agreement all member states were duty­

bound to safeguard the right to life. It contains a prohibition

of torture; it demands the right to fair hearing and freedom of

speech.

The UN Human Rights Committee is responsible for ensuring that

member states comply with agreement.

The UN Human Rights Committee was proposed and elected by the 18

member states and consists ef "Persenalities of high integrity

and recognised cempetence in the field of Human Rights" and if

possible "Persans with legal experience 1) from Western states,

socialist states and Third World states. Under Article 40 the

Committee is entitled to ask for reports from member states about

the position of Human Rights in their country. These reports are

debated in public meetings. Committee members put critical

questions and comments to the government representatives. The

FRG submitted its first report on 25.11.79 2). The Committee

debated the report in the presence of representatives of the

Federal Government 3) Members of the Committee put critical

1) Art. 28 para. 2 of the International Covenant for Civil and Political Rights

2) CCPR/C/l/Add. 18

3) CCPR/C/SR 92, 94 and 96

questions to the representatives of the Federal Government con­

cerning the prison conditions of political prisoners. The

Federal Government had not mentionea conditions of isolation in

their report although it had been obliged to da so under

Article 40 11 of the Covenant, to report "difficulties" in the

application of the Covenant's guidelines.

Article 6 of the Covenant: What securities exist against the

arbitrary use of firearms by police or army in cases of revolt,

escape from prison, or arrests?

Article 7: Why is solitary confinement used, under what con­

ditions, and for how long?

Article 9: With reference to experience in ca ses which were sub­

mitted to the European Commission on Human Rights in Strasbourg:

How long is the remand custody? How are persons protected against

inappropriately lang per iods of remand custody? How often is

unduly long remand custody used?

Article 10: What does the Federal Government understand by

"Special characteristics of the Prison" when justifying significant

restrictions in the conditions of confinement in prison?

Article 14: 00 the accused have enough time and opportunity to

prepare their defence? Can they communicate adequately with the

lawyer of their choice? How is the contact ban justified 4),

du ring which all centact between priseners and defence lawyers

is ferbidden? When and why can a judge refuse the calling ef

witnesses named by the accused? Can an accused person abu se

his rights to a defence?

The report states that trials can be conducted in the absence of

the accused. How are these decisions arrived at? Can these

decisions be appealed against?

Article 19: How can the freedom of opinion be guaranteed? Words

which are not followed by violence cannot endanger national

security.

4) Compare p. 53 of this oocumentation
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One gains the impression overall, that the reaction by the

Federal Republic to extremism is extreme in itself and cannot

be justified.

The representatives of the Federal Government have not answered

these questions adequately or answered them incorrectly. They

promised additional information at the end of the discussion 5)

Although these we~e requested several times by the Committee on

Human Rights they have not been submitted by the Federal

Government 6). They should have replied to the questions at the

latest in their second (comprehensive) report. This was due on

3.8.83, the FRG had therefore 5 years to prepare it. Later the

report was promised for the spring and then the autumn of 1984 7).

The report has still not been submitted to date 7a). The Federal

Government did not publish the criticisms raised against it by

the Commission for Human Rights. It therefore disregarded one of

the recommendations of the Committee to its member states. 8)

After the Committee of Human Rights had examined a number of

reports submitted to it by different member states and discussed

conditions of isolation several times, it issued its "General

comment 7/16" of July 1982 and stated the following in connection

with the prohibition of torture (Article 7 of the Covenant), "a

measure like imprisonment in isolation can, in certain circum­

stances .. , contravene the Article." 9)

The following Oocumentation is based on the situation outlined

below:

There are still prisoners in total isolation, in special cells,

where they have been for years, some in isolation with limited

association with one other prisoner, there are also three groups

of 4 prisoners each detained in high security wings.

5) CCPR/C/SR 96, p.7 para.24

6) Compare e.g. Report of the Human Rights Committee 1979, p.15 para.63 as
weIl as CCPR/C/SR 340 p.2 para.8

7) CCPR/C/SR 540/Add. 1 p.2 para.2

7a)Compare recent press release (e.g. from Suddentschen Zeitung) from 11.9.85,
according to which the Federal Government submitted its report to the Human

Rights Committee

8) General Remark 2/13 (Report of the Human Rights Committee, 1981 p.l09

9) Report of the Human Rights Committee, 1982 p.84

The prisoners from the RAF ana from anti-imperialist resistance

groups fought against their isolation - by means of several

hungerstrikes, after all legal measures had been exhausted.

They ask for:

International control

The application of the basic guaranteed rights

of the Geneva Convention, in other words, groups

of prisoners large enough to pe~mit human inter­

action (see Appendix 21: Hungerstrike declaration

from February 1981)

The Editors

August 1985



On May 26, 1972 the Attorney General Severin, Berlin, dismissed

the ca se with regard to the charge "against unknown employees of

the state of West Berlin for the murder of Georg von Rauch"

brought by the widow and the parents of Georg vnn Rauch. Of the

CIo officer Schulz it was said: "The behaviour of the officer

was justified under the viewpoint of self defence ( 53 StGB)".

On July 15, 1971 PETRA SCHELM was killed by a shot from a sub­

machine gune which hit her beneath the left eye. She was killed

during the first big hunt for members of the Red Army Faction,

operation "Kora". The police were armed with sub-machine guns,

teargas, walkie-talkies and bullet-proof vests. First aid was

not given to her. The police assumed that they had shot Ulrike

Meinhof. At the end of July 1971 the Public Prosecutor in

Hamburg stopped the preliminary proceedings because the police

officer had acted in self defence.

GEORG VON RAUCH, who was born 12.5.1947, was shot on December 4,

1971 during the search named "Trotting Race" in West Berlin by a

police officer in plain clothes, namcd Schulz. Ouring a vchiclc­

control search Georg von Rauch and 2 of his companions were

aske1 to stand against the wall of a house with their arms raised

and their faces to the wall. He was unsuccessfully searched for

wcapons. When Georg von Rauch looked to the side a bullet hit

him from a distance of 1 meter through the right eye and went

out again through the back of his head. No first aid was given

to him.

'-

\....,..
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LETHAL SHOTS (Art. 6 of the Covenant)

- On May 11, 1952 the 20 year old communist worker PHILLIP MUELLER
was shot in the back by a police bullet. Phillip Mueller took part
in a demonstraction in Essen which was directed against the re-armament

of the ERG. No legal action was taken.

- On June 2, 1967 the student BENNO OHNESORG was killed by police officer
Kurras who shot him through the back of his head. Benno Ohnesorg was
standing on the siee, watching a demonstration in West Berlin whieh
was directed against the visit of the Shah of Iran. Kurras was found
not guilty because of justifiable homicide.

-6 -

THOMAS WEISSBECKER, born in 1949, was killed on March 2, 1972

during an observation and special action in Augsburg. He was

shot through the heart from a distance of 2 meters. First aid

was not given.

On April 21, 1972 the lawyer Eggert Langmann brought an action

"Against persans unknown for being suspected of deliberate

murder" under instructions by Thomas Weissbeeker's mother. He

stated amongst other points: " ... it has to be investigated

within this context in how far the eulprit assumed that it was

not Thomas Weissbecker, but Andreas Baader ... who should be

shot in any case." (page 13)

On August 28, 1972 the Public Prosecutor in the Court in

Augsburg dismissed the charge - Ref.: 110 Js 143/72. He stated

amongst other points: "I have stopped the preliminary proceed­

ings against the police officer through whose use of a firearm

Thomas Weissbecker was killed on March 2, 1972 aecording to

170 para 2 StPO. (page 1)

According to the same rule I will also not pursue the charge

brought by lawyer Langmann insofar as he is asking for criminal

proceedings against the named officer. None of the 2 officers

have madethemselves punishable. (page 2)

Since February 11, 1972 a flat had been under observation by

officers from the 8avari<Jn Office for the F'rutt~r;tiorlur' the

Constitution, the Security Group Bonn-Bad Godesberg of the

Federal Criminal Office (BKA) and a Special Commission of the

Bavarian Criminal Office. On March 2, 1972 at 12.30 they

observed that a young man and a young woman entered the flat.

(Page 2) (Now follows the exact description of the Observation)

The use of firearms against Thomas Weissbecker by the officer A

was justified as an act of self defence ( 53 para 1 StG8) (page 7)

The superior officer is also not guilty of having committed an

offence of accidental homicide by ordering the immediate arrest

of the suspected couple. ( 222 StGB)

For the officer in charge there existed at the time when he gave

the orders, no possibility to plan and prepare in Such a way

that the use of firearms could have been avoided by the officers.

After both of them aroused the suspicion of es cape by their

sudden separation an immediate arrest was imperative." (page 10)
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On May 9, 1975 WERNER SAUBER was shot by police officers during

a vehicle-control in a car park; Karl-Heinz Roth was badly

injured. In the criminal proceedings against Karl-Heinz Roth

and Roland Otto for attempted murder of the police officers

involved, both were found not guilty. Nothing is known to us

of a sentence against the officers.

the decision to stop the proceedings the Public Prosecutor at

the Court in Nuernberg-Fuerth states on June 15, 1979

(Ref.: 340 Js 18/79): "The accusations against the police

officers in the death of Mrs. van Oyck on May 4, 1979 will

not be accepted as the officers have ac ted in self defence

( 32 StGB). Reasons:

ELISABETH vAN DYCK was shot on May 4, 1979 at about 10.00 p.m.

whilst entering a flat in Nuernberg. There were 3 police

officers in the flat, Elisabeth Van Dyck was on her own. In

The I~terior Minister of Nordrhein-Westfalen, Hirsch, has

expressed his "appreciation" towards the two police officers

involved and promised promotion. And Nordrhein-Westfalen's

opposition leader Koeppler has also praised the "sensible and

precise way of acting" of the two police officers (Frankfurter

Allgemeine Zeitung, 9.9.78). The chairman of the police union

GDP in Nordrhein-westfalen, Guenter Schroeder, thinks that the

shooting of Willy Peter Stall is suitable "to be adopted as a

model case far the teaching books of the police" (Braunschweiger

Zeitung 8.9.78). Praise for the "success of the search" was

also expressed by the Federal Minister of the Interiar, Baum.

(Frankfurter Rundschau 8.9.78).

The Police President and Public Prosecutor tried to justify

the murder as an act of self defence. But they made contradict­

ing statements with regard to the number of shots fired, to the

question whether the officers had tried to disarm Stoll and to

the question whether Stoll himself had held a weapon. The way

in wh ich the Public prosecutor in Dusseldorf explained the

suspension af the praceedings against the police officers is

very typical; to justify the shooting of Stoll they explained

amongst other things that the "generally known danger of

terrorist brutality" justified the use of firearms - an argument

that speaks against adefinite act of self defence and far the

general plan to kill people wha are being hunted as members af

the RAF.

- The police headQuarters in Mittelfranken issued an order

according to which the police officers involved were given

instructions to arrest those persons who enter~d or were

going to enter the flat. In the order it was mentioned that

these people for whom an arrest warrant had been issued 1)

(Christian Klar, Rolf Heissler, Monika Hellbing, Adelheid

Schulz, Elisabeth van Dyck, Werner Lotze) regularly carried

weapons, possibly also explosives and that an immediate

use of firearms was to be expected.

the officers received information via

suspected person, probably a man, had

The officer nOt 26 then went to the spy­

After a short time he saw a young woman -

At about 9.50 p.m.

their radio that a

entered the hause.

hole in the door.

- In the afternoon of May 4, 1979 the police officers nOt 24

and nOt 33 and their group leader na. 26 ente red the con­

spirative flat which had been ren ted under the false name of

Friedrichs. It was left tc the officers, against whom an

action has been braught and whose names are known ta the

PGölic Prosecutor, to discuss and decide upon the details af

a possible action. The head cf the police and the officers

at headquarters did not interfere. It was agreed from the

beginning that every person who opened the flat door would

be greeted with the words "Police, lift up your hands". Far

reasons of security every arrest was to be made with weaoons

ready to fire. (underlined by us)

It was planned to arrest entering persons in the hall as that

seemed to be the most convenient place ... (There follows a

description of the hall) The Police officers decided that

they would post themselves at the doors of the different

rooms in ca se of danger and to explain to the entering persons

the reasons for the arrest from there.

a Chinese

from 2

PETER STOLL was shot in

He was hit by 4 bullets

bullets killed him.

On September 6, 1978 WILLY

restaurant in Dusseldorf.

police pistols, one of the

~

\-.
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it was Elisabeth van Dyck - who obviously wanted to enter the

flat. The officer therefore withdrew to the bathroom door.

His colleagues no. 24 and 33 who had placed themselves in the

bedsitting room rushed to the door of this room. Mrs. van

Dyck opened the double-locked flat door with a key and entered

the hall. She was carrying a handbag and a shoulderbag as

weIl as newspapers and letters. Sefore she could pull out the

key from the door and close it, the call by officer no. 26 was

made in the dark: "Police, lift up your hands". All the .

lights in the flat had been turned off.

To this call she reacted, after a short hesitation, by turning

slightly towards the officer no. 26. At the same time she

dropped all her things and her hand went quickly to the belt

of her trousers ... (Now follows the exact description of the

pistol which was later found on her but which could hardly

have been recognisable in the dark.)

_ The attempt by Mrs. van Dyck to draw her pistol despite the

call caused the police officer who was holding his gun in his

right hand, to shoot a bullet from his hip from a distance of

more than 1 meter. The bullet hit Mrs. van Dyck in the front

of her right thigh. The bullet left at the back of the thigh

at a height of 68 cm, without injuring the bone and went in to

the wall of the hall on the right side of the door. Straight

after that the officer no. 24 also fired a shot from a distance

of about 60-80 cm. Sy turning her body after the call, Mrs.

van Dyck was standing with her back and partly her left side

towards the officer no. 24. Mrs. van Dyck was therefore hit

by a bullet in the left side of her back at a height of 109.5 cm

and 11 cm to the left of her spine. The bullet went through

the body and got stuck 108 cm above the sole of the foot and

2.5 cm from the right of the middle of the stomaeh, right under

the skin. The line of fire therefore went from the left of

the back to the right of the front slightly sloping ...

As a result of the shot Mrs. van Dyck collapsed. She fell

backwards near the open door. An ambulance brought her

immediately to the clinic in Nuernberg but she died at 11.15

p.m. as a result of circulatory- and heart failure with

internal haemorrhaging, mainly inner bleeding as a result of

the shot which had torn her inner organs.
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11.

1 The use of fitearms by the police officers no. 24 and 26 on

the evening of May 4, 1979 in the flat Stephanstr. 40 was

justified according to 32 StGS, as the officers were acting

in self defence. This riqht of self defe~ce belonas to every

citizen .•• " (Underlined by us)

On September 25, 1978 MICHAEL KNOLL was shot in Dortmund.

ROLF HEISSLER was apprehended in a house in Frankfurt/Main on

June 9, 1979. The house had been watched by police officers;

the apartments which Heissler wanted to enter were full of police

officers. When Heissler entered an officer shot him in the head

without prior warning and without Heissler attempting to draw

his weapon. Heissler survived because of an instinctive head

movement; he suffered head and eye injuries.

This is the only case in which the actions of the police are

documented in detail, because the victim survived the police

action. It shows that the question of self defence did not arise

and confirms the theory that it did not arise either in any of

the other cases where lethai shots were fired.

Under the pretext of hunting for especially dangerous "terrorists"

civilians have also been shot. Two examples:-

IAN MACLEOD was shot on July 1, 1972 in Stuttgart during a search

action against the RAF. In the early hours of the morning CID

officers stormed the flat of the Scottish businessman. He

op~ned his bedroom door, undressed, and shut it immediately.

Police officer Koglin at that moment fired his submachine gun

through the closed bedroom door. Macleod was killed on the spot

by a bullet which hit him in the back.

After one year the Public Prosecutor at the Court in Stuttgart

refused to bring acharge against the officer Koglin. After a

search of the flat no weapcns had been found but the action had

taken place during a search for terrorist criminals. The officer

was therefore found not guilty because of justifiable homicide.

On May 21, 1974 the cabdriver GUENTER JENORIAN was shot in his

flat under the same pretext. At 3.00 a.m. in the morning a unit

of the MEK (Mobile Action Unit) stormed his flat on the 2nd floor.
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According to the police this was part of their search for

Roland otto (see May 9, 1975, Werner Sauber).

The Public Prosecutor conceded that Jendrian had not used a gun

himself. But the preliminary proceedings against the police

officers were still discontinued at the end of May 1974 with

the reason of "self defence".

Oocumentation exists that between 1971 and 1978 over 146 people

were killed by the police, amongst them children and young

people. The killings took place in connection

- with the so-called terrorist hunt in 16 cases,

with the chase of - mainly ordinary - criminals in 52 cases,

- with the chase of traffic offenders in 13 cases,

_ or within the current atmosphere of general hysteria. 1)

In 1951 the Federal Criminal Office (BKA) had at their disposal

a special commando in the form of the Security Group Bonn,

situated in Godesberg. This commando was formed as "bodyguards"

for West German politicians and as observation-group for the

protection of state receptions.

A few months after the emergency laws were passed, dated 28.6.68,

theFederal Government authorised the BKA to build up the

Security Group into a Central Inquiry Office for the whole of

the FRG. The Minister of the Interior at that time, Herr

Genscher, decreed in November 1970 that the BKA "~hould start

immediately with the creation of a criminal investigation group

and to complete the training within 2 years". (Bulletin by the

Federal Government 52, page 1608) In 1971 this special commission

was introduced as the "Baader-Meinhof Special Commission" and in

1972 as the "Special Commission to fight anarchistic criminals"

and finally it was named the "Special Unit to fight against

Terrorists".

According to the Vice President of the BKA, Werner HeineI, this

commando consists of: CID officers, technicians, handwriting

experts, psychologists, Federal Border police (BGS). (Bulletin 52)

The Special Commandos of the BKA work closely together with the

Secret Services. The Federal Minister of the Interior asked

1) "Everyone can be next". Documentation of lethaI shots by the police since
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the Federal Office for the Protection of the Constitution, to

form a group for the observation of foreigners. Since 1970

special units exist in the different state centres of the BKA,

to fight against "foreign terrorists". (Bulletin 52)

In each of the different states a standby police unit was created

in support of the municipal police. Within the unit, special

sniper units were set up. Next to the standby units, the states

formed al ready in 1953 in co-operation with the municipal police

and the political departments of the State Criminal Offices, as

weIl as their local police stations, "Special Commandos" of con­

spiratively disguised civilian officers. The Special Commandos

of the states were introduced to the public as "Anti-Terror

Groups". Their deployment in the normal police activities has

allegedly only exercise-character.

In May 1974 the "Standing Conference of the Ministry of the

Interior" decided in agreement with the Federal Minister of the

Interior, to introduce "information cent res" in all state

ministries, as weIl as an extension of their secret special

commandos according to central guiding principles. The "Standing

Conference of the Ministry of the Interior" holds the view that

"the centralisation of these special commandos ensures a problem

free, mutual and simultaneous response". (Der Kriminalist, 5/74)

In the meantime the special units of the standby police units

and the special commandos are under direct order of the Ministers

of the Interior of the different states.

The state authorities have in all cases tried to justify the

actions of the police officers by claiming that they had ac ted

in self defence or mistakenly assumed a self defence situation.

(So-called justifiable homicide)

In the face of this it has to be commented on that these were

officers of the police special units, who have received military

training, were armed and were therefore always superior to the

people they killed. In some cases the encounter had been ca re­

fully prepared (Elisabeth van Dyck, Rplf Heissler) so that the

element of surprise can be excluded. The actions of these
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special commandos lead to the conclusion that it is their aim

not to take prisoners if possible.

"It has been reported that the Israelis as weIl as the West

Germans have given special orders to their anti-terrorist

commandos not to take prisoners if the conditions are favourable,

especially if no journalists or witnesses are present."

(Conflict, published by ~and Corporation, Vol. 3, No. 2/3, 1981)

The political leadership of the FRG has openly sided with this

intention to kill. The Interior Minister of Hessen, Bielefeld,

said for instance: "Even terrorists are human beings; shooting

them needs practice." (Der Spiegel, 18.9.72). The former

chancellor Helmut Schmidt said in a Government statement on

May 15, 1975 that: "Terrorism" must be "extinguished quickly",

the state could not afford to hesitate "even to kill". The

former head of the BKA, Herold: "It (terrorism) must be eliminated

as quickly as possible." (Frankfurter Rundschau, 3.5.79)

ca. •....•.....•...•.•.u. •.•......•.
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MEASURES AGAINST THE PRISONERS OF THE RAF ANO OTHER POLITICAL

PRISONERS

III. Confinement in Isolation (Art. 7 of the convenant)

Three prisoners from the RAF (Andreas Saader, Gudrun Ensslln,

Jan Carl Raspe) have filed a complaint with the European

Commission of Human Rights against the FRG. In this complaint

they reprove confinement in isolation as a violation of the

prohibition of torture (Art. 3 of the European Commission of

Human Rights). The Commission has rejected the complaint.

(S.7.78) 1)

The Federal Government uses the decision by the Commission to

justify the maintenance and intensification of confinement in

isolation. Representatives from the Federal Government have

several times referred to this decision before the Committee

of Human Rights. 2)

The Federal Government has also quoted the decision by the

Commission to the 3rd Committee of the General Assembly of the

Uni ted Nations to maintain their assertion that torture does

not ex ist in the FRG. 3)

The decision by the European Commission of Human Rights is,

however, neither factually correct nor legally defensible. As

this decision is of fundamental importance it is admissable

and necessary to criticise it in view of the confinement in

isolation which is being practised in the whole of the FRG

(and is not only restricted to the prison considitons of the

three named complainants, to whom the decision applies directly),

1) European Commission of Human Rights. Decisions and
reports. 14. 1979, p.64 ff. s. appendix 2

2) CCPR/SR. 92, para. 4a. 7; 96, para. 19

3) A/33/l96/Add. 1, p. 25, para. 2 (4.10.78)
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A. Review of the prison conditions of political prisoners in the FRG

Conditions of isolation have been applied since 1970, since the

existence of RAF prisoners. 1)

a) The prisoners are cut off extensively from human communica­

tion within the prisons and from their contacts to the outside.

The prisoners are kept in single cells. The windows of the

cells are constructed in such a way that contact to other

prisoners is impossible. The participation in communal events,

for instance church service, is prohibited. The prisoners are

not allowed to meet up with other prisoners during prison

functions, or when taking showers. They have to take "exercise

in the yard" on their ownj and this very often does not take

place in the prison yard but in a roofed space within the

prison building. The cells of the prisoners and the objects

contained in them, including personal notes and defence papers,

are often searched, looked into and confiscated. The prisoners

are also strip-searched before and after every visit, even

after those by their defence counsels, and have to change or

remove all their clothes. During the visit they are separated

from their vi si tors by a glass partition. Political censorship

is being applied to books, magazines and newspapers.

b) Since 1977 so-called hiqh security winqs are being built

within the prisons. High security wings are buildings which

are built separately from the other prison buildings and which

consist of a number of isolation cells. All the cells (including

visitors cells, shower rooms) are housed in the wingsj the

"exercise period" also takes place within the wings so that the

prisoner never leaves these units.

Such high security wings and isolation units are for instance

in Stuttgart-Stammheim, Celle, Berlin-Tegel, Berlin-Moabit, 1)

Luebeck, 2)Munich-Straubig, FrankenthaI, Bruchsal.

1) compare confinement decisions from 1975 - appendix 4
1977 - appendix 5
1980 - appendix 23

1) appendix 8

2) appendix 6

In these wings the state authorities have used/perfected the

experiences they gained from confinement in isolation from 1970

until 1977. The high security wings are an intensification of

the al ready existing conditions of isolation.

A prisoner from the RAF, Karl-heinz Dellwo, has described his

cell in the high security wing in Celle: 3)

"Unlike the usual constructions the cell has been built diagonally to the
corridor and has two doors. And two windows. The cell is about 5.90 m long
and 1.80 m wide. Height 3.50 m. In each cell door there is a square hatch
to pass things through for instance. The two windows and the hatches in the
doors are made from 'Allstop' bullet-proof glass. The windows, very heavy,
cannot be opened by uso Faint air enters through an air conditioner built
onto the side. The windows are about 1.10 m wide and 1.50 m high, 50% are
made of bullet-proof glass, 50% are taken up by the frame. I think that the
whole construction weighs about 400kg - maybe this will make it comprehensible
for you. This is important, because nothing demonstrates the total isolation
and separation as strongly as these windows. Communication is not even
possible through the air conditioner. It is constructed in such a way that
no sound enters through it. The cell is painted yellow. Two large neon
lights on the ceiling and a small one, which is installed on top of a sheet
metal plate built into the wall and which is also meant to serve as a mirror,
are turned on from 7.00 a.m. in the morning untill 11.00 p.m. at night. When
looking at the sheet metal plate there always seems tobe a slight mist
between uso The other fittings are a sheet metal lavatory, sheet metal sink,
security furniture, concrete floor. There is a radio, a Grundig 'prima boy
700', with only long and medium wave. A radio installation with loudspeaker
or headphone connection, as they are normally in the cells, does not exist

in this wing •... The cell doors are airtiqht. The cell is silent. It is
not completely soundproof, but I can only receive very indefinable sounds.
Yesterday, for instance, it was raining. I can see the rain but I can't
hear it. When the door is opened it is announced by a slight sound. Even
though I have tried I cannot understand a single word when the prison officers
are talking in the corridor. The only distinguishing sound is a high loud
banging, when the food trolley is pushed along. Or for instance when the
coffee pot, with which we are getting hot water three times a day, is being
collected one hour after distribution - there is a banging sound, then the
hatch is opened and a prison officer asks for the pot. But otherwise it is

not possible to hear beforehand if anybody is coming. I can't hear for
instance when the door is opened by the other two officers.

To say it differently: This wing is not the kind of isolation unit which we
have experienced so far, where a whole unit has been cut off from the rest ­
this is an architectural conglomerate of 10 isolation units which are totally
cut off from each other. If I didn't know that the two people from Berlin
were also in these cells - so far I wouldn't have been aware of them. This

is an assimilation of all the experiences which the state has made in all
the years of detention in isolation. I have been here for 48 hours now ­

apart from the bath and the visits in the visiting cell I will not be expect­
ing anything new. There will only be repetitions. No unforeseen occurrences
will happen here. As I said before, the experiences of detention in isolation
in two dozen prisons have been implemented here. I don't think that a

qualitative change. The basic purpose of this building is not security, but
destruction. The whole technology is aimed at securing the isolation - every
situation, in which the isolation is not perfect, must be an exception."

1) appendix 7
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Confinement in a high security wing is connected with complete

optical and acoustic control. In the single cells there are

two-way communication installations which can be used for

acoustic surveillance without the prisoner being aware of it.

In the corridors and communal rooms there are video cameras

and microphones. The Senator Justice in Berlin at that time,

Herr Meyer, said the following about the high security wing:

"According to instructions the video cameras should only be

used if there is a threat to security .... The cameras are

always running but recording needs a special permission."

(Public discussion on 18.1.80 in Berlin).

It is up to the discretion of the prison administration to

(- determine when "a threat to security" exists. The purpose
of these controls is explained below.

An extreme measure of isolation to be mentioned is the contact

ban. (page 53)

c) All prisoners from the RAF are kept in conditions of isolation

as are all prisoners who have been imprisoned as "sympathisers"

of the RAF for doing legal political work. Amnesty International

quates: "In the case of prisoners whose charge is based on non­

violent offences, extreme security measures have also been taken." 1)

Almost all the prisoners charged under para. 129a StGB are con­

cerned. Para 129a StGB, which was enforced on 18.8.76, makes the

membership of a "terrorist group" as weIl as the "support" and

"advertising" of it, a punishable offence. The precursor of para.

129a StGB is the evidence of the existence of a "criminal group"

(para. 129 StGB). The introduction of evidence as a "Terrorist

group" demonstrates clearly politicisation of the penal law:

whilst the concept "criminal" signifies the use of certain

(illegal) aims (namely: to destroy the present system of the FRG),

which finally means a political point of view. Accordingly the

Law interpretes the nations of "support" and "advertising"

1) Amnesty International: Report about the prison conditions

in the FRG, May 1980, page 16.
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extensively: intended is the allegedly hypothetical, purely

political "support" or "advertising". In this way the Law

criminalises two groups of people: defence counsels of RAF

prisoners as weIl as those people who show solidarity for RAF

prisoners (for instance by supporting hungerstrikes against

conditions of isolation, contacts by letter and visiting). 1)

Examples are quoted below. (page 137)

1) Prison conditions Irmgard Moeller, appendix 10
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d) The prisoners of the RAF have demanded the abolition of isolation

since the beginning (1970). Initially they asked for equal

status with other prisoners. The relevant submissions and legal

actions by their defence counsels were rejected by the judicial

authorities. The highest Court of the FRG, the Federal Court of

Justice and the Federal Constitutional Court have, on the

contrary, declared that isolation conditions are legitimate.

The prisoners have tried to achieve tneir requests through

hungerstrikes.

1. Hungerstrike 17 January 1973 - 12 February 1973

40 political prisoners demanded the abolition of isolation and

especially that Ulrike Meinhof be moved immediately from the

Silent Wing in Cologne-Ossendorf. (In the Silent Wing she was

totally isolated socially since her arrest on 15.6.72 and no

sounds reached her.

The judicial authorities reacted at first by withdrawing the

drinking water for different prisoners. On Friday, 9 February,

Ulrike Meinhof was moved from the Silent Wing into a single cell

in the male wing in Cologne-Ossendorf - on Monday, 12 February

1973, the hungerstrike was stopped.

2. Hungerstrike 8 May 1973 - 29 June 1973 (47 days)

60 prisoners demanded:

"Equal status for political prisoners with all the other

prisoners" and "Free political information for all prisoners ­

also from the extra-parliamentary media". (s. Appendix 11)

The judicial authorities again tried to break the hungerstrike

by withdrawing drinking water for individual prisoners, a

shopping ban, prohibition of exercise. After the courts had

ordered the lifting of isolation for 2 prisoners, the hunger­

strike was stopped.

3. Hunqerstrike 13 September 1974 - 5 February 1975

Over 40 political prisoners declared:

Resistance against

- dehumanisation through social isolation - over years;
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re-education and torture in the brainwash wings to force the

giving of evidence - the isolation of Roland Augustin since

the beginning of May in the Silent Wing in the prison in Hannover:

- the new camera silens cells with constant heat, constant sound

and TV surveillance after the model of the Hamburg DRG research

project in Berlin-Tegel: Berlin-Lehrter-Strasse: Bruchsal,

Essen, Cologne, Straubing:

- being moved at every attempt to break through the total isolation

by calling to other prisoners in the punishment cells in Berlin­

Moabit, in Bruchsal, punishment cells in Essen, Straubing,

Preungesheim, Fuhlsbuettel, Mannheim; into the soundproof, TV

controlled "Glocke" in the remand prison Hamburg - completely

strapped down for days;

- attempted murder through the withdrawal of drinking water during

hungerstrikes in Schwalmstadt, Munich, Hamburg, Cologne;

- being handcuffed during exercise in Hamburg and Lubeck;

- imprisonment for the past 2! years in special cells in Cologne-

Ossendorf directly next to the 2 main entrances of the prison ­

never any peace; the same in Berlin-Moabit:

- attempts to declare us mentally deficient and the use and threat

of forced anaesthetics for inquiry purposes:

- visiting cells with glass partition for visits by defence counsels

where political communication is impossible: in Hannover,

Stuttgart and Straubing;

- periodic confiscation of all materials necessary for the

preparation of the defence - notes and mail - taken by the

Security Group Bonn - State Security Department;

- a press campaign against the defence counsels of the political

prisoners co-ordinated with the cell searches by the Security

Group Bonn; attempts to criminalise the defence lawyers of

political prisoners;

- confiscation and manipulation of files by the Federal Criminal

Office;

- slackening of isolation only to build up prisoners as in formers

and witnesses for the trials; as in Cologne-Ossendorf, where

Jan Raspe refuses the offered exercise since April, because

the exercise per iod in which he was allowed to take part was

with prisoners from the transport wings, with different

prisoners every day - a fluctuation in which neither communica­

tion nor orientation is possible. All those prisoners who were
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allowed to make contact with him were, it was established,

organised and controlled by the Security Group Bonn;

- terrorisation of relatives with house searches, surveillance

and abuse during and after visits, in order to pressurise them

into influencing the prisoners to conform to the regime of the

prison staff.

In isolation the hungerstrike is our only possibility to

resist collectively the counterstrategy of imperialism to

destroy imprisoned revolutionaries and prisoners, who have

started in prison to fight back in an organised manner,

psychologically and physically, in other words politically.

(s. Appendix 12).

The authorities reacted by withdrawing water, wider brutal force

feeding procedures, a ban on shopping, prohibition of tobacco,

coffee and tea, a ban on exercise.

On 9.11.74 Holger Meins died for these demands. (see the state­

ment by Federal Attorney General Bubeck to the presiding judge,

appendix 13).

On 17.12.74 the prisoners demanded during the hungerstrike:

"Concentration of all political prisoners in one prison and

abolition of isolation". The demand so far had been "equal

status with all other prisoners", and here for the first time the

prisoners suggested a compromise, to put all the political

prisoners together.

The hungerstrike was stopped on 5 February 1975, after the

prisoners had been asked on 2 February 1975 by their comrades

outside to stop the hungerstrike. (Appendix 14)

4. Hungerstrike 29 March 1977 - 30 April 1977

The prisoners demanded

"that the prisoners from the anti-imperialist resistance groups

who are fighting in the Federal Republic be treated according to

the minimal guarantees of the Geneva Convention from 1949,

especially Art. 3, 4, 13, 17 and 130.
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We demand:

1. the abolition of isolation and of group isolation in the prisons

of the Federal Republic and the abolition of the special isola­

tion wings in wh ich prisoners are brought together so the

authorities can listen to their communication by electronic

means and analyse them ...

2. an inquiry into the deaths of Holger Meins, Siegfried Hausner

and Ulrike Meinhof by an International Commission of Inquiry.

(s. Appendix 15)

The investigating judge at the Federal Court orders force feeding

upon the order of the Chief Federal Prosecutor. (s. Appendix 15)

At the end of April nearly 100 prisoners are on hungerstrike,

Gudrun Ensslin is in danger of dying. 1)

After the doctors refuse to carry out further force feedings in

Stuttgart, promises are made.

The prisoners stop the hungerstrike. (s. Appendix 17)

The promised group was formed in June 1977; wolfgang Beer,

Helmut Pohl and Werner Hoppe were moved from Hamburg to Stuttgart.

On 8.8.77 the group was broken up again under apretext. The

prisoners were once again isolated from each other. (see report

about the beating up of prisoners; ~.u.S.66) 1)

5. Hungerstrike from 10 August 1977

Against the break-up of the group is stopped on 2 September

"because the situation has hardened" and "the authorities have

throughout adopted the line to make an example against the

prisoners after the attacks against the Federal Prosecutor's

Office and Ponto. This corresponds to Rebmann's announcement.

As a result the prisoners have stopped their strike on the 26th

day. Thereby also preventing speculations of homicide."

(statement for stopping the hungerstrike. s. Appendix 18)

6. In March/April 1978

The isolated prisoners tried again to put an end to their

isolation by going on hungerstrike.

1) Ingrid Schubert talks about the situation in Stammheim on 26.4.77;
see Appendix 16



•

•

- 23 -

7. Hunqerstrike from 20 April 1979 until 26 June 1979

By the middle of May over 47 prisoners took part in the hunger­

strike and by June there were over 70 prisoners. They demand:

"Abolition of the isolation wings";

- a prison status which corresponds to the minimal guarantees

of the Geneva Convention and the International Human Rights

Declaration for prisoners from anti-imperialist groups;

- that these prisoners be put together into groups capable of

social interaction in accordance with the demands of medical

experts;

- release of Gunter Sonnenberg who, as a result of his head

injury, is unfit for imprisonment;

- control of the prison eonditions by international humanitarian

groups/organisations."

(s. Appendix 19)

The hungerstrike is temporarily stopped on 26 June 1979 to

await "the results of negotiations between the International

Commission, whieh is aeting on our instruetion ... and negotiations

between Amnesty International and the Federal Ministry of Justice."

(s. Appendix 20)

8. Hunqerstrike from 2 February 1981 until 16 April 1981

The demands were

"Applieation of the minimal guarantee of the Geneva Convention" ...

that means

- that the prisoners be put together into groups which make

social interaction possible ...

- release of Gunter Sonnenberg (s. Appendix 21)

In the night from 15 to 16 April a mediator of the Federal

Republic and a lawyer negotiated a settlement with the assuranee:

"No prisoner will be kept on his own."

(s. Appendix 22)

As a result the hungerstrike was stopped on 16.4.81, the Thursday

be fore Easter - for several prisoners were in acute danger of

dying. Around 1unchtime Sigurd Debus, who had been on hunger­

strike since 10.2.81 and who had been force fed since 16.3.81,

was deelared dead. He had a1ready been unconscious for 9 days.

(see p. 130 below)

- c,..,. -

9. Hunqerstrike from 5 Deeember 1984 to beqinninq of February 1985

The Federal Government has not kept its promise of 1981, that no

prisoner should remain isolated. On 4.12.84 35 prisoners of the

RAF and resistance commeneed a hungerstrike. For some prisoners,

detained sinee the beginning of the '70's, e.g. Irmgard Muller

and Monika Berberich, this was the ninth hungerstrike.

The demands of the prisoners were:

" ... we demand prison eonditions as laid down by the Geneva

Convention as minimal guarantees for prisoners of war:

large groups of all prisoners from the resistance and all

militant groups.

- abolition of single and small group isolation and the accoustie

and visual surveillance and control.

- the lifting of the contact ban: visits, letters, books, free

politieal discussion and information."

(extract from the deelaration in the trial of Gisela Dutzi,

4.12.84 in Frankfurt/Main)

On 27.1.85, when there was an aeute danger to the life of 4

prisoners, the State Seeretary Dr. Kinkei, representative of the

Federal Justice Ministry, made a clear statement. "He said that

the Federal Government and the Federal States are uni ted in

their resolve not to give in to the demands of the prisoners. He

told the SPD that he understood and agreed with the position of

the Government (as quoted)."

(press deelaration of the lawyers 31.1.85)

The prisoners eontinued their strike until the beginning of

February. They maintained their demands.

Even though a broad national and international public opinion

had demanded the abolition of the isolation imprisonment, the

State authorities have not fulfilled this request. On the

eontrary:

they have killed the prisoners Holger Meins and Sigurd Debus

during the hungerstrike; (see below p.76 and p.130)

- they have anticipated that the trials against the RAF, planned

for 1975 (especially the trial against Andreas Baader, Gudrun

Ensslin, Ulrike Meinhof and Jan Carl Raspe in Stuttgart-Stammheim)
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could only be conducted if a special law were passed, accord­

ing to which the trial against prisoners who are not fit to

attend their trial because of the effect of isolation can be

continued in their absence. This law (para. 23la StPO) had

already been composed during the third hungerstrike and came

into force on 1.1.75; (see below p.144)

- they conceived the plan to exclude defence counsels from the

trials, as they expected that they would attack the conditions

of isolation during the trials and address an international

public on this subject. Laws were therefore drafted during the

hungerstrike for the exclusion of defence counsels and these

laws came into force on 1.1.75. (see below p.144)
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B. About isolation conditions in particularj also: criticism

of the decision by the European Commission for Human Rights

1. The methods of isolation

The Commission confirms that the use of techniques such as

sensory deprivation as weIl as the total isolation has unques­

tionably to be qualified as torturej but that both of these

did not apply in the case of the RAF prisonersj they were only

"relatively socially isolated".

(a) The assertion that the prisoners are not subjected to

sensory deprivation is incorrect.

The Silent Wing in Cologne-Ossendorf is none of the severest

isolation units known to exist". 3) 4)

Ulrike Meinhof was kept 3 times in the Silent Wing of the

prison Cologne-Ossendorf (16.6.72-9.2.73j in December 1973

for 14 daysj 5.2.74-28.4.74). She was not only cut off from

contacts to all other prisoners but also "isolated acoustically"

(quoted from prison Governor Buecker's own words). Apart from

a quiet, monotonous sound-level she couldn't hear anything.

Her cell was completely whitej pictures were not allowed. 1)

(
The prisoners had to experience that the W. German State does

not apply the national law in their case. As imprisoned members

of an anti-imperialist guerilla they have had to refer to inter­

natinal law since 1975: they demand treatment according to the

International Human Rights Convention and control of their

prison conditions through international organisations. In fact

they demand to be put together into groups able to interact

socially. Their demands are based on the corresponding demands

by medical experts who have established during the above mentioned

trial in Stuttgart-Stammheim, that the prisoners were unfit to

attend their trial because of the effects of isolation. (see p.40

below)

Astrid ProlI, an RAF prisoner, had to be released

because of danger to her life after she had twice

to this wing (22.11.71-14.1.72; 12.4.72-16.6.72).

from prison

been taken

2)

The RAF prisoners are generally subjected to sensory deprivation.

This applies especially to the present so-called high security

wings. It can be concluded from the report quoted by Karl-Heinz

Dellwo about the high security wing in Celle, that he is

acoustically isolated there:

"The ce 11 is quiet. It is not completely soundproof, but I

can only hear very indefineable sounds."

1) The fight against conditions of destruction. 1974, p.168

The death of Ulrike Meinhof. Report by the International Inquiry
Commission, 1979, p.ll; The Technology of political control, 1977, p.238

2) The fight against conditions of destruction, 1974, p.147
Amnesty International's report about prison conditions in the FRG
May 1980, p.26

3) Shallice in: The Technology of Political control, 1977, p.238
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Medical experts have also talked about sensory deprivation.

Dr. Stoewsand (Hamburg) has stated the following with regard

to the RAF prisoner Irmgard Moeller:

"To summarise I can say that the patient shows classic symptoms

with regard to isolation conditions in the sense of sensory

deprivation and social isolation ... The justification for the

statement, which describes the isolation confinement as a

torture method, has to be emphasised." (report from 16.9.75)

Dr. Stoewsand says the following about the prison conditions

of the prisoners Grashof, Grundmann and Juenschke (report

from 11.12.75):

"The isolation measures taken against the prisoners are not

only social isolation, but also sensory deprivation. -Should

the prison conditions not be changed there will certainly be

a danger to the life of the prisoners."

And finally, we have to point out the length of isolation

periods:

Forms of sensory deprivation, which on first impression may

appear to be less heavy than those techniques used in Northern

Ireland will in the long run, and which here me ans over years,

have the same destructive effect. 1)

(b) The Commission states that the prisoners are not subjected

to a total, but to a relative social isolation; especially

that they had various visits by defence counsels and relatives,

moreover that the possibilities of contacts amongst the

prisoners - gained amongst others because of the hungerstrikes ­

had been continually increased.

1) Also mentioned in: The death of Ulrike Meinhof. Report by the

International Inquiry Commission. 1979, p.l3: "We have come to the
conclusion that Ulrike Meinhof has been subjected to the 'unbloody'
torture method, which is called 'social and sensory deprivation'.
We started from the 'case' of Ulrike Meinhof, but have stressed
several times that this has not been an isolated individual case."

Also: 3. International Russell tribunal. About the situation of

human rights in the FRG. bd. 4, p.l77: "Defendants, who have been
suspected of membership in a terrorist organisation, are frequently

over longer periods, subjected to complete isolation and sensory
deprivation."
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(ba) This argumentation can only be described as cynical. Com­

plete social isolation in prisons does not exist; complete

isolation would within a short period lead to a breakdown and

death of aperson.

(bb) The possibilities for visits are often reduced to visits

by relatives. This violates No. 37 of the UN Standard Minimum

Rules for the Treatment of Prisoners (ECOSOC Res. 2076 - LXII ­

from 13.5.77), which states that visits by friends are also to

be allowed. The possibilities for communication are further

limited insofar as all visitors (relatives, defence counsels,

friendS) are being spied upon by the Federal Criminal Office (BKA).

The following extract has been taken from areport by the BKA

to the Internal Committee of the German Parliament (May 1977):

"The special intelligence service 'prisoners surveillance' has

been enforced since March 1, 1975 for the whole Federal Republic.

A central office has been established at the BKA to co-ordinate

this service .... The police has to make use of the fact that

it is possible to gather reliable information in the prisons

about the prisoners and their contacts, as weIl as the visitors

and defence counsels. This necessitates surveillance measures

and a central information-gathering and evaluation. The aims

of these measures are: to gain a complete picture about the

behaviour of the prisoners, .•. their contacts to persons and

to control these persons, ... all prisoners who are suspected

or have been convicted of political (terrorist) motivated crimes

will be included in the prisoners surveillance .... Every visit,

including visits by the defence lawyers, have to be reported.

... Should the contents of the talks be questionable the talk

has to be stopped or, if necessary, the whole visit discontinued.

(This also applies to visits by the defence counsels.) .•. The

information gathered through the surveillance will be stored in

the central office and in the PIOS-system."

They report further that the identification cards of the visitors,

including the defence counsels, are to be copied and that their

cars, their place of residence, their telephone numbers have to

be registered. All visits, except those by the defence counsels

will be supervised by police officers, who will write protocols

about the content of the talks. The officers interrupt or
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break off the talks, if for instance they concern the prison

conditions or political activities outside the prison against

the conditions.

Since April 1983 the Minister of Justice uses the device of an

"illegal information system" to justify measures against prison

visitors (relatives and friends) and against the prisoners

themselves: Searches of flats, cells, confiscation of letters,

interruption of talks between prisoners and their visitors.

The idea of the "illegal information system" exists to suggest

that there is an illegal exchange of information between

illegal members of the RAF (outside) and RAF prisoners. The

following directive from the Federal German Bar (18.3.83)

proves, however, that it is the intention of the judiciary to

prevent a discussion between prisoners and their visitors

about prison conditions and possibilities of changing them.

The directive describes the following subjects as illegal:

1. Discussion of demands for groups "of prisoners of the RAF"

and "prisoners of the anti-imperialist struggle" ...

(a) generally

(b) in respect of which groups of people should be put

together

(c) in the way in which the demands can be substantiated

"politically"

(d) how the demands could or should be supported by actions

either within or outside the prison

(e) as part of the "struggle" or "resistance" or as a means

to create unity or a uni ted front within the resistance.

2. The planning of actions to support the demand for groups of

prisoners, or the continuation of the struggle, particularly

of violent actions against the stationing of medium range

missiles, as for instance the blockade of ammunition trains

or violent action against the Federal army or Nato installations.

3. Reports about actions of the above nature wh ich have already

been carried out.

The named restrictions in the contact between prisoners, their

relations and friends violate the general comment 9/16 of the

- ~o -

Human Rights Committee in which it states: "Allowing visits, in

particular by family members, is normally also such a measure

wh ich is required for reasons of humanity." (Report of the Human

Rights Committee 1982, p.97)

The few visits - which take place under the described conditions ­

cannot counteract the isolation; at best they can only provide

minimal relief.

(bc) When the Commission finally mentions the temporary increase

of contact possibilities as a result of hungerstrikes, then this

shows will all clarity that the demand for the abolition of isola­

tion is j~stified and can be granted quite easily. (It also has

to be mentioned that the largest group at present in the FRG con­

sists of only 5 prisoners, whereas medical experts had demanded

groups of at least 15 prisoners.) It can only be concluded that

isolation for all prisoners has to be abolished, but not as a

result of hungerstrikes.

(c) The fact that some prisoners have been put together into

small groups, does not really change anything. These groups are

too small and cannot really soften the damaging effects of isola­

tion or cancel the al ready existing damage. Medical reports 1)

have therefore stated that groups of 15-20 prisoners are necessary;

the largest of the presently existing groups consists of only 5

prisoners. And we have to take into account that the small groups

are imprisoned within the high security wings and also that the

prisoners have already suffered irreparable damage to their health

because of preceding isolation over many years.

Amnesty International (in its report about torture, 1976 p.55)

has condemned small group isolation as a means of torture.

(d) The European Commission for Human Rights states that the

cells of prisoners are stacked "with books and posters".

Apart from the fact that books and posters cannot substitute for

human communication, it has to be mentioned that the prisoners

very often did not receive the books, magazines and news papers as

well as letters, including defencemail which had been sent to

them: these were confiscated because of their political content.

Political censorship is being practised widely. (Violation of

art. 19 of the convention) 2)

1) Rasch in: "Monatsschrift fuer Kriminologie und Strafrechtsreform, 1976, p.61 ff

2) Compare chapter VII
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The following documents will illustrate this point.

" ... following an order by the Public Prosecutor we object to

the propaganda material of the Republic of China for the remand

prisoner Asdonk according to no. 34, para 1, no. 4 UVollzO.

Because of its revolutionary phrases and especially its glorifica­

tion of violence the material is suited to endanger the order of

the prison. The material is to be added to the belongings of the

defendant.

1 Berlin 21, 28 January 1971

County Court Tiergarten, dept. 352

- 32 -

According to an application by the Federal Attorney at the

Federal Court themail sent to the defendant by Carmen Roll has

been objected to and will not be passed on to the defendant ....

The letter by Carmen Roll and the enclosed material contain an

exaggerated criticism of the existing political and economical

situation in the FRG and discuss the crimes of the members of

the Baader-Meinhof group in a manner which tries to justify the

criminal activities of this group. This is aimed at strengthen­

ing the negative view of the defendants towards state and society.

... It gives rise to the apprehension that this will encourage

the defendant to put up resistance and that this could cause dis­

turbance in the prison.

"Decision in the

preliminary proceedings against

Brigitte Asdonk,

present1y in the remand prison in Essen, Krawehlstr. 59

"In view of an application by the Public Prosecutor at the

Court in Berlin from March 14, 1972 the letter of the accused

addressed to Monika Berberich, dated 3.3.72 will not be handed

out according to no. 34 (1) no. 3 UVollzO, because the letter

contains insults. Already in the first sentence there is talk of

the "Murder of Tommi" 2) "conveyor belt executions in Iran" and

"the re-introduction of the death penalty in the FRG". The letter

has been confiscated according to paras 94,98,119 StPO, as it is

of importance as evidence for the attitude and the future behaviour

of the accused.

c

1 Berlin 21, 23 March 1972

County Court Tiergarten, dept. 349 Ruppender

Judge 3)

Buddenberg

Federal Judge 1)

Court of Inquiry

Stuttgart

Ref.: judicial preliminary inquiries against Andreas Baader a.o.

here: Gudrun Ensslin

Decision

With regard to the application by the Federal Attorney at the

Federal Court objections have been raised regarding the letter

by N.N. addressed to the accused Gudrun Ensslin and the letter

will not be passed on to the accused. The letter is to be added

to the belongings of the accused.

Reasons:

The sender of the letter, N.N., indicates his agreement with the

accused, offers his help and asks for information ab out the aims

of the accused. A letter of this kind is contrary to the aims

of remand imprisonment (para. 119, 3 StPO).

"The Judge at the

Federal Court

1 BJs 41/72

Decision

in the preliminary proceedings against

Manfred Grashof ... presently in the remand prison Hamburg •..

1) Kursbuch 32, 1973, p.63

2) refers to the shooting of Thomas Weissbecker on March 2, 1972 in Augsburg;
see 'shoot to kill', p.4

3) Kursbuch 32, 1973, p.53

Maul

Judge 2)

Prison Pforzheim

Rohrstr. 17

Ref.: prisoner Siefried Hausner

Your application, 3.7.74

Dear Herr Dr. Croissant,

1) The Fight against destructive imprisonment, 1974, p.70 f

2) The Fight against destructive imprisonment, 1974, p.72
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It is not possible for me at the present time to verify the

assertion by your client that literature has not been handed

out to him. The prisoner's file is at the Ministry of Justice

because of the application, dated 28.6.74.

The handing out of books is regulated according to the AV. by

the Ministry of Justice from June 24, 1969 - 4480a - VI/2DD -.

According to this "the possession of books whose contents give

offence to the penal law or the fundamental law and order or

which threaten the aim of imprisonment, especially the rehabilita­

tion" is not allowed. Allliterature has therefore got to be

kept away from your client which will induce him to commit further

fascist acts, which will lead him further towards the authori­

tarian, anti-liberal and anti-democratic behaviour of the

revolutionary who is driven to inhumanity by his militant hate.

Yours sincerely,

Rosenfeld

Administrative Adviser 1)
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part of the defence correspondence on May 30, 1979 because

of suspicion that this material would, if passed on, be suit-

able to encourage the organisational unity of a terrorist group •..

But this court is also of the opinion that it is the duty of

the judge who has been appointed with the surveillance accord-

ing to para. 148 StPD, to only examine whether the defence

correspondence relates to the advancement of a terrorist group

and (or) to planned crimes according to para. 138 StGB, but

that he is not allowed to carry out any further examination

(and objection) (Kleinknecht, 34, aufI., para 148a StPD, Rnr. 2).

He can for example not examine whether a danger of prejudicing

the course of justice is being planned through written communica­

tions, or escape, or any other offence, or whether the co­

defendants want to synchronise their evidence (Duennebier in

Loewe/Rosenberg, 23. edition, para 148a stpo, Rnr. 7).

... and that it is the aim of the surveillance to exclude the

furtherance of such groups through letters or other objects

sent by their lawyers.

The complaint by the defence counsel for Karl-Heinz Dellwo,

lawyer Rainer Koch from Frankfurt/Main, against the decision

by the judges at the County Court in Celle from May 30, 1979

is hereby rejected with the provision that the contested defence

correspondence will provisionally be kept by the court.

The complainant has on May 23, 1979 sent defence correspondence

with a.o. photocopies of

1. press statements by the lawyers SChmid, Frommann and Waechter

about the start of the hungerstrike by members of the RAF and

other groups, which are suspected of being terrorist groups

according to para. 129 StGB,

and

2. the submission of evidence by the accused Roland Mayer, who

was tried before the court in Stuttgart as weIl as the corres­

ponding statement by the defendant Siegfried Haag from April 24,

1979. The judge at the County Court Celle has objected to this

Court of Appeal in Celle

2 ws 118/79 - 20 Gs 229/79 AG Celle

Decision

11 July 1979
In this case it is a matter of so-called "press statements"

by the defence lawyers of Angelika Speitel (lawyers Kruse, Oster

and Schmid), Irmgard Moeller (lawyer Frommann) and Knut Folkerts

(lawyers Waechter, Bendler, Gauger and HesseI), in which they

state that their clients are on hungerstrike and that they

demand the formation of groups of at least 15 prisoners, better

prison conditions and other aims. As all statements contain

the same demand, that the prisoners on hungerstrike want to

achieve the formation of groups of political prisoners of at

least 15 people, the suspicion exists that by passing on these

press statements it was not only the aim to give information

to Karl-Heinz Dellwo about the prison conditions of other

prisoners to further the improvement of his own conditions, but

that it was the aim to encourage Karl-Heinz Dellwo to also take

part in the hungerstrike to achieve the formation of groups of

imprisoned comrades to support a terrorist organisation, by

forming so-called "groups capable of interaction" within the

prison system (compare press statements referring to Angelika

SpeiteI)."

1) The fight against destructive imprisonment, 1974, p.74
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Decision by the Court, 17 StVK 415/79

dated 7.8.79 - Refusal to pass on the book "Terrorism" by

the "Bundeszentrale fuer politische Bildung"

" ... the prisoner Herlitz demonstrates daily his solidarity

with the prisoner Dellwo, who undoubtedly is one of the key

figures of the terrorist scene and who doesn't deny this. It

does therefore seem hardly possible to supply this prisoner

voluntarily with information material wh ich is, amongst others,

suited to analyse and evaluate measures by the police wh ich are

directed against terrorist activities. To tolerate this kind

of information material would run contrary to the aim of

imprisonment, to dissuade the prisoners from their fatal and

suicidal fight against the Federal Republic of Germany."

The judge at the

Federal Court

1 BFs 130/76-6 - 11 BGs 837/79

Decision

in the preliminary proceedings against Rolf Heissler

The letter of the accused from July 23, 1979 to Max WitzeI,

Hoelldobl, has been confiscated. The sender will receive a copy

of the letter.

Reasons:

The letter will be of importance as evidence. The contents

supports the suspicion that the accused is a member of the RAF.

He supports the demand for groups of 10 to 13 prisoners to be

put together, a demand which, as we know, is raised by members

of terrorist groups who try to achieve it through hungerstrike.

Corresponding to this is his wish to spend his recreation and

exercise period with Bernd Roessner and Knut Folkerts. These

twa he calls "hostages". And finally we have to consider the

use of the word "war injury" for the head injury he received

du ring his arrest and which demonstrates his attitude as a

fighter against the state and the sacial order. The letter

will also serve as comparison material of a very recent date in

the handwriting of the accused for analysis and assaciation of

handwritten notes, which have been secured during the inquiries

and which imply a terrorist background.

Dr. Engelhardt

Judge at the Federal Court

- 36 -

From an application to reject judges on the grounds of

prejudice, to the presiding judge at the Court in Dusseldorf

- 4 Court -, Dr. Wagner, by the lawyer of Gert Schneider on

29.2.8D:

"The fear of prejudice results from the fact that the rejected

judges have been involved in decisions which, within the frame­

work of judicial mail-control, have resulted in a one-sided

censorship of information, especially a complete information­

stop of certain political contents ....

As far as it concerns written material, the regulations state

that

1. apart from a certain number of regularly obtained daily

news papers and weekly or monthly magazines, the prisoner does

not receive other newspapers or information material which the

prisoner wants to receive additionally, or which are sent to

him, neither photocopies or extracts from other materials.

2. that from the newspapers which he receives regularly,

especially from the "Informationsdienst", the "Tageszeitung"

and the "Arbeiterkampf" whole pages are regularly removed and

not given to him, because they contain certain political informa­

tion which the prisoner is not meant to receive, especially such

information which interests him most, namely criticism of state

agencies, reports about incidents in prisons and reports about

the politics of the urban guerilla groups ....

The reason given for this is simply that this general prohibition

is absolutely necessary in view of the heightened security risk

to achieve the aim of imprisonment ....

A fitting example for such censorship is the decision from 18.9.79

in which several pages from the "Informationsdienst" no. 298 are

not handed aver for the following reason: "The paper contains a

contribution abaut alleged prison conditions which could affect

the prisoner in such a way as to endanger the security and

order of the prison." This argument is contrary to cammon sense.

How can an article on prison conditions endanger the security

and order in the prison? How can it do this when it only con­

cerns "alleged" prison conditions? ..
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or order by using threats or force. The compiled statements

of all actions by the terrorists against measures by the Federal

Government are already suited to strengthen a possible supporter

in his determination to undermine the liberal order of the

Federal Republic, if necessary by force. The security and order

of the prison also demands that no "teaching-material" will

reach a terrorist criminal like the prisoner Rolf Heissler.

The prison cannot here give details of the individual points

wh ich can give concern for the security and order of the prison

because this could jeopardise the aim of the measure.

There is no basis to assume that Gert Schneider would be

provoked into aggression against prison officers through read­

ing certain information ....

If we consider that the judges who make such decisions, really

believe in the possible aggressive reaction of the prisoner,

then this is reason enough to accuse them of bias, as they make

this assumption simply on the basis that he is a member of a

group which supports armed struggle. Identical censorship­

decisions have been made at the same time on the same forms for

the prisoners Wackernagel, Schneider, Speitei, Albartus, Schwall

and Roos .... "
Straubing, June 18, 1980 i.A. signed Wilke

Prison administrator

('
Even the documentation by the Federal Government for the infor­

mation of the public "about the events and decisions in connec­

tion with the kidnapping of Hanns Martin Schleyer and the

Lufthansa-plane Landshut" by the press and information centre

of the Federal Government will not be passed on.

"I a - 214/78

official document

prisoner Rolf Heissler, prison Straubing;

here; application for ordering and receiving three books from

the bookshop Roter Stern, 355 Marburg

1. Observation

The prisoner Ralf Heissler applied on April 22, 1980 for the

delivery of three books from the bookshop Roter Stern, 355

Marburg. One of the books is the "Documentation about the events

and decisions in connection with the kidnapping of Hanns Martin

Schleyer and the Lufthansa-plane Landshut" by the press and

information cent re of the Federal Government. This book is one

of the objects which fall under the regulation of para 70,

1 StVollzG (Books and other objects for further education or

recreation"). The prisoner is not allowed to own such objects

if the possession or the usage of the object would endanger the

aim of imprisonment or the security and order of the prison,

para 70, 12 no. 2 StVollzG.

He will use the material to win supporters for anti-constitutional

aims by giving biased and polemic representations of the actual

facts and these supporters are willing to endanger the security

"Court Dusseldorf

Decision

The magazine "Der Spiegel" no. 16 from April 13, 1981 is to be

handed over to the prisoner apart from the pages 1, 3 and 24 to

37, wh ich will not be handed over to him and will be put to the

possessions of the defendant.

Reasons:

The magazine contains articles on those pages which cancern

actions of resistance in prison.

Such reports are suited to endanger the order in the prison."

"The Judge at the

Federal Court 5 February 1983

Decision

in the preliminary proceedings

against Christian Klar,

born on 20.5.52, presently on remand in the prison Straubing,

a.o. accused of murder

It has been ordered by the Federal Attorney at the Federal

Court that according to para 119, 3 stpo

1. the leaflet "Proclamation by relatives of political prisoners

in the FRG concerning the trial of Helga Roos" from themail by

Adelheid Hinrichsen, Auf der Bojewiese 75e, 2000 Hamburg 80,

dated 22.1.83, will not be handed out to the accused and will be

included in his possessions,

2. the rest of themail (2 letters) will be handed out to the

accused.
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Reasons:

To forward this leaflet would prejudice the criminal proceedings

and is suited to endanger the order in the prison (no. 34, para 1,

no. 2 and 3 UVollzO). The authors of the leaflet portray prison

conditions of "political prisoners" in a distorted manner and

call for a "fight in the prisons".

The leaflet is suited and obviously intended by the sender to

strengthen the aeeused, who is suspected of terrorist crimes,

in his fundamental attitude and to encourage the unity of terrorist

groups even in prison."

- 4-0 -

2. The effects of isolation

The European Commission for Human Rights stated the following

about the effects of isolation:

"From the medieal reports it is not possible to determine with

certainty the specific effects of this isolation on their

physieal and mental condition in relation to other factors, like

length of imprisonment, hungerstrikes, stress caused through the

preparation for the trial."

The representatives of the Federal Government has presented a

similar view before the Committee of Human Rights. 1)

(a) This argument is without support. The Commission thereby

disregards the medical reports of all the experts in proceedings

against the RAF - whereby it has to be noted that they were all

expert witnesses appointed by the court. Prof. Rasch (director

at the Institute for Forensie Psychiatry at the Free University

Berlin) has stated:

"that the deeisive psychiatrie treatment method would be a change

of prison conditions with the possibility of larger groups for

social interaction", and that it is "difficult to imagine how to

eure the effects of isolation from which the prisoners suffer,

without changing the present prison conditions fundamentally".

(report from 7.11.75)

In a second report Prof. Ras~h wrote:

"that the diagnosed deterioration of the prisoners' health is a

direct result of the special prison conditions they are subjeeted

to." (August 1975)

In an essay in the "Monatsschrift fuer Kriminologie und Strafrech­

tareform", 1976, p.6l ff, Prof. Rasch demanded (p.67):

"that the present prisen conditions should be abolished or

modified because of their damaging health effeet."

Prof. Mende (report frem 17.10.75), Dr. Schroeder and Prof.

Mueller (reports from 13.10.75 and 17.9.75) eame to the same

conclusions.

1) CCPR/SR, para - 19
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Prof. Mueller and Dr. Schroeder stated the following in their

report:

"The restoration of an ade qua te general physical condition and

an unimpaired ability to attend their trial would presuppose

that the whole situation of the defendants would have to be

changed, especially from a psychological point of view .... The

best living conditions which we as doctors feel are best for

the people entrusted to us obviously collide with those security

measures regarded as necessary by the authorities. As far as

those measures allow for an abolition of the social isolation

it should be donej that it would be recommended from the medical

side we have already expressed."

With regard to the RAF prisoner Irmgard Moeller Dr. Naeve

(director of the judicial medical service of the health authority

in Hamburg) has stated:

"The longterm and often total isolation of remand prisoners from

other prisoners, the far-reaching interrupted contact to other

people without doubt led to a substantial encroachment on the

psychic functions and capacity for work .... To avoid still

further psychic upsets through a continuation of the isolation

we have to request from a medical point of view the complete

abolition of isolation imprisonment." (Report from 16.9.75) 1)

With regard to the effects of the so-called high security wings

we will quote statements by doctors, who have inspected the high

security wing Berlin in 1980 and who described the effects after

only a short visit as foliows:

"I have looked at the high security wing this afternoon and

afterwards we had an hour lang discussion with Herr Meyer in a

communal room which is meant to be for the group of 7 prisoners.

After one hour I had a very strang headache - even though I have

never so far in my life suffered from headaches. One just sits

there and eight strang neon lights shine directly into your eyes.

One can't prevent it, unless one looks constantly on the floor,

which is barren.

1) Amnesty International, report about the prison conditions in the FRG,
May 1980, p.24
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I would like to know, and this should be clarified by the

Federal Constitutional Court, whether the responsible Senator

for Justice is not obliged to find out be forehand whether the

confinement in such nearly total isolation conditions does not

in the long run cause psychic and also - as is by now known

generally - psychosomatic illnesses caused by the confinement. "

"The light in the windowless, 2.30 m high communal room is, as

a result of several neon lights, so bright and strong that it

leads to lasting eye problems and damage to the general condition

like headaches, pressures to the head and aggression. Because

of the smooth walls and the light falling constantly on them

there is no relationship between light and shadow in the room.

The insufficient air ventilation through a narrow air shaft

causes stuffy (strengthened by smoking) and dry air (central

heating), which in turn leads to headaches, difficulty in con­

centration, tiredness, chronic colds and chronic bronchitis.

This will be especially noticeable with high temperatures outside.

The high wall wh ich stands ne ar to the cell windows prevents any

movement of air." 1)

(b) The argumentation by the Commission is finally astonishing

insofar as it contradicts decisions by the two highest German

courts: the Federal Court and the Federal Constitutional Court.

Both courts have decided that the isolation conditions are the

reasons for the inability of the prisoners in the Stammheim

trials (1975-1978) to attend their own trial. The context within

which these decisions were made, was as foliows:

"Four prisoners from the RAF, Andreas Baader, Ulrike Meinhof,

Gudrun Ensslin and Jan Carl Raspe, appeared as defendants before

the court in Stuttgartj the trial took place within the area of

the prison Stuttgart-Stammheim. The defendants and their defence

counsels asserted that the defendants were not fit to attend

their trial because of the isolation confinement, that the trial

had to be stopped. The presiding judge maintained instead _

without having heard any medical expers - that they were completely

fit to attend trial, that the consultation of experts was not

1) Group of doctors in Berlin in a letter to the Senator for Justice in
Berlin, 10.1.80
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necessary. When the prisoners and their defence counsels managed

finally to have their fitness to attend trial examined and this

by doctors who had been appointed by the court, they came to the

following conclusion: the prisoners are partially unfit to attend

their trial, the main reason being the isolation imprisonment

(compare p. 37 of the report). The court then acknowledged their

unfitness to attend trial but at the same time disregarded the

reports by stating: not the prison conditions but the hunger­

strikes are the cause. This assertion was intended to make it

possible for the court to continue the trial in the absence of

the defendants - based on the law especially passed for this

trial and enforced on 1.1.75, para 231 StPO, wh ich provides for

the possibility to conduct the trial in the absence of the defen­

dants, if they are themselves deemed responsible for their unfit­

ness to attend the trial."

The Federal Appeal Court came to the same conclusion but stated

different reasons. The reason for the unfitness to attend trial

is confinement in isolation; but that the prisoners themselves

are responsible for these prison conditions because of their

"danger"; the trial can therefore continue in their absence. 1)

"The statement that the prison conditions reduced the physical

and psychic condition of the accused and even the statement that

there existed 'isolation conditions' were, in the past, always

regarded as defamation of the law. In the decision now submitted

precise1y those statements are part of the supporting argument.

Written by Prof. Or. Gruenewa1d, University Bonn, 'Juristen­

zeitung' 1976, p. 768

The Federa1 Constitutional Court has confirmed the decision by

the Federa1 Court. (21.1.76) 2)

When the European Commission for Human Rights maintains that it

is not c1ear that the damage to hea1th can be attributed to the

prison conditions it ignores the facts which even the Federa1

Court and the Federal Constitutiona1 Court were forced to recognise.

1) compare Cobler "Die Gefahr geht von den Menschen aus" 1976, p.lOO ff

2) BVerfGE (Federa1 Constitutional Court)

Finally, in this context a study by the Ministry of the Interior

needs to be mentioned, entitled "Activities and behaviour of

imprisoned terrorists." 1983:

"There is no doubt each withdrawal of liberty is a necessary

evil. This applies especially to the imprisonment in the so-called

high security wings. Their negative effects must not be

embellished. It must, however, also be borne in mind that the

public demand for punishment and the protection of the public

from further serious offences cannot be subverted to the

prisoners' interest in their freedom from injury."

The Federal Ministry of the Interior expresses he re that physica1

vio1ations can be attributed to prison conditions. The Federa1

Ministry of the Interior does not mention that prisoners have a

fundamental right to freedom from injury, merely that prisoners

have an "interest" in their freedom from injury.
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A. The alleged goals

1. The "European Convention of Human Rights" has declared

isolation to be in accordance with the law for reasons of

"security". By doing so it has accepted the argumentation of

the German Government (Bundesregierung), according to which

the RAF prisoners are "especially dangerous", used firearms in

the course of arrest and took part in actions to free themselves.

These arguments do not hold true.

Imprisonment in isolation has been and still is applied in the

case of all RAF prisoners, whether they used firearms in the

course of the~r arrest or not. Moreover imprisonment in isolation

is applied to those political prisoners, who are arrested for

"supporting" (unterstutzung) and "recruiting for" (werbung)

a "terrorist association" (Terroristische Vereinigung) ( 129a StGB),

that is to say, who are not accused of having used violence.

Accordingly Amnesty International has written in areport:

"Maximum security conditions, including imprisonment in

isolation •.. are applied to all prisoners who are arrested

for politically motivated crimes - without any regard for

wh at particular crime they took part in. In the case of

prisoners who were accused of non-violent ~rimes, extreme. 1)
securlty measures were ordered as well."

For this reason the argument about the use of firearms has to be

regarded as a red herring.

The same applies to the argument, that the prisoners had taken

part in attempts to escape. The prisoners have not only been

isolated when attempts to escape took place (occupation of the

German Embassy on 24.5.75; kidnapping of the president of the

"Federal Association of German Industry", Schleyer, from

September 5 until October 19, 1977): they were and still are

all isolated from the first day of their imprisonment - that is

from autumn 1970.

1) Amnesty International: Arbeit zu den naftbedingungen
Mai 1980, Page 16

The security argument also has no justification in law.

When the Commission talks about "extraordinary conditions of

imprisonment" and about the "special dangerousness" of the

prisoners and seeks to justify isolation for "security reasons",

it is using phrases which characterise a martial law situation.

Frankly speaking the argument of the Commission is: since the

Federal Republic of Germany is in astate of martial law in its

fight against the RAF and the RAF prisoners, everything, even

imprisonment in isolation, is lawful. This is in contradiction

to the absolute character of the prohibition of torture.

The Commission comes to the conclusion that the priority in the

conditions of imprisonment of the RAF prisoners being "first of

all to the security requirements" was "absolutely imperative".

This also is legally untenable. Civil rights are rights of the

individual in relation to the State.

This creates a conflict between the interests of the State and

the human rights of the prisoners so far as the conditions of

imprisonment are concerned. The alignment of these conditions

with State interests results in a one-sided solution of this

conflict to the benefit of State at the expense of the prisoner's

rights. This, too, is a typical argument in martial law; it is

the essence of martial law that the State puts its interests

before those of the individual and annulls human rights generally.

2. As another alleged reason for isolation the Commission claims

that the prisoners rejected the offer of contact with other

prisoners: the State authorities could not be blamed for their

isolation, only they themselves.

First of all it has to be pointed out that this argument con­

tradicts the security argument. If not the State, but the

prisoners themselves are to be blamed for isolation, the security

argument is unnecessary.

But the theory that they themselves are to blame cannot be

maintained. The RAF prisoners - as already (p. ~2 said - have

been demanding equality with all other prisoners from the

beginning of their imprisonment. They tried to enforce this
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They did in fact reject or stop contact in some caseSj this was

for different reasons:

demand by means of hungerstrikes.

Holger Meins died in pursuing this

prisoners wanted to be isolated is

facts.

Ouring the 3rd hungerstrike

demand. To claim that the

cynicism in the face of these

of increased security on her own in a single cell." And

further: "Normal conditions: Confinement under normal conditions

is not possible at present and cannot be considered for reasons

mentioned under 1 above. Furthermore the prisoner refuses a

psychological examination in this context." (treatment plan for

8rigitte Asdonk 17.12.80)

In any event the offers of contact never meant that the prisoners

from the RAF were really equal to the others - in the sense of

being integrated into the "normal" everyday life of the prison.

Very limited contacts could not actually end isolation.

At the same time the State authorities argued in the mass media

that with these contacts the prisoners were not isolated. In

this respect the offer of contact was a propaganda measure with

the aim of refuting public accusations of torture.

8. The Actual Goals

After this one cannot talk about the prisoners being responsible

for their own isolation.

1. The purpose of isolation is to destroy the prisoner's political

identity. They have the choice either to "recant" - and then to

be integrated into "normal imprisonment" - or to be subjected to

isolation and, through this to physical and psychic destruction.

This is the openly declared aim of political justice. The 3rd

(= political) court (Strafsenat) of the Federal Court of Justice

(Bundesgerichtshof) outlined in its decision of 22.10.75 (cited

on page 42):

have come into contact with war

The prisoners, who consider them­

anti-imperialists rejected contactsselves anti-fascists and

of this kind. 1)

- it appeared that they would be in contact with prisoners who

were especially selected by the prison management and who in

some cases acted as informers and provocateurs, for instance

with questions about weapons. 2)

- in other cases the prison management put pressure on prisoners

who wanted to talk to prisoners from the RAF by threatening them

with isolation themselves if they continued contact with the

RAF prisoners. In such cases the prisoners from the RAF stopped

the contacts themselves so as not to endanger the others. 2)

- in some cases they would

criminals and Neo-Nazis.

(

(
Brigitte Asdonk, for instance, (imprisoned in 1970) was moved from

the small group in the high security wing in Lubeck to Bielefeld

with the promise of normal prison conditions. This happened in

the spring of 1980. After 4 weeks of integration she was again

completely isolated with the following explanation:

"Confinement measures:

Brigitte Asdonk was found guilty of membership of a criminal

organisation amongst others currently in process is a trial under

129a penal Code "terrorist group". No indications exist that

the prisoner has distanced herself from the terrorist scene ...

understandable reasons exist to keep the prisoner in conditions

1) See Lutz Taufer's letter, appendix 24

2) Timetable 32: Torture in the BRD, 1973 p.115/116

"The complainants belong to a numerically, triflingly, minute

group of the population, which in contrast to this population,

holds it indispensable to change the state of society, certainly

needy of improvement in various respects, in the FRG - as,

incidentally, in every society - not by the democratic means of

persuasion of the voters, but by way of force of arms against

their will. Their view of the social conditions and of the real

possibility of changing them, evidently unachievable and remote

from reality as it is, misleads them to a fanatical pursuit of

their goals, even from the prison cello They see themselves as

captured members of an armed group ("Red Army Faction") which

combats the existing State by every means, does not recognise its

laws as binding and slights its authorities, especially the organs

of justice." 1)

1) See Appendix 1
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The Federal Court of Justice quotes as decisive, according to

the above subjective elements: The "aims" of the prisoners, the

"disregard" of the State authorities, the "non-recognition" of

the laws. The Federal Court of Justice has thus defined the RAF

prisoners as public enemies and justified their isolation herewith.

8y way of this the Federal Court actually says that isolation will

be removed, when the prisoners give up their "goals", "accept"

the laws and "respect" the institutions of the state. In other

words: the Federal Court of Justice has defined isolation as a

means of breaking the political identity of the prisoners.

Politicians who are responsible for imprisonment in isolation

have made similar statements in public - on 15.5.79 the Senator

of Justice (West Berlin) wrote to the lawyers of political

prisoners imprisoned in Berlin's "high security wing":

"It is planned to imprison normally those prisoners who have

disassociated themselves in a convincing way from their terrorist

environment and from whom obviously no danger is to be

expected - especially as regards attempts to es cape - so that,

within the framework of the law they are treated like all other

prisoners."

Ta Amnesty International he said (6.11.79):

" ... I'm willing to make exceptions, if one of those prisoners

has shown by his behaviour that he has distanced himself from

terrorism and that such offences cannot be expected from him

anymore."

The duration of isolation is related to this goal (see the

question of Tarnopolsky, CCPR/C/SR. 93, para 37 on this point):

isolation is kept going until the prisoner has "recanted"; an

absolute time limitation, for instance in a law, does not exist.

2. Closely combined with this is the aim of extorting confessions.

This, tao, is indirectly expressed in the cited decision of the

Federal Court. When it is said there that the prisoners slight

the state authorities, especially the organs of justice, it is

saying that the goal of isolation is to bring about "respect" for
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the state organs in the form of collaboration.

The former Minsiter of Justice for Hessen, Hemfler, expressed

it clearly in 1973 in answer to the question of a Dutch

journalist, who said: "But cases of isolation from 6 months up

to It years are not fair". He answered:

"That's not fair, but partly it lies with the prisoners them­

selves, who must themselves be blamed as being a consequence of

their obstinate refusal or of their tendency to conceal every­

thing and under no circumstances to tell the truth or to facilitate

the finding out of the truth." 1)

The security services are supported in their goal of destroying

the identity of prisoners by doctors, and especially by

psychiatrists.

-Since the end of World War 11 the effects of isolation have

been researched in experiments. In the University clinic of

Hamburg-Eppendorf a team of scientists (leader: Prof. Grass)

has worked since 1971 with a so-called "camera silens", that is

a sound-isolated room. 2) These experiments are done with

soldiers of the Federal Army. In 1967 Prof. Grass wrote an essay

about the effects of social isolation and sensory deprivation in

prisoners and emphasised the heightened "suggestibility" of the

prisoners.

The prison programmes - worked out in every detail - and the

high security wings, well thought out architecturally and

technically, show that imprisonment in isolation in the FRG

has from the very beginning been planned and worked out with

the aid of scientific research into sensory deprivation - in

the full knowledge and conscious use of the health-destroying

effects of isolation.

-This is also shown by the co-operation of doctors, especially

psychiatrists in prisons.

As already shown, Ulrike Meinhof had been three times in the

silent wing in Koln-Ossendorf. Ouring that time she had been

under the control of a psychiatrist (Or. Goette). Only at that

1) The fight against the destructive imprisonment, 1974 p.120
The Technology of Political Control, 1974 p.241

2) The fight against the destructive imprisonment, 1974 p.139 ff
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moment when - according to his opinion - "the limit of her

capacity had been reached", did he vote for a transfer. 1)

Obviously the function of this psychiatrist was not to concern

himself with the health of the prisoner (in that case he should

have protested about her being kept in the silent wing), but his

task was to keep a check on the effects of isolation and to

in form those who were responsible for the isolation about the

state of health of the prisoner.

A second example is the RAF prisoner Gunther Sonnenberg. He

has been seriously hurt during his arrest by a shot in the head

and is kept in custody inspite of his disability - and in isolation.

Ouring his imprisonment in Bruchsal the prison doctor Dr. Pfahler

explained to the prisoner Gunther Sonnenberg that his conditions

of imprisonment would change only when he was "co-operative".

The third example is putting groups of political prisoners

together - in the so-called high security wings. The intention

of the security services is that the possibility of communication

between the prisoners thereby created should not result in the

easing of isolation, but on the contrary: prevent communication

and aggravate isolation. The security services make use of the

results of group psychology here. Berlin's then ruling Senator

of Justice Meyer explained the following in an interview with

the press (Tageszeitung", 24.8.79):

"With the separation of single groups or even single prisoners

one could foster or reduce tensions within the group at any

time .... In this group imprisonment one had to bring the people

into a situation in which they long to leave the group and in

which they can then be integrated into normal imprisonment as

re-socialisable."

In order to achieve this goal, psychiatrists and psychologists

are active in the high security wings in order to evaluate the

information gained through the permanent observation of the

prisoners.

The Federal Court of Justice explained its position as regards

the use of psychiatrists insofar as the isolation of prisoners

was justified for the following reason:

1) See: The fight against destructive imprisonment, 1974 p.180
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"Their (RAF) apparently unchangeable and far from real

picture of social conditions and of the real possibilities of

influencing these conditions, causes them to follow their aims

fanatically even in the high security wing."

The term "far from real picture" is a psychological category;

the Federal Court says that persons belonging to the RAF are

psychologically abnormal.

The above shows that in order to justify isolation and destroy

the prisoner's identity, psychological methods (with the aid

of doctors) will be used.

The European Human Rights Commission uses basically the same

argument when speaking of its "regular scrutiny" of prisoner's

conditions. This "scrutiny" takes place not for the benefit

of the prisoner's health but rather so that the information

gained can be used to "influence" the prisoners by varying the

conditions of imprisonment, as the Federal Court says. The

then Chief Attorney martin (Press statement from 22.2.73)

explained:

"The regular medical and psychological care ensures that the

conditions of imprisonment correspond to the individual physical

and psychological situation of each prisoner." 1)

3. The use of isolation, as practised by the Federal Government,

is, in the long run, a way of punishing the prisoners, exacting

revenge and letting them feel the full power of the State. This

becomes especially apparent during and after outside RAF activity

which the government answers by tightening the isolation for

those inside. The political prisoners are treated as hostages.

The Federal Court, in the decision already quoted, also mentioned

this aspect. It justified the particular dangerousness of the

prisoners as follows:

"The attack on the embassy in Stockholm, which cost several

lives, was meant to bring about the prisoners' release by terroris­

ing us and the Swedish State. Through the kidnapping of the

politician Lorenz, the compatriots of the accused succeeded in

securing the release of several terrorists who were closely linked

to the accused."

1) The fight against destructive imprisonment, 1974 p.94
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The Federal Court, in other words, did not even claim a direct

involvement by the prisoners in these actions, merely that a

purely political involvement existed; they speak only of

"compatriots" of the prisoners, with whom they are closed "linked".

The most obvious example of Government's intent is the so-called

"Kontaktsperre" (to forbid contact completely, even to the lawyer)

(compare the questions of Tarnopolsky, member of Human Rights

Commission CCPR/C/SR : 93 Par. 40; 94 Par. 10). "Kontaktsperre"

means that prisoners are forbidden all contact among themselves

and with the outside world. In details this means that:

-all visits are forbidden, especially those of lawyers;

-current trials are postponed;

-all letters including those pertaining to the defence are

stopped; books, magazines and newspapers are also banned;

-radios are taken awaYi

-contact between prisoners through knocking and calling is

stopped by separating prisoners far from each other, sealing of

door cracks and sound proofing of cells.

This "Kontaktsperre" has been applied on many occasions:

(i) After the occupation of the German Embassy in Stockholm by

a RAF commando, one of these commando members, Siegfried Hausner,

was taken prisoner and despite serious injuries, kept totally

isolated; medical treatment was withheld and the prisoner's request

for a lawyer was denied. Hausner died in Stuttgart-Stammheim

Z prison. (more on this case on page 105)

(ii) After the RAF attack on the former Federal Attorney Buback

(7.4.77) the Court authorities in Stuttgart imposed the following

measures on prisoners: no contact between prisoners, radios and

tv confiscated, all visits including those of lawyers banned.

One court declared to a lawyer:

"This decision can be justified in astate of emergency."

These measures lasted from 7th until 10th April, 1977.

(iii) Gunther Sonnenberg, a prisoner who during his arrest (3.5.77)

received serious gunshot wounds to the head, was totally isolated

at the beginning of his confinement. (More on this case on page

58). His lawyer was not allowed to visit hirn from May 3, until

May 23, 1977.

- ,"" -

(iv) On 5.9.77 Hanns Martin Schleyer, president of the Federation

of German Employers and president of the Federal Board of Industry

was kidnapped by the RAF, an action whose aim was to bring about

the release of RAF prisoners. Instead the "Kontaktsperre" was

imposed on all RAF prisoners according to the federal law 129a

StGB. This happened in two phases: firstly openly illegal, then

based on the (just passed) "Kontaktsperre" law.

a) So on after Schleyer's kidnapping the "Federal Minister for

Justice, through the Federal Prosecutor ordered all local and

federal authorities to stop all contact, both among prisoners and

with the outside world." (Documentation of the Federal Government

page 239).

On 8th and 9th September 1977 the local Justice authorities began

to forbid contact between prisoners and their defence counsels;

the reason: the RAF prisoners supposedly had contact with Schleyer

kidnappers, and the life of Schleyer had to be saved, they claimed.

The law ( 148 StPO) which guarantees the prisoner's right to con­

sult his lawyer at any time, was declared invalid due to the

"emergency" situation. Despite this some judges ordered that

defence counsels were allowed to visit prisoners. A judge in

Berlin for example made the following decision:

"Forbidding contact between defence counsel and prisoners can

only be justified according to law, when such visits are liable

to lead to a breach of the law. It has not been proved to this

Court, that evidence suggesting such a breach of the law is

available."

The prison authorities however stopped all visits from defence

counsels:

"Despite the court decision regarding the legality of these

visits, it is not possible to allow such visits. The Justice

Ministry in Baden-wurttemberg, under whose authority the prison

service is, has ordered all prison governors to stop any visits

by defence counsel." (Decision of the president of the 5th

Criminal Court of the State High Court in Stuttgart 12.9.77)

On application of the Federal Prosecutor the Federal Supreme

Court then declared the "Kontaktsperre" to be legal on 23.9.77.



(-

(

- 55 -

There was, as claimed, a "danger that the continued free access

granted to lawyers could lead to an escalation of the danger

facing the kidnap victim." Furthermore: "We don't want these

lawyers themselves to fall under personal suspicion, but in this

situation it has to stand aside ... members of the legal profes­

sions are, in general, persons of high integrity."

b) The Federal Government rushed the "Kontaktsperre" law through

the Parliament (23.9.77), the Upper Hause then voted for it on

30.9.77 and the President signed it making it law that same day,

whereupon it immediately came into effect. It should be noted

that the "Kontaktsperre" has no time limit.

It can be ordered for up to one month and can be repeatedly

re-imposed as often as wished.

The Government's information to the Human Rights Commission that

the "Kontaktsperre" is only allowed within a strict time limit

is false. 1)

On 4.10.77 the Constitutional Court declared that the new law

conformed to the constitution. 2)

Ouring the "Kontaktsperre" only police officers (apart from

prison warders) had access to the prisoners. These were officers

from the regional and federal Criminal Police concerned with

political activities. They used the absolute isolation of the

prisoners as an opportunity to attack them:

- In a number of cases prisoners were interrogated. A former

defence counsel of RAF prisoners, Armin Newerla, himself

imprisoned, was asked where Schleyer was being kept. When

he answered that he could not say they said to him: "Now

the paper tiger will show his claws." The officer then beat

him on the back, chest, shoulders and face. Because he still

had nothing to say they then stood him against the wall.

What they then got out of hirn was that he really did know

nothing about the kidnapping.

- police officers searched cells and confiscated materials

relating amongst other things to the defence. 3)

1) CCPR/C/SR 96, para. 17

2) BVerfGE 46, p. 1 ff

3) see appendix 25: report of prisoner about the contact-ban

-7'-'
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- they carried out body searches on the prisoners. The prisoner

Ingrid Schubert for example:

"Soon after it became known that weapons had been found in

Stammheim prison - as Frau Schubert told her defence counsel ­

she was forced to undergo a body search ... which did not end,

when she was stripped naked ... a gyneacological search was

undertaken against her will. Ouring this two male (!) warders

held her legs. While in this physically painful and degrading

position she tried to defend herself and bit one of the warders

in the hand. The result was that she was not allowed to use

the shop facilities in the prison."

- Three RAF prisoners: Andreas Baader, Gudrun Ensslin and Jan

Carl Raspe, were killed during the "Kontaktsperre" on 18.10.77

(see page 110 ff).

The supposed aim of "Kontaktsperre" was to stop all contact

between the RAF prisoners and those who had kidnapped Schleyer

in order to save Schleyer's life. The Government's Spokewoman

explained this to the Human Rights Commission. (CCPR/C/SR 96 para 1;

This argument is only being used as an excuse. The State author­

ities never believed themselves that contact existed between the

kidnappers and the prisoners. The then Justice Minister Vogel,

for example, said in an interview with the Italian TV in the

spring of 1978, in answer to the question as to whether the

kidnapping was planned from the prison cells:

"No. We did not believe that then, and there has been no evidence

to the contrary. Of course it was demanded that something should

be done to free the prisoners. I cannot rule out the possibility

that during visits small bits of information may have been passed

in order to facilitate such an operation (the freeing of

prisoners), information about appartments, and where weapons and

materials might be. But as regards planning or masterminding

in detail from within the prison, there has been no evidence of

that." 1)

The aim of the contact ban (Kontaktsperre) in reality was to

punish the prisoners, to get revenge on those who - as opposed

to the kidnappers - were at the mercy of the authorities. This

is exposed by the Government spokeswoman'S statement to the Human

1) Oocumentation: The proceedings against the lawyers Arndt Muller and Armin
Newerla. 1979. o. 163
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Rights Commission that the contact ban was an answer to the

actions of the RAF. The use of the ward "answer" is taken in

this case from the political militaristic vocabulary and describes

the State's reaction in a political militaristic struggle. In

terms of the prisoners this me ans that they are seen as hostagesj

the contact ban is to be seen as a method of repression.

~~eE!~~~~~~~_~~~e!~~_~~l~!~~!_Q!~~~!!!~l

The State's aim of "destroying the RAF prisoners is shown especially

with the example of the prisoner Gunter Sonnenberg. After receiv­

ing a serious gunshot wound to the head he was arrested in Singen

(Baden-wurttemberg) on 3.5.77. Since then he has been suffering

from the after-effects of this injury: inability to concentrate,

lass of memory, speech problems, general weakness .

Although many medical reports have stated that he is medically unfit

for imprisonment, despite this, he has not only not been released,

but instead has been sentenced to life imprisonment.

On May 18, 1977 while he was still unconscious, the warrant for

his arrest was read out to him and the first of several interroga­

tions was conducted. A defence counsel of his own choice was not

allowed to visit him before May 23, 1977.

Within the first two months after his arrest, he was moved 4 times,

amongst others to Stuttgart-Stammheim where medical care could not

be guaranteed. The severely injured prisoner was guarded in such a

way by the police and the Federal Criminal Office that it reminded

a defence lawyer of a concentration camp, when he visited Gunter

Sonnenberg in the psychiatrie hospital Weisenau. From the day of

his arrest until the middle of March 1978 he was kept in total

isolation. In March 1978 his trial started in Stuttgart-Stammheim;

at the same time he had the possibility of daily exercise with 2

prisoners from the RAF. This lasted until January 1979. During

this time he managed through discussions, and despite the small

amount of time available - the prisoners could see each other daily

for 90 minutes - to overcome slightly the results of his injury

and to reconstruct himself.

On the strength of that Gunter Sonnenberg was moved from Stammheim"

to Bruchsal in January 1979 into total isolation. The 3 prisoners

carried out an 8 week lang hungerstrike to fight for Gunter Sonnen­

berg's transfer back to Stammheim and to be together with them.

More than 30 prisoners joined the hungerstrike. But Gunter

c:.nnnCtnl"u::.,..n C:+-~\lc'" in Q""H,.."c~l icnlQtClln ',..nm h;c: ....nmr::llrt~c:
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In May/June 1979 the prisoners from the RAF carried out another

hungerstrike with the demand to be put tagether, in which Gunter

Sonnenberg took part.

In July 1979 a systematic tightening up of his prison conditions

started, at first by not being allowed to write to the 4 people
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with whom he had been in contact for a long period. The censor­

ship of magazines etc. was also increased. From the beginning/­

middle of 1980 he is not allowed any more exercise, he is there­

fore in his cell 24 hours a day. Exercise with prisoners chosen

by the prison administration he refuses.

The medical ca re of Guenter Sonnenberg has over the years always

been very deficient; every examination and necessary operation

had to be fought for. it was,for instance, made impossible for

him to have an eye operation because the authorities would only

allow it under the condition that the doctor would be released

from his duty of silence. (As a result from the injury Guenter

Sonnenberg suffers from a 40% decline of his eyesight.)

Medical experts - insofar as they do not place "their obligation

towards their employers" (which means the Federal or Local

Government - a literal statement by an expert appointed by the

court) - found out that Guenter Sonnenberg had to be released

as a result of his injury, or would at least need "an emotional,

positive, outside stimulation". This can only be interpreted

that Guenter Sonnenberg must very urgently be put together with

his comrades.

There is no doubt that the justice administration which has been

isolating Guenter Sonnenberg for years, uses the injury and its

resuits to make his conditions of imprisonment worse.

Only this can explain the interest of the authorities in each

examination result. The last examination of Guenter Sonnenberg

took place in 1980, under the supervision of Prof. Dr. Krott.

Ouring the examination Prof. Dr. Krott al ready explained the

results to the officers present from the Mobile Action Commando

(MEK) •

In the summer of 1982 the prison authorities of the prison in

Bruchsal ordered a further examination by this doctor. This

examination is necessary - and Guenter Sonnenberg wants to have

it, but he refuses to be examined by a doctor who passes the

examination results on to the authorities. With the aid of a

computer-tomography, EEGs and EKGs it should be established

whether Guenter Sonnenberg can now stop taking a strong anti­

epilepticum which he has taken for years (it has the effect of

a very strong sedative and damages, if taken over the years,

- 60 -

inner organs.) It should also establish whether the splinters

left in his brain have possibly moved, which could have highly

dangerous results for his life.

After the justice authorities had at first considered a com­

pulsory examination of Gunter Sonnenberg, they refused to have

a doctor named by the defence counsel who was prepared to do the

examination under preservation of his professional discretion.

The examination still hasn't taken place until this day.

From February 6 until April 16, 1981 Gunter Sonnenberg took

part in a hungerstrike carried out by RAF prisoners with the

demand to be put together in groups, the application of the

minimal guarantees of the Geneva convention, and international

control of their prison conditions.

Amnesty International also intervened during the hungerstrike.

According to a protocol of a talk between the General Secretary

of A.I. in the FRG, Frenz, and a defence lawyer for the prisoners,

Frenz said on April 16, 1981: "Gunter Sonnenberg is really the

problem for the whole group of the hungerstrikers, the problem

prisoner no. 1, the person they all worry about, where they all

ask, what is Gunter Sonnenberg's situation? If he is not moved

into the group of the 4 prisoners they will not stop. Mr.

Eyrich is aware of this and so is Mr. Schmude and he says that

it is alright with Stuttgart."

But after the end of the hungerstrike Gunter Sonnenberg was

only able to meet with one other political prisoner and this

under conditions which excluded mutual work and discussions;

during the 1 hour of daily exercise which took place with other

prisoners.

.After the hungerstrike in 1984/5 Gunter Sonnenberg has started

to exercise again with other prisoners. On 22.5.85 he had an

epileptic fit and was prevented from incurring further injuries

by a fellow prisoner who stopped him from falling.

Since his arrest - for more than 8 years - he has not had adequate

medical care. The medical investigations by a doctor of his

choice have always been refused (Press release by Gunter's lawyer

22.5.85).

Gunter Sonnenberg is not fit for imprisonment. He has to be

released. His confinement constitutes wilful arbitrary detention.

(Art. 9 of the covenant). At the very least he should have contact

w;~h nth~~ nnl;t;~~l n~;~nnp~~.
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CONCLUSION

It follows that confinement in isolation is torture in the

sense of Art. 7 of the covenant (and Art. 3 of the European

Convention of Human Rights). Confinement in isolation has all

the characteristics to qualify as torture; to quote from the

"Declaration on the Protection of All Persons from being

Subjected to or Punishment of the United Nations" from 9.12.75:

" ... torture means any act by which severe pa in or suffering,

whether physical or mental, is intentionally inflicted by or

at the instigation of a public official on a person for such

purposes as obtaining from him for an aet he has committed or

is suspected of having committed, or intimidating him or other

persons."

According to this the Committee for Human Rights declared in

its notices 7/15: "Even such a measure as solitary confinement

may, according to the circumstanees, ... be contrary to this

article." 1) The General Secretary of the United Nations

listed under "methods of torture", "psyehological methods such

as long term solitary confinement" 2). In 1977 in a collection

of materials for the Subeommission on Prevention of Diserimination

and Protection of Minorities.

And in Art. 19 of the Draft Prineiples on Freedom from Arbitrary

Arrest and Detention from 1970 it says: "The arrested or detained

person may not be held •.. in solitary confinement." 3)

Finally the same thing has been said in aseries of public utter­

ances by those responsible for the confinement in isolation.

The former Hessisch Minister of the Interior, Hemfler, declared,

for instance, in an interview with the Dutch TV: "It may be

that someone experiences this is torture." 4)

A high official of the Nordrhein-Westfaliseh Ministry of Justice,

Prof. Klug, agreed in a TV discussion on 22.7.73: "Without refer­

ence to any specific case I have to concede that we are talking

about effects which are akin to torture." 5)

1) Report of the Human Rights Committee. GAOR 37th sess. (1982), supp no.40 p.94 f

2) E/CN 4/Sub 21 394, p.lO (from 5.7.77)

3) E/CN 4/1044, p.lO

4) The fight against Destructive Imprisonment 1974, p.120

5) High seeurity wings and Human dignity 1980, p.37
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The former Senator of Justice in Berlin, Meyer, commented in a

public discussion in Berlin, 18.1.80, on the high security

wings:

"There may, of course, exist security regions, where the

feelings of human identity are violated, theoretica11y this is

at any rate correct." 1)

The former Federal Minister of the Interior, Baum, said in an

interview:

"The high security wings for terrorists inside the prisons had

to be created in certain circumstances, but basical1y they are

inhuman."

1) Frankfurter Rundschau, 18.1.80

r
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the IBme 0"110'1.
h'? "s~dat.iv~ ~,?11".
san.ll•

the 10-cBl1ed bunker.

(

Anv orlsone" attemptinq to break the lolitarv eonfinement il
subJected to special treatments. that will be described in this
chapter.

!. Jnq.rr,:er~tJ9n E~amp 1es:

lQ72 .•..•Reasons:
The AMTSGERICHT Tiergarten imposes on the prisoner an
sentence of 5 davs' tightened imorisonment. beeause he
COnlCIOUllv vio1ate.-.tthe rules of the house delPite
evhortation bv trvinq to soeak with other orilonerl during
thei" leilure hour.

At first siQht the sentence seems to be relativelv harsh.
8IJt 1.lehave 'to take the general behaviour of the oriloner
lntO a~count. He has declared that whi1e beinq in lolitarv
~on'inement he would be ver v keen to tal~ to another
oe"son. This 1,Iould remain 10 as 10ng as he 1.lalkeot in
Isolation. Thus the accused exoressed that he continuousl .•.
1,lo'jl.-.tnot I:>eI.lilling to obev the rlJles of the house that
has to be resoected bv all •••.•

8e"1in 21. 27-7-72
LANDGERICHT. 5. FERIENSTRAFKAMMER
'0". ~n.-.tel)(Zimmermann) ISommerfeld)'

1978 "a"l-Heinz Dellwo in Köln Ossendorf

"On Maren 15. 1978 D. againt reflJses to undress. Therefore
he is draqge.-.tinto the cellar bv six orison warders. lead
bv t"e securitv inspeetor Mr. Loth. He is taken awav the
clothes. 1aid on a mat. and ehained to two iron rings
fastene.-.t in the eement floor. A video camera is aimed at
the prisoner. lvino naked in the emotv cel 1.
In this pOlition h~ is keot for 20 hours. His wateh is
taken al,laV.

On Sept.ember 23. 1978 he IKarl-Heinz Dellwo) is undressed
bv severa! IJarders to his underwear and pulled into the so­
~alled car~er.

T"e ce 11 ar has "0 I.Jindows and is overvi elJed bv a vi deo
camera. Karl-Heinz Oellwo was forced to 1av down on a mat
on t"e fl~or and was put in two iron rings fixed in the
cement floor. Whi le fettering the prisoner. one of the
wa"ders eniove.-.thimsel' kneelinq on Oellwo's shoulders and
head.
In this position DeI 10.10had to remain til1 September 25.
1°78. 9 a.m •• i.e. for 49 hours. Althou9h he participated
1n t••eh" '10 er a'1.-.tth ir st stri ke ther e IJaI on 1v Q'1e vi s it bv
a do~to,,'wko came to check his plJlse. Durino tke 49 hour!
he na.-.tto u"inate thrice. In orde" to avoid'lvinq in his
01.''1'Jrine fo" davs "e had tot IJrn tot he r ioht as much as
oosslb1e. After 49 "ours the carcer stunk and Ka"l-Helnz
Oe111.lo·s head had alreadv tlJrned blue-red."J

1<;081Anoeli~a Speitel in Köln Ossendorf:

1<;082Be"nd RoRne" in StraublnQ:

"On ~~ov~rnbe" l~. thev lent enced me t0 leven .-.tBVS·cl ose
con'lnement afte" 3 scuffle in the ni~ht. In the confine­
ment ~e' 1 vou .-.tonot get anvthinq evcept the bible: nothinq
to "ead. '10 radIo. no tobacco. '10 coffee. no visitors. no
mal'. Inte"diction to w"ite. 1 ha.-.tthe eveotional orivilege
to I:>e0'1101.1 to Qet letters. but in the seven davs e.•.aetlv
~.~','~n lo?t:t.~rc; 1.I~r~ int.i?r~~ot~Ij.'"

!<;O838e"nd Rbßne" In FrankenthBl:
":-"'ornthe I:>eolnnlno of the dirt strike on Ap"il 18. 1983
8ernd RoRner 'is incarcerated in close confinement. The
floo". cellinq and IJalls of the cell I.'erecovered bv l.Jhite
ti'es. tke ceil 1.'3Silluminated bv glar'ing neon tlJbel Bnd
cornple elv emptv. An air condltioninQ that blowl hot dry
aIr in 0 the cell caused asthmatic breathing p"obl~ml.
No V!I tors I,'e"eallQ"led. No letters exept to and from the
lal.lver ~Iere all ol..led...•

2 .•_E!rl~1ta,~_fJlr:..;:~_I;j__~edJ'l9_d-.Yl'-1.'l.cLb.lilL9Hstri ~~.'2

!974: ~olger Meins I.1-3SforClblv fed Qn September 30. 1974. on the
13tk dav of his hun~er stri~e. He WBS the first of the 80
ooliti~al p"isone"s'who W-3S IlJbJected to this tr!atment.
~is Repo"t dated 12.10.1974 Isee Apoendix 29).

"Sin~e Septeml:>er 30. i.e. since 12 davs. thev ca""" Qut
forcd feedlnq onee a dav.
I uallt tc> tk~ "oom I"here thev do it on rnv ol.Jn.escorted bv
5 to 6 o."ilOn 1.larders. 2 to 3 ambulance men and 1 .-.toctor.
Tke I.'a"derl pl.tll-dra,,-fo"ee me on the operation ehair".
Ac tuall v It is an 0pera t ion tab 1e 1•.1ithall 1u"ur v
Ima~inal:>le: lt Cin be rotated an.-.ttwisted. it can be turned
lnt·J achair uit" a"mr!stl etc. Then comes the fettering:
t\.lQh.and~l.lffS arOljnd ·.he anwIes. one leat.her bell 130 cm
broadl around the hips. two leather belts arOlJnd the left
3"m. same I.Ji.th tne r Iqht arm - be 1t.s arolJnd e IbOI.'and
\.I"ISt-. and one bell arOIJnd the ehest. A IJarder behind me
'ives rnv head wlth both hands and p"esses mv head against
the ope"ation chair.
!=or.:!.-.tfeedinq: Th .•" take a "ea.-.t"stomach tlJbe" that is as
thlCk as a middle fin~er. The tlJbe is lubricated but it.
cannQt be Inserted 1,'1thout r"etehinq since it il onlv
Sll9ht1v thinner" than the gullet. Retching can 0'11.•.be
avolded if one IS calm and cooperates. If vou are aqitated
the insertion of the tube immediatelv ealJses gulping and
'/omltinq. then ClJnvljlsions in the ehest and Itomach r"eqion
that inc"ease In intensitv as long as the bodv tries to
r"eslst tke or"oce.-.tu"e.A eOntinuous "etchinq. qlJ]pinq
accornoanied bv ""Qular larqe seale eonvulsions. It is onlv
I:>ea"able If "ou a~e silent: relaxed. sedated and if vou
b"eath reQularlv.

I u~fe" d alesion of the qlJms throuoh the inse"tion
or cedur • tne lios are inflamed. the larynx painl
oe manen Iv and I have a sore th"oat.

"ln ~ljln Ossendorf. the RAF prisoner Angeli"a Speitel IJas
~ept under oarticularlv harsh conditions from mid Januarv
onl.lards. followinq an attemot to s'Jicide. Since "er
imorisonment in September 1978 she had fought to be
imprisoned toqether with Hanna Krabbe and Gerd Schneider

The ooe"at
""''?~~" (In
h3'v,? "c~lm
T •..•~ O •.••v<;l.':'

on t.ak•••s 3 to
"'~ (kalr" I.lith
d dOIJn".
in "ef'.Ise.-.tto

5 minlJtes. 1=ollowinQ it I have to
fetters on and hea.-.t'fived unti1 I

tel' me his name •.. "
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On Nov~mb~r 9. 1974 Holger Meins died of starvation. (s~~ pp.70ff'

In M3r~h and Aori1 1977 t~~ prisoners b~qan anot~~r col1~ctive
hun~~r strik~ d~manding an end to t~e solitarv confinement t~at
mo~t orl~on~r~ w~r~ subj~ct~d to.
Aoaln ohvsiclans carri~d out forced fe~ding in a brutal wav. Women
Drl50n~rs in H3mburQ r~port:

"2r)-.:l-77:I.I~L9-l:>j.rL9.. __~!l1_Jt.lQ9A_t't.li_/ut_f.Q.r:c~.si nc e ~OlJrS t~e
orison IS c1osed. no lavwer. no visitor. no contact wit~
other orisoners al101.1~<:!or possib1~.
A salJad of po1icemen precipitates into t~e ce11. BriQitte'5
'JlaHes are taken ao.oav. in front of t~e .:el1 a lot of
policemen in civil c1ot~es.

:21-d-77: '(1r.t;..~_?_f..~.!Hli!l.qfor t~e first t im~. Ten pol icemen
klJrl Into the cel1. t~ev jlJmp on me. ~old me bv mv ~air and
oul I me down t~e stairs into the ce11ar. Mv arms are pIJ11ed
behind mv back IJnti1 it pains etc. Sanitarv men.
ohvSICl3ns. Dr. Friedland who carries out t~e forced
'eedlng and Mr. SalJer over1ooving t~e i11-treatment. PlJt
.j'1l.onon t.he plank-be<:!. Leqs and arms are pOJIle<:!apart an<:!
fastened. T~e head is on t~e bed. T~ev trv to insert a tlJbe
throuoh the nose an<:!at t~e same tim~ forc~ a we<:!a~ betw~~n
mv teeth. From two sides thev press t~eir thumbs aaainst
the juolJlar vein of mv throat an<:!t~~ air-tlJbe to force me
open mv mO'Jt~." (see appendix 281

Other r@POrts abolJt forced feedinqs

1978 Report bv Hanna Krabbe dated 6-12-78 (see appendix 31)

1981 Report bv Karl-Heinz Dellwo dated March 1981 (appendix 32)

1981 Report bv SlglJrd Debus dated March 1981. Died during the
hunoer strike. See chapter on Siqurd OeblJs Pp. 130 ff.

'3_._.1,1i.t...t,-gr-'-~.!ol~,_Lo'dr inVi nQ wahr

In order to force the prisoners to end thelr hlJnaer strike the
orison alJthorities even withdrew the drinkinq water.

1972 - ~ c rots of a letter from the director of the prison in
KIOssendorf to the prosecutor at the BGH concerning
U r ve Meinhof (dated 4-7-72: Az:IFI

" •.. The prisoner ref'Jses to eat since JOJ1v 2. 1972 •••
Furthermore the wat~r has to be turn~d off in order to
contro1 her intake of water exactlv.
ThlS m~asure was abso1IJtelv necessarv for m~<:!ica1 reasons.
Besldes t~e prlsoner gets a drink enriched with vitamin 812
3 n d 0 10J c 0 s e 0 n c e a da v ••• "

~ez. 8ück~r
LEITENDER REGIERUNGSDIREKTOR

T"e orlson aut~orities PlJt soap into U1rike Meinhof's washinQ
water to make it undrinkab1e.

1973 - DlJrina the hlJnaer strike bequn on Mav 8. 1973. Andreas
Baader was withdrawn all water from Mav 30 onward. For 8
<:!avsbefore this date he had on1v been supplied with a
small portion of the 1.5 1itres of water required dai1v.

66 -

~~~~ - C~Qm IJ~ ~~,~~ 14 to !~. 197d '~~~inQ th~ htJno~r ~tri~~ 0; 80
"011~!C 1 or150n~r51 Ro"ald AI.lalJsti"1.1.35ClJt 0'" 311 I.lat~r
51J,,01I~ In 'he orison I" llnaen. One dav lat~r (19-10-741
hiS he3 th h3d deterlorated 50 much that he had to be
~r3nsf'erre.j to the '-InI','erslt'lhosolt'31 in Hannover.
PhvsicI3ns In this hosPI~al IJ'H"es~och?.j and enra<;led IJ~~n
thev learned that Ronald Auoustln had been withdrawn
.jnnving ',Iater.

ÄsSAMUS

~. A~ +. 3':~"S ~,.q_n_.~!"'J,$9~..er~

8-8-1°77 Stammhelm. report bv InQrid 5c~lJbert
SI" l.1arders attacv~d l.Jern~r I.I~Oh3d sholJted that thev
sholJld keep their h3nds of' 10.: thev beat him IJP and
°IJShed ••iman dia .. an d 1a ter -l e. an d 1..1. int0 an em ptv
cell. Thev sal.lto it that thev ahJavs f~11 on t~eir heads
or th~ b3Ck a~3lnst the tabl~ or tne boov-snelf. In front
of A.'s c~l 1 th~v were thrasnino Jan. I snouted at them blJt
Hau~ o'.lshed me 9"3V• Ne:d. to rne'l saO,1G. on tne floor
ltnoclted oOl.ln- it seem~d to m~ t~at tneir brutalitv
~ulrnlnate~ In tkeir t~eatm@nt 0' G. On@ of them h~d her
'3ce In hiS "and and pressed it down. two plJlled ••er leQs.
the 1'0lJrth t'.llst@d her arms on the 1er+. slde of her bod~
3nd trled to kick her in the side. It looved live 3n
3tt~mot ~o rnurder her. I mav~ an atternot to reach her. but
3t the same moment SIX warders seize me. and 1 can jlJst
~e':O'Jnl:~ Ga. beinq tf,rol,.onon the noor 'or '3 I..hile before
the S3me hgpoens to m~: I am t~rown bacv and forth until
the v kn",It '1l ~ da 1.1n. I fa I1 on tf,~ qr0IJnd 'Jith mv head. 1.1he n
I trled to del'eno mvse!' aoalnst t"eir treads in mv ribs
an,j It1dne'/s. Hgl.lQ '·11 thall' hIS 1.leiQh t vnee 1s on mv head and
Dresses me on the floor. ou11s mv head IJO and vnocvs it
""'.1'1on the nOor fjve or si'< times. After fi\J~ min'Jtes
thev draQaed me 30 metres into the other end of the tract.
Thev thr~.:om~ Into Iq.'s c~11 in su," a I,Ja"th3t I aqain
fell on the back and the head. I on1 v remembe" l.laVin" UP
IVln~ on t.he fl QOr. I dQ not, vno.,JhOl,'rTH.lchtime I 1,Ias1ving
on t~e f1oor. Then there was the nausea. I was finished.

At 2 o.m. thev started the second round. One 3fter another.
thev olJlled IJS out of the cells. in which thev had locked
us uP. The ten m~n were lead bv Haua. Großmann and t~e
drlJnvard. Thev tried to pOJSh A. OlJt of t~e ce11. but ~e
of'ered reslstanc~ and therefore thev did not touch him.
Afterwards thev halJl I". OlJt of mv cel1 and vnock nim into
3n ernptv ~el 1. I can he ar th~m beat him UP. En oassant HalJq
t ••r ~ a t e n s me • I t 1.1i 1 1 b e v 0 u r t ur n. SOl) n. va u 0 ig' ." (s e e
apo end I;< T3 I

After thlS ~'/ent the ~roup of eiqht prisoners who "ad bIen th~
fIrst to be a110wed to remain together was agaln dissolved.

.:::,_';'_7~ 'q"I-Hel'1: Oe1lLlI, In Koln-Ossendorf:

"On ~.I.lno:t3vmOr'nlno th~v pulled me out of mv c~11. and
"".llied me nt.o th~ ~ellar I,ohere thev 'orciblv thre,,1off mv
c10+hes. T ev fiv~d me to the iran rings In the bunver. On
."" l.I.av••0 h~ c;~113r t.hev drop 3nd PlJSh me on the arOlJnd
f~eol).,.ntlv. theiOlnts are b.adlv torn. and at everv door
t~at h3S to be o~~ned one 001 Ic~m3n hits mv testicles or mv
col1ar-bone.
In the b'JnV@r. I.lhlle mv face is tUrned to the c@rnent of the
'Ioor and I am stIl I abl~ to move. Grimm l~ts hirnsel' fall
on mv h@3d that lS "it bv his knees." (QlJotation from a
I~tter 01' De11wo sent to his lawver H.H.Funv on September
3n. 1'=178).



f

- 67

11-11-82 8~rnd Roßn~r In Straubin9:

"On ~Iov~mt,"?r11. lQ132 a poli,=~-raid took pla,=~ in nis ,=~11
35 was done with all politi,=al prison~rs. B~rnd was sticken
<:lol.ln"" Mr. 1.lilil~.th~ deputv orison dire,=tor. l.Jho- bv th~
l.Iav- i5 also r~SDonsible for the interc~ption of letters
~"d the reje,=tion of visitors. Wilile and som~ prison
I.lard~"'stl,'ist~d nis arms and 1~9S and held his mouth shut.
~nd elos~d his larvnv• so that h~ ,=ould not shout and
Inform oth~'" prlsoners. B~sid~s tn~y sprayed tear Qas into
kis fge~ tauSlnQ inflamed ~y~s. nausea and a swoI1~" fate
+"or" ~~vl?,..;d ~.avs. fI

[5-[[-'32 A"<i"'ea.s\/lJa~' in Celle:

1.lk~nth~ orison~rs told th~ visito'" that politi,=al poli,=~
had occupi~d and "'aided th~ tract. and that thev nou tried
to prev"?nt th~ in'ormation ther~of to be known outside th@
o"'lson. 1,llthOIJt',.arning Mr. Dahms ,iumped onto his n~ck from
b"?hlnd a"d took him bv th~ throat. With th~ left hand he
pul1ed Andr~as' hair. knock~d him down from his chair and
ki,=ked nim into a ,=orn~r of th~ visitor's room. As the
prlsoner demanded that the visitor call~d at lawver. Mr.
Oanms hit his head on the floor and shouted (verbatim):

"if vou do not keep Quiet immediatelv. YOU' 11 b~
alJi~t for ev~r"

and - still stranalina him further -
"on~ more noise and 1'11 finally strangle YOU'"

Althou9h th~ prison~r could not pronounce a word but onlv
•..attled in th~ tnroat. Dahms continued the stranQulation.
He tri~d to push th~ larvnx into the throat. The prisoner
near 1v f@11 IJnconscious due to this i11-treatm~nt."

19-11-82 He19a Roos in Stuttgart-Stammheim:

"0" I="riday (No" 1<;» I '.JassIJm!Tlon~dto QO to the room IJher~
1.lemeet '.Jith la\Jvers: this is only done once a \.le~kduring
the recular raids in the cells.

·Wnen I passed bu the bathroom. Mr. Konrad attacked me in
th~ rear. As th~ bIOM cam~ unexpectedly. I fell with !Tlv
face on the f100r and could not prevent anvthinq.
Aftlr the fall I had a terrible head-ache that 1s now
continulng for 8 davs. The cheek is still hurting. At the
',''''istand on th~ l~es th~re are sev~ral effusions of blood.
After the fall they drag9~d me into an empty ,=el1 and kept
me the"'e for two haurs.

11-11-82 Adelheid Schulz reporting about her arrest

Taliinq the fing~"'-prints:
Thev handcuffed me with hands on mv back: there fetters
!.Iereso narrow that the hands turned blue. Then thev took
mv bv the arms and lees. I do not know how many men
oarti,=ipated. th~re w~re about 15 men. Everv limb was
twisted. arms and leQs. Mv head was pressed on tha table:
~s a conseeu~nc~ !.he-h~ad is swol1~n b~hind the l~ft hear.
In this position thev took mv finQer-prints. The thumb was
bent until it nearlv broke. Tne other fingers were foro:ed
apart. Then a sort of wire was pul1ed around the finger and
under th~ finqer-nail. Th~v ~x~rted an unbearabl~ pressur~
on the finger as if thev were 90ing to squash tne top of
the fineer. In-b~tIJe~n thev released the pressure. and then
cont inlJed again IJnti1 I coul d see the stars."

11-11-82 g"'iqitte Mohnhaupt:

"Th, o"ic~r 0' the Federal Criminal Office who was the
commander-in-chief of the 2-dav-operation. cal1ed Peter
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'the sam"? as on th@ OPA ohotoqraph showinq H~idi in front
of th~ 8GHl. had bor~d his nails und@r my nails so that I
tould not b@nd mv finQ@"'s. H~ also appli@d a ~rip of the
temooral region that ~ad~ all of us shout. Ha~in9 finished
taillnQ finQ~r-prints they ,=al1ed for the photOQrapher. But
wh~n i trl~d to avoid b~inQ photoQraphed he (P~ter) pul1ed
mV k~ad UD bv mv hair. No iawyer ~as allowed to watch the
m~a'=,IJ"~s. 1I

2Q-3-~3 8~rnd Roßn~r in St"'aubinQ:

"0" Ma"'cn 2<;>.1Q83 mv d@fendant 8er"d Rößner imorisoned in
~"'~"'''~ntha I l.Ias'3tta'=l<e·j'3nd st icken down by a s<lIJ'3dof 10
OIJ 11 (t?ml?n.

TI'e" o;tr9"~I~.j him. tl.llsted nlS a•..mo; behlnd the back. and
co IJ t 0" "a "dcIJffs tkat 1.1~ re t00 na rr01,1.He' e 1I wh e his 1e 9s
t : ~"'.:;o ') IJ i ~~ /'j tr"'I) m "~h i "d: ins IJ (' h 3 1.1 a v. b'? in q b ~ a t e n 3 n d
illciled. he dr3aoed to the elose Conflnement cell with his
t~ce Qn tke ~r6~nd.
1)" ck~ I.lavdO!.lnto th'? ,:~llar se"eral IIarders plJlle..JhiS
)eos ap~rt and on'! of them contlnuouslv tread Qn hiS
t.~Sqtl;s. Th~ l.Iarders IJo;edthe nandclJffS arO'.l"d the IJrists
be"lnd the bacl< as C'3rrvln9-StraP. whlle the legs w~re
0lJl1e<:1and the feet. 1,IeretlJist ed.
Thl arips were 3pplie..J In a conscious and trained way in
Qrd~r to t3US~ as mu,=h pain to the prisoner as possible.
When tnev r~ached the c~llar the warders pulled off allhis
cloth~s. tore them to oieces and lociled him uo in the
,=on'inement cell naked as he l,Jas." (Press release bY Bernd
;oßner's lawver .. Mathies dated 31-3-1983).

31-6-84 Anne Holling IS transported naked from the prison in Esson
to th~ prison in Bielefeld:

"(In AuglJst 31. 1984. just before 6 a.m. Anne Holl ing was
IJoilin IJP bv f~mal e 'Jarders. She IJas SIJmmoned to get ready
fo •..the transport to Brackwede (Bielefeld). She refused to
Obi"'" F~I.Jminut~s later abo'Jt 15 men occlJpied her ,=ell.
Mrs. Hol 1inQ was naked at that moment and stood with the
bac~ to th@·wal'. One of the invaders took a ,=hair and
trj~d to attack her with it. She ,=ould escape this atta,=k
':-'J!.l.IasthrOIJn 0" the b~d by other members of the commando.
Her arms were tWisted and pulled. and she was treated in a
1.'3" to causl o:;lln. Tne at tacll~rs took her bv the tnroat and
lieot th~ir hands on h~r mouth so tnat she could not
breathe. She WBo; oul l~d upriaht with h~r arms on the back
and - still belng naked - dr~gged alon9 the corridor. down
'he stal"''' to the cellar. In the .:onfinement carcer h~r
Je.']s'.Ier~OIJt in fett~rs. her a•..ms I.lerehandcuffed behind
th~ ~a.:iI. r ..• the p"'ison th~ radio I·Jao;tlJrn~d on and plaved
verv 101Jdlv. obvlouslv In order to give her tne Impression
tkat "0 on~ t:o~ld hear ne •...Nevertheleso; the other
P"'lso"~rs had ljst~ned and notlced that she had be~n
9ttac~~<:1: tkev ralsed tkeir voic~s I" P"'ot~st aO'3lnst I.he
tr~atment. Naked. fettered and wounded Mrs. Hollina had to
rem31" in th~ .:ar,=e'"ror 3 nOIJrs. Then she I·Jaso'Jli~d to a
transoort vehicle accompanied by a sQuad 0' policemen. A
"umber 0' o"'ison emolov~es formed a 1ane 1.0 wateh the
procession. The t"'ansport vehicle harl been olaced close the
~~It door 0' the orlson in order to prevent anvone from
seelna the transport of the ill-treated and naked woman.
IJhen Mrs. Hollinq '.Iasnot able to o:Timb tne vehicle since
she still remained fettered. she was pushed into the
vehi,=le and straneled brutal Iv in order to prevent her from
shoutlne. In the transport vehicle she was put in a cell
and cna1ned to the ,=halr by her arms. For 3 nours she was
nailed whi le bein9 driven to Brackwede ••. When she demanded
her clot.hes sne 'Jas ':overed bv an over.:oat. UD!.O her new
cell she was accompanied bv the commando.
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v.

HOMICIDE OF PRISONERS FROM THE RED ARMY FACTION (Art. 6 of the

Convention)

State agencies in the FRG have murdered several prisoners of the

Red Army Faction.

1) Appendix 7.2.1977

2) Appendix 12

1)1. HOLGER MEINS

Holger Meins took part in the big hungerstrike of the RAF prisoners

(13.9.74 - 4.2.75). The reasons and aims of this hungerstrike

have been explained 2) by the RAF prisoners in their hungerstrike

declaration, dated 13.9.74.

The Federal Prosecutor and the Federal Criminal Office kept them­

selves continuously informed on the state of health of the RAF

prisoners. They, as weIL as the presiding judge in Stammheim

Dr. Prinzing, were informed through numerous urgent applications

by the lawyers that, especially in the prisons in Schwalmstedt

and Wittlich where at that time the prisoners Andreas Baader and

Holger Meins were being held, the medical ca re by the prison

doctors was not determined by a concern for the physical wellbeing

and the lives of the prisoners on hungerstrike, but was directly

aimed at forcing the prisoners to break off their hungerstrike

through the painful procedures during force feeding and by means

of other measures - especially withdrawal of water. The defence

counsel therefore demanded several times that doctors of the

prisoners' own choice be admitted to ex amine and treat the

prisoners as weIL as the immediate transfer of the male prisoners

Baader, Meins and Raspe in Stuttgart-Stammheim where prisoners

were given proper medical care during force feeding. 3)

The demand that doctors of the prisoners own choice be admitted

to examine and treat them was made by the defence counsel accord­

ing to para. 91 of the "General basic principles of the Uni ted

Nations for the treatment of prisoners" da ted 1955/57, which
state:

"Based on a weIL founded application, a prisoner on remand has

to be given permission to be examined and treated by a doctor of

his own choice if it is possib1e for him to pay the expenses
invo1ved."

" ... I O):;IS,=h'llned tO a t:hair 'Jith hands behind the back.
Then som~on~ t:am~ and said I had to nave mv hair cut.
8esP1te handcuffs. foul' polit:ement. from the Federa]
C'rlmlnal Offic~ held me. one pushed nlS kn~e into mv
stomat:h. anot.her pulled t.ne fetters. the fourth fived mv
hesd. Tn~ h3lr was rat her pulled out. not r~slly cut. After
the first 3t:t.thev t:ut mv b~ard and hurt the skin ••• After
15 mlnut~s land chair on which I was fastened was carrierl
upstalrs t.a t.he s~cond floor far confront.atian. It is
cvnlcsl to be carried like in asedan chair being hand­
t:'Jffed. On t.h~ se,=ond floor t.here ',Jere5 "do'Jbl~s". all of
tnem policemen. I was to be the second person shown. I
shouted I.!hen I 'Jas carried into the hall. They pulled mv
hair in order to show mv face." (see appendix 34).

n,~ '.13" th1S trans+'~," '..'as t:arrl~d o'.1tis 03 st.r\ltinCl
"lo13tHH'l of t~~ human nghts 01' th~ prisoner. Tn~
'.'"ansport I.'':;~ P'Jrpos~1 v ,=arri'!d O'Jt.in 03 '.laVtn3t
~umll1ate-:1 and insulted the prisoner. Mrs. Holl1ng is rjgnt
1n 1nt~rpretlnQ th~ benaviour 01' tne prison autnorities as
b~lng 31med at ruining the personalltv 01' prison~rs tnrOUgn
evtrem'!lv offendinCl t.reatment.
ILawver's denunciation, dated 18-9-84)

23-10-78: report bv Stefan Wisniewski about a forced confrontation
1., jth ','I t.ne sses.

5. ').1Q 1P. "- t. ... rne_tl:Lo1. 'L'2L..JJ1 'l/ e s U..ll!.J...QJ:L2.9..li.n ~L.eti2._Ql'.""J:.2

It has become 03 common practice to use political prisoners
fort:1b'v as e'l/ldence aClainst themselves or each other. For
evamp1e. blood and spittle is taken and hair is cut bv force.
901ltlt:al prisoners are forciblv confronted with ~itnesses. For
sut:~ purposes prisoners are subJected to all sorts 01' treatment to
t:~anQe t.he1r evte'"ior: hair t:ut..erasure. put.tinq on qlasses et.c.
All thl~· IS rlon~ aoainst the explicit will 01' prisoners whO are
~ort:ed to endure t~e treatment.

22-6-1984 Gvnae,=oIOql,=al evploration 01' Manuela Happe on t.ne day
of her arrest:

On lulv 19. 1984 attorney Gerd Klusmeyer filed a ease on
behalf of his defendant Manuela Happe. Durinq _
in t~e poli,=e offi,=e Esslinqen Manuela Happe was i 11­
treated: her arms were twisted behind her back. her head
was pul led UP bv her nair. This caused a lonq-lastinq head­
aehe. !Jhen the policemen took her finger-prints they did
not mind ,=ausinCl blows all over her body. After this she
was forcibly eximined medically. She was forced on a
QvnaeeoloqlCal t:hair bY three pol icemen and two police­
women. whlle two officers of the Federal Criminal Office
pul led her l~qs apart. As a consequence she suffered
conslderable injuries •••.
AS supole~entarv information attornev Klusmever declared in
hiS letter dated AUClUSt 10. 1984: His defendant was naked
dUrl"Q tne qvnaecol~qi,=al investiqation ••• At:t:ordinq to the
lnClUlries rlir~t:t for,=e had to be applied in all cases
3Galnst Manuela Happe .••• 8ecause as a ,=onseCluence of her
beh3vl0u~ she was suspe,=ted to be a terrorist and because
s~e had refused to underqo an evamination 01' her Clenitals
bv tOdo female offlcers there was reason to believ~ that a
po,tpone~ent would endanqer the success of t.he examination.
Therefor~ tne rlirective by EKHK Mr. Ring according to S 81a
Abs. 2 StPO 'Jas t:orrect and justified."
(Quotation from the suspension decree of the public
prose,=utor StuttQ3rt dated 10-6-85. 3 Js 30204/85.)

~ObO~v can be forcen to charge himself. Therefore nobodY can be
+'or~e~ to be used as evidence aqainst himself. All such practices
a'"e 111~Clal. (Violation of Article 9 and 14 of the Pact>.

(
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On 6.10.74 the lawyer, Dr. Croissant, filed an application to

allow the medical examination of all defendants in the Stammheim

trial by doctors of their own choice. In the same application

the defence counsel urged once again that the male defendants

should immediately be transferred to Stammheim. The application

has the following wording:

"The doctors employed in the prisons have without disagreement,

tolerated or have actively taken part in the special treatment

of political prisoners, i.e. their systematic confinement in

conditions of isolation over many years. As integrated parts of

the state prison system they neglect their medical duties and

keep silent about isolation, torture and brainwashing which are

practised on the political prisoners to destroy their identity

and blackmail them into making confessions. The prisoners there­

fore refuse to be examined by a prison doctor.

"Because of the extreme urgency we request adecision on the

application according to 33, para. 4 clause 1 StPO, without

a prior hearing in the presence of the Federal Prosecutor.

"The examining magistrate has al ready - because of the urgency ­

ordered the force feeding of all prisoners without a prior hear­

ing in the presence of the defence counsel. A photocopy of the

examining magistrate's decision, dated 27.9.74, is attached.

"After receipt of the indictment, the trial court is responsible

for making adecision on this application. For the examination

of the prisoners, doctors of their own choice are being named."

The court rejected the application on 14.10.74 and gave the

following reasons:

"The defendants are on hungerstrike but refuse to be examined by

the authorised prison doctors. They demand the admission of

'doctors of their own choice'.

"The defendant Baader is presently a convicted prisoner and

therefore the court is not competent to make decisions in his

case (compare court decree, dated 8.10.74 - 2 ARs 27/74).

"Regarding the other defendants, the application does not prove

that the doctors in the various prisons are neglecting their

duties or are not aware of their responsibilities. For the
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"defendant Meinhof the court has already come to adecision

(compare decree, dated 4.10.74 - aARs 22/74). For the defen­

dants Ensslin, Meins and Raspe, for whom no new facts have been

presented, the same applies. The court would also like to

point out that it is not in the habit of making decisions on

applications which include defaming accusations."

signed Or. Prinzing Dr. Foth Dr. Berroth

Because of the brutal force feeding of Holger Meins the counsel

for the defence von Plottnitz brought an action on 15.10.74

'against the doctor in the prison Wittlich, accusing him of

inflicting bodily injury while on duty. It gave the following

reasons:

"As prison doctor in the Wittlich prison, the accused is respon­

sible for the way in which force feeding is being conducted.

The force feedings are being carried out daily under his personal

instructions and participation. As a doctor it should be the

duty of the accused to conduct the force feeding as a process of

artificial feeding according to the rules of medical ethics - as

caringly as possible for the defendant. This would first of all

mean the use of the kind of tube which is being used in hospital

when feeding patients artificially. Their diameters are con­

structed in such a way that the danger of tearing and of injuries

to the throat and gullet mucous membranes are avoided as far as

possible. The diameter of the tubes used in the medical field

is between 14 and 16 Charrieres and they are as a rule inserted

through the nase.

"Compared to this the accused uses a tube which is only slightly

thinner than the gullet of the defendant and the insertion of

this kind of tube into his throat is aimed at forcing the defen­

dant to break off his hungerstrike by inflicting pain and agony

on him during the daily procedure of force feeding. The accused

is willing to put up with severe risks to the life of the defen­

dant. Because of the convulsions which occur during the force

feeding procedure, and which so far have not led to a discon­

tinuation or to a changed method in this procedure, a constant

danger ofsuffocation or a respirative paralysis exists.

"The accused also tolerates the further torment of the defendant

which is in flic ted by some of the prison warders present at the

I '
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force feedings. At same of the force feedings leather straps

and handcuffs which are used to strap down the defendant have

been pulled so tightly that the defendant had severe pain and

the blood circulation was impaired. One of the prison warders

participating in the force feedings, presses the head of the

defendant so hard against the head rest that he incurs consider­

able pain - without being reprimanded by the accused.

"Neither in the criminal procedure nor in any other legal orders,

is there a judicial basis for the described behaviour of the

accused. The behaviour of the accused is not determined by a

cancern for the physical wellbeing of the defendant, but is

quite obviously aimed at forcing the defendant to break off his

hungerstrike.

"Since 16.9.74 over 40 political prisoners are on hungerstrike in

several prisons in the FRG and W. Berlin. As far as force feeding

has been started - and as far as we are informed - force feeding

has only in one further case been conducted in such an agonising

way as in the case of Holger Meins. This concerns the remand

prisoner Ronald Augustin, who is imprisoned in Hannover. In the

case of the remand prisoner Augustin, a paralysis of the respira­

tory muscular system has already occurred once. The lawyer of

this defendant has also brought an action.

"We request to question the accused immediately after receipt

of this indictment with regard to the charges according to 133

Stpo, because only this will make it possible to prevent the

accused from inflicting further bodily injuries on the prisoner

in the future.

"We request further, to be informed immediately of the reference

number of the preliminary proceedings which will be instituted on

receipt of this charge. As the prisoner intends to appear as co­

plaintiff in the criminal proceedings against the accused, we

also request you in form us on your own accord about the progress

of the inquiries.

signed: von Plottnitz"

On 15.10.74 a copy of this charge was se nt to the presiding judge

Dr. Prinzing with a covering letter by the lawyer von Plottnitz.

In the covering letter it was proposed:
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1. to prohibit the doctor in the Wittlich prison, Dr. med.

Hutter, immediately from carrying out any medical activity

with regard to the defendant Meins,

2. to allow a doctor who has the trust of the defendant Meins,

to be present at future force feedings by other doctors

employed by the county Rheinland-Pfalz.

The reason for this application reads as fallows:

"In the interest of the physical wellbeing of the defendant a

judicial decision with regard to the above mentioned charges

as weIl as to our application, dated 7.10.74, is now imperative.

Because of the requested presence of a doctor of his own choice

we refer to the application already made by the co-defender, Dr.

Klaus Croissant .

"We also request to be informed of what kind of nutritious

components the nutriment liquid consists of which has so far

been used for force feeding and how much of this the defendant

has been given at the daily force feedings.

"We attach a written declaration by the defendant in which he

absolves Dr. med. Hutter from his professional duty to observe

medical confidentiality.

signed: von Plottnitz"

All the relevant documents were not only sent to the 2nd Criminal

Court, but were also either passed on by telephone or copies

were sent immediately to the Prosecutor's office.

Even though these facts were known, the presiding judge Dr.

Prinzing did not order the examination of the defendant by a

doctor of his own choice. The examination by trusted doctors of

all defendants had been refused by the 2nd Criminal Court on

14.10.74. Following the application, dated 7.10.74, by the

lawyer von Plottnitz to use only no se tubes with a certain dia­

meter at the force feedings, it was merely decided on 22.10.74

to use a tube at force feedings which could be inserted through

the nase. The other points were rejected.

The reasons for this decision were as fallows:

"The defendant is being force fed. According to the prison

doctor a 12mm strong tube is being used which is ins er ted through

the mouth. A thinner tube could be used but would have to be

inserted through the nase. The prison does not see itself in a
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position where Lhc me~lcal nrl~ nurslng staff are ab]e to da

Lhls. According Ln the GovernmenL Medical Officer Or. Lang,

who has ordered a tube whlch is inserted through the nase for

the prison in Stuttgart-Stammheim, this is a common method. A

special ist is not necessary for this. According to the require­

ments of 119 para. 3 StPO the more considerate method should be

chosen, when this is possible. That is the case here. The

provision of the necessary medical staff is left to the prison

administration. Organisational problems do not, as a rule,

stand opposed to a legally advisable directive.

"The other points in the application of 7.10.74 are not sub­

stantiated. It is not up to the court to give instructions to

the doctor on the quality of the tube he is using, its strength

and suchlike. Orinking water is not being denied to the defen­

dant; a directive for this is not necessary.

signed: Or. Prinzing Maier Or. Berroth"

with regard to the further applications by the counsel for the

defence, da ted 15.10.74, to prohibit the doctor of the Wittlich

prison from any further medical activity in connection with the

treatment of Holger Meins, to allow a doctor of his own choice

to be present at future force feedings and information about the

exact amount of nutriment given to Holger Meins neither the

presiding judge, Or. Prinzing, nor his deputy, Or. Foth, made

any decisions, despite the obvious urgency for judicial inter­

vention.

Not until 21.10.74 did the 2nd Criminal Court decide on the

complaint, dated 5.6.74, which the defence through the lawyer

Or. Croissant had lodged against the decision of the examining

magistrate. In this decision the transfer of the male prisoners

to Stuttgart-Stammheim had been refused. The court had taken 4~

months to decide on the complaint although the defence had

pointed out through the lawyer, Or. Croissant, on 3.7.74 the

extreme urgency of the transfer as folIows:

"We assume that the complaint has by now been passed on to the

court for a judgement.

"With regard to the explanations given in the written complaint,
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Lh e () r t1er J y I' I "I' iH d I i ()n () I' I h" <Ic' I' r>n C" c;) n n () ] [I n <J e 1 Iw (i r il w n

out hy thc (JeI dY i() Lhe t rdn', f(~ r.

" Thel mp res s j{)n s110 u 1(I tlw re I'()re IJe av0 Ided that Llle f- ede ['a 1

Attorney's Office and its auxill3ry 3gencies, especial]y the

State Securlty OepartmenL 01' thc Securlty Group In the Federal

Criminal Office are making the decislon about the transfer and

the police exerclse involved in this.

"A copy of our complaint is attached, in ca se that it has not

yet been presented to the examini~g magistrate.

signed: Croissant"

The court judgement regardiog the transfer which was finally

passed, dated 21.]0.74, was officially given to the counsel for

the defence only ctrter the death of Holger Meins. It stated:

"The Oefendant Baader is to be moved to the prison Stuttgart­

Stammheim in the week after November 2, 1974 at the latest, the

defendant Raspe and Meins at the ]atest by November 2, 1974.

signed: Foth Maier Or. Berroth"

With regard to this transfer decision the Federal Prosecutor

wrote the fol]owing to the court on 24.10.74:

"For the comp]etion 01' a transfer [ propose - according to the

usual practlcc when transferring these defendants - to make the

following arrangements:

In vlew of t11l'increased danger 01' escape, the known liberation

pi ans 0 f me m I) ,. rsol' the c rim ina] ljr0 Upan d theb ehav i0 ur 0 f the

ac cu sed sol' a: tl1e de fendan t s11Cl 11 Id bc strap ped d 0 wn dur in9 the

transport.

"The transporl of the defendant will be carried out by members

of the Federal Criminal Office. Irequest therefore that the

governor of the prlson In Wltt]ich be Informed as to the handover

of the defendant Meins to the officials who are responsible for

his transport, and to inform the qovernor 01' the Stuttgart prison

to receive hj",.

"A 5 a pr j 0 r hC'.H i n9 n I' thc (i (> f' r~n'Ian t c(]u Iden dan ger the 0 bjec tive

01' thf~ Instp,,-t ion, I rcqucsl 1,-,.11)'l("loothis iiccording to 33

para. I, "LI'O.
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"The transport of the defendant will need thorough preparations

and security measures. I must therefore point out now that the

transfer dates mentioned above cannot be adhered to. But I will

try to expedite the matter as quickly as possible.

signed: I. A. Zeis"

The statement in the letter by the Federal Attorney General,

dated 24.10.74, that the transfer dates could not be adhered to

because of "thorough preparations and security measures" is an

obvious lie. In reality the Federal Criminal Office had all the

material and personnel available to carry out the transport with

no effort within the given time.

Th:s is also demonstrated by the transfer of Gudrun Ensslin and

Ulrike Meinhof who had already been transfer red in April 1974 to

the Stuttgart-Stammheim prison, the place of their trial.

After recelvlng the letter from the Federal Prosecutor, da ted

24.10.74, the 2nd Criminal Court of the Court of Appeal in

Stuttgart extended the latest transfer date of the defendants

Meins and Raspe by a further 2 days until 4.11.74, as the assist­

ing judge Dr. Berroth confirmed to the journalist Bauer from the

Reuter agency.

But the date of 4.11.74 was also not met by the Federal Prosecutor

and the Federal Criminal Office, neither Holger Meins nor Jan-Carl

Raspe were transferred to Stuttgart-Stammheim.

On Friday, 8.11.74, Holger Meins phoned the lawyer Laubscher in

Heidelberg durlng the late afternoon from Wittlich prison and

told hirn that he was in a very bad state of health. He said, "I

cannot get up any more." According to the impression of lawyer

Laubscher, Holger Meins had considerable difficulties in speaking

clearly and to concentrate.

Because of this phone call by Holger Meins, the lawyer Haag drove

to Wlttlich on Saturday morning, 9.11.74. He arrived there

shortly after 11.00 a.m. After Haag had been recorded in the

visitors' book, a prison security official appeared after a

cerlaln time and explained that Holger Meins "allegedly" could

no longer walk from his cell to the visitor's cello By using
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the word "allegedly" the security officer obviously warlted

to give the impression that the prisoner Melns was orl1y slmulat­

ing his condition. with regard to the Information from the

security officer Haag requested he conduct his talk wlth the

prisoner Meins in his cello This was refused to hlm by the

security officer with the explanation that nobody was allowed

to go into the cell of Holger Meins without the permiSSion of

the prison governor and the Ministry of Justice. On the strength

of that Haag stated that he would not leave the prison before

speaking to Holger Meins. The security officer finally agreed

to contact the prisoner governor. As a result of his inquiry he

then explained to Haag that the prison governor was not allowing

the lawyer to see Holger Meins in his cell "for security reasons".

After trying unsuccessfully to motivate the prison officpc~

present to in form the Ministry of Justice in Mainz and the

emergency services in Karlsruhe, Haag left the prison and phoned

Dr. Croissant in Stuttgart. A phone call from the prison had

not been permitted for the reason that it was not possible to

settle the costs for the telephone which was available for use

on Saturdays.

At around 12.00 a.m. Haag informed lawyer Dr. Croissant by phone

about the situation. He asked him to contact the judge immediately

and to file the following applications:

1. to order the Wittlich prison that the lawyer's visit can

take place in Holger Meins's cell

2. to order immediately that a doctor of his own choice can

visit Holger Meins in prison.

It was not possible for Dr. Croissant to make immediate contact

by phone with Dr. Prinzing. He had requested at the beginning

of the hungerstrike to have Dr. Prinzing's private phone number

for urgent calls but this had been refused by Dr. Prlnzing who

told Dr. Croissant that he could get in touch with him via the

County Court Office. Croissant therefor~ had to ring there first

which meant that much valuable time was lost. At first he goI

hold of an official named Ginger. Dr. Croissant expJalned lo

hirn that the life of one of the defendants was In danger, lo

ring Dr. Prinzing on this very urgent matter and tu arrange fnl

hirn to call back. The official replied that he wou]~ nol lake
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orders from [roissant. Only after a lang exchange did lawyer

Croissant manage to convince the official that it was his duty

to comply with his request. The official then replied that he

first had to ask his superior, a Mr. Stimpfig. Croissant had

to phone back a second time after 12 to 20 minutes and remind

them once again about the urgency of his getting in touch with

Or. Prinzing. At about 12.30 p.m. Or. Prinzing finally rang

Or. Croissant who described the situation to him and drew his

attention especially to the fact that the condition of Holger

Meins was now extremely critical, that he was not able to walk

any more and that lawyer Haag had not been allowed to enter his

cell for alleged security reasons. Or. Prinzing explained that

he was not able to ve,ify the security considerations mentioned

above. Or. Pr~~~ing was furthermore annoyed that Croissant had

rung him on a Saturday. He explained that he was fatigued by

the 8aader-Meinhof trial which took place five days a week and

that he needed the weekend to relax, to be able to concentrate

himself on the coming week. In future he would make sure that

nobody could get in touch with him at the weekend. Croissant

replied that it was Or. Prinzing's duty and responsibility to:

1. make sure immediately by phoning the prison that lawyer

Haag could see Holger Meins, that a simple phone call by

him would be sufficient

2. to issue an order that Holger Meins should immediately be

seen by a doctor of his choice.

Or. Prinzing explained that it had already been decided that

doctors of their own choice would not be allowed to see the 5

defendants and that it had to stay like that. Would Or. Croissant

please advise Meins to stop his hungerstrike and to eat again.

When Croissant pointed out to him that an action had already

been brought against the prison doctor for serious bodily injury

and serious neglect of his medical duties, that Dr. Prinzing had

a copy of this charge and that it was in his power to change the

decision, Or. Prinzing explained that he could not do this on

his own and that only the court was able to do this. 8ut that

it would not be posslblc tu assemhle everybody now and Croissant

should try Lo contact the stan~by judge. When Croissant once

again pointl'd out Lo him that II(HIt' other than he himself was

(
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authorlscd and able to act quickly and effectively, Or. Prinzlng

promised to phone the wittlich prison to find out If Holger

Meins's situation was critical. After about 10 minutes Dr.

Prinzing informed Croissant by phone that lawyer Haag was

presently visiting the prisoner. No indication that the con­

dition of Holger Meins was deteriorating was given by Or. Prinzlng.

Haag had returned to Wittlich prison after his first phone call

with Croissant. There he was told that the visit could be con­

duc ted in such a way that Holger Meins would be brought to the

administration wing on a stretcher and that the visit could take

place there. This procedure had been agreed to by the Ministry

of Justice, the prison governor and Holger Meins. Shortly after

13.00 p.m. Holger Meins was carried into the visiting room on a

stretcher. He was lying on the stretcher with his eyes closed,

his body emaciated to a skeleton, His condition was extremely

critical. Ouring his talk with Holger Meins, Haag's conviction

strengthened that Holger Meins's life was in imminent danger.

Holger Meins showed him his body. The had put toilet paper and

paper handkerchiefs into his trousers to hold them up and to

prevent the belt from cutting into his hip bones. His talk with

Haag was very laborious because most of the time he was only able

to whisper. Haag had to press his ear onto Holger Meins's mouth

to understand anything at all. Holger Meins managed occasionally,

by pulling all his strength together, to manage a slightly louder

sentence. Holger Meins told him not to leave him alone and Haag

stayed at his side. As Holger Meins's condition continued to

deteriorate Haag left him at 15.00 p.m. to try for immediate

medical aid and to get intensive treatment started to save his

life. Between 15.00 and 15.15 p.m. Haag talked to the prison

security officer who informed him that the deputy governor had

left the prison and that the prison doctor was away travelling

and would not return before Monday. Haag pointed out that Holger

Meins was dying and that immediate medical attention was necessary.

The security officer did not respond to this but replied instead

that Holger Meins had been able only yesterday to go to the

telephone and that a doctor had seen hirn every day. To him it
was quite impossible that anything cuold happen and should a case

of emergency occur, which the medical orderlyin the prison hos­

pital would be able to ascertain, then the emergency doctor in

the town would be called.

I~
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When Haag realised that the people in charge of the prison were

not present or not reachable he left the prison and reported to

Croissant by phone of what was happening.

As Croissant was no langer able to reach the judge by phone Haag

dictated a letter by phone addressed to Dr. Prinzing in which he

asked him to act immediately to save the life of Holger Meins.

The letter had the following text:

"I have today, Saturday 9.11.74, visited the prisoner Holger

Meins in the Wittlich prison.

Since 13.9.74 Holger Meins and 35 other political prisoners have

been on hungerstrike against their isolation confinement and

special treatment, against their destrurtive imprisonment which

is aimed at destroying their revclu~ionary identity. Their

destructive prison conditions are still continuing.

Holger Meins weighs lessthan 42 kilograms,he can nolonger

walk,

he can hardlytalk.Heisdying.Atthe latest he will

be dead in 2 days.

You are responsiblefor his death because

you are determining the

conditions of his imprisonment.

Your responsibility stays with you even if you should phone the

prison in Wittlich and should get information about his con­

dition from there.

The fact is that in Holger Meins's case the destructive conditions

of confinement are aimed at his death through slow starvation.

You have known from the beginning of the hungerstrike that it

will end when the isolation and special treatment have been

stopped. You are therefore fully aware of your responsibility.

Allow the immediate presence of one of the trusted doctors

mentioned in our letter, dated 6.10.74. As a further doctor

name Dr. Christof Loecherback, 7401 Talheim, Roemerweg 5.

For lawyer Haag:

signed Marieluise Becker"

That letter was taken personally by the lawyers Becker and

Croissant to Dr. Prinzing's private flat as it might have taken

more time on a Saturday to send it by telegram. Dr. Prinzing

came to the garden gate to receive the letter after Croissant had
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explained to him via the intercom "I must speak to you at onre.

Holger Meins is dying." He was informed verbally about the con­

tent of the letter when he received it. Marieluise Becker as

weIl as Dr. Croissant pointed out to him that he was able to

prevent the death of the prisoner. they insisted that a doctor

of the prisoner's choice be admitted. They referred to the

application by the counsel for the defence, dated 6.10.74, in

wh ich 6 doctors, amongst them leading authorities whose specialist

knowledge was above all doubt, had been named. It was explicitly

pointed out to Dr. Prinzing that Dr. Juergen Schmidt-Voigt should

be asked to come. This doctor had given a medical report on

Astrid Prall who, as a result of being imprisoned in the empty

wing of the women's psychiatric wing of the Cologne prison where

she had also been subjected to acoustic isolation, had been

tortured to such an extent that she had become unfit for imprison­

ment and had had to be released. The demand by the defence law­

vers to consult the trusted doctors was denied despite the

extremely critical condition of Holger Meins with the remark

that Astrid Proll had gone underground after her release.

At the time when lawyer Becker and Croissant were tal king to

Dr. Prinzing, Holger Meins had already died. The doctor who

had been called at 16.00 p.m. by a prison officer could, at

17.15 p.m. only establish the death of Holger Meins.

Holger Meins was 1,84 m tall and when he died his weight was

down to 39 kg. He died through slow starvation.

Holger Meins nad left the following declaration with his defence

counsel Croissant:

"Wittlich, 9.3.74

Should I every die in prison then it was murder - no matter

what the pigs will maintain. I will never kill myself, I will

never give them any pretext. I am not a Provo and not an

adventurer. If they say - and there are indications of this ­

'suicide', 'serious illness', 'self defence', 'trying to escape'

don't believe the lies of the murderers.

Meins"

If Dr. Prinzing had ordered immediately after the phone call

which he had had with Croissant at about 12.30 p.m. on 9.11.74
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that Holger Meins be examlned at onee - If neeessary by an

emergeney doetor - Holger Meins eould have been taken at onee

to the intensive eare unit at the University Clinie Mainz and

eould have been saved. This has been eonfirmed by Prof. Dr. Frey

at the Anaesthesia unit at the University Clinie Mainz, when

Croissant was visiting the prisoners Grundmann and Juensehke who

had been taken there.

But his life eould have been saved with absolute eertainty if

Dr. Prinzing had insisted that the Federal Proseeutor adhere to

the designated transfer dates of the prisoners to the prison

Stuttgart-Stammheim. The first date was 2.11.74, later extended

to 4.11.74 at the latest. But Dr. Prinzing submitted to the

orders of the State Security Authorities even though he knew,

sinee the beginning of October, of the insuffieient medieal

treatment given to Holger Meins. At the same time, from the

beginning of the hungerstrike to Holger Meins's death, Dr. Prinzing

neglected to in form hirnself from the prison doetors of the eon­

dition of the prisoner.

The Federal Minister of Justiee at that time, vogel, expressed

his opinion on the death of Holger Meins in the magazine "Der

Spiegel" '16.12.74) with the following words:

"Even the fundamental right for life is not absolute."

At the request of Holger Meins's relatives, lawyer von Plottnitz

brought an action on 19.11.74 against the Federal Proseeutor,

Bubaek, the head of the State Seeurity Authority of the Federal

Criminal Office (Security Group Bonn), against the presiding

judge in the Stammheim trial, Dr. Theodor Prinzing, against the

governor of Wittlich prison and the prison seeurity offieers, as

weIl as against the prison doctor Dr. Hutter "on aecount of being

suspected of the criminal aet of murder", 211 StGB.

Amongst others he stated:

"In view of the information he reeeived at lunchtime on 9.11.74

about the physical condition of the killed Holger Meins the

aeeused Dr. Prinzing should - certainly under the aspeet of his

duty to have regard to the prineiple of welfare - have feIt

obliged to immediately take judieial measures for the medlcal

eare of Holger Meins. There is no doubt at all that measures
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for the preservation of the Ilealth and life of a remand prisoner

who is in danger of dying are part of the judieial welfare duty.

It was therefore the legal duty of the aeeused Dr. Prinzing to

aet immediately at the time of his phone eall at lunchtime on

9.11.74 with lawyer Dr. Croissant. The aeeused Dr. Prinzing

should either, as suggested by Dr. Croissant, have permitted the

presenee of one of the trusted doetors earlier named by the

eounsel for the defenee or he should at least have ordered the

prison to immediately start measures for medieal eare, if neeessary

by transferring the now dead prisoner to the intensive eare unit

of a hospital. The aeeused Dr. Prinzing was authorised to give

judieial instruetions of the above mentioned kind aeeording to

125 para. 2 elause 3 StPO. Contrary to his remarks made to

Dr. Croissant a eontaet with the other court judges was not

neeessary. The remarks by the aeeused Dr. Prinzing must be seen

as exeuses.

The aceused should also not have relied upon the prison

authorities or the prison doctor in Wittlieh to instigate the

necessary measures for the immediate medical eare of the dead

prisoner. Beeause the aceused knew al ready before 9.11.74 that

the prison authorities and the prison doctor neither seriously

wanted adequate medical care nor were they in a position to

offer this eonsidering the faeilities within the prison. On the

strength of an application by the counsel for the defenee, dated

7.10.74, Dr. Prinzing's court had to order the prison administra­

tion and the prison doctor through a decree, da ted 22.10.74, to

earry out the force feeding with a nose tube aceording to the

rules of medical ethies. Before that the prison administration

had made a statement to the court that they were not able "with

their medical and nursing staff" to use a nose tube.

Dr. Prinzing has viola ted his legal duties to act without delay

in a striking and totally unjustifiable manner. At lunchtime on

9.11.74 Dr. Prinzing has - despite knowledge that a danger to

the life of the prisoner could not be exeluded because of his

weakened condition - failed as a judge to order that even the

most minimal medical care be provided for the killed prisoner.

Through his neglect he has at the very least eonsented to the

death of Holger Meins. If Dr. Prinzing had ordered immediate
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medical measures at lunchtime or the afternoon of 9.11.74,

especially drips or similar treatment, the life of Holger Meins

could have been saved. In this context we refer to the obtaining

of the expert witness report in the preliminary proceedings.

The reason for the behaviour of Dr. Prinzing was first of all

his disinclination to exercise further judicial responsibility

on top of his phone call to the Wittlich prison on a Saturday.

This showed itself in his ill-concealed irritation at being

bothered at all on a Saturday with information about the extremely

critical condition of Holger Meins's health by Dr. Croissant.

Considering all circumstances such a motive in the case of the

accused, Dr. Prinzing, must legally be regarded as base accord­

ing to 211 StGB. To that extent the extreme disparity between

the behaviour of the accused Dr. Prinzing - his need for a rest­

ful Saturday - and the death of Holger Meins caused through his

neglect has to be emphasised (compare Dreher, note ISa 211 stGS).

Especially with regard to his position as a judge the accused,

Dr. Prinzing, must know that he has to undertake everything

required of him to save the life of a remand prisoner, irres­

pective of whether the remand prisoner is on hungerstrike or

not. A judicial point of view which va lues the life of a remand

prisoner less than a personal need for rest on a Saturday is

incompatible with the position and the responsibilities of a

judge in the legal and constitutional system of the FRG and

therefore especially objectionable."

The remand prison rules include the following instruction under

no. 57:

"Should hospital treatment become necessary the remand prisoner

will be admitted to the hospital wing of the prison. The trans­

fer to a public hospital requires the consent of the judge. If

the necessary treatment cannot be given to the siek remand

prisoner within the prison the governor has to request adecision

of the judge."

The Public Prosecutor's Office Trier dismissed the ca se on 20.8.76

(Referenee: Js 1233/74). The decision to dismiss the case is

based on an expert report and not on the questioning of the

accused or witnesses.
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11. says:

"With regard to the preliminary proceedings against the prison

doctor of Wittlich prison, leading medical officer Or. med.

Hutter on account of negligence leading to death as weIl as your

charge against the presiding judge at the Provincial Court

Stuttgart, Dr. Theodor Prinzing, amongst others on account of

murder.

I have stopped the preliminary proceedings for lack of evidence.

On September 13, 1974 Holger Meins and other prisoners from the

Baader-Meinhof group started another hungerstrike •...

The hungerstrike was carried out under the pretext to improve

the ~~legedly bad prison conditions ....

In reality the hungerstrike was part of a planned fight against

the state with the aim to force the release from legitimate

imprisonment or at least to put in doubt in the public eye the

constitutional legality of the measures taken by the state

agencies ....

To gain a general view of the nutrious condition and the degree

of the inevitable emaciation the prison doctor considered it

necessary to examine the urine for aceton content. But the

prisoner also refused to pass on any urine ....

Therefore the forced taking of urine by way of a catheter was

being considered but this idea had to be dropped because of the

health risks involved. On September 30, 1974 the judge gave his

consent to start artificial feeding which had to be done by

force in the operating theatre of the prison hospital. The food

was infused daily with a 12 mm diameter tube. It consisted of

a fatty soup which had been mixed with 2 raw eggs and carbohydrate

in form of roasted semolina. Holger Meins put up a strong resis­

tance. At first it sometimes needed 5 to 7 prison warders and

2 nurses to take him to the hospital. During the force feedings

he had to be strapped down onto the operating table. As he

would not open his mouth voluntarily a mouth block had to be put

into his mouth by force. It was also necessary to fasten the

tongue with a metal fingerstall ....

Holger Meins as weIl as you in your position .as counsel for the

defence objected several times to this way of force feeding .•..
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On Oetober 22, 1974 the 2nd Criminal Court of the Provincial

Court Stuttgart ordered that the artificial feeding should in

future be earried out with a thinner tube inserted through the

nose ....

According to the result of the proceedings it has to be con­

sidered as proved that Holger Meins did not die as a result of

his refusal to accept the supply of a sufficient amount of calories

during the time of October 23 until November 9, 1974 ....

The expert has also examined wh ether there was at any time any

occasion for the accused to admit the prisoner to a public hos­

pital or to a special clinic. But according to his convincing

statement there were no sufficient reasons for this. The admit­

tance to a hospital or a clinic was also not necessary because

an acute danger to life could not have been assumed as a result

of malnutrition. Such a judgement was - according to the expert ­

not justified because the prisoner succeeded in withholding the

gaining of the necessary information for this, his bodyweight

and physical appearance. Prof. Dr. Zoellner further stated that

it was impossible to foresee the moment of consumption. Some­

times patients live on for months and years where an early death

had been expected and were even cured in some cases whereas

other patients who had been thought to be out of danger could

suddenly die. The expert therefore considers the view of

officers in the prison Wittlich and counsel for the defence as

incorrect that the early death could have beenforeseen; these

views are incompatible with medical experiences •... (underlined

by us)

Both experts have demonstrated convincingly that it would not

have been possible to save the life of Holger Meins in the last

few days even if he had been admitted to a clinic. As the

energy reserves of his body had been spent the terminal complica­

tions could not even have been controlled in anormal clinic.

Therefore the temporary absence of the accused on November 9, 1974

was not causative for the death of the prisoner.

Holger Meins did not die because the prison doctor or any other

agents of Justice or police have in any way failed. The respon­

sibility for his death rests exclusively with hirnself and those

who have possibly encouraged him to go on hungerstrike and who

later failed to dissuade hirn from continuing.
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The decision Lu dismiss Lhe case was announced the same day on

which the Greek defence counsel for Lhe anti-imperialist resis­

tance fighter Holf Pohle, lawyer Evangelis Giannopulos, showed

the photograph of Holger Meins's corpse at a press conference in

Athens for the protection of his client. Also on the same day

the formation of an International Investigation Commission for

the clarification into the death of Ulrike Meinhof was announced

in Stuttgart aL a press conference.

The lawyer Rupert von Plottnitz lodged an appeal against the

decision to stop the proceedings on the instructions of Holger

Meins's father. The appeal was rejected on 8.2.77 by the State

Prosecutor in Koblenz. In the trial against the prisoners from

the Commando Holger Mej~s be fore the Provincial Court Dusseldorf,

the lawyer Dr. Cruissant submitted on 7.2.77 an application for

the Questioning of 52 witnesses and experts to bring the follow­

ing evidence be fore the court:

"Hol ger Meins was executed during the collective hungerstrike

from 13.9.74 - 5.2.75, prisoners from the RAF against the

systematically destructive prison conditions in 8 prisons of

the FRG, under the direction of the Federal Prosecutor, Siegfried

Buback, and the head of the State Security Department of the

Federal Criminal Office and their president, Dr. Horst Herold,

by consciously manipulating the point of time which had been

decided for his transfer to the prison in Stuttgart-Stammheim.

Also responsible for his death are the presiding judge, Dr.

Theodor Prinzing, and those of the prison staff involved."

The court rejected this complaint with a statement by the Federal

Attorney General at the Federal Court, da ted 16.2.77, ref.:

1 StE 1/75. Extract from the statement:

"The allegat ions made by this lawyer in his application, dated

7.2.77, do not represent one of the numerous verbal blunders,

partly cause by a certain agitation, but an obviously long-planned

defamation, whose shocking enormity must be recalled here by

repeating some especially exemplary passages ....

To summarise the folIowing has to be said to the complaint lodged

by the lawyer, Dr. Croissant:

I '



- 89 -

1. lhe complaint has to be rejected as inadmissable as it

contains attaeks against the state under the eloak of a

eomplaint without any substantive relation to the proeeedings.

2. The request to introduee evidence is, as far as it is

intended to produee objective facts, to be rejected as in­

appropriate and without importance for this trial because

of the pursuit of aims which are unconnected with this

trial and aimed at obstructing the trial. ( 244 para 3 StPO)".

- qo -

2. KATHARINA HAMMERSCHMIOl

On 29.6.72 Katharina Hammerschmidt gave herself up voluntarily

to German justiee, accompanied by her lawyer. She eame from

Paris. Beeause of an arrest warrant, which had been issued on

27.11.71, Katharina Hammersehmidt was arrested and kept in con­

ditions of isolatio from 30.6.72 onwards.

She had the fol1owing pains and had therefore asked sinee 26.9.73

to see a doctor: sharp pain in her breast, diffieulties in speak­

ing, hoarseness, swelling of her neck.

She was final1y examined by the prison doetor and a day later by

the prison specialist Or. Loeckel. ;lve days later an x-ray was

taken of her ehest, allegedly without any findings. She was not

medically treated. Instead it was said to her: "There is nothing

wrong with you." In the next few weeks Katharina Hammersehmidt's

condition beeame worse. She had trouble breathing, the speech

difficulties and breast pains increased, the neck became nearly

as big as her head. She therefore demanded over and over aga in

to be treated. But the prison administration declared:

"Just look at yourself now. That comes from going on hungerstrike.

For the rest that is a result of your shouting out of the window."

On 16.10.73 she went on hungerstrike. She demanded a medical

examination and treatment.

As the prison doetors refused to treat her the lawyer succeeded

in persuading a doctor from the University Clinic, Dr. Wenzel,

to examine her in prison on 12.11.73. In view of the alarming

condition of Katharina Hammerschmidt, he demanded that aseries

of examinations be carried out immediately. This was at first

refused by the prison doctors. But 8 days later she was examined

by doetors of the prison under the pretence that Dr. Wenzel would

examine her. Again she was not treated. 7 days later she had

especially strong suffocation attacks. Only 3 days later - after

64 days of not being treated - she was released from prison on

30.11.73 and admitted to the Clinicum Steglitz and treated.
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There It was dlscovered that she had a tumour the slze of a

child's head. According to the doctors this could have been

recognised earlier and could have been cured. Katharina

Hammerschmidt died on 29.6.75.

On her instructions her defence counsel, lawyer Otto Schily,

filed an action with the Public Prosecutor at the court in Berlin

on 9.1.74 "against the persons responsible for not giving her the

necessary medical treatment during the time of her imprisonment

on remand because of attempted homicide and neglecting to give

medical aid. 1)

From the charge:

"At the end of September 1973 Mrs. Hammerschmidt discovered a

strong swelling of her neck. She had considerable neck and breast

pa ins as weIl as severe difficulties in breathing and swallowing.

In view of these severe symptoms she requested, on 26.9.73, to

see a prison doctor. In accordance with her request she was seen

by a doctor on 27.9.73. This doctor declared, after having

examined her, that she could not find anything. As a result of

this she was, on the same day, 27.9:73, examined by another

doctor. On the 1st or 2nd of October 1973 an X-ray of the thorax

was taken as weIl as a blood sampie. The results of the examina­

tion were at first not given to her. Only at a later date one of

the doctors said to her: 'There is nothing wrong with you.' As

the swellings of her neck, breast and in her face got bigger

every day and the difficulties in breathing and swallowing

increased considerably until they resulted in actual suffocation

attacks, Mrs. Hammerschmidt went once a week to see the prison

doctor on the so-called 'doctor's day' and pointed out to him

the deterioration of her condition. But on the part of the

doctor there was never any attempt to make a precise diagnosis.

A treatment of the illness did not take place. Mrs. Hammerschmidt

was only given sleeping pills for the night and similar drugs.

Her condition was treated as a trifling matter by different

doctors and nurses. One doctor declared: 'Just look at yourself

now. Th8t comes from going on hungerstrike.' At another

occasion it was sald to her that this was the·result from 'shouting'

out of the window. The doctors remained completely passive in

manner throughout even though it was possible even for a layman

" '1_-' __ 1 ~ __ -' : : _: __ ,
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to recognise the daily deterioration caused by Mrs. Hammerschmldt's

illness.

After Mrs. Hammerschmidt had informed her defence counsels about

her condition they succeeded in persuading Or. Wenzel from the

Clinicum Steglitz to examine Mrs. Hammerschmidt in the women's

prison. After an approval for this examination had been procured

from the court, Or. Wenzel visited Mrs. Hammerschmldt on

November 12th, 1973. The examination was only allowed to take

place in the presence of one of the prison doctors.

In a letter to one of the prison doctors treating her, dated

14.11.73, Dr. Wenzel wrote that a szintigraphical examination

had to be carried out urgently. In the letter it was str2ssed

that a tumour cpijd mpt be excluded and that an examination had

to take plac~ at once. November 19th or November 20th, 1973 were

suggested as examination dates. After receiving this letter by

Or. Wenzel a prison doctor went to see Mrs. Hammerschmidt and

confirmed that the examination mentioned by Or. Wenzel was

necessary. He said literally: 'We agree with the diagnosis of

our colleague Or. Wenzel. You will be examined outside. Prepare

yourself for this.' According to a statement by the doctor the

examination should take place on 19 or 20.11.73. Appropriate

preparations were made, amongst others Or. Wenzel was belng

informed that the examination would take place on 20.11.73. He

was therefore in readiness on that day. But the move of Mrs.

Hammerschmidt to the Clinicum was cancelled at short notlce;

neither Or. Wenzel nor the defence counsels were given any

reasons for this. Only a rumour reached Or. Wenzel, that the

court had refused to permit the move to the hospltal/

The doctors treating her in prison have obviously not protested

against the refusal to have her examined in the hospital.

Only on November 28th, 1973 Mrs. Hammerschmidt was taken to the

hospital in Moabit under the pretence that Or. Wenzel would

examine her there. The move to the hospital in Moabit took

place under a massive show of police strength. In the hospital

each door which led to the examination room was manned by 2
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police officers with sub-machine guns. The hospital was sur­

rounded by police. The examination was carried out by a doctor

working at the hospital. A growth was discovered in her throat.

Mrs. Hammerschmidt was not given any details of the examination

results. After the examination she was taken back to the prison.

Ouring the night of 28 to 29 November, she suffered an especially

heavy suffocation attack. She called for help and one prison

warder stayed with her while the other tried by phone to call a

doctor. She managed to get hold of one of the principal doctors

at the prison. But he refused to go and see Mrs. Hammerschmidt.

His words: 'We have been instructed not to do anything with

Hammerschmidt; it's too late to ~o anything for her.' The prison

warder then phoned an emer~~'lcy doctor of the prison who also

refused at first to come, and who asked whether she was already

'wheezing'. After the prison warder had answered: 'Ves, she is

wheezing, but not for much longer' the doctor finally came and

gave Mrs. Hammerschmidt several injections.

On November 30th, 1973 the Court in Berlin decided to lift the

arrest warrant against Mrs. Hammerschmidt and to order her release

from prison.

On account of the extensive and careful examinations after her

release by the special ist for Internal Medicine, Or. med. Neubauer,

and the doctors at the Clinicum Steglitz, the following diagnosis

was made:

(a) a mediastinal tumour the size of a child's head and pleura­

effusion on the right side. The tumour is the cause of the

pressure in head, neck and upper extremeties and has led to the

formation of a collateral circulation bia the frontal thorax wall.

This kind of mediastinal tumour is a sarkom which alone because

of its size cannot be opera ted upon.

(b) In addition there exists a decompensated autonomous adenom

of the left thyroid gland.

In view of this grave diagnosis Mrs. Hammerschmidt had to be

admitted to the Clinicum Steglitz for treatment. Radiation

therapy of the tumour was started.
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The disregard for the illness of Mrs. Hammerschmidt, which

since the end of September had deteriorated dramatically every

day - and which was recognisable even to a layman 1) - and the

total impassivity of the doctors treating her, amount to factual

attempted homicide with limited intent. With regard to their

medical knowledge the doctors were obliged to carry out the

necessary examinations for a necessary diagnosis. If the

available equipment in the prison were not sufficient for carry­

ing out the necessary examinations it was the duty of the doctors

to inform the prison administration and the court and to ins ist

on a transfer of Mrs. Hammerschmidt to a clinic where the neces­

sary appliances were available.

But the doctors responsible for her did nothing. They neither

diagnosed her illness nor did they start a therapy.

Failure to provide the necessary medical treatment amounts to

the fact of failing to give medical aid.

signed Schily"

Or. med. F. W. Neubauer, specialist in Internal Medicine, who

treated Katharina Hammerschmidt, writes in his report, dated

7.1.74: "The delay between the examination by prison doctors at

the beginning of October, and the consulting of a competent

radiologist from the Clinicum Steglitz on November 12th, 1973,

is incomprehensible from a medical point of view - even more so

as Or. Wenzel had already quite clearly expressed his suspicion

of a tumour. In my opinion the patient should already at the

beginning of her illness - when she repeatedly tried to draw

attention to her distinct symptoms - have been examined with all

equipment available to modern medicine by competent doctors in

suitable institutes.

It is incomprehensible that a radiologist was consulted only on

the insistence by the defence counsel for Mrs. Hammerschmidt ...

According to verbal information by the Clinicum Steglitz the

mediastinal tumour is an immature alveolus s~rkom which receives

" I 1•.•••.•••...••.• 1 ~ •..••••• ...4 ,"". " •..•
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radiation treatment because it cannot be opera ted on. In my

opinion this tumour had al ready in September, led to the symptoms

which the patient has described. An earlier diagnosis would have

made an earlier therapy and possibly even an operation possible.

Berlin January 7th 1974 signed: Dr. med. F. W. Neubauer"

"The governor of the prison for women had to order on October

12th, 1973 the removal of your client to the punishment cell

because she became more and more agitated. This cell had been

checked medically several times and no objections had been made.

This has al ready been confirmed to you by the district judge

Maass in his letter, dated 19.10.73. This measure was approved

by a judge ....

The doctor treating her at the Clinicum Steglitz, writes in his

report on 25.3.74 to the court in Berlin:

"When the 30 year old woman was admitted to the surgical unit

her breath was in a considerably reduced general state. She had

breathing difficulties while resting."

The Public Prosecutor at the court in Berlin stopped t~c proceed­

ings on August 13th, 1974 - Ref.: 1 P Js 24/74 - without hearing

of the accu'sed or witnesses. He questioned 2 medical experts.

On account of their reports he stated:

"Only after Mrs. Hammerschmidt had been released from the women's

prison on 30.11.73, did Dr. Neubauer diagnose for the first time

in December 1973 that she had a mediastinal tumour. Until then

the doctors of the prison hospital and also Dr. wenzel had diag­

nosed the ailments as an illness of the thyroid gland. A medias­

tinal tumour was not considered by any of the doctors, not even

by Dr. Wenzel. As far as Dr. Wenzel was talking about a tumour

he was talking about a growth in the thyroid gland area.

On the X-ray which was taken by Dr. Husen on August 2nd, 1973 a

small shadow was recognisab1e which Dr. Husen obviously had over­

looked. But according to the reports by Professors Dr. Krauland

and Dr. Oeser, Dr. Husen cannot be accused of having committed

an error ....

The demands on this proceedings would be overstrained should it

be expected of him to comprehend also changes in areas outside

the lungs with sufficient certainty when this had only spread in

a very minimal way ....

To remove it in an operation wou1d have been - contrary to the

view of Dr. Neubauer, not possible ....

Moreover, according to a letter by the Clinicum SteqliLx, dated

6.2.74, the tumour has nearly completely disapprared a~ a result

of the radiation treatment ....

Criminal acts have insofar not been proven. I have therefore

dismissed the case.

signed: Filipak

1st Public Prosecutor"

On instruction by Katharina Hammerschmidt the lawyers Heiner

Kraetsch, Hara1d Reme and Otto Schi1y filed a comp1aint against

the decision to dismiss the charge on 19.12.74:

"1. The Public Prosecutor has not carried out the inquiries

necessary for finding the truth.

(a) The inquiries were left to the accused themselves. According

to the instruction by the Public Prosecutor Heinzelmann,

dated 18.2.74, he did not quest ion the prison governor, Mr.

Maas~ as an accused who in view of the charge was suspected

of co-operation, but has instead inv01ved him in the inquiry

proceedings. In the same instruction the Public Prosecutor

requests the principal of the suspected doctors to write a

report about the progress of the illness. By conducting

the inquiries in this way the Pub1ic Prosecution has tried

to obscure the facts of the case which consequently led to a

dismissal of the charges on August 13th, 1974 ....

(b) Within this context an objective inquiry would have questioned

those prisoners who saw Mrs. Hammerschmidt daily at that time

as weIl as those persons who were visiting Mrs. Hammerschmidt

at that time according to the visitors files of the prison.

The Public Prosecutor would then have found out that in

October the prison governor, Mr. Maas, was informed emphatically

several times by Mrs. Hammerschmidt's brother, who had medical

training, of the severity of her illness. The same applies

to the junior barrister Haeusler, who a1ready in the first

half of October had Informed the people responsible,
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especially Mr. Scheddohn, that there was a suspicion of

cancer.

A further principle of inquiry proceedings is to secure all

documents which are considered necessary for the purpose of

evidence especially in a case of such serious charges, to

prevent subsequent changes by the accused. With regard to

this the Public Prosecutor has also not conducted any

inquiries.

(c) The inquiries by the Public Prosecutor amounted to the

obtaining of expert reports.

.... They preferred instead to consult Prof. Krauland who,

as court medical expert, works very closely with the courts

as weIl as the prison administration.

(e) After the doctors, especi?lly Dr. Krell and Dr. Loeckel,

discovered on 27.9.73, that the circumference of Mrs.

Hammerschmidt's neck had increased within a few days from

30 cm to 36.5 cm, that the appearance of Mrs. Hammerschmidt,

especially her face and the top part of her body, had changed

considerably, both doctors found it necessary to carry out

an examination, especially a new X-ray and a blood examina­

tion as weIl as an examination of the colesterin level.

All of these measures were recognised as ineffectual on

October 2nd, 1973 because the focus of the changes could

not be discovered through these measures. In this context

the doctors have to be reproached for not consulting the

X-ray pictures taken in August 1973 as part of their examina­

tion. The X-ray pictures were in the treatment file of Mrs.

Hammerschmidt and were available to the examining doctors at

every treatment. After"the X-ray from October 2nd, 1973,

which had shown no results, they should have looked at the

X-ray which was taken a short time before, and should have

recognised the changes in the lung area .... Especially

remarkable within this context is the notice by Dr. Loeckel,

dated October 16th, 1973:

"Please measure circumference of her neck in 3 months time!

If further increased, new examination. signed Loeckel"

This notice makes it quite clear that the treatment of the

severe illness of Mrs. Hammerschmidt had been terminated on
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16.10.73 by the prison doctors and further treatment was not

being considereej. The constant claim that Mrs. Hammerschmidt

had refused to be treated must in view of this notice be

refuted as an impudent cover statement ....

In the decision to dismiss the case it has also been

neglected to mention that the hungerstrike after October 16th,

1973 was mainly carried out by Mrs. Hammerschmidt because

she had been told that there was nothing wrong with her,

that she was healthy, that her ailments were imaginary and

that a further examination would not take place, which means

that all medical help was refused to her. With her hunger­

strike Mrs. Hammerschmidt was trying, in her already very

weak condition caused by her illness, to force medical treat­

ment ....

In view of the serious development in October 1973 and in

view of the inactivity of the doctors and the prison

administration, the junior barrister Mr. Haeusler described

the condition of Mrs. Hammerschmidt in exact details to the

responsible judges and public prosecutors. In an application

by the defence counsel on behalf of Mrs. Hammerschmidt,

da ted 12.10.73, to the supreme court to have Mrs. Hammerschmidt

examined in a special clinic for an illness of the thyroid

gland, it says:

'On Tuesday, September 25th 1973, Mrs. Hammerschmidt dis­

covered astrang swelling of her neck. At the same time

she feIt strong pressure on her neck which especially affected

her windpipe and made breathing difficult for her. A few

days be fore Mrs. Hammerschmidt had measured the circumference

of her neck. She had then discovered that her neck measured

30 cm. In view of the swelling she again measured her neck.

She now measured a neck circumference of 36 cm. In view of

medical knowledge it is clear that there existed the danger

of a severe irreparable illness.'

(g) The behaviour of the doctors as weIl as the other accused

with regard to the examination and treatment of Mrs.

Hammerschmidt can also in no way be justified, even if the

examining external doctor Dr. Wenzel also talked at first

about a suspicion of an illness of the thyroid glands ....

As the court's decision to dismiss was primarily based on

the fact that no inquiries were made, this decision müst be
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3. SIEGFRIED HAUSNER

Siegfried Hausner had taken part in an action by the RAF for the

liberation of prisoners - the occupation of the German embassy in

Stockholm by the "Commando Holger Melns". After the storming of

the embassy by a German special unit of the police he was badly

injured by police officers who beat hirn with the butts of their

guns: he suffered several fractures of the skull. The Federal

Governrnent ordered, on 29.4.75, his move frorn a hospital in

Stockholm to the FRG, even though Swedish doctors had declared

that Hausner was not fit to be rnoved and had called the decision

by the Federal Government a "death sentence". In the FRG Hausner

was not admitted to a special clinic, but was instead taken to

the intensive care unit at Stuttgart-Stammheim. This unit was

not equipped to deal with skull injuries. Despite his persistent

demands he was not allowed to see a lawyer. Siegfried Hausner

died on 4.5.75. Siegfried Hausner's defence counsel, Iawyer

Croissant, received a letter from the Federal Prosecutor which

said that Hausner wanted to talk to him, one day after he had

dled. This letter was dated 30.4.75 but had only been posted on
1)

5.5.75.

Lawyer Croissant's action, which he brought on 18.6.75 and which

he made public at a press eonference, 1ed without objective

inquiries to a dismissal of the ease on 2.10.75. Croissant and

another lawyer who had also been present at the press conferenc!~,

~ were arrested 5 days later.

From the action, dated 18.6.75, by Croissant:

"To the principal at the Public Prosecutor's Office

at the Court in Bonn

Reference: Siegfried Hausner, who died on Sunday, 4.5.75 in the

prison Stuttgart-Stammheim

here: Suspieion of an offenee of deliberate hornicide by

those responsible at the State Seeurity Office with

place of residence and/or work in the district of the

Pub1ic Prosecutor's office Bann

1) compare Appendix 36
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S1egfried Hausner had been injured by the explosion but he was

not in danger of dying. He was fully conscious after the

explosion. His behaviour was clear and thoughtful in every phase.

The burns were, according to the observations by the surviving

prisoners, relatively small. (page 2) •..

Immediately after his arrest Siegfried Hausner received such

heavy blows with the butts of submachine guns that he had to be

admitted to the Kar01inska "hospital. Because of those blows he

received several fractures of the sku11. When he was admitted

Hausner was deeply unconscious. (page 3) ..•

When Siegfried Hausner regained consciousness on 28.4.75 he was

immediate1y subjected to an "extradltion inter rogation 11 by the

Swedish authorities.

After that Hausner, who was connected to a drip and who could only

breath through a tube in his windpipe, was transported on the same

day from Stockholm to C010gne by special plane. He was at first

taken to the University Clinic. (page 4) .•.

The condition of Siegfried Hau5ner befare his removal

arrival in Cologne, was such that on1y the admittance

intensive care unit at a hospital, where treatment by

would have been possible, eould have saved his life.

on the degree and size of this burns a treatment in a

clinic for burns would also have been necessary.

and at his

to the

speeialist~

Depending

special

The move from Stoekholm was already for Siegfried Hausner, accord­

ing to the statement by a Swedish Doctor, "a elear death sentence".

This doctor based his statement on the findings of severe burns

and he explained therefore that Siegfried Hausner should have

been treated in Sweden in one of the world's leading special

clinics for burns. (page 5)

Fact i5 that Siegfried Hausner was not given the urgently needed

special treatment, especially of his skull injuries. Instead he

was, contrary to clear medical necessities and at the instigation
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of the State Seeurity Department at the Federal Criminal Office

(BKA) with the eonsent of the Federal Proseeutor, moved to the

prison Stuttgart-Stammheam under the strietest seereey even

though neither intensive treatment for skull injuries nor for

burns could be carried out there. The exist1ng intensive eare

unit had been instal1ed only for "treatment of the prlsoners

during the last hungerstrike by RAF prisoners.

The respons1bility for the medical treatment of Siegfried Hausner

1ay with the prison doetor, Government medlcal officer Dr. Henck.

He 1s a specialist in psychiatry and has therefore no special

know1edge in the area of neuro-surgery and burns.

Dr. Henek established that Siegfried Hausner had burns as weIl

as severe skull injuries, especially several fractures to his

sku1l. Aeeording to a press statement by the Federal Prosecutor

and the Ministry of Justice Baden-Wurttemberg, which 1s based on

the statement by Dr. Henck and possibly other specialists con­

sulted from outside the prison, Siegfried Hausner died on 4.5.75

in the intensive eare unit of the prison Stuttgart-Stammheim

because of his burns and several skull fractures. (page 6) ...

The death of Siegfried Hausner is - after the death of Holger

Meins - a further example that the right to be unfit for

imprlsonment does not exist for certain prisoners. Nobody can

have any doubts that a badly injured prlsoner who is fighting

for his life should never be moved into a prison with neeessarily

insuffieient medieal equipment and with ineomplete medieal pos­

sibilities far treatment. A prisoner who is in sueh a eritieal

situation must be moved to a hospital which has all material

and personal means available to save his life.

The State Seeurity Authorities cf the FRG have deliberately acted

eontrary to this obvious duty. (page 7) ..•

signed: Croissant

LawYt~r

The Public Proseeutor Karlsruhe refused to start preliminary

proceedings - Ref.: 5 Js 296/75:
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"We refuse to institute preliminary proceedings. The charge

by the lawyers Dr. Croissant and KalI, dated 18.6.75, whieh

the PUbllc Prosecutor in Bann has passed an ta us, cantalns

no suffieient factual criteria for a punishable offenee.

signed: Klee

1st Pub1le Prosecutar
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THE DEATH OF ULRIKE MEINHOF

Ulrike Meinhof was found dead on Sunday, 9 May 1975, when her

cell was opened at 7.45 a.m.

"At 7.40 I established that total rigor mortis existed in both

arms", Government medical director Dr. med. Henck stated to the

State Police Authqrity stuttgart on 9.5.76 according to the

protocol, dated 9.5.76 - AZ KIIIOl 48/76. 1)

In the medical post mortem examination by the Public Health

Department Stuttgart on 9.5.76 at 9.25 a.m. - AZ 10 AR 50/76 ­

it says: "The corpse of Ulrike Meinhof hangs on the left of the

two ce II windows •••. Underneath the corpse stands achair with

the seat towards the window. (p.l) ••. The heel of the 1eft foot

rests on the edge of the chair on the right side. The rigor

mortis is fully distinct in all joints, also in the finger and

toe joints." (p.2)

Neither at 8.15 a.m., when the cell was opened nor later at the

post mortem examination and cell search on 10.5.76 were the

other prisoners, a lawyer, the sister of Ulrike Meinhof or other

independent witnesses allowed to be present. Appropriate

applications had been made. At 9.38 a.m. dpa reported:

"Ulrike Meinhof has hanged herself." 2)

~ After the experiences of the families Meins and Hammerschmidt,

U1rike Meinhof's sister considered it meaning1ess to bring an

action against persons unknow. She presented the inquiry file

to the International Commission into the death of Ulrike Meinhof.

The Commission came to the fo11owing conclusion:

"The assertion by the state authorities that Ulrike Meinhof had

killed herself through hanging is not proven and the results of

the examinations by the Commission suggest that Ulrike Meinhof

could not have hanged herself. The results of the examinations

rather suggest to us, that Ulrike Meinhof was dead when her body

1) Dr. Henck did not receive permission to testify to the International
Inquiry Commission fram his employer. s. Appendix ... p.78

2) for the public statement of the alleged suicide s. appendix
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was hung up and that there is disturbing evidence which points

to an intervention by a third party in connection with this de~th.

The Commission cannot make positive statements about the circum­

stances of the death of Ulrike Meinhof. Despite this every

suspicion is justified in view of the fact, that the Secret

Services - in addition to the prison staff - were able to enter

the cells on the 7th floor through aseparate and secret entrance.

(appendix p.6)

(see page 6 of the "International Investigation Commission ­

the death of Ulrike Meinhof, Tubingen 1979)

The political function of the alleged suicide in May 1976 is

further documented particularly in the IUK Documentation

V. The Logic of the Liquidation p.64 particularly

2. The Background: The Attempt to define U1rike

Meinhof's actions as individualistic and

pathologlcal p.65

3. "Suicide" within the context of the trial at the

time p. 69 1)

4. Psychological warfare after the "Suicide" p.70

1) Compare Evidence in the Stammheim Trial on 4.5.76, particularly application
to "Methods by which the BRD supported the illegal war of the US against
Vietnam. The applications were refused by court in Stammheim on 22.6.76
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4. THE DEATH OF ANDREAS BAADER, GUDRUN ENSSLIN, JAN eARL RASPE;

SEVERE INJURIES TO IRMGARD MOELLER IN THE PRISON STUTTGART­

STAMMHEIM IN THE NIGHT OF 17/18 oelOBER 1977

"Within the context of all the measures during the last six weeks,

and remarks by the prison officers, the conclusion can be drawn

that the administration or the State Security, who - as mentioned

by a prison officer - are now permanentlyon the 7th floor - are

trying to provoke one or several suicides, or at least make them

seem feasible.

Ta this I state: None of us - that was clear when we were able to

exchange a few wards, two weeks aga at the doar and from the dis­

cussions we have had over the years - has the intention to kill

him/herself. Should we - as mentioned by an officer - be found

dead, then we have been killed in the old tradition of the

judicial and political measures of this trial.

This, the defendant Baader stated in the Appendix contained in

a letter of complaint to the Provineial Court stuttgart on

Oetober 10th, 1977." 1)

The prisoners were found dead and Irmgard Moeller badly injured

in their ee11s on 18.10.77 between 7.40 and 8.10 a.m. At 8.58

B.m. the Justiee Minister Bender, Baden-Wuerttemberg, announeed

via the dpa (press ageney) that the prisoners had committed

suicide.

On 19.12.77 the defence counsels for Irmgard Moeller flied a

"charge against persans unknown because ef suspicien of attempted

murder".

"Frau Moeller was feund in her cell serieusly injured on 18.10.77

by prison officers in the prisen stuttgart-Stammheim. She had

suffered considerable stab wounds. There were - as was estab1ished

later - four stab wounds in the 1eft side of her breast. One or

several ef these wounds led to an injury cf the pericardium. The

heart museie had also been injured but didn't have to be stitched ..• "

1) Souree: Preliminary report by the Gevernment, dated 26.10.77
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signed lawyers"

A trial did not take plaee.

2) Irmgard Moeller's lawyer was only allowed to talk La her on 22.10.77 at
9.00 p.m. for 10 minutes - allegedly beeause of danger of infeetion.

Irmgard Moeller had not been heard. It eontinues on page 9:

"The prisoner was meant to be heard as witness to the events in

The preliminary proeeedings were - and are still today - ineomplete.

In another trial - on 26.4.79 - lawyer Or. Heldmann and defenee

eounsel for Andreas Baader, proposed

"to inelude the files of the Publie Prosecution Stuttgart, ref.:

9 Js 3627/77 - preliminary proeeedings into the death of Andreas

Baader, Gudrun Ensslin, Jan Carl Raspe - and that they be given

to the defenee for examination. The knowledge of these files is

neeessary for the defenee in this trial.

The files will show partieularly, that the reports of the

offieially appointed experts have only been partly presented to

the Publie Proseeution Stuttgart at the time of their deeision

to stop the proeeedings;

that with,their deeision to stop the proceedings, further reports

have not been taken into aeeount;

that altogether the deeision from 18.4.78 does not eomply with

the eondition of the files.

questioning, planned for 10 January 1978 in the prison stuttgart,

by the judge of the County Court Stuttgart did not take plaee.

On the one hand the prisoner refused to make a statement without

the presenee of a lawyer. On the other hand the lawyer Or.

Heldmann - defenee eounsel for Irmgard Moeller - was not prepared

to aeeept the usual bodyseareh, and he eould therefore not enter

the prison."

signed Or. Heldmann, lawyer"

The reasoning was as foliows:

"The whole inquiry into the deaths by the Publie Prosecution

Stuttgart has from the beginning suffered from the faet that its

highest prineipal, Justiee Minister Bender, had already early on

18.10.77 at 8.58 a.m. announeed through a dpa-statement that the

prisoners had killed themselves. At 2.00 p.m. on the same day

Government spokesman Boelling stated the same for the Government,

in the evening at 8 p.m. the Federal President repeated the same

onee again to the German tv publie. The faet of suieide had

therefore - it can be said through every ehannel - been fully

established and after that the Publie prosecution Stuttgart,

At the inquiry arranged by the

1977 2) in the University Clinie

statement. The intended jUdieial

There were neither pistols, transistor radios nor explosives in

the wing. I am eonvineed that the same people who h~,e injured

me, have also killed Baader, Raspe and Ensslin ... "

Frau Moeller has stated the following to the events: "I da not

know who has inflieted these injuries on me. I have not

inflieted these injuries myself - eontrary to the statement made

by the offieial side. I have neither at the time before 18.10.77

ever had the intention to eommit suieide nor did I try to eommit

suicide on 18.10.77.

There has also at no time been an agreement between Gudrun Ensslin,

Jan Carl Raspe, Andreas Baader and me to eommit eolleetive suieide.

On the eontrary, it was quite elear for all of us that this would

never be a possibility ...

Frau Moeller will repeat above mentioned statement in a judieial

inquiry in the presenee of a lawyer.

The Publie Proseeution Stuttgart suspended "I. the preliminary

proeeedings with regard to the death of Andreas Baader, Gudrun

Ensslin and Jan Carl Raspe on 18.4.78 - ref.: 9 Js 3627/77,

2. drops the eh arge of the suspicion of attempted murder of

Irmgard Moeller '" aeeording to para 170, 2 StPO, beeause the

prisoners Baader, Ensslin and Raspe have killed themselves, the

prisoner Moeller has injured herself and a partieipation of a

third party does not exist." 1)

the night of 18 Oetober 1977.

Public Proseeutor on 21 Oetober

Tubingen, she refused to make a

1) eompare appendix, p 1 and 16
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whose principal had al ready given his view sufficiently, was

meant to examine the questions. And then the inquiry followed

accordingly. Exactly against this method of the suicide theory

Prof. Holczabek has on l8/l9th during the post mortem examinations,

which lasted until 5.00 p.m., and during the viewing of the cells

consistently put up resistance. And when he realised - 1 will

give an example for this later - how totally fruitless his objec­

tions and appeals to his colleagues were, he refused his further

participation in these proceedings.

Point one: Time of death

We can say today, that the time of death for the assumption, that

homicide has to be excluded, is meaningless. The stipulation of

their time of death has become an especially certain point in these

inquiries, because the investigating authorities had forbidden the

examination of supravital reactions in the dead bodies. Supravital

reactions - to exp1ain that in a few words: we find for examp1e in

the best known teaching book on forensic medicine, Ponso1d, that

the description of these supravital reactions serves to determine

more precise1y the time of death. It concerns for examp1e the

b1oodclotting conditions, musc1e agitation in the dead bodies and

pupi1 reactions. And these examinations which cou1d have led to

a more precise determination of the time of death, the inquiring

authorities have forbidden the experts to carry out. As a result

there are two versions: the two Germans who say at the ear1iest

00.15 a.m.; the two foreigners, Hartmann/Zurich and Andre/Brussels,

who say from midnight onwards. But we know that the first news of

the successful Mogadischu-action were reported at 00.40 a.m. And

if - according to the experts - it has to be assumed that the time

of death was already be fore 00.40 a.m., possib1y midnight, then

the motive, wh ich the Prosecution stuttgart gives for the suicides,

becomes obsolete.

Point two: Position of the Death Weapon

One of the puzzles - but swa1lowed by the Prosecution Stuttgart ­

is the position of the weapon after the ki1ling of Baader.

There are on the one hand the statements by the court doctors, who

agree that he must have held the pistol upside down with both

hands. On the other hand - they assume this from alleged smoke
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traces, from alleged blood splashes on the right hand - there

are incompatible inquiry results of trace evaluation by the police.

According to them Baader must have held the weapon with the handle

downwards and fired with the right hand because only this could

explain the smoke on his right hand. And only this could explain

the position of the cartridge case.

The Prosecution stuttgart does not bother itself with the contra­

dictions. Prosecutor Christ has noticed the incompatibility of

both inquiry results but wants to consider both possibilities,

as he writes, and he can therefore keep open one or the other

possibility. But this is not a valid result in a most important

question.

Point three: "trace 6"

That is the so-cal1ed trace 6. Once again there is a contradiction

between the assumptions by the court doctors and the results of

the trace evaluation by the criminal police, with regard to the

death weapon.

The doctors say that the bullet went through the head, then

against the opposite wall and then it rebounded from there to its

position on the right side of the corpse. The police say: The

bullet only left the brain with weak residual force and came to

rest right next to the corpse. But then it is questionable what

the point of entrance is doing on the opposite wall if the police

are right.

And it has not been mentioned ever again, what had happened to

this trace 6 which has been described in the report: tissue

particles or blood from the cell wall, given to the Forensic

Institute of Medicine Stuttgart for examination. There Prof.

Rauschke received the instruction to make a histological and

serological report. These reports have not been seen even today.

(Rauschke stated on 19.1.81 (!) that he had never received trace

6 and never examined it, even though the responsib1e criminal

officer stated to the Prosecution, that he had given the race to

Rauschke on 18.10.77 for examination. The Prosecutor Christ,

who was responsib1e for the investigation, wrote to the lawyer
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of J. C. Raspe on 25.2.81:

"Dear lawyer Weidenhammer ... wlth regard to the disappearance

of the tlssue particle of trace 6, I have not started lnqulry

proceedings against Herr. Prof. Rauschke as there is no sufflcient

factual basis for the existence of a punlshable offence. Yours

faithfully Christ, Prosecutor".)

Point four: The Gunpowder Smoke

The court's foren sie medical advisors, even if they speak with

degrees of difference concerning the quantity, the strength,

the colour (blue or grey) nevertheless agree on recognlsable

gunpowder smoke on Baader's right hand. But - says the criminal

police - with pistols the smoke in principle leaves from the

front, one has to do comparison shootings and it depends especially

on the ammunition being used, as there exists ammu~ition which

hardly smokes, which doesn't smoke at all or which smokes strongly.

Such an examination has not taken place. There has been no

examination of the pistol to see which part apart from the muzzle

releases gunpowder smoke. But even if that had been established

the ammunition used would have to be examined, that has also not

happened. Should such a comparison shooting with this weapon and

the ammunition used show that - with the assumed shooting position ­

a smoke trace could not have arisen, we don't need a lot of

imagination to suspect, that a smoke trace on Baader's right hand

has been produced artificially.

The Federal Criminal Office states in its report from 15 June 197B

that even a microscopic examination did not show any smoke traces,

which includes the discolouring on Baader's thumb as weIl as the

cut out main part of this right thumb and forefinger. Both did

not - I quote: " ... show any smoke traces".

The same applies to the examination of the corpse of Raspe. Here

also areport by the Federal Criminal Office (BKA) exists from

20 June 1978, two months after the proceedings were stopped, that

no traces of gunpowder have been found.

Point five: Situation of J. C. Raspe's pistol

The situation of J. C. Raspe's pistol - here we have one of those

chapters, in which the decision to stop proceedings by the
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Prosecution does not do justice at all to the inquirles. Because

we have several witness statements and these from witnesses who

were especially qualified for their evidence, because they were

the first to enter the cello Or as in the case of the witness

Gotz who took the weapon, who allstated that the pistol was

lying in Raspe's right hand. This was stated by the witnesses

Listner, Jost, Munzing and the witness Gotz, who had taken the

weapon.

It is mentioned in every teaching book on forensie medicine and

also widely known: when somebody is interested in making a murder

by gunshot appear as suicide, you put the weapon into the hand of

the victim after the shooting. This is taught as a golden rule

in the teaching books to criminalists and pathologists. But here,

in the ease of Raspe, it was a 9 mm weapon with an unbelievable

recoil speed and shock effect. A skull shot with such a weapon

leads immediately to the weapon falling away. It must seem impos­

sible that the weapon stayed in his hand.

But the proseeution ignores these very clear witness statements

and declares instead: the weapon was at this hand.

Point six: The Chair in G. Ensslin's cell

There was a highly interesting expert quarrel about the chair on

which Gudrun Ensslin is meant to have stood be fore her hanging.

The witnesses at the time of the discovery of her death all do

not talk about achair. Only the prison doctors, who entered Frau

Ensslin's cell in the afternoon between 4.00 and 5.00 p.m. talk

about the chair. Which means, the chair appears only in the

afternoon. There are statements by the officers Munzing, Misterfeld,

Buchert, Sukopp, by Dr. Majerowicz, the prison doctor at that

time, who all do not know anything about achair; in the afternoon

it exists. Had there, and this is now certain, been no chair in

the hanging situation, then this hanging has to be excluded as

suicide.

Then: the experts quarrel in the afternoon. It took place between

Mr. Rauschke and his Austrian colleague Holzabek. I now quote

from the protocol of the inquiry committee:
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"In the ease of Ensslin achair was diseovered in the area of

the eorpse. Prof. Holzabek wanted the ehair to stay where it

was. I was of the opinion that the ehair should be removed and

covered up, because there were traces on the seat, pIaster, hair,

fibres, etc., and I was afraid that these traces could be

destroyed. I also argued that in case of somebody else having

been involved he might have left fingerprints on the chair. We

therefore had different opinions and I said finally that I am

the court doctor, that only one of us can have a say, that we

cannot all decide. I think that the chair has to be removed and

that the chair be replaced by an identical prison chair and be

put in exactly the same position. And that is what happened."

This shows amongst others the quality of the experts co-operation.

But it is remarkable that this examination of the traces, for

which Herr Rauschke had the chair removed against the wish of

his Vienna colleague, never took place.

Point seven: The Hanging Implement used by G. Ensslin

The hanging implement used by Frau Ensslin will have to be

examined again, because it is questionable whether an electric

cable is suitable for a hanging by somebody's own hand.

The court doctors give two main burden points for this electric

cable. At the moment when Frau Ensslin jumped from the chair,

she therefore fell into the cable sling; and the second special

burden phase when she allegedly contorted wildly during the death

struggle. But it says in the traces evaluation report, which of

course is not included in the decision to stop the proceedings:

" ... at the attempt to remove the corpse from its original

position the cables tore at that spot at which they were slung

around the bars of the cell window."

This incident alone puts into question whether Frau Ensslin

was able to hang herself with such an implement, which was not

a match to its load. It was also omitted during the traces

evaluation to compare the cable ends with those fragments of

the cable from which the hanging implement is supposed to have

been cut. A highly noticeable omission. There was neither a

material examination nor microscopic examinations of the breaking

or cutting points.
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Point eight: Injuries of G. Ensslin

Frau Ensslin suffered a number of injuries, for which no explana­

tion has been offered. Neither by the people doing the post

mortem examinations nor especially in the decision to stop pro­

ceedings by the Prosecution Stuttgart.

There are injuries on top of the nose which cannot be as a

result of knocking against something during the death struggle,

an injury underneath the right side of the mouth, an injury

behind the hairline - all remained unsolved: on the left side of

the breast, injuries underneath the two wrists, injuries above

the left and right kneecap, blood effusion in the area of the

left middle finger, injuries in the area of the thighs, injuries

in the inguinal region and a further ii'Jury to the neck. To

this the post mortem examination report states merely: All the

discovered blood effusions, blue spots etc. were at parts which

were knocked against something, should there be cramp like move­

ments of the limbs. This unbelievable abridgement of the

examination report has been adopted by the Prosecution Stuttgart.

It has to be asked where the eight other injuries come from,

since they can have nothing to do with the act of hanging.

Point nine: Omitted examinations

Further examinations have been omitted or traees have remained

unprotected - for example with Frau Ensslin: the histamin test

which makes it possible to discover whether a strangulation mark

was formed vital or postmortal, the miero-traees print from the

hanging ridge of the neck of the corpse has not been examined

and neither the micro-traees print of the left and right hand.

There was no proof of the blood group, the saliva trace.

The source of the probable saliva has therefore not been examined

as weIl as many other traees.

Point ten: The Toxicologieal Examinations

The Public Prosecution also raises the question, but then denies

it at the same time, whether the aet of hanging could have taken

place in the condition of a preceding narcosis. They immediately
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deny this as no basis for this had been discovered. They simpiy

ignore the toxicological report, signed by Prof. Mallach. It

says there amongst others: " ... With the methods employed here

the following substance groups are not being discovered: (There

are therefore toxicological examinations for discovering whether

a narcosis had first taken place.) other organic compounds,

animal and vegetable viruses, most of the plant preservatives

and insecticide as weIl as many other non-organic compounds used

in pharmaka."

Prof. Hartmann says in his verbal report in front of the inquiry

committee: " ... there are so many poisons that if one doesn't look

for a specific poison, one can possibly overlook one, especially

the c~~plicated organic poisons. We can take Digitalis or Insulin.

lf one doesn't look specifically for these one will not find them."

There is no reference to any of this in the decision to stop

proceedings. Instead it tries to give the impression that the

toxieologieal reports had shown with sufficient certainty that

toxic influences had to be excluded.

Point eleven: Striking Changes of the Prisoners' Brains

I want to take the opportunity at this point of a small reminder

of those troubled times: Ehe "Stern" No. 49 from 24.11.77 reported ­

and this has not been contradicted - that executive organs of the

FRG have in planning exercises been considering the killing of

those prisoners named for an exchange. And in this connection

the statement by the neuropathologist Prof. Pfeiffer from

Bubingen is very exeiting, who in all three corpses discovered -

and I quote: "eertain changes in the brains" and I quote again:

"In all probability it is a quest ion of accompanying symptoms of

an infeetion, possibly already fading away. These changes do not

reach a degree, which would justify the diagnosis of an encephalitis."

This statement is identical for each of the three prisoners. And

it is notieeable that the same medical statement had already been

made in the ease of Ulrike Meinhof. And with regard to this we

may remember, as we know from the CIA reports which have been

diseovered in the USA, that it is possible to completely stop the
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intake of vitamin B through the body, which results in brain

damage and which shows symptoms similar to the manifestation of

an encephalitis. And if the Prosecution Stuttgart states: Dur

inquiries do not lead to a suspicion of toxic or other influences

on the prisoners - then this seems very risky to me.

Point twelve: Sand on A. Baader's shoes

It was Prof. Holzabek who discovered this conspicuous sand on

Baader's shoe soles. It wasn't possible to explain the origin

of this sand and it has never been explained.

There is not a single word about this in the decision to stop

proceedings.

But Prof. Holzabek has ordered that at least the shoes with the

attached sand have'been documented as trace. But nothing more

happened with it.

I would regard it as most interesting to examine how this sand

came into Baader's eoncrete cello

Point thirteen: "A point blank shot" - from a distanee of 30 cm?

There is a further report - and here I have to add: After the

decision to stop proceedings, dated 18.4.78, six further inquiry

reports have been added to the files which have of course all

been ignored. Further reports - for whieh I have given several

examples - wh ich al ready existed on 18.4.78, have been totally

ignored.

One report, which could not have been eonsulted, as it was also

only added to the files in July 1978, is areport by the Federal

Criminal Office (BKA) which coneludes, that the fatal shot was

fired from a distance of 30-40 em.

This does totally exclude the construction of a pistol suieide,

because even an acrobat can't hold a 17 em long weapon from a

distance of 30-40 cm behind hirnself and then shoot hirnself clean

through the neck. That is absolutely impossible.

Smoke traees have been found on the spot where the bullet entered,
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similar to a shot from point blank range. But not in such

intensity as would be caused by a shot from point blank range.

There are also no scorch marks on the hair. But they should be

there from a shot which has been fired point blank above the

hairline. Both are missing. And here we could, if we read for

example the teaching book of forensic medicine, published by

Muller, and especially the contribution by Prof. Sellier from

Bonn about shooting injuries, look more closely at the following

hypothesis. I quote: "By putting a silencer on the muzzle of the

weapon the smoke is considerably reduced, which means the smoke

impression looks as if the shooting had taken place from a dis­

tance further away." Page 594 of the above mentioned book of

judicial medicine.

And that is the description which could explain those point of

entrance traces which were found on Baader's dead body. There

is also the examination result by the BKA which shows that even

when examined microscopically there were no scorch traces on his

hair at the point of entrance of the shot.

have al ready said that at the time when the inquiry was stopped,

blood group reports were missing as weIl as serological and

histological reports. Until now (February 1983) there have been

no concluding statements by the two responsible court doctors,

Rauschke and Mallach, even though these have been announced

repeatedly.

The following has not been considered:

- that there was aseparate entrance to the 7th floor;

The parliamentary inquiry committee of Baden-Wuerttemberg dis­

covered on the 7th floor "a door leading to a fire es cape with

doors to each floor, but which could not be opened from the

inside and from the outside only with a special key. Should

this door be opened an alarm goes off." (Frankfurter Rundschau

4.11.77).

that the acoustic alarm which was joined to a camera was

also not working on the night of 17th to 18th Dctober. Unwanted

visitors could have been present on the floor of the terrorist

wing without producing the signal, a whistling sound, in the

room of the prison officer on duty." (Der Spiegel, no. 6,

6.2.78).
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- that "members of the Federal Army, the Federal Border Guards

and the American Military Police as weIl as other individuals

with special identification, who enter the prison regularly and

whose reliability has been checked, have been exempt from being

searched." 1)

From the statement by Irmgard Moeller to the parliamentary inquiry

committee Baden-Wuerttemberg on 16.1.78:

M: At first I want to ask why the subject has been so confined.

The case has its history.

Sch.: We have to fulfill an order by the Baden-Wuerttemberg

Parliament. Included is the question of involvement by a

third party. You can make a statement with regard to this

subject.

M: In the night from 16th to 17th October I didn't sleep.

waited for news. In my cell was the prison radio which was

turned off. We had asked to have it turned off in the

summer as it was possible that we were being listened to

via this circuit. The circuit was disconnected by the

hause electrician. On 13th September I was moved into

another cello In the morning I heard the news. The first

impression I got: the prison officer put a piece of bread

in my cello Since the 15th we only received prison food.

Between 7.00 and 8.00 a.m. the soundproofing was removed

from the cells. These constructions had been mounted on

13th/14th September. Outside my cell door there were two

civilians: I discovered that these were two priests, an

evangelical and a catholic one. I explained to them the

measures which had been taken against us, how the contact

ban was being used to suffocate us. I told them that if

they thought - and as I assume - that their institution

(church) had not been taken over completely by the state,

that they should then make our situation public. I then

wanted to go to the cell of Ingrid Schubert to get books.

The priests then talked to Gudrun and Jan. At about 12.00

1) Preliminary report by the Government Baden-Wuerttemberg, p.ll also "Von
all dem haven wir nichts gewusst", p.14j report by the International Inquiry
Commission: The death of Ulrike Meinhof, chapter 111, 2-6
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a.m. lunch arrived. Andreas only woke up at this time and

I was worried that he woke up that late. lt was clear

which one of the meals he would get. The prison authorities

had total control over who got what kind of food. That was

clear. Nobody went on the roof that afternoon. I hesitated

whether i should have a bath. At about 20 minutes after

2 p.m. prison officers were at Andreas's door. The door

was opened, there was murmuring. I thought that he was

going for a bath. At 3.30 p.m. I began wondering where he

was. But then he came back and went to Gudrun's door:

somebody had been there from the Federal Chancellor's Office;

not Schuler, but a man who claimed to be in daily contact

with Schuler. Andreas gave some details of the talk. On

29 September Andreas had taken the initiative to ask some­

body from the Chancellor's office to come. On the same day

Andreas told Jan that he had star ted that contact. The BKA

wasn't able to grasp the dimension of the whole thing. lt

was not clear whetherthe Federal Government was clear about

the political implications of arelease. A condition for

seeing anybody from the Chancellor's Office was that the

Government was prepared to exchange uso On Monday afternoon

a man from the Chancellor's Office came (Ministerialdirigent

Dr. Hegelau). He asked Andreas if he knew the people from

the Commando personally. Andreas told him that he didn't.

lt became clear that he had only come to find out if we knew

the Commando to create the prerequisite for the GSG-9 action.

Andreas had furt her discussed the role of the SPD in the

Vietnam war and the role of the Federal Government. He

talked about the strategy of the RAF and this revealed that

the man from the Chancellor's Office had the same conscious­

ness about the dilemma that the SPD was in as we did, but

that he had no idea about our way of thinking. The

Government had understood our statement "It is to be assumed

that we will not return to the FRG" in such a way that we

were now contemplating "International Terrorism". Terrorism

is never the aim of the RAF - never. Our aims are strategie

actions which move the class struggle forward. Andreas

then explained the details for an exchange and that we

dian't ins ist on an international press conference. He
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has explalned everything as far as possible. Klaus from

the BKA was also present. Andreas explained that the only

possibllity to stop the escalation was the exchange of the

prlsoners. Should this not happen then this would lead to

an escalation of the war. Andreas said that we were con­

sidering the possibllity of being killed or to dIe during

a hungerstrike. The SPD would then be forced to act openly

as a war party instead of doing it covertly. The present

SPD strategy would become impossible once they are a war

party. The man understood this.

At about 4.00 p.m. I thought I heard Gudrun's voice - but

I wasn't sure. My soundproofing hadn't been fixed to the

door yet. I had expected that my door would be open once

more. Both Jan and I called loudly to Gudrun. We heard

Andreas ringing the bell. At 4.45 p.m. Gudrun returned;

then the soundproofing was attached. I read and didn't

hear anything until 11.00 p.m. At 11.00 p.m. the light

was turned off. I heard that Andreas's hatch was opened.

I heard voices, not very clear. I heard: "Herr Baader,

just wait a second" etc. Then they went to Jan: here

everything was completely silent. Then I didn't hear any­

thing anymore. Until 10.00 p.m. I listened to the news,

heard the Schmidt-Bahr talk. Then I continued reading.

I listened to music through earphones. Then I had to

repair the cable of the earphones because they had fallen

into the candle. The candle burned down. ~hen I tried to

build myself a lamp after the principle of a paraffin lamp.

I tried to remove the bot tom from a glass by heating it and

then subjecting it to sudden cold - as flame protection.

But it didn't work. The candle burned until 4.30/5.00 am.

I was undecided. Iwanted to hear the news at 7.00 a.m.,

but I was also very tired. I laid down at the crack in the

door (at the bot tom there was a crack in the soundproofing)

and called out: "Jan - are you still awake?" I called two,

three times then Jan answered: "Yes". He was wide awake.

Jan slept very little and he fell asleep early in the

morning. I asked: "What are you doing?". He answered: "I

am still reading". I went to bed with my clothes on and

turned on the alarm clock. Shortly after 5 a.m. I heard
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two bangs very Quietly - subdued - I believe now that those

were pistol shots - and a Quiet squeaking sound. I lifted

up my head, but stayed in bed. I didn't follow it up, but

went to sleep again.

The last thing that I can remember: I feIt a very strong

roaring in my head, right inside my head. I don't know

what it was - that was my last experience. I didn't see

anything. I awoke when somebody pulled up my eyelids.

think it was in the corridor (in front of the cells) under

the neon light of the wing. I was lying on a stretcher ­

I was terribly cold and in pain. A man said, Baader and

Ensslin are already cold. I closed my eyes again.

The.fo~lowin~h~s to,be said ,to the "suicide plot":

Af~er t~e,,~illing ofUlrike Meinhof we discussed suicide

and that it is a elA method of presenting murders as suicide.

Noneof us were going to commit suicide, that is in conflict

with out politics. The last time we talked about suicide,

was on 26 September, the beginning of the hungerstrike.

We started the hungerstrike, even though we knew that it
wouldn't become public very quickly. We wanted to give a

signal to the crisis staff: we are determined to fight. We

also wanted a change in the prison conditions. Since

15 September measures had been taken which were aimed at

provoking us to suicide or to give a motivation for a faked

suicide. It was clear for us, suicide is not our thing.

We are determined to fight. Nobody threatened suicide.

Everything that is being insinuated now is clearly a fal­

sification, the quotes etc. We had no communication amongst

each other between the cells. We always assumed that we

were being listened to. There was a double structure in

the wing: BND - and prison officers, or BKA - without one

of the structures knowing about the other. Because of the

interception in the cells we didn't want to create connections

anyway. But we also didn't have the possibilities to do

this. The BKA assertions are wrong. This should be known

to them through the interception protocols, we had no con­

nection amongst each other. We had no explosives, no

weapons, no radio. With regard to the searches and the

statements by Rebmann: I know from myself, how I have been
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searched, how the lawyers have been searched before and

after visits. We were led separately into a room (bathroom

or similar) and had to put everything down. I myself was

never in the court building (only once from Hamburg as

witness). On trial days I was locked up with Ingrid Schubert

at lunchtime in Andreas's cello The others used to come

back at 1.30 p.m. They were brought back separately, Gudrun

and the man. We then had to leave Andreas's cello I was

then able to see how they were being searched. And even if

there wasn't a regular search, we always had to expect it.

My experience is: we had to put everything down, files,

tQbacco. We had neither the possibility to receive any­

thing or to pass anything on. We had neither radio nor,

explosives nor weapons. The work in the wing itself hasn't

been concluded yet, the wing is still open for the BKA to

plant machine guns etc. Rebmann is under pressure. At the

time he had announced that he would deliver an explanation

in 3 months time. I was meant to give evidence under

exclusion of the public on 5 December. Now, aware of his

power, he uses the possibility in front of the inquiry com­

mittee: to multiply his theories. He has now put his pot

on the fire, from which he and the State Security intend

to eat for a 10ng time. The timing is very striking.

Rebmann has brought forward his statement in a special

meeting on Thursday. On the same day the BKA announces

in French newspapers that the RAF has killed comrades;

that is then repeated in the FRG. On the same day there

is the discussion about the postponement of the new anti­

terrorism laws. The aim is clear: everything that has

been used so far as destructive measures against us and

the lawyers, even murder, has to be legitimised. And above

all, the neutralisation of the anti-fascist resistance

abroad. And to deny the continuity of the RAF politics

by claiming that everything has been led from Stammheim

the old ClA strategy to destroy the leaders, as then

according to them the struggle is finished. Nothing sug­

gests that somebody, who has worked in the Croissant Office,

said anything like that, as Rebmann claims. The more

detailed something like that is stated,the more credible

it is meant to appear. Should a prisoner nevertheless have
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become a megaphone of the State Security then this would

make the aim of the contact ban evident: the military

function of blackmail. The short term torture for a

limited time aimed at blackmail to gain news - opposite

to the long term torture so far, according to the develop­

ment of the war guerilla state.

The European Human Rights Commission in Strassburg bases their

decision ~f 8 July 1978 only on the statement by the Federal

Government and the decision to stop proceedings by the Public

Prosecution, which excluded later reports. (Compare the

application by lawyer Dr. Heldmann.) Irmgard Moeller wasn't

heard.
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to para. 154 stPO - 'Unimportant offenees' • The court stopped

proceedings. Against such an application according to para. 154

stpo by the Prosecution there is no legal measure the defence

counsel can take. In a judgement by the Court in Hamburg from

16 June 1981 - ref.: (60) 99/80 NS - 141 Js 806/78 - 147-134/79 ­

"because of discrediting the state" the court stated: "The Public

Prosecution has not stated at any time, that the suicides were

an established fact .... This view is shared by the court with

the statement that an interference by a third party is not

provable." (Judgement p. 13/14) The defendants had given out

leaflets on 18.10.78 in which it said: "We do not believe in the

suicide theory which has been declared by the state. We believe

that the three prisoners have been murdered by State Security."

They were sentenced to A ~ine.

Propaganda preparation of the public for the killings

17.10.77 Prof. Golo Mann (in: ARD-panorama)

"The moment can come when those terrorists, who have

been sentenced for murder and who are securely imprisoned,

will have to be held as hostages by removing the laws

of peace and by putting them under martial law. Whether

this moment has already come after the Cologne crime

I do not want to decide. I am only a private person

and have nothing to decide. This has to be decided by

the executive."

The defence counsels laywer .Arndt Muller (Gudrun Ensslin) and

lawyer Armin Newerla (Ingrid Schubert) were suspected of having

smuggled the weapons to the prisoners. In a detailed statement

during the trial against them (April 1979 until February 1980)

they defended themselves against these charges. They uncovered

a number of facts to show that the authorities had planned the

liquidation of the prisoners deliberately as a Secret Service

action, which was meant to give the appearance that they had

committed suicide in their desperation. The court refused their

evidence. Lawyer Arndt Muller was sentenced to 4 years and 8

months and lawyer Armin Newerla to 3 years and 6 months in prison.

After their release both are not allowed to work as lawyers.

Whoever calls the death of Andreas Baader, Gudrun Ensslin and

Jan Carl Raspe murder, is accused, for instance Kai Hermann Ehlers

was accused "to have discredited the Federal Republic of Germany

or its constitutional order by distributing written material,

because he wrote in the news paper 'Arbeiterkampf' No.117, dated

15.11.77, in the article 'Enough of suicide' (p. 1/2): •.• 'There

is just no reason to believe in a suicide of the prisoners.'

punishable according to para. 90a, abs. 1, no. 1, 11 abs. 3,

53 StGB."

After the above mentioned application by Dr. Heldmann the

Prosecution proposed the suspension of the proceedings according

12.9.77

13.9.77

19.9.77

Walter Becker, CSU (in: Spiegel)

"Should the terror escalate any further then we should

make short work of the prisoners in Stammheim."

Heinz Kuhn, SPD, Prime Minister of Nordrhein-Westfalen:

"The terrorists must know that the killing of Hanns­

Martin Schleyer will have heavy repercussions for the

imprisoned terrorists, whom they wanted to free with

their brutal action."

Dr. Alfred Seidel, CSU (in: ARD-Panorama)

" ... that it is my personal opinion that we should

abolish article 102 of the constitutional law. In

article 102 it says: 'The death sentence has been

abolished.'"
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18.10.77 Frankfurter Allgemeine Zeitung, leading article by

Reissmuller:

"The state has to Question and re-ex amine its legal

and moral relationship to the terroristsj it must open

itself up to new objections, must have new thoughts.

The taboo has to be removed, which prevents - responsibly

led - discussions from mentioning it, the taboo, by

which many politicians from all parties have let them­

selves be forced to a double book-keeping: to say one

thing but to think another, never to mention it, only

give hints to the best friend .••

Isn't it time to think about an emergency law against

terrorists?"

24.10.77 Report in "Spiegel", No. 44

"A small group of high officials had indeed discussed

all kinds of possibilities, without regard to foreign

policy and other complications, without regard even to

the constitutional law. They exercised the plan to

kidnap the prisoners when they arrived at their destina­

tion, even against the will of the respective government,

or even to execute them. They designedplans to build

a dummy of the airport named by the terrorists in a

friendly African country."

Helmut Kohl on 22 February 1979 - at that time he was the chairman

of the CDU - in the ZDF television programme "Citizens Question ­

Politicians answer". Dutch studio guests asked; Helmut Kohl did

not contradict the murder accusatlon. He compared it with his

dead friends in the GDR. (in: Frankfurter Rundschau, 3 March 1979,

page 14).

Question: The Goebbels propaganda was "Freedom instead of

bolschevism". You now talk ab out freedom and the parole is

"Freedom instead of socialism". I ask myself, what is the dif­

ference? The fact is now that since 1974 in the FRG seven

political prisoners have been murdered, that many prisoners are

still kept under inhuman prison conditions, that partition glass

makes normal human contacts impossible for ever, that lawyers are

being excluded or even imprlsoned If they have the trust of

political prisoners and that crown wltnesses are being created
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to put suspicion on lawyers or to give the legend of the suicides

in Stammheim the appearance of truth. And now my question:

Should the COU/CSU come to power in 1980, will this change? will

you really fulfill your freedom programme?

Kohl: I am chairman of the COU in Germany and my party was formed

after the Second World War from the experience against Hitler,

from the history of the German resistance movement. I say this

once again in all seriousness, because of remarks made earlier

which are intolerable. The first chairman of the CDU in the

Soviet occupied territory and also the first chairman of the CDU

in Berlin, Andreas Hermes, was a member of Parliament before 1933

and was sentenced to death in September 1944 Py Roland Freisler

after 20 July. Due to lucky circumstanc~~ he survived and then

became in 1945 the first chairman of the CDU. Many of my friends,

older friends, emerged from the prisons and concentration camps

of the Third Reich. We know what injustice means. We know what

terror means. And we know what fascism and communism mean,

because I also have to tell you this: in the per iod from 1945

until 1950 nearly 900 members of my party in the area of the

Soviet occupied territories at that time, which is now the GDR,

have died in prisons and concentration camps, because they have

represented the ideas and ideals of our political conviction.

We know very weIl, what freedom is and the price we have paid for

it. We are against violence as a means of politics. The group

you have talked about, where you talked about the number seven,

those are the prisoners in Stammheim, if I understood you correctly,

those were brutal criminals. Those were people who were not

interested in our constitutional law. They didn't put up can­

didates in elections, they didn't make propaganda for their

political convictions, the way everybody does in our country.

The Federal Republic is in the history of Germany the most liberal

country which we have ever had. Those were brutal criminals who

invaded our country with murder and manslaughter, who within a

short per iod attempted over 100 ~urders and killed 30

people, innocent people. I can only say that there is no

mutuality with such criminals.

And now I want to ask you, what you have done in Holland with the

supporters of these criminals, and Quite rightly? And that is
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the point which I deplore, that we are in many ways not as effec­

tive in our laws as the Outch. I give an example. In the autumn

of 1977 you arrested some of those criminals. Outch officers

were killed during the arrest. They were arrested in October and

were sentenced in Oecember. The trials in our country, for

instance for the kidnapping of Peter Lorenz, are now in their

fourth year. I believe that the law is not in its right, where

the accused has to wait 4 years for his trial and the trial then

lasts 4 years. I like your system much more, where it is possible

to sentence such a criminal within 3 months.

(
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THE OEATH OF INGRIO SCHUBERT ON 12.11.77 IN THE PRISON

MUNICH-STAOELHEIM

Ingrid Schubert was arrested in October 1970. Her initial

prison sentence of 6 years was increased to 13 years after a

new trial on the ground of further charges. She spent her 7

years of imprisonment under different prison conditions, from

total isolation to smal1 group isolation, except for a short

time (4 weeks) when she was integrated into normal prison con-

ditions. (appendix ) 1)

On 18.8.77 she was moved during the hungerstrike by helicopter

from Stuttgart-Stammheim to the men's prison Munich-Stadelhej~.

According to her own statement she became unconscious during

this flight.

From 6.9.77 until 20.10.77 the contact ban was imposed on her.

Ouring the contact ban a forcible gyneacological examination was

carried out against her will.

On Sunday, 12.11.77, at 4.00 p.m. in the afternoon she was moved

from the cell in the hospital wing into the cell 402 in the

admission wing without medical examination.

"The ante room to the cell no. 402 was accessible through 2 doors.

On the one hand it was accessible from the other cells - except

the 2 cells next to hers - through a door in the hall, on the

other hand through a direct entrance to the ante room. It has

therefore to be determined, how the observation was carried out."

(Letter by lawyer Bendler from 17.4.74 to the Public Prosecutor

at the court in Munieh, p 7/8)

According to adecision by the prison directorate and the respon­

sible doctor, senior medical officer Frau Or. Lange:

"an observation was ordered in irregular intervals of 30-60

minutes." (letter by Frau Or. Lange from 15.11.77 to the prison

directorate, p 2, P 112 of the file on the causes of the death)

1) Ingrid Schubert wrote the report about the attack from 8.8.77 in Stammheim
s. p.68 and appendix 33
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On 12.11.77 the last control took place at 6.00 p.m., the next

only at 7.10 p.m. Ingrid Schubert was dead.

The lawyers, who were allowed to be present at the post mortem

examination at 11.00 p.m., reported:

"Around the neck of the dead Ingrid Schubert there was still a

rope, which was knotted together in plaits (underlined by us)

from individual, white, linen strips." (report from 13.11.77)

In the letter from 17.4.78 to the Public Prosecutor Munich they

continue:

"Origin and point of time for the manufacture of the strangulation

instrument in the cell 402-have until now not been sufficiently

explained after the ~;,quiries.

.•.No fragments of cotton threads have been discovered on the

clothes worn by Frau Schubert at the time of her death. The

report (by the Bavarian Criminal Office from 15.11.77) states

that such thread fragments are inevitably produced when material

such as sheets are being ripped up .... No small thread agglomera­

tions from white cotton were found. (p.8)

It is further established that the two other strips were not

directly torn from each other, ... it has not been established

whether the two other strips which do not show exact matching

to the presented sheet, originate from one and the same sheet ... "

(p.9)

Without further investigations into these questions the Public

Prosecutor stopped the inquiries into the cause of death on

14.2.78. The lawyers received the file on 6.4.78.

It is reported universally that Ingrid Schubert had no intention

of killing herself.

"111. Lawyer Bendler had last visited Frau Schubert on 10.11.77.

At the visit they discussed that he would apply for a transfer to

the prison Frankfurt-Preungesheim. An appropriate application

was submitted on 11.11.77. The application reasoned amongst

others, that the prison 5tadelheim was only meant to be a tran­

sition prison. (p.3)
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"Neither the lawyer, however, nor the prison administration

had the impression that there was any sign for any intention

to commit suicide. On the contrary, Ingrid Schubert has

explicitly denied such intentions." (p.4)

(From the report by the defence counsel from 13.11.77)

Frau Dr. Lange, senior medical officer at the prison hospital

Munich stated on 15.11.77 to the prison directorate:

"With this modus (of control) Frau Schubert also was more

satisfied, but she stressed repeatedly that all this was un­

necessary as she had no suicide intentions. As she had also

become more communicative and engaged in longer talks this was

believable. On 11.11.77 she explained to the doctors and nurses

that an application for her transfer to Preungesheim was on its

way and that she hoped to be moved there .

As a summary it can be said, that on the part of the doctors no

suicide intentions were recognisable."

"Her behaviour in particular did not show signs of any suicide

intentions." (letter by the Public Prosecutor to the lawyers on

1.8.78 - Al 120 n Is 1009/77)

The authorities immediately presented her death to the public as

suicide in the news at 9.00 p.m.

Even though no notes were found in the cell on the day of her

death, a few days later a letter was presented as 'evidence',

wh ich Ingrid had written a few days be fore her death, but had

not sent off. There are other letters wh ich Ingrid wrote shortly

be fore her death in which she expresses a keen interest in

philosophy. (appendix only in German!) She ordered numerous

books and developed plans for the future.

These letters, which the prisoner had posted, are not acknowledged

either by the authorities or by Amnesty International who

attribute the death to the prison conditions.
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5. SIGURD DEBUS

Sigurd Debus died on 16.4.81 in Hamburg. He had taken part in

a hungerstrike by prisoners from the RAF and of other political

prisoners since 11.2.81 to achieve the abolition of isolation

and to be put together in groups.

Report about the hungerstrike and the death of Slgurd Debus

Sigurd Debus was born on 7.5.42 in Freudenthel. He was arrested

on 28.2.74 and sentenced on 30.5.75 by the court in Hamburg to

12 years imprisonment for his participation in bank robberies,

for bomb attacks on the Office for the Protection of the

Constitution in Hamburg, against the "Haus ~dr Industrie" and

for forming a criminal group (nowadays 129 a StGB). Sigurd

bebus saw these offences aspart of his anti-imperialist struggle,

which he was fighting with the urban guerilla that existed at

that time. But he had no direct connection with the RAF.

Until the beginning of 1980 Sigurd Debus was kept in isolation,

of this he spent over five years in total isolation mainly in the

prison in Celle.

In February 1980 he was moved to the prison in Hamburg-Fuhlsbuettel

under normal conditions. Even though he was now imprisoned under·

normal conditions - which he had been given without his request ­

Sigurd Debus maintained his earlier demand to be put together

into groups able to interact. (compare appendix 1)

On 11.2.81 Sigurd Debus joined the hungerstrike of imprisoned

RAF comrades in the prison Fuhlsbuettel. (compare appendix 2,

statements dated 11.2 and 25.2.81)

On 20.2.81 he was moved to the remand prison Hamburg. On 19.3.81

force feeding was started in the hospital of that prison.

The order by senior medical officer Dr. Goerlach to start force

feeding was preceded by his statement that Sigurd Debus was now

in danger of dying. (compare appendix 4)

It is still not clear what prompted this statement. On that day

Sigurd Debus's weight was still 62.6 kg, signs of deterioration

were not evident. No preceding examination of Sigurd Debus had

- 131 -

taken palce. There is no clear indication In his medical file,

for the existence of a dangerous deterioration in his condition.

From the fact that the prisoner Gruschke, who had also gone on

hungerstrike on 11.2.81 and who was also, like Sigurd Debus,

subjected to force feeding at the same time without preceding

examination and this despite their different individual conditions,

it has to be concluded that force feeding at that point in time,

was not carried out to save lives, but to break the hungerstrike.

Force feeding was carried out by compuls6ry infusion of aminofusin,

carbohydrate compound solution and from 2.4.81 lipofundin was

added.

According to his declaration Sigurd Debus has from the beginning

fought actively againsi this force feeding. He was daily taken

from his cell by 8 werders and in the prison hospital was sub­

jected for up to 11 hours to the torture of compulsory infusion

while completely strapped down. (compare reports by Sigurd Debus,

19.3, 23.3 and 26.3.81, appendix 5-7)

The undersigned could not discover any considerable deterioration

of Sigurd Debus's general condition during his regular visits

in the remand prison up until 3.4.81. It was possible to have

visits of between 30 minutes to 1 hour.

On 5.4.81 his body weight was still 63 kg.

The last talk between the undersigned and Sigurd Debus took place

on Friday evening, 3.4.81, in the visiting room of the remand

prison.

On Monday, 6.4.81, the planned visit to Sigurd Debus by the

undersigned, was prohibited by the prison adminsitration. They

said that the physical condition of the prisoner would not allow

him to have a visit.

Only after intervention by Justice Senator Mrs. Leithaeuser did

the undersigned receive permission to visit his client the next

day. But on Tuesday, 7.4.81, the undersigned was again prohibited

at first from seeing his client. At lunchtime the prison

administration informed him that Sigurd Debus was no longer in

the remand prison. The information as to where Sigurd Debus had

been moved, what the reason was for the move and who was now his

doctor, was not given to him. Only after renewed consultation
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with Justice Senator Leithaeuser was the undersigned informed

of the whereabouts of his client. Sigurd Debus had been moved

at lunchtime on 7.4.81 to the General Hospital Barmbeck.

Despite a recommendation by the doctors treating him there, the

prison administration only allowed his mother and Sigurd Debus's

lawyer, after several applications, to see him in the evening.

This visit then led to the discovery of the extremely serious

condition of Sigurd Debus.

Sigurd Debus did not recognise his mother or his lawyer. His

hearing and visual faculties were very badly affected, he was

disorientated in time and space. The doctor in the hospital

had not recognised these symptoms until then. According to his

statement, he had assumed that the prisoner, because of the

resistance which he had put up for 20 days against the force

feeding and which he had been told of, would not want to communi­

cate with him. The medical data given to him had not shown that

the situation was this serious.

Neurologists were immediately consulted and they diagnosed on

the evening of 7.4.81 that Sigurd Debus was in all probability

suffering from brain damage.

Sigurd Debus did not regain consciousness despite all efforts

possible in the intensive care unit of the Barmbeck Hospital.

On 16.4.81 Dr. med. Prinz confirmed his death.

From the post mortem report it follows that Sigurd Debus was

al ready clinically dead on 15.4.81. This substantiates the

suspicion that the delayed confirmation and announcement of his

death to the public, followed the order of the state authorities

with the aim of bringing about the discontinuation of the hunger­

strike by the RAF prisoners, as a consequence of the death of

Sigurd Debus and not the realisation of their demands.

Actording to·the post mortem results and expert reports available

so far, the death of Sigurd Debus was caused by a 'withering' of

brain tissue with haemorrhage bleeding and strongly increased

pressure on the brain. The cause of these conditions has as yet

not been ascertained by experts. The final report is still out­

standing as supplementary anaesthetists and internal expert

reports are still being prepared.
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All signs point to the fact that the force feedings in the

hospital of the remand prison caused the death of Sigurd Debus.

It is clear that Sigurd Debus did not die of starvation and that

at no time was his life endangered by his physical condition

because of his refusal to take food. It is also clear that from

the time of his transfer to the General Hospital Barmbeck on

6.4.81, Sigurd Debus had no chance of surviving as the deteriora­

tion of his health, which was decisive in his death, had al ready

occurred during his force feeding in the remand prison Hamburg.

For the decisive per iod from 4.4.81 to 5.4.81, there are no

medical notes. The medical file and the reports which exist

so far show several omissions and inconsistencies with regard

to the treatment of Sigurd Debus on the part of the responsible

prison doctors which until now have not been cleared up,

especially with regard to their effects on the further progress

of his illness.

Criminal proceedings by the Public Prosecutor at the court in

Hamburg have therefore not been concluded.

signed Michael Nitschke, lawyer~

On 17.4.81 the Public Prosecutor at the court in Hamburg,

department 13, opened preliminary proceedings to determine the

cause of death. Ref.: 134 Js 1063/81. On 4.5.81 they gave

instructions for the preparation of expert reports. It is

certain that at the time of death there was no connection between

his physical condition and the hungerstrike.

The inquiries by the Public Prosecutor have not been concluded

at the time of this documentation - 16.4.83 - two years later.

Extracts from the appendices mentioned in the report by the

lawyer: Appendix 1: letter by Sigurd Debus, dated 12.1.80:

"Prison administration/Court Hamburg

In addition to the information by Mr. Ludwig and Mr. Quast,

da ted 10.1, I want to add

1. that the taking up of prison work after a change in the

prison conditions (prison 11) is for a long time psycholo­

gically and physically impossible after 6 years of isolation

(apart from 7 months in Celle). I am now unfit to work.

Whether I can take up prison work later will be determined
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2. For the rest, the demands of the discontinued hungerstrike,

from the summer of 1979, apply.

signed Sigurd Debus"
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Appendix 4: The original of the quoted letter from the prison

hospital (also from 19.3.81) is in the appendage

I repeated that I would actively resist any attempt at force

feeding. They went out.

These measures are ordered to be taken herewith - if necessary

by force. ( 101 StVollzG, vv to 101 StVollzG)

Dr. Goerlach, Senior Medical Officer'

Report about the force feeding (infusion of 1 litre of 'salviamin

1500' into the left arm) on the 37th day of the hungerstrike.

On 19.3.81 at 10.45 a.m. the head of the prison hospital,

Goerlach, and the prison governor, Koepcke, come into the cell

and give me a letter of the same date:

'Ref.: hungerstrike by FS Debus, Sigurd, born 7.5.42

The above named refuses, since 11.2.81, consistently to take

food of any kind. There now exists a danger to his life. This

danger can only be prevented through medical examinations and

treatment, as weIl as nourishment. The prisoner has been

informed in the presence of prison governor 111, Mr. van Koepcke,

about the necessity of medical measures and the possibility of

compulsory treatment as weIl as of the consequences for his

health if he is not treated.

Appendix 2: statements from 11.2 and 25.2.81:

"I have today gone on hungerstrike for an unlimited per iod to

achieve the destruction of isolation and isolation wings.

I demand:

-that the prisoners from the guerilla will be put together in

groups of at least 15 prisoners

-the application of the Geneva Convention for the prisoners

from the guerilla.

Control of prison conditions by the International Commission

for the Protection of the Prisoners and against Conditions of

isolation.

-the release of Gunter Sonnenberg.'

Hamburg, 11.2.81

signed Sigurd Debus"

"Sigurd Debus 25,2.81

To the Court in Hamburg

In connection with the hungerstrike declaration I want to point

out explicitly, that I refuse a move into so-called normal

prison conditions. There will only be a collective solution

according to the hungerstrike demands.

signed Sigurd Debus"

Appendix 5: report by Sigurd Debus

"Sigurd Debus

remand prison Hamburg

19.3.81

Appendix 3~ from the letter to the lawyer during the hungerstrike,

19.3.81:

"The cells, in which we are kept now, are already so-called

'observation cells', which means that there are 2 lights, both

of them built into the wall behind wire. One lamp is 25W strong

and is the 'night light', the other i5 anormal 75W bulb.

The 25W lamp they have left on continuously since the night of

Wednesday to Thursday. The flap in the door they have exchanged

for bars through which they can look - before that it was

covered up with a steel sheet. They can now at any time, without

fiddling around with the flap, look into the cell."

At 11.05 a.m. 8 men (medical orderlies) stormed into the cell,

grabbed me by my arms, legs and hip, pulled me to a stretcher

which was standing outside the cell, threw me onto it face down,

twisted my arms and sat on my legs, pressing my head down onto

the stretcher. This is how I was taken to the prison hospital.

There they put me down on a bed. They strapped me down with

leather straps: my legs, above the feet and at my thighs. Across

my stornach and chest with leather belts. 80th arms were strapped

down onto the bed. Goerlach was there.

After about 5 minutes Goerlach pushed the needled into my left,

strapped down arm. Infusion of 1 litre (see above. The force

feeding lasted from 11.15 a.m. until 16.20 p~m. My body was
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totally immobile, strapped down on that bed, I could only move

my head and neck.

After this torture my limbs were completely stiff, I could only

move with pain and then only very slowly.

I don't know exactly whether any blood was taken be fore the

infusion, or whether pulse and blood pressure were measured,

as 2 pigs held my left arm and bent it. I had no proper feelings

in my arm, just pain.

signed Sigurd Debus"

Appendix 6: report by Sigurd Debus, 23.3.81

"21.3.

forced infusion in the prison hospital from 8.20 a.m. until

4.50 p.m.

1 litre aminofusion L 600

1 litre carbohydrate eompound solution

Again taken to the prison hospital by 8 medical orderlies. This

time I am not strapped down eompletely, I could move my thighs

and the lower part of my body. straps: round the thighs, fore­

arm, across the chest and the shoulders. In the evening I am

still strapped down on the bed for about 20 minutes after the

needle has been removed because the killers had not announced

our return to the remand prison area in time. They crawl around

me all day long, observe me all the time from the next room which

has been furnished as a waiting and treatment room. That room

and the treatment cell into which I am taken, are equipped with

windows in the partition wall.

In the remand prison area everything is always 'under lock and

key'. But on this evening shortly be fore the end of the infusion

hardly any of the medieal staff were in the room, they were

probably watehing the football game, maybe that's why the trans­

port back to the prison cell took so long.

On this evening - after the infusion of earbohydrate - I was not

able to sit longer than 5 minutes. I fell on the bed, eovered

myself up with all the available blankets and 2 sweaters.

Shivering fits and perspiration at the same time, for hours. My

heart was raeing and I had tearing in the left side of my ehest -
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lasting for several minutes at a time. Unable to move quietly.

To lie on my side is unbearable. I lie on my back, head slightly

raised, completely without strength, nausea. Then dizzy speIls,

I have the feeling as if my spine and legs are turning round

faster and faster like a spiral and 1 lose consciousness tem­

porarily - I don't know for how long, it doesn't occur to me to

look at my watch. Don't notice either when they come to turn off

the main light at 11.00 p.m. At about 12.00 p.m. I regain full

consciousness, completely wet with sweat, movement in my bowel.

I had thought that my bowels would be completely empty by now.

Go to the toilet, about 1 cup full of a black/brown soup comes

out, smells more like medicine than excrement.

After that the describp~ conditions slow down, I lie down and

for the first tiffi~since the constant light I sleep deeply and

without once waking up until 06.45 a.m. (waking-up time) despite

the light being on all night.

22.3

forced infusion in the prison hospital from 8.15 until 14.05 p.m.

1 litre aminofusin

1 litre carbohydrate compound solution

Again fetched by 8 medical order lies as described, strapped down

like yesterday, slight movement possible.

The situation, wh ich I described yesterday, today starts at ab out

7.00 p.m., slightly weaker, everything not quite as extreme, but

today no bowel movement, instead I vomit black mucus, a small

amount (1 tablespoon) - but half an hour of wretching. had a

sip of coffee after returning to the cell - but I am not thirsty,

just a feeling of nausea.

Signed Sigurd Oebus"

Appendix 7: report by Sigurd Oebus, 26.3.81

"Today the forced infusion lasted from 9.45 a.m. until 5.55 p.m.

I litre aminofusin, 3/4 litres carbohydrate compound solution.

Strapped down as before.

In the evening I discovered that blood had been coming out of my

bowel (on the bed in the hospital), Both underpants were soaked.
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Q~~E:~!~~_~f_Q!ff~E~~!_~~~~_~~~_~~!~~

(b)'These,c~ritY; police carry out searches in the cells

prisone~s~rirregular intervals: they take, notice

1.

~he stat~authririiies of theFRG encroach on the right of

def~nce in many different ways. They have created aseries

of~aws which provide the basis for such encroachments.

VI. ENCROACHMENTS ON THE RIGHT FOR DEFENCE (ARTICLE 14 OF THE

COVENANT)

Of,Control of therelationship between the defendant and

"his/her ~counsel

:i >~:.~"."_,,:."'_'::".' , i;.~,~·_.: __'.

','',/\,,;;;,.controlof'writtencommunications
'(, . ':"' ::~,":; -. ' "" ,

"';;''i~ a ~"The)c9rre;l>p'0nd,ellce between the counsel for the
';('{cdef,E:h~eand tpe pr~soner during proceedings is con-

'~~~i~lmJ~~~[~1i~:n~?~~;:;;:~::~::!~':~:;:;:~:::,
.' , '),,",the' business-o'f: the' Judge to define the direction and

• ,"-:"" c- -, ,;,._ '<',",-' .,:'.:;-. __.,.::.

nature dft_h.e"~efence, this law is incompatible with
the defence law. It contravenes in particular Article

21'1 2 ofthe Draft Principles on Freedom from Arbitrary
. ""',, "

Arrest a,nd ~etention o( ~he UN Human Rights Commission.

(E/CN~,·4/104f.+),:~; - '-','-- _

"The'a~rested~,r detained persön and his counsel shall

','.,alwaysbe ,a~,lowed adequateopportunity for consultation., , .••• '.," -'.! •. '.,,' ,

..~They may communi~ate freelY-ln writing or by telephone
, ,"'" - -:_. ~"." "" ",.: ,,",,- /'" ,,'

orbyother mean's';and"their' messages shall not be
~", ~ -- ,',~ >-~ .. < .,

~enSO;ed, or th~ transmittal thereof delayed by the

.. i~~;D,~,r/ties.,,; _
<.,>~nrece~ttime~ officers ofthe security police and

.''''',/p):'i,sorJofficerihave confiscated mai! or retainedor

:~i..?c::.o~trorledit;after-.themai! had a1ready been passed. '. ' .. ' .... - ."
' . .-'~-" .'": ," ", :" ... ," .,' -.

"tbya,c;ontrolling Judge. There is no legal basis for

i{uchpract1ce:

At 7.00 p.m. I demand to see a doctor, the doctor came. (I don't

know her.) I told her about the blood and also that since the

beginning of the carbohydrate infusion every second day a brown/

black liquid comes out of my bowel and since today blood. I

demanded that tomorrow (Friday) no force feeding should take

place .••.

I will today, if they should still take me to the force feeding,

immediately ask for a doctor: I want a break for 1 day to give me

time to decide whether I should change the form of resistance for

a short time.

signed Sigurd Debus"

1) underlined by us

In the evening the blood continued dripping out of my bowel, I

changed the woolclo\~ atout every hour. Further oozing in the

morning •

On 16.4.81 the state press department Hamburg published a press

statement. It says:

"When his health deteriorated Debus was being fed by infusion

from March 19th 1981 onwards. He had been warned urgently by

the doctors treating him that his life was in danger. Debus did

not put up any resistance to the infusion treatment. On April,

7th, 1981 he was moved to a general hospital according to the

consent of the doctors involved. This complied with a

taken be forehand by the Justice authorities and health

according to which the point of time for a necessary

a public hospital should be 1eft entirely up to medical

The Justice authorities stress that they have done everything

possib1e to save the life of Sigurd Debus. But where a person

consciously makes allowances for his own death medical h~lp

to its limits."

•

•
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of private correspondence and defence papers and

confiscate them. This practice is used especially

during trials in progress so that the police and the

prosecution obtain knowledge of the nature of the

defence.

(c) The offices of defence lawyers are searched by

security pOlice and the public prosecution and defence

papers are confiscated.

B. Control of verbal communications

(a) Prisoners are searched be fore and 9fter every

visit of a defence lawyer and hav~ to change their

clothes completely.

(b) The defence lawyer is physically searched before

every visit by police or prison officers. They cannot

prevent notes being taken of their files, in some

cases the defence lawyers have to undress completely

and be searched physically (see 3rd International

Russell Tribunal Vol. 4, p.63)

(c) Ouring the visit of the prisoner accused under

Para. l29a and his/her lawyer are separated by a glass

partition (Para. 148 11 StPO, of 14.4.78), a massive

glass pane similar to a bank counter which distorts

voices and affects audibility. Reading of files

together is impossible.

(d) Talks between prisoners and defence lawyers are

secretly and electronically monitored - and tapes of

these talks have been made. on 17.3.77 the Badenwur­

ttemberg Minister for the Interior admitted in public

that in "two exceptional cases" in Stammheim, conver­

sations between RAF prisoners and their defence lawyers

had been secretly taped: see Critical Justice 1977,

p.112 and 3rd International Russell Tribunal, 1979,

Vol. 4, p.56.
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Criminal proceedings brought agalnst persons who lis­

tened into these conversations were unsuccessful: the

state prosecutor in stuttgart stopped the proceedings

on the grounds that these did not render them llable

to prosecution. From this result we may conclude that

such actions can be repeated at liberty and that

further listening in to such conversations is probable.

The conclusions of the 3rd International Russell

Tribunal Vol. 4, p.117 states: "Recently created laws

and measures under them are a serious threat to human

rights. The jury found that there are in-roads into

the relation~hip between lawyer and client."

(ii) Curtailing defence laws in the main proceedings

(a) Police and prison officers undertake physical

searches of the defence lawyers when they enter the

court building. they take note of the defence papers,

see statement of the 3rd International Russell Tribunal

Vol. 4, p.176: "Lawyers ••. have to undergo humiliating

bodysearches. If they refuse they are threatened with

high court costs."

(b) In a similar way visitors to the proceedings are

also checked: when entering the court building they are

searched physically, have sometimes to open their

clothes (trousers), their identity card is xeroxed and

the visit is recorded in the computer of the BKA

(Federal Criminal Bureau).

(c) In the main proceedings the right of the prisoners

to make statements is curtailed. This is especially

so for statements in which the prisoners explain the

politita1 aims and content of the actions they are

accused of

_ with the law of 9.12.74 the right of the accused to

make a statement at any time durlng the main proceed­

ings was repealed (repeal of Para. 27la stPO)

r
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- prisoners who made a statement are Interrupted by

the court chairman who switches off the m1crophones

so often that their statements were cut Into

unintelligible pieces

- the regional ministers of justice decided on

25/26.9.82 to prohibit political statements in the

proceedings by law. "Long idealogical statements

are to be stopped as delaying the proceedings." The

accused has a right to be tried quickly.

(d) The right of the counsel for the defence to make

statements is curtailed.

Counsels for the defence who themselves criticise the

justice departm~nt are threatened with proceedings for

professional misconduct. For example, a lawyer had to

pay a fine because he stated that"class justice did

not stumble over the legal web of the rules of criminal

procedures" and "in this trial the decorum of a con­

stitutional state trial is being misused for the sup­

pression of terrorisation of political opponents to

the capita11st oligarchy". See 3rd International

Russell Tribunal Vol. 4, p.24

(e) The right to submit evidence 1s restricted to a

large extent. This app11es to all evidence which

relates to the political meaning of actions which are

attributed to the accused. In no case in proceedings

against the RAF could the accused ever explain the

political character of their actions w1th the evidence

of witnesses or experts. See below.

Furthermore, by the law of 1.1.79 (Para. 245 11 StPO)

the possibility for the accused to call w1tnesses or

put forward other ev1dence was restricted.

According to the former law the court was obliged in

most cases to hear witnesses who were invited by the

accused to give evidence.
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(f) The rejection of a judge on the grounds of bias

does no longer lead to an Interruption of the trial.

(Para. 29 11 StPO, of 5.10.78)

(ii1) Exclusion in criminalisation of counsel for the defence

(a) The counsel for the defence can be excluded from

the proceedings: wherever "strong suspicion" is suf­

ficient that he "took part" in "action", which his

client is accused o~ or is a dange~ or where he is a

danger to the security of the prison. (Para. 138 StPO

of 1.1.75) This order was especially created for the

proceedings which were to begin half a year later

against 4 RAF prisoners (Andreas Baader, Gudrun

Ensslin, Ulrike Meinhof, Jan Carl Raspe), who were

classified as the ringleaders of the RAF. In con­

sequence, Andreas Baader was without defence counsel

at the beginning of the trial. The reasons for the

exclusion were that the counsel for the defence had

"supported" a "criminal association" (Para. 129 StGB)

namely the RAF prisoners or those "recruited" for them.

"Support" and "recruiting" referred to, and continues

to refer to, the alleged idealogical support by counsel

for the defence who, for instance, stood up in public

for the abolition of confinement in isolation. In

short, the political and also public defence is declared

as to be acting as an accomplice.

(b) In this context the appointment of a counsel for

the defence by the court means that they are working

against the will of the accused. Conscripted defence

1s part of the usual practice of political proceedings.

An essential part of the right of defence is that the

accused chooses a lawyer in whom he can place trust and

work out the 11ne of defence together w1th him. The

assignment of counsel for the defence against the will

of the accused is an infringement of the rights of the

defence. W1th this practice the justice system pursues

the objective to exclude lawyers who have the confidence

of the accused under Para. 138a StPO. Thus it assigns
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counsel to the defence so that it retains the appear­

ance of a constitutional trial after the exclusion of

the lawyer chosen by the accused.

(c) According to Para 146 StPO of 1.1.75 the joint

defence of several accused persons by one lawyer is

prohibited. If one considers that politically accused

persons are always accused of an organisation offence

(Crown Association Para. 129 StGB or Terrorist Association

Para. 129a StGB), it is evident that they have to be

able to defend themselves also as a group. Subsequently

the courts have interpreted the order extensively:

- they have widened the prohibition of joint defence

to trials which take place in parallel or in succes­

sion and even t~ trials in which the offence is in

some way related to the RAF.

Since 1984 the political justice department extended

the application of Para. 146 stPO considerably:

- lawyers are not admitted if instead of defending

other RAF prisoners up to the end of the trial they

take on the continuing instructions of clients who

are now sentenced prisoners (Haftmandat)

- further, the concept of a "terrorist organisation"

within the prison to which all RAF prisoners are

said to belong serves the function.to exclude all

those lawyers who already have another RAF prisoner

as their client. It is no longer necessary to prove

that both clients did, at one time, live illegally

underground, it is now sufficient to state that both

are members of a terrorist organisation and imprisoned

at the same time. This results in many newly remanded

prisoners remaining without defence lawyers for a

long time because the lawyers who want to represent

them al ready have other RAF clients even if those are

convicted prisoners.

(d) According to Para. 137 I 2 stpo the number of the

counsel allowed for the defence of one client is

limited to 3 at most (introduced 1.1.75).
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(e) Counsel for the defence are subject to penal

procedures: on the grounds of "support" or "recruiting"

for a "criminal association" or a "terrorist association".

The offence of a "terrorist association" was created

by the law of 18.8.76. The then amended 112 stpo says

that on suspicion of an offence under Para. 129a StGB

an arrest is possible, i.e. the danger of escape or

interfering with evidence. Such an arrest is political

detention. It contravenes Article 3 and 5 of the Draft

Principles on Freedom from Arbitrary Arrest and

Oetention of the UN Human Rights Commission. With

this instrument the political justice system has

arrested 4 counsel for the defence of the RAF prisoners.

See below for further details.

(f) Unfitness to stand trial: in the proceedings

against RAF prisoners, this principle is practically

eliminated.

i) Para. 23la StPO valid with effect from 1.1.75 pro­

vides that the proceedings can take place in the

absence of the accused, if he is unfit to take part

and if this order can be demonstrated by the example

of the proceedings in Stuttgart-Stammheim against

Andreas Baader, Gudrun Ensslin, Ulrike Meinhof and

Jan Carl Raspe.

From the beginning of the 'proceedings the prisoners

and their lawyers explained that the prisoners were

unfit to take part because of their isolation,

which by then had lasted for years. First the court

claimed that this was not the case. Finally the

prisoners and the lawyers managed to per suade the

court to appoint medical experts. Those experts

came to the conclusion that the prisoners were

partically unfit to take part and that the one

reason for this was their isolation.

After this the court reached the following decision:

it acknowledged the unfitness but claimed that the

reason for it was the hungerstrike so that the

prisoners were themselves responsible for the unfit-
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ness and the proceedings should go on in their

absence. The next higher Court, the Federal Court

of Justice, came to the same conclusion but for

other reasons: the conditions of confinement were

actually the reasons for their unfitness - but

because of their "special dangerousness" the prisoners

were responsible for the isolation themselves, so

that the proceedings had to take place without them.

Because of this decision the OLG, Stuttgart (Regional

Supreme Court) at times proceeded in the absence of

the accused.

In this interpretation Para. 231a stpo has the func­

tion of helping the justice system out of the self­

created dilemma: it orders isolation confinement,

c8uses thereby unfitness to take part in the proceed­

ings, and thus makes the main proceedings impossible.

But then it does not draw the conclusion to end

isolation, but declares the unfitness as self-imposed

and thus creates the grounds for proceeding in the

absence of the accused.

ii) Although Gunter Sonnenberg was unfit to take

part in the proceedings because of his head wound

(see the special reports about him), the OLG Stuttgart

proceeded against him. They thereby disregarded

medical opinion. Prof. Or. Rasch wrote: "Sonnenberg

is only able to explain himself and to understand

what others say in a restricted manner. He can

follow the word sense of a given explanation, but

he cannot understand the complexities of the contents

even if this is relatively simple. It is to be

expected that Sonnenberg throughout the procedure

will forget explanations given by him and others to

a degree wh ich is far from normal. According to

medical opinion the fact of 'unfitness to stand

trial' is established." (Oer Spiegel 27.2.78, p.104 f).
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The court has reduced the essential requirement of

taking part in a trial to the prisoner's purely

physical ability to be present at the trial. (See

above, p.I02).

The Federal Prosecutor (Chief Prosecutor Lampe)

declared in the trial that Sonnenberg certainly

may have lost same brain matter, but that it was

sufficient if he had enough brain matter left to

take part in the trial. At the end of his trial

Sonnenberg was sentenced to life imprisonment.

2. !~~_Q~j~~!_~!_~~~~!~~g_!~~_~~g~!~_~!_Q~!~~~~

(i) O~~ object for the defence (especially of the lock-outs

of counsel for the defence and their criminalisation and

arrest) is to increase the isolation of the political

prisoners. They are robbed of one of their remaining

possibilities to communicate. The former president of

the BKA, Herold, stated in an interview: the "mere fact

of the visits of the defence counsel and their number

were very important matters for the police" (Frankfurter

Rundschau 4.6.78). The "mere fact" and a number of

visits can only be "a very important matter for the

police" if the police - and the BKA - as the institution

responsible for the isolation confinement, has an interest

in increasing isolation and considers visits by lawyers

as potentially disruptive.

Following the same line the Federal Government stated in

their comment on the complaint to the European Rights

Commission that the allegation of total isolation was

unjustified since the complainants were permitted to

receive an unlimited number of visits from the defence

counsel. When the Federal Government says those visits

were "permitted", this means that the Government holds

the opinion that lawyers' visits are not a matter of right

of each prisoner, but permitted concessions, which can be

withdrawn if necessary. The contact ban provides further

proof, conferences with defence counsel are only possible

through a separating glass pane. The underlying idea is
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that as long as the defence counsel can still vislt,

isolation should still be maintained by means of the

separating glass pane.

(ii) A further objective to hinder political defence in the

main trial is the avoidance of publicity for the state

measures which are taken against the prisoners, i.e.

the prison conditions as weIl as publicity for the

political aims of the prisoners.

This is particularly so in the court's practice to reject

particular petitions. In the trial in Stammheim against

Baader, Ensslin, Meinhof and Raspe the main thing, for

instance, was the attacks of the RAF du ring the Vietnam

War on the US headquarters in Heidelberg (25.5.72) and

on the headquarters of the 5th Army Corps of the US forces

in the FRG and West Berlin, in Frankfurt/Main on 11.5.72.

The prisoners and their counsel introduced the subject

of the American war in Vietnam and its support by the

Federal Government in aseries of submissions. They had

applied to invite as witnesses or experts American military

personnei, politicians, former intelligence agents,

doctors, journalists, and specialists in international

law, to prove that the American methods of warfare contra­

vened international law and to prove that the prisoners'

actions were legitimate according to the rights of resis­

tance and international law. The court .rejected all

petitions as not being relevant to the subject matter:

See Critical Justice 1977. The same objective is the

above-mentioned restrietion on the prisoners' rights to

issue declarations.

(iii) The main object Of the limitation is the prevention of

publicity of the state measures against the prisoners.

Counsel for the defence are a preferred object of attack

by the state since they are eye witnesses of the isolation

and have authentie information about the situation of the

prisoners. In the decisions about lock-out of lawyers

from the trial or about the arrests of lawyers the court

stated openly that these were their reasons. The OLG

Stuttgart, for instance, locked out Dr. Croissant from
tha t~.~l o"~4n~+ a~~~~. ~"~~,t" ,."~"h~~ __~ n ...l~~
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the argument that he had stood up for the appeals of

the prlsoners to end isolation during a church informa­

tion evening, and that he had organised an interview

between his clients and the magazine "Der Spiegel" during

the 3rd hungerstrike (1974/75). In the same decision the

DLG Stuttgart looked already at the use of certain phrases

as proof of "support" or "recruiting": "He spoke about

'eliminating machinery', 'isolation torture', 'elimination

confinement' and 'elimination interest of the state

prosecution and state security office'. Both of these

statements have adopted in form and content the expres­

sions of the members of the criminal association. In a

similar way the same court justify the later arrest of

Croissant; see L'Affairp :roissant, 1977, p. 99 f.
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VII. CRIMINAlISATION OF THE STRUGGlE AGAINST SOlITARY CONFINEMENT

(ARTIClE 9 ANO 19 OF THE COVENANT)

2. In recent times the Justice Oepartment has widened the use

of Para. 129a to include what is called the "legal RAF" and

to include persons who live legally but participate in actions

of the RAF. This concerns people who declare their solidarity

with the RAF prisoners (support the demands far joint imprison­

ment, write letters to prisoners, etc.).

1. The prosecution of the lawyers is closely linked to the

criminalisation and arrest of other persons who publicly

support prisoners for being imprisoned together. The legal

basis hereto is Para. 129a of the StGB. Only few eKamples

are mentioned:

(a) On 6.2.81 the OlG Stuttgart convicted three persons

under Para. 129a StGB because of the f0110wing events:

- at an e1ection meeting of the then Minister for the

Interior, Herr Baum, they held up aposter demanding

that the prisoners from the RAF be imprisoned in

groups. The OlG Stuttgart interpreted this as

"recruiting" and "support". Also see the statement

of Amnesty International in their Annual Report of

1982, p.338.

(b) In 1981 the same court sentenced two persons because

of the following:

during the hungerstrike in spring 1981 they had dis­

tributed pamphlets in the University of Kar1sruhe

which called forthe support of the hungerstrike.

Shortly afterwards both of them were taken into remand

custody and were later sentenced to 1; years of con­

finement. Amnesty International criticised this

practice in their Annual Report of.1981 and 1982 as

"Gesinnungsjustiz". This practice is Arbitrary

Confinement (Article 9 of the Covenant) and contra­

venes the right of free speech (Article 19 of the

Covenant). The above mentioned people are kept in

isolation confinement.

The eKample to mention here is the proceedings against

Helga Roos who has been held in custody since 16.10.81.

The charge against her is that she had supported an attack

by the RAF against NATO-General Kroesen. The proof of the

allegation of "support" was replaced by the Federal

Prosecutor with: "the wish of the accused to support the

terrorist association of the RAF with actions which in

themse1ves are not punishabl~, e.g. watching out for cross­

roads supervised by a camera, the buying of a tent and of

food, but is a consequence of her identification with the

aims of the association."

The prosecutor names as proof for this "identification" a

reader's letter published in the left daily paper, the quoted

discussion during a visit to a prisoner from the RAF, letter

contact to a prisoner. The conclusion of the Federal

Prosecutor was: "the accused has been embedded in the

surroundings of the RAF for years". The proof of the factual

evidence has been replaced by the prosecution of political

thoughts.

Helga Roos was sentenced to 4 years and 9 months because of

"membership". The claim of the "legal RAF" includes thus the

possibility of sentencing unwanted persons, not only for

"support" or "recruiting" for RAF but also for "membership"

with sentences up to 5 years and in the cases of ring1eaders

up to 10 years.

3. The politicised justice system has initiated aseries of

proceedings under Para. 129a against RAF prisoners and their

relatives, friends and lawyers. All in all there are at least

43 proceedings, 32 against prisoners (1981). Ouring these

proceedings the Justice Oepartment searched the cells of

prisoners, as weIl as lawyers' offices, and houses and has

confiscated letters, private notes, reports ab out the prison

conditions of prisoners, and theoretical writings. In

essence, the (confiscated) papers dealt with isolation con­

finement, the demands for joint custody and thoughts about

how these demands could be formulated and put into action.
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It needs to be stated that all of these papers had passed

the censorship of the control judges. The arguments for

these measures were: "the arrested members of the association

do not want to be in joint custody with other prisoners from

the 'anti-imperialist resistance' to obtain better prison

conditions, but to establish better conditions for the pursuit

of their terrorist aims even in prison '" the discussion

about how the demands could be formulated, how they can be

politically justified and what campaigns and actions would

have to support them, all constitute for RAF members, factual

evidence of their membership of this association .,. for

persons who are not members of th~ RA~ participation in the

above-mentioned actions in th~ full knowledge of the real

aims of the RAF means it~ support of the terrorist association".

(Oecision of the investigating judge of the BGH, 22.8.83)

This form of reasoning is factually and legally incorrect.

It's factually untenable since it excludes the existance of

the isolation condition, its physical and psychological con­

sequence and the objective which is to be achieved through

isolation, i.e. to break the identity of the prisoners.

It is legally incorrect, since it postulates indirectly a

duty of the prisoner to submit to the destructLve process

of confinement in isolation without resistance. The argument

of the BGH states verbally: "a prisoner who does not accept

confinement in isolation has terrorist aims, a group of

persons who fight against isolation is a te~rorist association.

Relatives, friends and lawyers have a duty to accept confine­

ment in isolation, if they do not do that they make themselves

punishable of the offence of "support" or "recruiting".

The above-mentioned measures contravene the right of the

accused to free information and expression of opinion under

Article 19 of the Covenant. It must be emphasised that the

criminalisation can begin earlier than in the above described

cases: the participation alone in non-public discussions and

private exchange of information can lead to being criminalised.

(
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VIII. CONCLU5ION

The measures taken by the state against the RAF and against

political prisoners amount to a special law whose legal

basis is the Para 129 and 129a of the 5tGB~' It leads to the

loss of rights of the prisoners in question. The state

operates a form of covert martial law against these persons.

Another characteristic fact is that the separation of power

between the legal and executive departments and between the

Federal Government and the Regional Government (the Federal

Principle) is not applied to the prisoners. The examples of

the conditions of confinement show this clearly. The inves­

tiga~ing judges are formally responsible for the custody

conditions of remand prisoners and prison directors - at

least the Minister of Justice of the regional countries ­

are responsible for other prisoners. In reality however it

is the Federal Government of the BKA, Oepartment TE (Terrorism)

_ in the BKA there exists a committee for the conditions of

custody of political prisoners (see Amnesty International

conditions of confinement in the Federal Republic Germany,

May 1980, p.lS)

_ whether a high security wing is used or not is not decided

by the judge but the prison administration

_ in all prisons where political prisoners are held so-called

security inspectors exist who are responsible for the

control of the prisoners. Those officers are in direct

contact with the BKA and with the political departments

of the Regional Criminal Offices

- the visits of the prisoners are supervised by police

officers, discussions are no ted down. The BKA collects

information about the visits, including lawyers visits,

which are stored in a computer "Datei Haftlingskontrolle"

(control of prisoners)j see Koch, Peterj Oltmanns, Reimar:

SOS. Freedom in Germany. 1978, p.91.

In this context it is important to mention plans for the

introduction of martial law in "extraordinaty situations".

These plans are explicity based on the thought that the
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Oecision hy the Federal Supreme Court, :n.10.75

Karlsruhe A2 1 5TE/74 STU 60-63/75

b) The complainants live under other condltions of Imprlsonment.

The have to comply with restrictions whlch, accordinCJ to the

expert renort by Professor Rasch, are not compensated for by

"privileges" granted to them. They (the prlsoners) are,

however, themselves responsible for the clrcumstances whlch

contrlbute to their unfitness to attend trial.

The complalnants belong to a minlscule group of the ~upulatlon

who, contrary to the majority, considers It necessary to change

society- against its will by ruthless armed violence and not by

the usual means of a democratic process - whereby It Is doubt­

lessly true that the society In the FRG, llke all societles,

could, to some extent, be improved.

The (complainants) unrealistic view of soclal condltlons and

thelr real chance of affectlng those has led to a fanatlcal

pursuit of thelr alms which they pursue evcn whllst in prlson

as remand prlsoners. They conslder thcmselves as Imprisoned

members of an armed group (R.A.F.) who fights agalnst the state

with all the means available to it, who does not recognlse the

laws of the state or its agencies, partlcularly agencies of law

enforeement and justiee. They have not only suceeeded in keep­

Ing in contact with each other throuCJh Lhe 11elp of thcir lawycrs

who cireulate information between the (prison) cells, but they

also manage to issue orders for further (violent) actlons to

their fellow terrorists who were still at large.

They do not only keep to thelr right ta rernaln silent wllen facrd

with eharges and to the preparation for trial, they also plan

for their liberation by mcans of force. One of thcm, An0reas

Baader, has been freed once already and an Innocent hystandcr

was gravely wounded in the process. Thc attack on thc German

Embassy in 5tockholm, which claimed sevcrRl Jives, also served

as a plan for their liberation by exerling pressurrs nn

representative agencies of thc German BIld Swedlsh states. The

abduction of the Ber] in [lolltlcian Lorenl succeeded In forclng

the liberation of several terrorists close to the Bccuscd.

Furthermore the accused undertake to dlsrupt the order of thc

penal institutions at their most sensitive points. As can be

deduced from the evidence submitted in connection wlth the

contested order, thejr (the accused) aim is to agitate the other

prlsoners and to instigate "revolution in prlson". In the

present proceedings which do not require witness evidence

(Freibeweisverfahren) and other documents mentloned In the court

order and presented by the Court of Appeal In support of the

different complainants, are not important (to the decision) so

that there Is no need to discuss these further. In the event

that the documents will be of importance for the allegation

it is not necessary at this point of the proceedings to request

a subpoena of witnesses (5trengbeweis). (Ref. to Loewe,

Rosenberg, 5tPO 22 Aufl. 55 244/2, 2) It is sufficient that the

documents reflect the strategy of the RAF as seen by the com­

plainants, and that each of them is totally committed to the

aims of thiscriminal organisation which are largely self­

determined: The arguments given by the defence and clted In

the above-mentioned texts against the conclusion of the Higtl

Court miss the contents (of the text). They (the arguments)

also leave out the context in which these occur in the texts.

The dangerousness of the complainants which became evident In

the above-mentioned context, left no eholce to those who were

responslble for the plannlng of remand custody other than to

Increase the severlty of the prlson conditions. Thc accuscd

and their lawyers have, for a long time, claimed that this

partieular form of detention is inhumane and destructive Isolation

torture. This allegation ean only be understood as Inflammatory

defamatlon partieularly as the conditlons of conflnement, thc

extent of their severity and duration, is forced upon the

authority by the behaviour of the aecused. It was evident

that they are aware of the negative effect of these prlson

conditlons. There are no serious doubts that In view of their

abave average intelligence they have lang been ~ware of thc

effects of the Isolation upan their fitness ta stand trial.
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for offlel;]ls connected with the custody and trial of the

accused these effects have long been masked by their extra­

ordlnary activity. If, however, they persist in the behaviour

whlch forces the agencles of the state to apply such conditlons

of confinement, the accused have reckoned wlth the occurrence

of thelr condltlon of unfitness to stand trial. Thls Is

sufflcJent proof for "Intended behaviour" accordlng to para.

731n Sectlnn I stro (Kleinknecht, anO, Ann. 7)

3. More important even is the fact that the complainants exposed

~ theJr al ready endangered condition of their unfitness to stand

Irlal In furlll"r stress t.hrnuqh hlJnq(~rstrlkes. TllI'yralllllll

refer to lheir claim t.hat the hungerstrikes are directed against

illegal treatment. The correctness of the conditions of confine­

ment have been confirmed by the appropriate courts and were

examined by the constitutional court and have passed judgement

by the European Commission of Human Rights. Like everyone else

the complainants have to content with final decisions like

everyone who is subject to the law. The fact that they refuse

to comply Is attributable to their principal dlsregard of legal

decislons and the state rule whose peaceful function is recog­

nised by citizens of the state who follow the law. The argument

of the defence who deny this correlation amounts to a demand

either for the prisoners to be detained under conditions which

would ease the continuation of their activities as a criminal

organisation including preparation for their liberation, 01' is

aimed at a cessation of the trial against them.

~. Everyone can see that the hungerstrikes would, or at least could,
lead to a reduction in fitness to stand trial and the accused

cannot have been unaware of it. This Is clear from the secret

message on 4 February 1974, by A. Baader, quoted on page 10 of

the contes ted decision, whlch says that the hungerstrike should

not stop this time so that "someone should die". So in this

case too the accused have acted at least to a limited extent,

with intent.

The assumption, that the accused have never in the past paid

heed to their state of health and have ignored the danger to

their fitness to stand trial, is continued by the circumstances

described on page 15 of the contes ted decision. The quotation

which is attributed to the complainant Baader is on the other

hiHld of no importance to the declsiofl, Ulf' High Court was not

able in this context to find any additional reproachable

behavlour by the accused.
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.olitary contlnem.nt. Apart tro. brl.t lQt.rval., tb'l r.­

c.ived num.rou. vl.lt. from tb.lr d.f.nc, coun••l and •••b.r.

of tbeir familie •• A. a r••ult of tbeir bunger-atrik. and on

the .dvice ot the priaon doctor and tbe ap.cialist empow.red

by tbe court, th. posslbilltl •• of contact vltb another w.r.

coostaotly Increaaed even to tbe InclueloQ of otb.r ••mber. of

tbe Red Army Brlgade. Tbey vere even allowed to make contact

with other pri80ner8 durlng th. time spent in the prlson yard

aod other forms of partlcipation were allowed. Slnce the tlme

of their boing admitted to Stammhelm, contact had been forbid­

deo with one another only flve times - In two of these iOBtan­

COB thiB included contact wlth the outBld.~world. TheBe reBtrlc­

tionB varied In duratlon from flve days to two montha.

9. from the modial evidenc. to be found In tbe filea it clnnot

be e8tablished tbat a connexion exists between the .ffecta of

tbl. confinemeot on tb.ir ••ntal and physical coodition and

that rOBult1ng from other tactors such a. duration of sentence.

hUlIgorotrika or 8tres8 brougbt about by preparation for the

trial. It bas been establiabed trom aeveral general reports.

that wnormalw imprisonment over aperiod ot tour to 8ix years

reBultB in 8uch charateritlca that were noted among tbe com­

plaioaotB. Tbeae were: emotional disorders. Impairment of

Judgemeot and Inaight. and changea In behaviour whicb manlfeBt

themBelves in areturn to infantilism and a cbange in attitude

and beha~lour towards tbe communlty (Europeyn Councl1 - Euro­

poyo Commitee for Penal Law Problem8 - general report on tbe

treatment of long-term priaonera).

10.It vould be true to 8ay tbat a certain wldeoing of the pOBBi­

bilitieB of making aocial contacts was granted 10 relation tu

the bungerBtrike. 10 conBidering tbe clrcumstaocea of the case.

io particular the conBtant control over prison cooditlooa by

the authoritiea of tbe Federal Republic and tbe bebaviour of

the prisooer8 tbaaseöve8. wbo turned down some of theae posal­

bilit1e8 of the contact, lt cannot In any way be malntained

that the cömplalnanta underwent pbyaical or mental treatment

which was intended either bO punlsh. tO,destroy the personal­

1ty or to break resistance (see European Court of Human R1gbta

Ireland v. United Klngdom. Ruling from 18 Jan. 1978 para 167)

See also the depo.ition over the protection agalnst torture

contained in tbe re.olutlon 3452 (xxx) ot tbe General Assembly

of tbe United Nations. Tb. special sentence, Impo.ed on the .

co.plainants. could not. accordingly. b. regarded as inhuman

-.46S--
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LETTER SY A PRISONER FI10M Tli[" ~i1L1 NI WING

"Ouring tl1e period 16.6.72 - 9.7.73:

-the feeling that the head is exploding (thc feeling that tl1e

scalp will tear apart, explode)

-the feeling as if tl1e spinal cl10rd was nrp~sed into the hr~ln

-the feeling as if the brain WilS shrinking, 1 ike dried fruit for

example

-the feeling a5 ir one was contlnuously aod imperceptihly ~elo~

subjected to p.lectrical current-., likr, t)('jrHJ r('mole-cnolfllIJf'rj

-the feeling that a11 associations are t1eing cl10pped aW<lY

_ t 11" f·f~l·l 111lJ t 1,;,1 nlll' W;I', 1I i ',', i lill 11111' I" ','1111 11111, ;1', i I I Jr 1"

wasn't able to hold water

-tl1e feeling tl1;)t t.11.,cpl I "'(lV!"" (lll( <lw:II"',,,"J"'W, Oll"", f'Y"",

the cell moves; In the afternoon when the sun shines, the cell

',llflcll'itl Y "t;tllcl', "I i 11.

moving

-one can't establish whether the trembling comes from a t.empera­

ture or because it Is cold

-one can' testabI I sl1 why one is t.rellltJllnCJ- w!,y one fel! I" 50

cold

-to speak with anormal voice is very exhausting, like talking

with a loud voice, nearly sl10uting

-the feeling that one is going dumb

-it is no longer possible to Identify words, one can only guess

-the use of hissing sounds - 5, S5, t.1, " -,cl1 - j:, ;)hsnlut cJ y

unbearable

-prison officers, visitors, exercise seem ",ade out of celluloid ­

headaches - flashes

-construction of sentences, grammar, syntax - no longer possible

-while writing: two lines - at the end of tl1e second llne one

can no longer remember the beginning of the first

-the feeling to burn out inside

-the feeling that if one would describe to somebody what is

happening, if one would release it., it would bc like throwing

bolling water over that person' s face, I ik,' boi I inq t.ank water,

which would scald him for li fe. di 5 f Igurr> h i"'

-raging aggression for which tl1ere is no Plit Ipl, Ih:Jt i s t.he

warst. A clcar consciollsncss t.hat t!'Plf' i" nn ChQ"lJc to survive

thisj complete failure to explain thi 5 1.0 oll"'lS;
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-vl~its leave no traces. Half an hour later it is only possible

lo conslrucl mechanically whether the vlsit was today or last

-a roaring sound in the ears, waking up as if somebody was beating

me up

-the feeling like moving in slow motion

-the feeling of being in a vacuum, like being enclosed in lead

-Afterwards: shock. As if an iron plate had fallen on one's

lIead.

-comparisons, conceptions that one thinks of in there:

(psycho) tearing wolf -

simulation drum (centrifuge) for space travel where the

man's skin is pressed down through the speed -

Kalk,,'~' p"Il;1IClI)OIlY - 1111' mall Oll Ulf~ lIoard of naiJs -

"-" constant riding on the merry-go-round
-lhe radio: it creates a minimal relaxation, like coming down

from speed 240 to 190

'-

weck

-to have a bath once a week means: to thaw for amoment, to

recover - lhis feeling stays for a few hours

-ll,e feeling that time and space ilre one and the same

-ltle feeling of being in a distorted mirror - staggering around.

-Aflerwards: terrible euphoria that one can hear something -

about the acoustic difference between day and night

-the feeling that the time now moves, that the brain is expanding

again, that the spinal chord is moving downwards aga in - over

weeks

-the feeling as if the skin has been removed.

The second time (21.12.73 - 3.1.74):

Peter Mllberg, who was kept in such a cell in Frankfllrl­

Preunqesheim (empty hospilill wing), had i)flerwards i1CI:lI~('d

his judge, that he had 'tried' to kill IdOl. Ihis is ~,imply

true, that an 'execution' is taking place in there. which

means: an inner decaying process takes place - like thc WilY

that substances dissolve in acid, wtlich ean 111' slowl'd down lIy

concentrating on resisting it, but it cannot he stopped.

Part of the malice is the total de-personalisation. Nobody

else, apart from oneself, is in this totally exceptional siluation.

As a means/method it can be clearly compared to the way they

treat the Tupamaros for example: to inject them to produce an

agitated condition and death agony and just before the point of

death inject them with Pentotal - which creates a sudden relaxa­

tion aod euphoria. The prisoner, they think, will now lose his

self-control and he will talk."

Th~t all this is taking place in a cell which from the outside ~

looks like any other cell - radio, furniture, newspapers, books g

makes matters worse: it contributes to make an understanding ~~
between the prisoner and people, who do not know what acoustic ~"
isolation means, impossible. It also disorlentates the prlsoner.~

(Thal these cells are white only strengthens the terror, but -~
only because of the silence. When one has understood this one

painlS the walls.) It Is clear that one would rather be dead in

that cello
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B. Exercise period at lrregular times.
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The Prison Covernor

of the Prison Essen

To the

Judge at the Federal Court

75 Karlsruhe

Postfach 16 61

13.6.75

zu BJs 50/75
11 BCs 101/7 5

9. Outside of her cell the prisoner will always be accompanierl

by at least 2 prison officers.

10. The handing over of food, exchange of linen, clothing and

prison books, the emptying of the wastepaper basket will only

be handled by prison officers, never by prisoners.

11. Bodysearch of the prisoner and her clothing before and after

every visit - including visits by her defence counsel. She

has to undress completely.

~

Ilt~f: rPfII;Jllt! pri:;oller flanllil Krillllw, horn 2/1.10./15;

here: directive for speci~l security measures

Ref: decision by the Federal Court from 5.6.75 -

I BJs 50/75 - 11 BGs 101/75

Nil. /.,/ II IIVoll/1I

According to the above named decision the remand prisoner Krabbe

will shortly be transferred to the prison in Essen. 1 have con­

sidered the following special security measures:

1. Strict solitary confinement.

2. Confinement of the prisoner in a cell with a specially

secured window

(a) with additional steel bars to stop escape attempts

(b) with a special securing of the tipping window to prevent

prohibited contact with other prisoners.

3. Securing of the cell with an additional padlock.

4.

The cell of the prisoner will only be opened and ente red in

the presence of at least 2 prison officers.
5.

The cells to the right andleftof the prisoner's cell will

not be occupied.

6. Oaily search of the prisoner, her belongings and her cell.

7. Repeated observation of the prisoner at irregular intervals,

but at least every 15 minutes day and night.

12. Bodysearch of all visitors - including dcfencc counsel - wHh

a metal detector and thorough search of the clothing and any

objects brought along. We will insure that the content of

the material brought by the defence counsels will not be

lookcd illlo by lhc 5c<lrching officcr:.;.

13. The ordering of, for example, newspapers, magazines and other

printed matter will only take place under supervision by the

prison administration.

request consent according to no. 62, para 2 UVollzO.

The Federal Prosecutor's Office has received a copy of this

letter.

Eickmeyer

cerU fied Voss

Administration employee

C
n
c:,,."
.~~
'"
c:..~.
><

.-



- '2 -
-414-

Appendix 5 the administration, to the doctor, when taking a bath, ctc.

The prison conditions of the accused will be regulated as

foliows:

The f~llowing has been ordered in view of an application by the

Federal Prosecutor at the Federal Court according to para 122

StVollzG, paras 119, 149 StPO:

Decision

In the preliminary proceedings

against

Verena Becker, born on 31 July 1952 in Berlin, accused of

offences according to para. 129 a stGB

'-

The Judge at the

Federal Court

I BJs "l6/77

11 BGs 482/77

Karlsruhe, 11 May 1977

6. She will receive her food individually (rom two prison

officers without the presence of other prisoners.

7. She will have exercise on her own. The exercise per iod will

be stopped immedlately If the accused mlsuses it by causing

disturbances, especially If she doesn't follow orders, if

she insults prison officers, commits damage to property 01'

physical attacks, 01' tries to establish cantact with other

prisoners.

8. The accused is not allowed to wear her own clothes. Should

it be necessary for medical reasons to wear other than prison

clothing (shoes for instance), the prison administration will

decide in this case after consultation with the Federal

Prosecutor's Office.

9. The accused, her cell (including window, bars, doors and

padlock~) will be searched and examined daily. It is pro­

hibited to take notice of the defence material.

1. It is inadmissable to confine the accused together with other

remand 01' sentenced prisoners in tJ1U snmu cell.

2. The cell door of the accused will lll~ cqlJippcrj wit" nn <lclditional

padlock.

10. The accused is to be observed repeatedly. The observation

is to take place at irregular intervals. The cell lights may

be switched on for a short time at night if the inspeeling

prison officers cannot convince themselves otherwise about

the presence of the accused.

\....-

3. Thc cell window will be equipped wilh a sarely deviee lu avoid

unconl.rollecl cont<!ct wlH'rehy j I hn~. I CI IlI' 1'f1~;"rl'dI h;lf lI,prp
is still sufficient visibility, surfieienl light and suffieient

ventilation.

J 1. lhere will tJe aseparate decision atJuut thc u"c ur t'cr UWIl

radio. The use of arecord player, sound recorder, eassette

recorder and television set is prohibited.

12. Thc accused may reccive visitors, elfter eael) vi~;il ha~; been

"

"

,
:>..

o"individually approved. Visits beyond the usual times and

on Saturdays, Sundays and on special holidays are not per­

mitted. This also applies to visits by defence counsels.

Several visitors at once will only be allowed under excePtionall~ ~
circumstances. The generally valid visiting time of 30

minutes can only be extended by permission for eaeh individual

visit. The visit will be stopped immediately if it is being

misused by the visitors 01' the accused (for example by not

5. The prisoner will not be allowcd tu rlltend prisof1 events ClIHl

church services. The accused has always to be kept apart

from other prisoners. This also applies to other events

within the prison, for example while presenting herself to

4. The light in the ccll of the accuscd will only be turned on

at the times that it applies for other prisoners.

The use of other light sources such as standard lamps, torches

01' candles are prohibited.
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following the instructions 01. the observing officers, passing

on things, passing on coded messages). The visits have to be

observed. The observation will be regulated in accordance

with the Federal Prosecutor's Office.

13. The visitors are not allowed to pass on food supplies to the

accuscd as weIl as other objects, with exception 01. those

articles which are usually passed on during visits ~nd uscd

lJp imlllcdiately (like cigarettes). fls I"ar as visitors wünt

to give other food supplies to the accused they can do this

by paying money into the prison account 01. the accused.

14. vi sitors 01" the accused will bc scarched berore each visil,

their clothes and any objects they might carry will be

investigated. The use 01. a metal detector is admissable.

Male vlsitors have to take off their jacket. Coats will

always have to be taken off. Female visitors will be searched

by a female prison officer.

15. The accused will before and after each visit take off all her

clothes and change into a new set 01. clothes.

16. Oefence counsels will have their clothes and bags searched

with the aid of a metal detector, except their defence docu­

ments. No. 14 applies accordingly.

Oefence counsels are not allowed to take dictation machines,

sound recorders, folders or similar, including accessories,

into the visiting room. Folders belonging to the prison will

be given to the defence counsels for the duration 01. the

visit to keep their papers in if they so wish.

17. Documents or other objects 01. the defence counsels have to be

submitted to the responsible judge before being passed on to

the accused. Should the person in Quesiton refuse to submit

the papers to the judge first, then they will not be passed

on to the accused. This also applies to so-called defence

mall from and to the accused, even if it is meant to be passed

on directly from the accused to the defence counsel.

18. Should there be an acute danger to the health or life 01. the

accused the prison governor can decide about a transfer uf

the accused without judicial consent. The use of handcuffs

is permitted. The prison governor will declde about the

requirement 01. accomp~nying officers.

19. The offlcers 01. the Federal Crlmlnal Office (BKA) - Oept. TE ­

are allowed to see the accused at any time and to take her out

01. prison for inQuiry purposes. When taking her out the

lnQulring offlcers are responslble for her.

20. In- and outgoing mall is - as far as it is subject to obser­

vnt.inn - to I)(~~.ent.tu Ihe jlJd(jc tor cxnmination.

21. As far as any rules have been missed out in above named order

the rules 01. the 'Str~fvollstreckungagesetz' apnly. Should

r:{JlIr:,~~;~;i()n~·.IJI~(jranled ;JlIl!sllolJltJthcre tle (l0Y doutll lIlal lids
could prejudice the object 01. the remand imprisonment, then a

preceding consultation with the judge is necessary.

!leasons:

The accused is presently serving a sentence. But an arrest warrant

has also been issued against her because 01. strong suspicion 01.

murder, attempted murder, membership in a criminal group and other

offences.

with persons, who are strongly suspected of being members 01. a

criminal group and who are charged with the most severe crimes,

we have to be constantly prepared - in view of the considerable

hostility towards the law as a result of their group relationShip ­

for escape attempts and their preparations as weIl as for attempts

to influence those co-criminals still at liberty, their supporters

and sympathisers. In this ca se it has to be added that the accused

has evaded the execution 01. a legally pronounced sentence under

exploitation 01. a severe crime committed by a third party.

Within the framework 01. the execution of the arrest warrant the

above named measures have to be taken. They are necessary to

ensure the object 01. remand imprisonment. Association with other

prisoners cannot be considered at the present level 01. inquiry.

Association has to be excluded especially with those prisoners

who have been supported or were going to be supported by the group

working with the former lawyer Haag as weIl as with other members

01. this group. Even for reasons of health it cannot be permitted·
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The prlson complex consists of two wlngs; the old building and

the low bulldlng whlch was bullt later. The old bulldlng is

an empty wing whlch Joins onto the Silent Wlng In an L shapp.

We are In the S11ent Wlng. The wlng area Is shut off from the

adJacent administrative bullding by a locked steel door with noo­

transparent glass.

In front of the steel door which is outside the wing, is the

entrance to the glass partitioned cell for lawyers and all

other visitors. Inside, there are two more steelgrated doors,

one to the old wing and one to the new. In between is the door

through which we get into the gl ass partitioned cell. In contrast

to 1978 the visitor now doesn't see anything of the wing.

Formerly the visit was in a ce1l in the wing itse1f. Nobody can

enter this wing and we can't get out.

The glass partition consists of a three layered thermophen glass

window fixed into a wide metal frame which is per fora ted on the

left and right side.

Every kind of contact with our relatives and friends is therefore

eliminated whether it is embracing, seeing or hearing. Vou are

sitting OPDosite each other as if on a monitor, so that we have

to ask oursclves If we still want these kinds of vjsIL~.

-//1f"' -
- 5 -

to endanger further investigations hy allowlng prlsoners La he

Logether or Lo facilitate preparations for an escape attempt.

The injury to her health as a result of the shootlng injury

incurred by the accused herself Is very minimal; It is merely

~ fleshwound caused by a gunshot which penetrated right through.

The mental damage feared by the defence counsels cannot occur at

such an early stage of imprisonment according to the understanding

so rar, but only - if at all - after an imprisonment of several

years. It has to be added that the condition of the accused has

so far been very robust ....

(den Best des Satzes kann ich nicht ubersetzen,

weil da was fah1t, Seite 165/166)

To order an easing of prison conditions is not a matter for the

responsible judge in this case. According to para 122 StVollzG

only restrictions on the liberties of the prisoner can be ordered

but not special facilitations. In this ca se only the responsible

prlson administration and, if necessary, the executlng court can

decide. We refer to no. 21 of the regulations.

signed Kuhn

JUl1ge at t11e Federal Court

~ As we have been told 'an exception is perhaps possible from case

to case, on application' by visits from relatives.

Underneath the old wing the basement has been improved. There

are now our belongings and the showers; other prisoners don't

get there, which means administratively: the distribution of

clothing, the storage of the 'be1ongings' etc., runs completely

separately.

Formerly we were able to leave thc wing once a week, to take a

bath, 30 minutes. This has now been stopped, which means the

wlng complex Is absolutely tight.
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Jt is so orgilnised that nobody apart from lIS and the pigs come

into t.he wing; for example the pigs do the cleaning which is

normally done by prisoners, themselves.

fhe control over the prisoners is complete.

The visual and acoustic surveillance on the outside and inside

has bern pcrfected.

Jn the corridor of the old wing is a new camera, in the Silent

Wlng the camera has been installed in a box at waist height. In

thc yaret, who nobody except us enters, there are scvcn cameras

whlch cover the whole area: one between the wing and the inside

wall t.hat separates the wing fiom the other prison, 4 cameras

along the outside wall, 2 on the old wing which film the Silent

Wing and can watch us when we stand at the window.

The monitors are in the control room, and in the guard room

which is situated at an angle between the two wings.

On the outside wall of the Silent Wing on top of the windows

there is a double loudspeaker like the one on police cars. 1t

secures the communication between control room and pigs, gives

the command for the end of the exercise per iod and probably

records what we are saying at the window.

In front of the cells there are 4 boxes, each built into the wall

so that the electricity and light can be switched off from the

outside and all other installations, electronic, water, etc.

In contrast to the electronic installations the 'bell' in the

cell has not been changed. This is a stick with a red metal

flag that has to be pushed into the wall. What is new is if you ~~

o
push the stick a green light appears, when the door is opened a ~

yellow light shines, when the lights are turned on at night this ~

releases a whistle sound etc. ~~~
~

wing. Accordlng to Justice Senator Meyer, the signal lights

indicate that the microphones are swit.ched on. The camera

covers the corrlrtor at the same time.

TIle cell door is always opened by 4 fcmale screws, or 2 female

and 1 male scrcw.

f)lJring exercise prriorts wr ;Hr rjIJ;lrr1rrJhy 7-3 fem;Jlc screws ilnd

male guard, who are carrylng willkie-talkies and are poster! in

a half circle with a fairly wide gap bctween thcm. They hardly

talk to each other but observe us - sometimes they move closer

tO~lether wlthnut us having beh<1vcrJ cJiffercnlly.

The connection with the cn~trol room through the walkie-talkies

controls evcry contact with us, from thc distribution of food

to having showers.

At night two pigs with MPs patrol in the yard. The whole control

system has bcen fully systematiscd. Instead of thc often crazy,

unco-ordinated alarm system w~lich formerly would make shrill

sounds at any kind of movemcnt in thc wing, everything now

moves much more noiselessly.

The cells:

Altogether there are - apart from the visitors cell and 2 big

cells (tv and workroom) - 15 cclls, 5 of these are in the old

wing, these are bigger.

In the Silent Wing thcre are 10 cells. On the vault doors which

have always bcen secured by 2 bolts, another safety lock has

been added; every opening of the door turns into a big operation.

After the hungerstrike in April '78 the ~nlargement of the cells

and an alteration to the windows'had been announccd as positive

changes (from a note of a phonc call between Donandt Justice

Ministry (Strafvollzugsamt] Hamburg and Lunau, Kiel).

Every sound by us is monitored electronically. The opening of

the doors by the pigs is monitored in a control room outside the

C\

The 'considerable structural ctlClnges' tlJrn out - apart from thc

window - as a thorough seclJring of thc wings. The cells are

still small.



-/l{7-
- 4 - - ) -

The wing and yard are surrounded by a wall about 5 metres high,

which ls whitewashed all the way round. On top is NATO-wire and

floodlights.

In the steel door is a new bullet-proof glass aboul thr sizr

of a brick which can't be opened (allstop glass), in front of

1t 15 a movable wooden board (movable from outside) and on tor

of It a wide angle spyhole.

'-

Ttlf? hackground lo l.his: after the strike in April '78 Or. Friedland,

leading medieal direclnr in lhe Hamburg Justiee Ministry

(Strafvollzugsamt) visited the wing and wrote 'a small report'.

He said: Even If one considered our report as exaggerated, sub­

jectlve, Impressionable, ete., he was shoeked about the small

eells and the lack of air. Thereupon Or. Armbruster (same

funetiOn as Friedland in Kiel) also supported a change. A few

days ago Schmelzer, Oeputy Olrector of Lubeck, had been to see

him, shown him some photographs and had sa1d now everyth1ng had

changed and was very colourful (Fr1edland in a conversation on

1.6.79) •

Over

eye.

bed.

the bed ls a blue control lighl, for use al nighl, like an

Thi5 15 also the reason for the prOhibition to move thc

On the cell ceil1ng ls a neon tube.

The result is that the old windows, through which not enough air

was penetrating, have been replaced by normal windows wlth the

usual prison bars. The changes that have been made to the w1n­

dows are openly in contradiction with the UNO guidelines. At the

same time two massive hooks for wiremesh have been installed

oulside on the left and right side of the windows.

The heds are no longer serewed down but because of their length

and height, are eonstrueted in such a way that it's not poss1ble

to move them around. You can only slide them up and down along

llllf'wall, IllitIlli';j,; fnrhi,ldP.fl. Whpfl Wl' rut thc I)(~"frnml'c,'IP

(
When Anne and Srigitte were brought into the ;,~ng from Berlin

in August '76 the trees behind the wall were chopped down, during

the 'contact ban' in September '77 the wall was whitewashed and

the cameras installed. Sehind the wall is the bnck of ttl('

police buildings. From the roof windows the pigs can look

straight into our cells. Hardly any sound comes ncross from

there. What you can hear registers ilself as samething special:

you can count the number of times it happens on flvc fingers.

Otherwi5e we hear nothing excert oursel ves <Jnd t.l1(,snlJ'1I1~;n f Iil('

survP.i] Innee ~ysl.(,lIl.

lo havc more space in lhe

would serew the beds down

bedframe out was rejected.

We are cut off from any kind of normal daily rhyl.hm and sounds

connected with it. And juc,t as w(' (';1'11\111'·"'1' 1\1 11I''1r111111"

tile timelable worked out by the pigs. In contrast to tllr olll"r

prisons, the time-rhythm constantly CIl<Il1<](,s.w(~ don'1. know yt't

if there is method behind it. There certalnly Is with our YJrd
exercise.

They have strictly refused to remove even onp of thc restrlctions

on the work materials or to change them:

10 newspapers or magazines, 25 books, ]0 f)]es. AaLterjC's fnl

example are stored in the guard room.

We are not getting our radios back beeause they "ave shortwave

which is forbldden in Lubeck. All thp nlhrr nrlrn"nr. _. __ ,'

,ne In tile

ILly-rliqlll rli f It'II'11I-" .llld

pri :;(Jfler~tI.e olher pr IsCHIer:; don 'I. kllllWwlll!til!.:!Wf,'

wing. There is no rhythm/movement on!" enn rJlJrsu!".

Th'('ori('nl.atinn of Iimf' wnrl<-, IlVf'1'IllJ'

cell, they threatened us that they

aga in. An application, to take the

Instead we were 'offered' a second

1''''I('j~,,~ Ill'li"" ~;" ';o~; tu lake ~teps i.IlJilinstlhe limil;lliofl 01

movement'. The exercise period is regulated in such a way by the

pig5 that it is not possible to plan the per iod of association,

wr I'ithrr can'l f]f1in!n t.hP.y;Jrd, or w(' conr,tnntly hnvr tn r.pl il

up ttlC 4 hours of associat1on.

The cells correspond to the security guidelines, which have

been laid down after the Stammheim inve5tigat1on:

3 white conerete walls, I pastel coloured wall, grey 5teel door,

concrete floor with special coating (pvc 5prayed), no skirting

boards. New washbasin and lavatory, moulded in on ce piece

respectively. Apart from one nail - for the mirror - all the

walls are smooth. Bookshelf and drawing pin board are screwed

inlo the wall.

\.....,
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ror our assoriation period the old instruction from '78 applies:

I, hr"Jr~,a r1ay whieh can he spllt once. Between 11.00 a.m. ;]nd

J3.fHJ ;]r1rjaft!'r 17.0n no assoelat1on. !t's pract1eally Impossible

to orqilnlsp thp assoelatlon period hecause the exerclse per Iods

<1re irrequl<1r <1nd eertain periods are excluded.

lV is lhrpp limes a weck, from 7.00 p.m. till 11.00 p.m. We can

ICilvc earl ie! or qo later; they wilteh to sec thilt we really are

lOOk ing al the set. In' 78 they threatened to stop TV if we

t"lkf~d tn ";11'1, nUll'! iw.tl'ilrl(lf willchin<j.

Two rjays ;]go they demanded that we fix the days for the weck in

advanee without knowing the programme topies.

Whether the same is happening as in '78 with confiscations,

applications, etc.,

- that Wp are not informed of confiscations or hardly get anything

that applications disappear or lie around for 4 weeks,

we don't know veto We also so far can't say anything with regard

to raids, body searches or changes of cells.

with regard to the exclusion of visitors and mail it is the same

as it used to be: during the 2 weeks we have been here now, 2

people have heen excluded from receiving mail and visits.

Medical eare:

In a decree, dated May '79 in Hamburg, the effects of isolation

imprisonment were confirmed; because of our 'reduced physical

condition' we were deelared 'unflt for work in the cell' (prison

work), the distribution of basic food (fruit, food wlth a lot of

protein, etc.) was ordered and shopping of 30 DM per month was

allowed (this is the lowest amount, 50 DM is possible).

Therefore a vlsit by Dr. Paeschke, prison doctor, was announced

for 21.8.79. On August 17th, It was said to Inga, that he would

want to ask her which drugs were necessary for her and the he

'wanted to speak to her especlally' because he 'didn't yet know

her' .

On August 21st, he Just had a Quiek look into eaeh eell. When

it was mentJoned to hlm that the isolation 'medieally rannot hc

justified' he talked to Christa and Ingo who had association,

ab out his intention of having them examined by a neurolog1st

and a psychiatrist with the aim of establishing if, as a result

of the last three hungerstrlkes, brain d<1mage has or.eurred.

When asked who the psychiatrist was hc answercd, Or. Wittiq

fro~ Neustadt. In Neustadt Is the psychIatrIe prison for thn

whole of Schleswig-lIolstcin.

With regard to this prison doctor one needs Lo know that he

prescribes his medical instructions according to the directIvps

of the Justiee Ministry Kiel. Before his 'visit' he already

said that he would come 'when 1 know from Kiel, what wIll be

granted!.

Lubeck is an army - and Federal Border police - garrison.

Co-operation between prison and military:

- 1974, when Christa and Margrit were brought here NATO-wire

was rolled out on the wall by BGS (Federal Border Police)

- 1976, when Anne and Brigitte were transferred here the trees

behind the wall were chopped down by the BGS.

1977, when Brigitte was integrated for 14 days into the normal

prison system prisoners were working in a yard on a camouflage

net for the Federal Army. A male prisoner reported that weapon

parts were fitted together in the men's prison.

- a female prisoner reported that in 1976 the holiday replaeement

for the prison doctor was-a military doctor.

when we asked for raincoats we were given army parkas whieh are

also warn by the pigs here.

successor to the retired prison pastor became, in 1978, a

former military pastor.

The general prison structure is similar to a military structure

which goes as far as the language. Greif, prison director says

to prisoners: "dismiss".
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lhey have refined the methods which cover up the violent level

of the wing: where NATO-wire used to lie in the yard there is

now a park bench for example. This also corresponds to - like

everytl'in~ else according to directives from the Justice ministry ­

the "climatc", as Donandt calls it, out of cancern not to

immediatcly have a hungerstrike on their hands. Shailice calls

this 'coolly professional' - or at least it is an attempt.

'Climate' he re means also: that at night the MP patrol who are

right outside our windows with their finger on the trigger, call

us by name and say 'good evening' in a friendly way.

And of course Kiel has also learned: the whole cosmetics ­

schnick-schnack, which is meant to mak~ ehe machinery, its clear

murderousness unrecognisable and apparently harmless, so as to

arm themselves against opposition to the high security and Silent

wings.

In the wing - and this is the main thing we are fighting against

here - there is no movement. If we look out of the window we

see, for example, a whitewashed wall in surroundings which don't

change - where, therefore, never any other prisoners have

exercise, where theymove, talk, etc.

Everyone of us who came out of the sensory vacuum of thc wing

(through a transfer to Hamburg) has had the experience that it

is 11ke hav ing a hood pul] cl! 0 ff yrllJr111';11.1- cven thOIHjh wr~ we I'I~
kept there in a security wing inside the prison under exactly

the same isolation from other pri50ners (and still are). So we

can only see and hear Ehem from far away; but they are there,

unlike the Silent Wing where there is nothing. Therefore the

points of orientation which distinguish 'yesterday' from the

'day be fore yesterday' don't exist here.

Therefore, what Karl-Heinz says about Celle: 'that all experiences

are assimilated which the apparatus has so far made isolation

imprisonment' - and these experlences include Lubeck since '74

when same of us had been taken here for the first time.

It is not possible to describe the monotony in the social and

sensory vacuum which crushes any spontaneity, we can only confirm

and count on what is not. (was nicht is.)

'Changing of prison conditions' can here only mean: out of the

Silent Wing and association for us in groups of 15.

Lubeck, women from the RAF

TOday, 31.8.79 Christine was brought here, we will write about

that.

In the meantime we have further established:

that at the end of the corridor, between the wing area and

the administrative building a further steel door with frosted

gl ass has been installed;

when the cell doors are opened for exercise a screw always

stands behind the locked steel bar door, he guards us going

out - besides the camera with which everything can be seen;

- Arigitte remcmbered from the time in the othcr building that

the normal wing had no cameras;

the handling of applications happens in the same way as we

already experienced in '78 - no answer for up to 3 wecks.

For example, no parcel stamps for weeks which means that we

can't order any books; all applications that are not nurely

technical are refused, some newspapers generally confiscated

or only some pages get to us;

el moudjahid (Algerian government newspaper) for Brigitte is

always confiscated: 'foreign newspapers are only allowed

through normal newspaper trade, el moudjahid is not known cither

there or in the prison'.

postcards and photographs are taken out of letters.
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Gpnerally a hardening is taking place here since the beginnlng

of September:

- the MP patrol at night, we haven't seen for some time. It was

obvlously a security measure because of Christine's transfer.

- behind the wall the last tree in front of the police houses

rlght opposite has been chopped off to have a completely free

view into the cells and the yard.

- another thing regarding medical care: since the beglnning of

September a or. von Marzahn has boen coming es "replacement".

That he, like or. Peschke, starts from the effects of the wing,

becomes clear through the drugs which they bring on their own

accord or they 'want to provide .... against lack of concen­

tration .,. drugs that stimulate the brain cells ... for young

people .... without side effects .•. ". When making a dia~~~sis

(by looking at us) he talks about 'special living conditions'

but ho immediately wants to relativate it by maintaining that

the cause for our condition is hungerstrike.

The net of surveillance is altogether so complex and complicated,

that we can register details only after same time.

After a few visits have taken place with 'partition glass'. We

can say that visits like that are turned into reprisals, are

purely meant as an objective for providing information for the

pigs and to take the isolation from the outside to the extreme.

That we are now 5 people, doesn't change the fact that the wing

is a direct physical threat - through the combination of sensory

vacuum, total control and the attempts of the pigs to take any

space away from us by programming the daily rhythm.

-ARS-
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Kar1 Hcinz DellWO after a few daya in Celle - November l?'IA

After 47 daya of h\ln~:cr nnd thirst atrika aeainat total bobtion in the &ecurity

wing of Köln Os~endorf, De11wo receifed a Fromise from the pricon cov~~or that

in tho naxt ~ to 5 wecks he would be moved Aomewhere olso to continuo hio senctence

where he would be c'-'l1'pletelyintof;t'atod w!th thu other pr!son<lra. AD a result

of thl0 Dellwo ~nJ~d hie strike on the 7. 11. 1976. On thc ne4t ~ he was :lo~n

to Celle (Nlerien:3.chr:cn) by helicoptor. Ilellw()~ Rc!,ort frolllon of r.cn.,al'\Y'atop

securi ty prlsont;x'follolols be10wl (•• Frankfurter Rundschau 13.12.70)

The bul1ding In whleh •...e lU"e 10 an open reotangle. That 1:1 to ssy, a long flan.tml

block with wlngs goin8 off to tha left and rlght. Opposito tile oentra.! block there

Is a buildinC which could be the administrative seotion • In between is a yard.

The bul1dinß8 are 4 storied in tha old stylD.

Thia section ie on the first floor nnd sxtenda in a right anglo from the central bl.

out lqto the rl,ht winC. In tha angla Itaelf atanda a control r~~ pDotected by ~.
e8curity Class. In the wine are six collo, one shower, one toilet end another room,'

which COQld be tho la\fYera room end 18 certalnly not a vlaitil:g cello That 1a

to say that t(e other 4 oells mentioned in the Newspaper belong to tha main bleck

part of thio section. Opposite is a row of rooms,.which, I think, conslst

of two oello, the b~th, the tollet and the 1awyera rooe. At the end io the

exi t to our •exercieo yard'. Tho term is a euphem1sm. '

At the end of our wlng there atioks our a 4 ntoried addition, about 3.5~trs wide,

from here rlght up to the end of the cell windowa - 25 Dltrs- runs a 3 mtr hieh

concreto wall. This section of the yard la then sealed off by ant~ber wall at

an!Jle, ttia is nbout another 3.5. mtrs.The top of tho "all in curved Ir.warda a."ld

crowned by tho familiar Nato barbed wire, townrda the insid~ Aloo rro~ the top of
the wall is a wire not that stretches to nbove the oe11 windows (preG\wably to stop

anything that might be thrown down froCl the other 3 otoriec.) The yard i8 watched

by two television CaJlleral. The end of the yard~ by two guardo. Ir you oub\aot the

rooOlthey take up 8.1ldsubtraot the area takf'n up by the $ps lea.dinc to :ntr colls
you 11.l:"elert with exaotly : '.' ._ :' .'

1... 20 paces alone a 4 storey wall, ~hen 3-4 9aoes to the

opposi te onncrete wall, whore you return 20 pa.oeo under an overhane11l8 barbed "

vire felnce. It is obvious that the area you walle on 1a covcred by cClnereto. ".:~::..,

The variety In our perceptual field therefore consist~ of diffcrinc di~tanees

from which we cen look onto concrete walls. The pos8ibi11ty to soe anything has
been reduced to a ~~ddAn1ne dOSTes.

The cell

Th18 is at richt anclea to the oorridor'and has two doorc. Aleo two Wind~s. It ie
about 5.90 mtra lone and 1,80 Iltrv wide. Reicht 3.50 mtr.

Eaoh cell door hö1s a square hole for ~s1ng through thin!r-l. Both windows aa well

ao the ho~es In the door aonaist of 'Allstopt re-enforced elasR. The wlndows, wl11ch

Are enowrmoualy mas8ive, cannot bs opened. The dichtet breath of air penetrates

throuBh tha airconditionine apparatua beside the windo".

The windows are about 1.10 Intro \lide and 1.5 ruetrs high. 50 C;. of tile nroa eoru;ieta

of re-enforced slaas, 50}; of fr3l:le.Thh ie 1mportant. liothinB radiate:J the

feoling of toa~~I'iGolation and separation as blatantly as those windows. Thcre 1a

no contaot to tile outside, not even through the ventilation. This la constructed

in suoh a way ~I~t no sound penetrat08 elther from out~ide to ina1de or vlo, v~rsa.

The coll i8 paintcd ,yellow, there nt"e two large neon l1l(hto on the coillne, on a

wnll another tiny UI'\Y Un,y l1sht ovcr a p1ece of tin 1nserted into th<l wO\l1 which

1s my mirror. You recoenlse ,ycur.elr 1n there ao 1f behind a curtain of fot.
Tin tollet. tin ba ••'"_ ••••.•,,~(•.•••••.-- ••...--
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The food i8 broucht in by a warden er.d obviou9ly doos not COIIIOfro~ Lhe ceneral

kitchen, the 'bie pott'. We have special ration8and our fruit, for instanee,

18 not ßiven w1th Du,als a8 uaual but arrivos in plast1c b3C3 and h.•.o to laet for

a certein per iod.

The door8 of the cell are alrtl~ht. The oell Is sllent. But It 18 not' total~y

ellent as ono CNl hc= indefinabl,. noloe8. Yesterday, for inotAllee, 1t rair:r.d, .

I oould 8ee that but I could not hear it. When the door is opened thio 18 announoe4

by a emaIl noiee. Althoush I have trlod strenouoly to he~r thc w~~eno on the

corridor I have no fnr not been nble to undorstand a sinele word. Tou only hear

a kind of mumbllnc. ~o only Identifinble noise is the food trolleJ. When they

brine; hot wator in a Un jue whieh happens three ti1:le8n day. TMy brine 1t and

take a~ again after an hour. rou. hear a bit of eoratching and then the flap !
In the doorsi •• opcnad. 'rou do not hcar' any approachi"<> 8tepo. I da not, for i.nsta'1u
hear when the doors of the other oalls are opened •.

To express it difrerently; Thi8 i8 not an i801ation wine in thc usual,

now familiar ~er "here a whole vlnc 18 sealed off from the reet.

Thi8 18 the eomp11ation of ten is1atod cel18, unit8, totnlly eealed off

froe 8Mh other. Thie represents everythins- th.:1thas been e;lthered In

prevlous experieneee durins ei~ht year8 of differing isolation.

18 A180 & Cnmdie Pri,.SlBoy 700 but without flD nnd Icv (ahortwiwe :lnd VlIF ?)
There is no cOIILral radio 8y ••tOIllhlJre 1\8 exi8ts in oth ••r 1'r1::on:J••

2

Or the oxercieB y;l.rd (lines lcrt out)

This rcprescnts the mots optimal level on whieh lhc difIcrence belween

oe 11 and y~ can be canoelled. Where one mieht as voll remain in

the Gell 00 there i. onl,y continuity, no chanee.

I hAve been here for 48 hours. Apart from the 'bath and·the visits in the visitoro

eell I have nothine oew to look forward to. Th',re 19 only repetitlo:l of "hat ha.s

gone on befere. The elelllent of c~~oe 18 precluded. Tbe experienee of two

dozen institutions praoticlng Is01at1on'has been evaluated here. Thora ls no

qualltative improveClent posslble, only a quantltav e one, like the eamera silens.

The oain ide~~gi8 strueture is not seeurity but anihilatioD.

Teehnically It aims at Bealing off the inolation. Every other

situation where Isolation 18 bot complete!:lust appear a& e:cecptional.

Take the plato 81a9s\ windows. They take inot aceount that ioolnt1on eoulll brinff

you to a p01nt where you want to smash them, as they Are alwyD.:J closed, as

they represent a barrier whieh separates you on the inDide Irom thc ncei:ll life

of A priBon end froo its subculturo which alvays exists •.BP.hind tho elaes i8 a

!ron srllle.
The pille e1~IlS window 18 not aeainot attel!lpts to break out

of pris9n but aeainst attempts to break out of i~01at10n •

~
o
l'l

Summary of the ned paraßraph; !~
""

It 1s no longer neeeoo&ry to ·justify this type of imprisor.r:1ent by ntattns that ~

sueh sBeurity mC39ures are needed for they type of priBoncrc for whOl1lthey are ~

intended - exeUlles Hke these are even no lon~er attea:ptcd, Olnd thc Atra~ee:Y <l.

vhioh alme at de~truct1on 1e no Ioneer denied. There In no deCence Cor sue~

mensuree, not evcn the exeuso that these are exeeptlonal times ortypes of

prisonere. It mcrely demonstrates thnt what was i~trodueed unter the mantle of

elllerßBnoy has becO!!le inetitutionalkfed. The public think thAt eueh treatment for

a mlnor1ty opponltion in normal nnd acceptable.

\.......

'-



Oecember 1976 - July 1977 solitary confinement

July 1977 - August 1977 solitary confinement with anotherl
pr1soner

August 1977 - March 1978 so11tary conf1nement
March 1978 - January 1979 so11tary conf1nement 1n threee '
Januar 1979 - April 1981 sol1tary conf1nement with another

prisoner
April 1981 - today solitary eonfinement

October 1970 - Mareh 1972 soiltary confine~cnt
March 1972- January 1974 solitary confinement with onoth~

prlsnn~r (rccreatinn only for tw
JnnlLJry 1'17-1tJov•.'mlJl'r]'17,1 /1'U'mn! prison rl!~ld,~tin/1~.
November 1974- March 1975 solitary confincment with a

saeond ond a third prlsoner
March 1975 - March 1976 normal prison regulations
March 1976 - Oetoher 1978 sn]itary eonfinement in threes
Octob.lr 1<)70 - /ljlri! 1'17') '.nltt.•ry c.onfincment In (ourth
April 1979 - April 1900 solltary eonfinemcnt in fifth,

since January 1980 1n a high
security of the jail

April 1980 - April 1981 solitary confinement in fifth in
the high security wing

April 1901 - Dcccmber 1982 group of five
Oecember 1982 - today group of four

I Slönu 1ö.10.1~öj )

March 1975 - May 1976 solitory conf1ncment
May 1976 - August 1977 solitary confinement with another

prisoner
August 1977 - March 1978 solitary confinement in fourth

( durlng his trial)
March 1978 - Juni 1978 "normal prison regulations'
June 1978 - today solitary confinement

since 18.4.1983 staging a dirty protest. Oemand: The tr8n~f
to Celle. 8unker confinement, campe re appendix 28

tor eXBmple

Monika
8erber1ch

Siegfried
Haag

Appena1x 'J

-~J>q-

Length 01 Solltary conlinemcnt 01 Ine prlSOners 01 tne t("'t-

Sernd
Roessner

b) solitary confinement 1n small groups (srnups of two, three, four, ete •

prisoners: daily exercises for two prlsoners in fhanqing comb1natione
for 1 hour a day es weIl as the .'..,. - ,.._ '.,~ for severel

hours e day respectivcly per week10r the the unloek1ng of the cells
for several hours a day.respectively per weck. ( Since the second
half of the 8eventle8 joint yerd exerciscs etc. with all members
of a small group have been aceomplished).

8) solitary confinement: 24 hours 8 day on his own; 1 hour exercises on
his own
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APPENDIX 11

SECOND HUNGERSTRIKE OF THE POLITICAL PRISONERS

HUNGERSTRIKE DECLARATION OF THE POLITICAL PRISONERS _ MAY 1973

Dur hungerstrike in January/February was without success. The

prnmi~;r'~.nf Ihf' f cderal Pr05ecutor's Office rC~JarcJlng thc

lifting of our solitary confinement were shit. We are again
on hungerstrike. We demand:

EQUAL STATUS OF THE POLITICAL PRISONERS WITH

"LI. U1IILll f'flJ50NEH5!

and

FnEE POLITICAL INFORMATION FOR ALL PRISONERS _

ALSO FROM THE UNOFFICIAL MEDIA!

No more - no less. Now.

The dirty trick: keep cool - the time is on your side, won't
work here.

Sink or swim! That's the law of the system. Those are rules

for making profit; each child, each woman, each male is

threatened, intimidated, paralysed, neutralised; every alter­

native inside the system ends in filth: either you work under

the conditions of the capitalist system _

the conveyor belt destroys the people and spits
out profit -

the offices destroy people and create power _

the school system destroys people and creates

the goods of labourers _

the universities destroy people and create
machines -

or you starve, sink in poverty, "suicide".

[vcryonc who do'~sll't lake lJp thi s al ternative arid doesn' t

intensify it, who after 10 or 15 or 20 years of socialisation

as an adaptable human into accepting the process of how

capital is used, has Humbug in his Head, Protest in his mouth,
Rcsistance in his museies _

who cannot bear the hellish speed of work _

who goes crazy _

who becomcs i]l _

who beats his Wife and Children instead of his boss ­

rather becomes a thief or a robber than gets suffocated by

the law of the robbers and murderers - (honestly, Man! Springer

makes a profit of 100 million every year!)

or even develops ideas of working class power ­

Drganises -

and makes revolutionary policy -: he will be gobbled up, will

be criminalised or just declared mad. Since the days of our

great grandfathers, since thc bC~Jinning of the [Jourgp.ois Sllciply:

Workhouses, Hauses for the Paar, Jails, Reformatories, Lunatlc

Asylums, Judges, Police, Doctors, Psychiatrists, Priests.

Those who don't recognise the rules of thc game In a cover!

war - Bourgeoise against the People - as a natural inevitable

law are forced between the millstones of open coercion, into

the Concentration Camps of the System.

Once inside, the same again: 'you are still capable of being

re-socialised, which means:

a weak back bane adapted for the use of Capital - those who are

of no use will be finished.

In between there are the prisoners who function as an alibi

for system: the economic criminals and the few prosecuted SS-Pigs.

The stronger the revolt of the People, the moral of the system,

its concept of property is in pieces and the crisis is acute,

and the arming of the people is no langer a dream but reality,

the more important are the Prisons to the State System whose

justification for existence depends always and still, on the

terrorisation and destruction of the people - in extreme:

Treblinka, Maidanek, Sobibor - to break the Resistance to

exploitation by the majority of the people - Jails and Concen­

tration Camps as first and second threats against every sort of

Resistance - based on experience, organised und as always In

complete awareness.

The pigs have the jails fully under their control. The more

Reforms, the tighter is the System inside the jails.

They have all the means: Force, Isolation, Transfer, Arihcry,

Privileges, the half-open and open Prison Conditions, Regulations,

Remission, Informers, Torture, Clemency -

and the total control Apparatus: Justice/Police/Prison Regula­

tions/Psychiatry and the Media (Newspapers, Television, Hallio):
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for mor(' Efficiency: their talk ahout misery, W.C.'s; - a9alnst

breakdowns in the Prison System: Murder/"Suicide"; - for less

overt force: Beatings/water and ßread/liandcuffing/Bunker Cells;

- for more cheerful nrainwashing: Psychiatry/Police Thernpi~ts/

Valium; - for the more slippery, gentJe, structural force: the

removal of the prisoners from the ground floors (e.g. recreation

in the newly built prison in Frankfurt-Preungesheim on the 5th

and 7th floors) - where the beatings of prisoners can take pI ace

without their repulsive screams being heard.

The humanity of the pigs in one word: H y 9 i e n e.

The Reformist programme of the Social Democrats in one sentence:

the nip the budding revolt by means of 0 i f f e ren t i a t ion.

The Pol i t i c alP r iso n e r, wh~ sees his role in a

political way and who is treated accordingly - who knows about

the inhumanity of his situation as an inhumanity of the system ­

who feels hate and rebellion -

in the all out war and plays his part against the pigs, the

serews, the social workers, the prison medical system, the green

fascists -

who acts in solidarity and to aet in solidarity m c ans: he

will be isolated: soeially destroyed.

Contrary to that none of the arms of the Judiciary gives a shit

about Human Rights and thc Common Law - because hc is not to be

manipulated, not to be killed without being shot.

5 0 c i a 1 isa t ion means Manipulation plus Training.

VIIIJ fo[('(· t111' l'hll~.,·" ''''111'1,' 111 ;11 •.• ·'" 1111' W.II I'., 11,,' ""I"" t111'

Oirections, the Promises, Threats, Fears, Hopes and Deprivation

as long as they are able to make this filthiness their own and

so that they are unable to live any other life but bchind bars.

That is the Training.

Naturally the assistance of the prisoner is desirable - it

shortens the Process and makes it irreversible. Because during

this time the prisoner loses one characteristic completely and

that is what is wanted:

Self respect.

That is the manipulation.

The more liheral(ly) this is done ­

not obtrusive - loose - pleasant ­

malicious - slippery - mean -

in a word: the more it is done p s y c hol 0 9 i c all v,

the more effective and deeper is the destruction of the

prisoner's personality.

The deadly enemy of the cop as psychiatrist Is the polltical

prisoner - because the psychlatrists are dependent on prisoners

who don't know what is happening - through the doctors - who

hide behind their masks as poor little fellows, plgs, criminals,

they in the end have the prisoner In their control.

The final point about the modern prison system is:

either to regard the jails as a" 0 0 1 i t i c a 1 iss u e

or to accept them as P 5 Y chi a tri eIn s t i tut Ion s

Dur solitary confinement n 0 wand the Concentration ca~ps in

the future - whether under the administration of green or white

terror troops - will end in: a reformed Treblinka - a reformed

Buchenwald - and will end in the "Final Solution".

That's how it iso

We demand f r e e pol i t i c a 1 i n f 0 r m a t ion

for all prisoners, because that is way to reach political

awareness, political consciousness. Today we demand nothing of

what is of pressing importance in the jails - agreed Wages,

Education/Training, Protection of the Family, Autonomy etc. ­

because without the self-organisation of the prisoners every­

thing else is secondary in terms nf Rf'form, othf'rw i~~f'thf' iotf'q­

r<Jtioo of the Reformist promises aod their mobilisation would

dissipate pOlitical energy or it would be integrated into the

dictatorship of the screws and the result would be: "power

through joy". What wc need is: the Solidarity of the rolitical

prisoners - not only as an idea but in reality.

Dur Hungerstrike is nothing more than our last chance for joint

Resistance in Isolation confinement. Without the power, the

Strength of the Streets, without the Mobilisation of thc anti­

fascist people who will stand up for Human Rights and against

Torture and on whose loyalty the pigs depend - our Hungerstrike

will not solve our powerlessness.
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Profit/Power/Force

Fa~ily/School/Factorles/Offices

Jails/Vouth Institutions/Lunatic AsyJums

ALL POWER TO THE PEOPLE.

ALL POWER OF THE PEOPLE AGAINST THE SYSTEM THAT

CONSISTS OF

--

'---

THEREFORE WE APPLV TO VOU WITH OUR DEMANDS, COMRADES.

Last not least it will suit the pigs if one of us dies. We

demand from you that you support our demands, thgt you fulflll

them - now - when it is still possible for you before you will

become prisoners yourself. Only to talk about Torture, Comrades,

Instead of fighting it, can't be in our/your interests - it

would mean: to strengthen the deterrent effect of thi s shi t.

Vour ac:tions In January/rebruary - Oemonslrations in Karlsrllhe,

the beating of Jessel, Go-ins ioto the Radio Statlon in Northern

Germany and into the homes of judges, some stones into thelr

private homes - good. No teach-in, no Go-in to l.hf!Pen-elllll,

nothing to the Writers Trades Union, nothing at the Address of

Churches, who in the meanwhile react to issues like Torture and

Human Rights, no Demonstrations in Hamburg, Munich, Berlin,

Frankfurt, Heidclberg, not to speak of military opernlion5 ­

that's bad.

Let us confront the pigs wlth their own laws.

Let us throw the contradlctlons In their faces ßetween what

they say: Saving lives - and what they do: Destroy.

Every minute its a fight for life or death - us or them - they

for themselves and we for uso
'.

On 22.2.73 the Federal Prosecutor Martin declared that they

were not able to solve thls contradictlon, that the only solution

would be to kill uso

"The prison conditions are adJusted to the respective physical

and psychological situation of the prisoners!" - that's rlght.

The supply of oxygen is regulated automatically - meals are

"served" three times a day - and If you see it absolute coldly,

the statlstics of relatives vislts naturally throw dust in your

eyes.

The edict from the highest position In the capitalist Clique:

destruction.

That explalns it. The programmes goes on.

Put the pigs under pressure, you from the outside and we from

the inside.

Solidarity is the trial of strength.

Ilfll'olil.ical Prl~,OIIl]r~;on lIun~jl~r';trik(' 8th May 1973



- 7 - -Aqq -

'"

•...
'·0

\:J

't"
c..~.

'"
o
n
c:
I,.

C,lrauhing. Frankfurl./Prcungeshclm. Hamburg/FutllslltJlI.'>I,

Manrlllel",.inlo lhe bunker fur prisollers Oll remand in Hamhurlj

which is TV controlled and where the prisoners are being

strapped all day;

- lhe attempts of murder during hungerstrikes by refusing any

water in Schwalmstadt, Munich, Hamburg and Cologne;

- concentration camps for political prlsoners in Luheck, Stuttgart,

Berlin;

- the handcuffing during the recreation time in Hamburg and

Lubeck;

- the imprisonment for two and a half years in special cells in

Cologne-Ossendorf, directly beside two main entrances of the

prison - never peace; the same in Berlin-Moabit;

the attem:-~s to break the will of prisoners by psychological

means and also the use of threats and with forced anaesthetis­

ing for the purpose of investigations;

- visitor's rooms divided by glass walls during the visits of

lawyers whereby political communication is impossible; in

Hannover, Stuttgart and Straubing;

- repeated confiscations by the special police section-Bonn of

all material of the prisoners which is needed for their

defence - notes and letters;

;11 1111' ',<111'" I i""', II"rill" 11", r;lill',"111,,, 1" i',"''''I'~' ('"11,, hy

lhe police. the harrassing campaigns against lawyers continued

.in the newspapers; lhe criminal iS<1Liun of the lawyers 01' the

political prisoners;

11", ',uppr,':,',ilJII ;",Il L111' l1'dllipu];,liuII lJl lile:; IJY lhc UK/\

(Federal Investigation Office);

- sometimes an inticemenl of the solitary confinement, but only

so as to prepare prisoncrs who are in thc custody of the police

as agents and witnesses for trails; this happened in Cologne­

Ossendorf. where Jan Raspe refuses the recreation time which

had been offered to him. This was because it was a recreation

together with prisoners who were on transfer and therefore

different and changeable people - a fluctuation where neither

a communication nor an orientation is possible. During all

contacts with other prisoners which had been allowed as excep­

tions, we found out that these contacts were controlled and

organised by the police;

This is our third hungerstrike AGAINST SPECIAL TREATMENT, AGAINST

IMPRISONMENT with the intention of destroying political prisoners

who are being kept in jails in the Federal Republic of Germany

and in Berlin West; AGAINST THE PROGRAMMES OF COUNTER-INSURGENCY

of the imperialist prison system, programmes of the federal

prosecutor, of the special security police in Bonn - the so-called

section of the political police of the BKA (Federal Criminal

Agency) to destroy imprisoned political revolutionaries and other

prisoners who have started to organise themselves and to fight

inside the prisons.

inhumanity by social isolation - for many years;

- torture by brainwashing and blackmail in special cent res ­

since the beginning of May, Ronald Augustin is being kept in

solitary confinement in the prison of Hannoverj

- the new 'camera silence cells' which are kept under a constant

heat, constant noises together with a total TV control which

was worked out by a research project of the DFG (German research

society) in the prisons of Berlin-Tegel, Berlin-Lertherstr.,

Bruchsal, Essen, Cologne and Straubingj

- the removal into special cells for any attempt to break the

isolation when one prisoner tries to communicate with another

prisoner, into the bunkers of Berlin Moabit, of Bruchsal, Essen,

We can only be oppressed if we stop to think and if we stop the

fight. People who are not willing to stop the fight can't be

crushed - eith~r they will win 01' they will die instead of being
rl,:fc<1tl:rl,md tu IH~ c1p<1c1.

THOSE WHO HAVE RECOGNISED THEIR SITUATION ­

HOW SHOULD THEY BE STOPPED?

RESISTIINCE AGAINST THIS DEADLY TREATMENT, AGAINST THE SPECIAL

TREATMENT AND THE COUNTER-INSURGENCY PROGRAMMES MEANS RESISTIINCE

IIGIIINSI:

Hungerstrike declaration

IIppenl1lxl?

..••.... -

'-
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- lhe lrealment whlch the relatives of the prisoners have to

bear by means of strip searches, observations and insulls

before and after their visits, to put them under pressure

and, according to the police instructions, to influence the

prlsoners.

- 2o~ -
- 4 -

of lhe slruggles far liberation or the peoJlles In the 'Thlr~'

and the 'Fourth' worlds, and in the rramework of proletarian

internationalism and of anti-imperialistic liberation - end In

a uni ted front inside the jalls and cancentration camps In the

parts of the world which are ruled by imperlalism.

ALL POWER TO THE PEOPLE THROUGH THE CONQUEST OF POWER!

FREEOOM SV MEANS OF ARMEO ANTI-IMPERIALIST STRUGGLE!

.-.-

---

The hungerslrlke is our only possibility, in this isolation,

far a collective resistance against the counter-insurgency of

Imperlallsm which tries to destroy us psychologically and

physically, i.e. imprisoned revolutionaries and political

prisoners who have started to resist in an organised way in the

prisons. Oisarmed, imprisoned in solitary confinement, it is

lile only possibility of uniting our physical and psychological

strength, our identity as human beings; to take up the stone

which the government of the ruling class has picked up against

us and to throw it back.

FIGHT MEANS TO OEVELOP STRENGTH OUT Of WEAKNESS.

Solitary confinement is the weapon of the system against all

prisoners who are determined not to let themselves be destroyed

during their imprisonment and who fight against the experiment

on human beings; against the brainwashing and against the

imperialist system. They are being kept in solitary confinement

to liquidate political education and resistance in the prisons

generally. This happens to suppress all the other prisoners,

who don't have the political understanding yet, more and more.

Although they endure the same as we do, and although they are

people of no property as we are, they have nothing else to lose

than their chains.

We call on all prisoners who are kept in solitary confinement

to fight against this, tagether with uso

The abolition of solitary confinement is the condition which

we have to fight for if revolutionary politics, if the struggle

for liberation in the prisons will become a possibility and

which will be a possibility for realistic proletarian power ­

under the conditions of the class struggle here, in the framework

<.

The prisoners of the RAF September 1974
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1 a~k,

Heierel1e0: Letter o[ thc Idwycr CI'. Croissant from the 6. Dec. 74

to n'jcel. t h(, r.lotions ",hieh are named in the letter
JiI. 'Ill i t llit ~d d!UI'Jo..'.

C0nCC[I1: Crimillill procl!e~ure ilgainst Andreas Baadcr and others

[ar murder, otfencc according to § 129 penal code and
others.

:::

""
c:,
:>..

~
r:'..

...,

in view of these confinemcnt cOllditions, c.111 COI' 1l'~INd<.:milnJs,

which must be seen even by t1lt:m ilnd their 501icilol'S a5 Ilot to

fulf!ll - so confil"mS lhis a'Jidn that the hUIl'Jcrt;trlkC', whiet.

has been organised by thcm, has the only aim to blackmail lhe
constitut1onal state.

Furthermore the aceused have lO bc kepl aW<lY f rOlli COlIIlHonenl."l­

ta1nments w1th other prisoncrs. They will use any neIN conlaet

to go ahead w1th their plans to escapc and to stil' up thc other

pr1soners. The paper which was found a few Jays ago in Stutt­

gart-Stammhe1m callcd "cell-papcr no. rocrn I" spcaks [01' ilscH.

Th1s danger wh1ch arrises form the accuses would cvcn exist, if
1t would be allowed that they spend their different rcereation

times with chosen prisoners. In other repects I refer to the

comment of thc prison authoritics of Stutlgarl-Stammhei.'n. ;<150

of following fa~ts has to be rerninded:
The accused have weakened themsclves by thc hunqcrslrikc, th,1t

they are in an extraordinary way cndangcred b)' in[ections. 01'

safe medieal knowlcdgc an in[cction eould C\·(.',l1., a si tUJt iOIl
where the life of the ilccuseci would bc in G<ln<],>r,Thcrc[o\'e they

have to be kept away frorn other priscmcrs at lh i stirne.

The prison regulati.ons, which are cxi.stin'j fOI" t)\I' C"lllill,' pri­
soners in Wcst-llerlin C<ln'l bc ''1)plil~d Oll Ull ..' "",:,,:;"01 Will) "I,'
irnprisoned in Stuttgart-Starnmheim. The women who <lrt' ir.lpris.",,'"
in West-Berlin have recognizetl willingly to tI \I> pr ["on n~(Ju]il­

tions. Furthcrmore they al'e not as tlangel-OUt; ,1!: tI 11' ,-inq-I";IlI"r,;

who are kept in Stuttgurt-Stammheim.
An abolishion of the special prison tructs [en 11I,11C iJnd fcnlille

prisoners is out of any question. 'J'he sallle <]()Cs [01' l:h(' Illol:ions
wh1eh havc been made in this COIlI.CXt.. Il<..'sitlct;, lhi:; (lJ"rt i"

not competent for these motions .

Every basis for a meeting to diseuss achanging or l:hc pricon

eonditions doesn't cxist. Neither the criminal procC'ctlUl·C nOI"

the regulations for prisoners on remand are providing such

"negotiations" about single issues of prison regulations.

(

1(•• LJec."alJt'r 1974

Apl'lmd 1x , 3

+ sss l>qh k,1rlsruhc 110 L~17 1lil2 1~:'>1 ~

Th<.:('cd(,ral l'I'oscr:\llt'i

••I. lIw f't't!cr..Jl lIi.·Jh 1:001I'l
, ,;1. (! 1/., 4

To I.lw

Pre~idenl. uf I.h,' 2. Sc·nill."

of tht' "i~h Court in Sluttqarl.

:-Ir. ['residellt of th~ lIigh c<:.\lrt:
01'. I' HIN {, I N C

-------------------------------

Ti,,: .-lilll:> Gi' t!l0 ac\'u:; •..~d are Lo cunLinuL' lhcir criminal activity
"nd 10 fOI"C" lhei I' n,' [".IS,' I.'VI'1lt hou'Jh thcy are prisoners on 1'('­
,a,II,d. Tu <]"11; t111~; t.I;cn .. :.>huuld L-., I.-('a<.:lleda situation of riots

,lnd n.'\·oll.,; i.II!;id,_' nf the i'l i Ir; by rnCo1nsof this motions. Would

11,,, 1'1'~I'raJ l'rO!iCclIl.C>I'Otf.ic,· clc.',,," lhcir cyes it would becomc
t :11' harllJ)'lIIilllui thv ll'l nIl i:;1 ,;,

Tl,v cvntenliOIl is nol. tru.:! t.hat lh0 hungerstrikc takes plac<!
on!}' 10 n~i1<.:hcnduTuulc prison eontlitions. !letter prison eondi­

tions havc been granted already to thc aceused, more than usually
can lJe allow0d und~r eonsiderations of thc aim of the detcntion

pcndin9 invcstiqalion and the high sccurity risc.

'--

~

()~'~l~)j~sic..>n b\.·,,:c1U~(' of bau copy.

, '. pr i S0n ""'-1 I k~;. Thcy .:.lso can play tablc-tcnnis. But up to now
th,";, cil..Jn'\ mak0 .Iny IIH(~ of thc,;<:.' possibililies. The aecuscd Baa­

.j"1 ,lnd 1\<1::'1'(:also 'lot simllar' eonilnÖment condltions in the

::Il"lntiwIJ. Thcl't'forc 0111y mdl tcious people can mainta1n that thc

pi i:;<..'ncrs arf' I iving under solltary confinement. When the aeeused,

Karlsruhe, 16. September 1974 ~,
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I\PPendi x jl,

Df'm<lnd to thUlrisoners to end the hungerstrike page 2

We say:

What eould be aehieve by the strike, as the last weapon 01' aur

prisoners poll~y, has been aehieved. Nothing further eauld be

galned by an esealation.

\.....,

FR (Fr<Jnkfurter Hundschau) Thursday, February 5th, 1975

1h,· fll I I ',I" '('11I"'"

"That's an order'l

Accarding to thair lawyer, Klaus Croissant, the prisoners of the

'IL,,,i1"!-M,'j,,hlll '1"(HJ' Ln:,slill, fI"atler ;/Ild I(a~,pe have ','(I(j,:tl lIH;il

hunger- and thirststrike after a demand by the 'Red Army Faction'.

To the prisoners of the RAF

To eoneede that you go on - against the ealeulatlon of the state

propaganda: by the exemplary execution of imprisoned guerillas

II/"Cl\w;r Iltry flGItT, I\LWI\Y~>flGIII, I\NO fIGItT IN SPIll: III IVlIlYIIIIN!;

letting the resistance be seen as hopeless - means to saerifice

you.

We luke away lids weapon frolllyou tJecause lhe slrulJyle ul the

prisoners - out 01' the strength 01' power which has materialised

ean only be our ca se now, will be deeided by our weapons.

We will win.

'---'

We ask ,you to end the fast now, although, for objective reasons

the strength of the reactionary mobilisation here, the class

struggle of the capitalist cl ass - and for subjective reasons ­

the underdeveloped cl ass struggle, the corruption 01' the organisa­

tions of the proletariat and because 01' a weak revolutionary left

- the demand for the abolition 01' solitary confinement couldn't

be achieved.

That is an order.

The fact is that the possibilities for the left - to organise

solidarity as a weapon from their defensive role and their help­

lessness against the new fascism - are not sufficiently developed

in accordance with the structure 01' the guerilla and the policy

of the RAF. The strike has shown them their limits: the power­

lessness of political strategies which don't answer the question

of the initiative and the capability 01' action out 01' the

illegality, the necessity 01' armed struggle as the realisation

of proletarian internationalism here. You can see it in their

defeat in 1968 when we developed a great mobilisation: The

disunion, the sects, the corruption whlle BEING ON THE DEFENSIVE

will last.

RAF 2 February 1975

o
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Also, that the work of this co~mission will be supported

and that the results of their findings will be published

in the FRG.

-;l°1 ~

,"--

"--

Gudrun Ensslin only wanted to pass on the demands tOday, not

the whole declaration during the trial. This has been prevented

in order to show that no connection exists between this Lrial

and the prison conditions.

'He who has recognised his situation,

how should he be stopped?'

Recognising the fact that the state is leading a fight which

takes place under permanent emergency laws without dny legal

backing

and

that 6 years of po1itical justice have shown that the human and

fundamental rights during the strip searches, during the trials

against us, and inside the jails mean only lip-service.

Therefore we demand:

For the prisoners from anti-imperialist resistant groups, who

are struggling in the Federal Republic of Germany be treated in

accordance with the Mini~um Gllarant~c5 nf thc G0n0va rnnv0ntinn

from 1949, especially art. 3 and 4, arL. 11 and 15U.

Especially wc dcmand:

1. The abolition of isolation confinement and the isolation in

',mall qrol/p~; in 1111' jail', llf 1111' 1111, ;11111 "".11 1111' .t1"Jiit i,",
of the high security tracts, where prisoners are kept undcr

electronic surveillance in order that their discussions can

be interpreted.

3. That the Government will make it public that the reports

-the RAF had planned to place three bombs in the inner city

of Stuttgart (June 1972)

-the RAF had planned to make rocket attacks on crowded

football grounds during the soccer world championship in

summer 1974

-the RAF had p1anned to poison the drinking water of a big

city

-the RAF had stolen mustard gas and that they had planned

to use it (summer 1975)

-that the commando Holger Meins had blown up the building of

the embassy in Stockholm themselves (April 1975)

-the RAF had planned to contaminate the Bodensee with radio­

active waste

-the RAF had planned to attack nuclear power stations and that

they had planned to use nuclear, chemical and bacteriological

weapons (since January 1976)

-the RAF had planned to attack a playground for children and

to take children as hostagcs (March 1977)

are products of a psychological war and that they have been

circulated to legitimise the rapidly growing apparatus of Lhe

police and the security system. I\lso to stop the solidarity

uf Lhe rcslsLanCl! groups, La isolate (JnllLu dl.'5L1UY LIH'''';

that all these suggestions are false and that the inquiries

of the police, the secret service and of the justice agencies,

have never found any proof which cOlllrl haVI' frllllllkrlttH'~.I·.

_ with the hungerstrike of the IRA prisoners, who are jmprj50nelll~in Irish and Brltish Jails, to reach political status, which ~

had been abolished after the FRG had initiated the so-called

'antl-terrorlsm laws' on a European level I~

At least for the po1itical prisoners in Hamburg, Kaiserslautern,

Koln, Essen, Berlin, Straubing, Aichach and Stuttgart-Stammheim

this would mean that they could be together in groups of at

least 15 prisoners as it has been demanded by all doctors,

who have bcen hcard and ordercd hy thc courts, in all trials

against the RAF.

2. The investigation by an international commission into the

deaths of Holger Meins, Siegfried Ha0sner and Ulrike Meinhof

The hungerstrike is the expression of our solidarity

_ with the hungerstrlke of the Palestinian resistance movement

to be recognised as prisoners of war

0::-

0)
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with the demands for an amnesty in Spain for the prisoners of

the ETA and other anti-fascist groups

- with all those who have been captured in their struggle for

social revolution and national freedom

and

wlth all who have started to struggle against the violation of

human rights. Against the misery and the brutal expropriation

in the prisons of the FRG.

Arm the resistance

,..

Organise the resistance

Fight the anti-imperialist struggle in an offensive way

Stammheim, 29 March 1977

for the prisoners from the RAr

-- LOq -
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Appendix 16

PROTOCOL OF A VISIT ANO AN INVESTIGATION SV PROF. SCHROOER

ON 26.4.77

The occasion was:

Vesterday at 4 o'clock the tract suddenly filled with a group

of at least 15 people, amongst them the prison governors Nusser

and Schreitmuller, prison doctor Henck, medics and two officers

from the Ministry of Justice.

The decision was to force feed Gudrun (Ensslin) immediately

since her life was in 'acute danger' and force feeding could be

applied even against her will. Asked what their statement of

'acute danger to life' was based on and where there was a single

shrea of evidence, Henck and Nusser answered: by appearance.

Henck, who three weeks ago had still refused to use force feed­

ing, sweated now, was in panic, twisted, saying that the law

demanded it - subsequently he had to admit that there was no

single premise for the use of this law nor could he verify his

statement since he Ilad not examined Gudrun, and sincc she will

not let him examine her. The situation is deadlock: either an

investigation or immediate force feeding with the use of force.

The proposal by Prof. Schroder - one of LI1C cxperL~ ca]]ed by

the court - to set up an investigation, (is debated) a phone call

is made and he says that he will come the following morning. We

clarify for Nusser etc. that Gudrun and us will protest since

the present measures prove that they have decided rather tu

murder prisoners than to fulfill the minimal demands made by the

experts; and that the order to break resistance with force

results in exactly a situation in which ~ produce the acute

danger to life, or rather make it possible - a conscious action/

measure since conditions after 4 weeks of hungerstrike are such

that every use of force constitutes an acute danger to life.

It is Nusser's job to clarify these facts for the Ministry of

Justice and to let them know that they will be rid of the hunger-

-- ;I/!1 -
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strike immediately If they give an assurance to enlarge ttle

group withln a certain time-span and to enlarge the tract.

After about an tlour's neuotiation, the talks ended with the

assurance by Nusser and Schreitmuller to submit our proposals

to the Ministry of Justice.

26.4 At 8 o'clock in the morning Schroder comes to Gudrun.

She teIls him what happened yesterday and explains the situation:

an order of force feeding with the use of force would immediately

lead to an acute ~anger to life, and would make it possible at

that point !~time when force was used in the process of feeding.

She declared that force feeding was certain as we were going to

defend ourselves against it and that the consequences would be

fatal aslong as the prison conditions did not change (see the

information as given by Friedland to Henck).

He (Schroder) leaves with the assurance to her (Gudrun):

that he will say that force feeding against the will of

the prisoners will change potential danger to life to

aeute danger Lo lire
that there can be no doubt about a free process of decision

making (by the prisoners)

that he recommends that lhey (tt1(~ MinlsLry 01' Justlce)

c'If,',icJl:/;Hja in lllc Ilun'Jc/';l/ike lj('lfla,,(j~ and llie opinions

of the experts.

1\ft (' r w Cl rrl :; 1 L1I k w i Lhili f1l i n 0 r d (' rI.o c I Cl r i r y I.11 e rned i ca 1 sill e ,

what is Gudrun's constitution generally, and now after four weeks

of hungerstrike -

and that force feeding with the use of force means that not only

is it useless, but that the process during which the inevitable

reaction of doctors, medics and warders, the brutality engendered

by fear and panic - as shown by the reports from Hamburg - produce

immediately, acute danger to life, even the first time. What

usually happens is that severe injuries to prisoners are described

as 'medical measures' jusl as - to recall to mind - the withdrawal

of water from Andreas in the summer of '73 in Schwalmstadt, had

been ordered as a 'medical measure' under the suoervlsinn nf



\......,

"-..-

Appendix 17

We give lhe following Oeclaration of prisoners from the RAF

in Stammheim 30.4.77:

Ouring the last few days, all attempts to break the hungerstrlke,

of over 100 prisoners at the last count, by means of force feed­

ing and extreme brutality - in Hamburg-Ho1steng1acis (prison) _

have failed. After the prison doctors In Stammheim and the

anaesthetists who were ca11ed in, refused yesterday, to administer

tranquilisers or anaesthetics to the prisoners, the prison

doctor told us today, 30.4.77, at 12.00 of the 'binding dec1ara­

lion of the Justice Ministry' that' 'with regard to the demands

of medica1 experts, an immediate coneentration of political

prisoners - i.e. prisoners under para. 129, also from other

Federal States - would be effected in Stammheim, as weIl as an

enlargement of the present prison traet'.

This decision is based on adecision by the cabinet.

It fulfills the central demand of the hungerstrike, the prisoners

of the RAF end their strike.

'He who is not afraid to be quartered, pulls the emperor from
his horse.'

Gudrun Enssli n

for the prisoners from the RAF

. i

I
I
I
I

,

I
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Hempfler and Oagenhardt, for the purpose of breaking the hunger­

strike.

This means therefore, lhat the measures taken by lhe Ministry of

Juslice contribuled to an escalation of lhe situalion for which

they are responsible: it is they who create an acute danger to

life. His (Schroder's) opinion, which is expected to be in the

affirmative or the negative, cannot comment on force feeding

but has to focus precisely on this decisive point which will

force adecision: either they want dead prisoners or they comp1y

with the demands of the experts, including hirn as weIl.

Both these possibilities come I:~der the single and sole respon­

sibility of the Ministry of Justice. It is a question of days.

For, according to his opinion and judgement: Gudrun can die

within a few days. Ta which I have to say that force feeding

is precisely the means to accelerate her death. It is his job,

his function, as an officially appointed expert, to clarify this

fact in all its poignancy lo those who are responsible.

We did not further discuss other information which he had: the

hungerstrike, or force feeding can or is being used to enforce

psychiatrie treatment by means of psychopharmacutical drugs, in

other words, a psychiatrie labelling of prisoners who are

evidently not 'psychiatrically ill' or in any way restricted

from 'exercising their free will in decision making'. Another

way of getting rid of them eventually.

At 11.00 a.m. Henck comes into the tract. No force feeding.

He reproduces his discussion with Schroder and states that

Schroder had said there was no acute danger to life. In the

evening news, this appears as 'force feeding not necessary',

and: he had 'pressurised Schroder at gunpoint' to intervene

immediate1y at the highesl level. Nothing below that - where

he is right. So Schroder immediately asked for an appointment

with Bender (State Justiee Minisler) and obtained it.

Then: he telephoned Friedland (prison doctor) in Hamburg who

told hirn that he had ccased foree feeding yesterday, that no-one
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resul led in broken leelh (werner Hoppe), inJurles, bruising,

lut)es piercing lhe lung. He couldn' l conlinue and all ll1e

olhers (prison doctors) had refused. 1his meant for him, Henck,

that he would also refuse to carry out force feeding under

resistance from Gudrun or from uso It had become clear to him

since l1e'd heard il from Friedland. Ihe fact that Friedland had

had to stop force feeding because of the resistance of the

prisoners constitutes an admission that force feeding with the

use of force maximises the danger to life to an incalculable

degree - and that at least 5 prisoners had been gravely inJured

~ as a result of orders of the Ministry of Justice - 'medical

measures' - and in response to demands which cancern exclusively,

conditions of imprisonment and which are incontestable, in other

words based on scientific investigations by experts appointed by

the courts.

(See: reports by prisoners in Hamburg on the force feedings.)

The reason for ealling Schroder is simply this, simply to let

him know tl1e facts - tl1e inereased danger to life as a result of

the instruetions of the Ministry of Justice - and that it beeomes

clear at all levels, that nothing other than an agreement to the

c1emarllj~; of lhe ('x!Jl:rlsc<Jn prevent tl1e deatl1 of prisoners and

end the hungerstrike.

P.S. 1hi5 is the news ll1<Jtwas published in all daily papers,

~. eompared with the aetual events: at 16.30 hours it was

known in Stammheim that Gudrun would not be force fed, at

19.00 hours the ZOF says in its news: that Gudrun is being

force fed.

Only at 21.00 hours is it said that there is no force feed­

ing yet 'as Gudrun surprisingly had agreed to an examination'.

Sueh timing in the spreading of false news launched by the

Federal Prosecutor's Office (previously) 'that Ulrike had

committed suieide by hanging'. The news was broadcast at

07.38 a.m., 4 minutes after she had been found in her cell

by a warder and before a doctor had been called.

I. Sehubert, 26.4.77

- J-f S""-'-
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OECLARATION or THE PRI50NER5 FROM THE RAF

In the course of the week we heard from a member of Amnesty

International that the attempt at mediation undertaken by the

!'il•.rn:tlinn;i1 ("xp(t1tivr Cnmmillrp in nr(jer In (jemand hIJIlI;Hll'

IJIj :,llllcllndil iOlls corresponding to the demands 01' the doctors

and to end the hungerstrike, have been broken off. The reason

Is that "the situation has hardened totally"

dlllf

"that the author i t ~es throughout are taking the line to make

an example of the prisoners following the attacks on the office

of the Public Prosecutor and Ponton.

This.according to announcements of Rebmann (Federal Prosecutor).

The prisoners have consequently interrupted their strike after

the 26th day. So as not to facilitate the planning of murder.

They (the prisoners) have taken this decision after they have

openly been declared hostages of the state security system _

and after adeliberation of the efforts undertaken by the govern­

ment to prevent evidence being made available to substantiate

the complaint to the Human Rights Commission in Strasburg about

the violation of human rights in the Federal Republic by means

of arrests, searches and confiscations at the borders.

Slammheim, 2.9.77

Jan Carl Raspe

for the prisoners from the RAF

-2//1-
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Hungerstrike declaration 20 April 1979

Our hungerstrike is against the permanent and total solitary

confinement which has to be seen as part of the state's strategy

of destroying the prisoners of the armed fIghting anti-imperialist

f]rOIJI1S. Tlw mn<;!.evld"lIt exprl,,;r,inllof IId', ';lr:tlf'f)y(11101, j.,

the project of the Federal Prosecutor's Office (BAW), Federal

Bureau of Investigation (BKA) and the different Ministries of

Justice of the Federal 5tates, to Isolate us In special crll", in

which thc experienccs of cight years solil<JIY confincmenl haVf'

been worked out and have been put into practice: concrete bunkers

free from any noises with windows of bulletproof glass which

cantt be.opened; doors which doh't allow a circulation of all'

and an air condition which creates different variations of

pressure; all day glaring artificial light; the sink, W.C., the

mirror out of iron; security furniture, the floor is just con­

crete. Many of such solitary fonfinement cells are placed in

a high securlty unit which is hermetically sealed from the rest

of the prison. There is no possibility of contact between the

prisoners in their isolated cells. The recreation time outside

takes place in a ca ge of concrete which is covered by wire mesh,

which shows no significant differences to the cells. In Celle,

5traubing and Stammheim the prisoners are already living in such

bunkers of solitary confinement; in Berlin, Lubeck, Ossendorf

and in other jails similar units have been built or tested.

The establishing of such machines of destruction is the consequence

of the state, out of the realisation that the prisoners couldn't

be broken by the hitherto existing methods of solitary confine­

ment and that the murders of Ulrike, Andreas, Gudrun, Jan,

Ingrid which have been disguised as suicide and the attempted

murder of Irmgard, are for the political aims of the Federal

Government.

The realisation of the concept of the 'model Germany', of the

50cial Democratic Party in Western Europe and beyond, to seClJre

"the inner peace" - a political concept to he legitimised through
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dlrecl elecllons lo lhe European Parliamenl by the west European

penple - has been counter-productive and that's still Lhe case,

as c.g. Kohl's appearance on the lelevision in the Nellleriands

has shown. (lhat cerlalnly doesn'l excllJde that the Federal

Government would liquidate prisoners if there was an escalation

of the situallon as a result of militaryactions by the guerilla.)

The prisoners who refuse to end the fight and who don't agree to

the deal of the so-called 'resociallsation', when they abjure or

collaborale, will be crushed physically and psychologically In

the newly bullt isolation bunkers in such a way that when they

da emerge they will in no way be able to form a resistance - that

their candition will make it appear as near impossible that they

will in future be able again to play an active role within the

anti-imperialist struggle. This is ~~~ording to the Hamburg

Senator of Justice Dahrendorf, who cynically formulated the aim

of the counter-strategy.

We demand:

abolition of the high security wings

_ regulations of imprisonment for the prisoners of the anti­

imperialist groups which is in accordance with the minimum

guaranlees of the Geneva Convention

_ a merging of these prisoners into groups which comply with

the demands of the medical examiners

_ the release of Gunter Sonnenberg, who as a result of his

head injuries is unfit for imprisonment

_ supervision of the prison conditions by internalional humanit­

arian boards/organisations.

- )~tj -
A Jt I' (' rJ,1 i" ~~J
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We, lhe prisoners of the Red Army Faction, agaln take up the

collective hungerstrike.

We will never cease to fight against the torlure, the open and

hidden destructlon, against the whole institutlonalised strategy

applled to crush our Identlty.

The aim of the state: to force the disintegration of our collec­

tive structures and the political unity of our group by planned

and systematieally seleetive programmes of imprisonment, that is

total isolation, isolation in small groups within the highly

perfeeted 'high security' isolation wings, and so-called

'integration'. This aim of the state will not be aChieved, and

it will also not be possible for the state to ignore the protest

of anational and international publie, of the International

Commission and Amnesty International.

The state cannot reach its goal because the very real experience

that this state is willing to perform every kind of inhumnaity

was part of the reality that made us stand up and take up arms.

In a situation where we have for years been isolated from each

other, cut off from all political movements and developments and

from the outside world - in this situation we are determined to

make this separation eome to an end by using the one effective

means that we have: to fight for the conditions necessary for a

collective process of learning and working.

In Ireland, Spain, Italy, Austria, Switzerland, France and Israel

prisoners are fighting against prison conditions by which their

political identity should be broken and that they should be

physically neutralised - prison conditions whose introduction

has been established in most of the cases, by the FRG.

Our hungerstrike is part of this struggle and the expression of

our solidarity with all prisoners who have started to carry out

resistance in the prisons.

The prisoners of the RAr in Uerlin

20 April 1979

"
l"l
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We demand:

The minimal guarantees of the Geneva Convention 1) be applied to

the prisoners of the RAr and other anti-imperialist resistance

groups, that is to say:

- that those prisoners be able to associate under conditions

that make interaction possible; this means the abolition of the

1) Artiele 75 of the Geneva Convention of 1949 lays down the fundamental guaran­
tees to be accorded to 'persons who are in the power of a party to the conflicl'
that is to say prisoner of war status. The 1949 Convention relates Lo prisoners

who are captured as a result of an international conflict. The additional
protocols of 1977 cover armed conflicts which are not of an internalional charac­
ter, thls means that eombatants of the anti-imperialist resistance movements of
national liberation struQQles and urban ouer! l1R w<lrfRTr>h,,';nn ,.,o",,,'i 'n +hn Tl,: •..•
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contrnl nf all communications elcctronically, acoustlcally and

nptlcally which takes place within units of isolation that are

soun~/Iiqht/air condltioncd. 2)

- tl'al cnnditions of imprisonment are independently eonlrolled

by the International Commission for the Proteetlon of rrlsoners

and against conditions of isolation.

- that Guntel' Sonnenberg be released as his physical recovery

trom brain damage cannot take place under conditions of

isolation impri~onment. 3)

There is nothing mysterious about the measures that are taken

agaJnst us: we are prisoners of war with the status of host.ages.

Each tirne the eonfrontation esealated, a eadre of the RAF was

exeeuted: Holger, Siegfried, Ulrike. At the time of 1977 the

politieal and military offenSIve of the RAF demonstrated that the

enormous efforts of repression used to extinguish the RAF had not

been effeetive. It was then that the 'Special Co-Ordinatlng

Commlttee' of the US National Seeurity Couneil deeided on a

'final solution': the exeeutiön of Andreas, Gudrun, Jan, Nina

and of our brothers and si sters of the group Martyr Halimeh.

Sy killing those cOlOrades the state attempted to extinguish all

traees of their fight. Their example, their continuity, It was

an attempt to put out the flame be fore the whole forest eaught

fire; an attempt to take away from the people in the metropolis

all hope for liberation.

Torture and the murder of politieal prisoners as well as exeeutions

on the street are now not only matters of police taeties within

astate that is the direct inheritor of fascism: its Bims and

2) The West German state applies special programmes of imprisonment only ",

against those prisoners who eome from militant anti-imperialist resistanee ~~
groups. These prisoners are subjected to isolation, torture in the silent eell ~
of the new 'high security wings' - many for over 4 years, with no association I
periods at all, some with absolutely no exercise period either. The isolation
eells are air-conditioned, soundproofed, white-walled and eonstantly lit. Sur- I~
veillanee of the prisoners is total, cameras and microphones are stationed in ~

eaeh cell, on each wing and around exercise yards. If prisoners do have 8s50ci1:·

tion it is behind a partition window of bu11et-proof glass. Visits are fnr I ~

hour per menth in similar conditions if perm1tted at a11. Strip searches take :::
place for prisoners & visitors before & after any visit 01' association. The
state has acknowledged the political content of their struggle by the methods
it employs to try to crush it.
3) Guntel'Sonnenberg was arrested in 1977 & during the arrest was shot in the
ht':ofl I~,. •..., •• t~)f •. n,t .,\","'\In •..•....••.•.•"'\r•••• 1.",- I.....•••••.•l •.• , •.••.•' •..1 ,_ .• _,, t •••••..

methods have remained constantly the same. Rut now German

imperialism starts on its third run (for world power) not 85 the

opponent hut the ally of Wi capital, nnt illone hut. funclioninq

wi Udn US foreign pol icy, and it is of the utmost importance for

the state to destroy the militant prisoners and the entire move­

ment of resistance. West Germany has since 1945 been the main

base for the aggressive policy of the US - militarily, politically

an<! ecnnnrnj cal 1y - alld it i5 of the ut.most Jmportance for the West

German state to destroy all resistance which dlrectly attacks the

state and raises the Question of power.

file Nato IIlgh COlllrnantJdirects the torture and murder of pölitical

prisoners as well as the assassination sQuads in Turkey, Ireland,

Italy and Spain, and through the West German Federal Criminal

Bureau (OKA) 4) and the Secret Service they attempt to enforee

these methods of repression to be used in all Western European

eountrles. It was this same Nato High Command which reeently sent

a direetive to governments stating that they should disregard an

international survey which presented evidenee of torture being

applied to politieal prisoners, and gave orders that the demand

for political status for militant prisoners should not be granted.

Finally, that all direetives eoncerning a eo-ordinated strategy

to eriminalise revolutionary resistanee should be paid immediate

attention.

Against the human face of resistance - from the naive humanitarianism

of the Movement for Disarmament and then the Anti-Nuclear Power

Movement to the Youth Revolt, the Anti-Vietnam War Opposition up

to the Guerilla Resistanee.

Against these movements of resistanee the state has one solution:

a programme of total violence, brutality, poverty and genoeide.

A programme whieh is disturbed by this humanity of resistanee and

against whieh they have nothing to offer but the face of murdercrs.

The state projects onto the Guerilla the erimes whieh the state

Itself is perpetrating against the people: the poisoning of

municipaJ water supplies, nuclear fall-out, germ warfare. They

project their erimes away from themselves in order that the fears

4) BKA - ßundeskriminalant
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they prortuce in people are deflected away from reallsing the

true cause. Ta stlfle the resistance that might arise from the

people grasplng the real reasons for their fears. The escalation

of propaganda against the RAF is carried out to make sure that

militant politics - disarmament, agalnst the militarisation of

all areas of life, against the army being on the streets as It

was 35 years aga - will not develop solldarity wlth the guerilla,

to prevent them making the experlence we make, that the exereise

of illegal resistanee 15 the one llberated zone for the resistance

in West Germany. That illegal resistance creates the possibilities

for action.

The state exposes Its weaknesses by Its reactions, shows its

points of vulnerability and gives us our opportunity to accelerate

the process of disintegration by sustained action and push the

state to a point of crisis. It is not we who bring about the

transformation of the state to facism where the state of emergency

becomes legal. This process Is implicit withln the eapitalist

system and has its own inevitability.

~J23 -
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listie needs would have us believe. Their relation is dinlectic

just as the liberation of people here eannot be SCpnrated from

the liberntion of the Third World.

Solidarity becomes real and powerful as proletarian internat ion­

alism. That means that we attack our eommon enemy US imperialism

wherever we confront it in its strategie positions. Solidarity

is the basis on whieh all levels of anti-imperialist struggle

beeome uni ted.

Our hungerstrike is the expression of our solidarity:

- with the prisoners of the IRA and INLA and their determined

and sustained str~ggle and in their hungerstrike for political

status

- with the prisoners of the Red Brigades; with their battle

against the strategy of annihilation in whieh they took over

the political initiative

with the struggle of the Palestinian prisoners for p.O.W. status

- with all prisoners who have begun resistanee within the prisons

and who are fighting for self-determination.

6.2.81 PRISONERS OF THE RAF

FOR A STRONG ANTI-IMPERIALIST MOVEMENT IN WESTERN EUROPE

'-

The Capital is creating for itself the ways and means for its

worldwide aggressive reconstruction and we - all of us that want

liberation, responsibility and that want to act and live as

people - we in the countries from whence the expansion of eapital

is planned and carried out have to be prepared to halt this

offensive, at this point we must form ourselves into a political

barrier that can prevent the US from launching its offensive and

whlch can finally bring about the overthrow of US imperialism.

If the militant left can grasp this lesson from imperialism'S

defeats - namely that its power disappears when its violenee is

not feared any more - If the militant left ean learn this, it

will have solved the whole mystery of imperialist omnipotence.

Qne thing is certain: solidarlty cannot be forced, nor ean it be

closed down like a bank account. Solidarity is the practical

expression of the consciousness of every individual with the

understandlng that Individual and collective liberation are not

contradictory as the apologists for the fulfillment of indlvidua-

MAKE ARMEO RE5lSTANCE OReANIS[ ILLEGALITY
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Appendix 2'2

TAPE HECOROS OF TELEPHONE CONVERSATION ON 15TH/16TH APRIL 1981

BETWEEN A REPRESENTATIVE OF THE RAF PRISONERS AND THE MEDIATOR.

In the course of the conversation A=Mediator B:Representative of

1.1,,' pr i',liner:;

P I\flT I

1 )

1\: (',CIIlIlIJlI.,)wus personally engaged, has said, so, people gave

OIe guarantees, it's not possible for reasons of state. The

first step has to COOle from the opposite side, SO that the

pub] ie eannol say we are open to blackmail.

Now SchOlude said, I act as guarantor, deal' Justice Minister

and colleagues, you tell OIe, and I take you by your word.

now transfer the whole matter to MI'. (mediator), with the

authority to speak in my name, and I could use that.

A: This means now, that in eontrast to former negotiations when

coneessions were made by Regional Ministers and a hungerstrike

was stopped and the promises were not keptj e.g. Sonnenberg.

And there are other examples. In this case SchOlude and I are

in between, which is different from before.

A: It isn't simple, a majority of Federal State Governments who

say we want a genuine solution. these states are on the same

side as SchOlude.

A: The Ministry of Justice has said that the Federal Prosecution

will do everything to rernove the obstacles.

PART 11

B: Now we are eoming to the whole offer.

A: Yes. Let us be~in geographically in the north.

1) Schmude - Government spokesman

A: In Lubeck (Lauerholz) tllere are al the moment foul' women ­

after Frau Eckes has been released we heard from Kiel that

Angelika Speitel should be moved from Cologne to there.

Three weeks aga there was a concession that Verena Becker

could also be moved there, but this was suddenly met with

resistance for which we never received a genuine explanation.

I interpreted as such because we have no idea. The case of

Verenn ßecker lhereby remains npl'II,nt lhc moment she i5 in

Kassel.

A: Frau Becker should probably then, COOle to frankfurt- Preunqcsheim

willl frau Hufmann ,][1(J I rau l.Ial;lI.a:"whll have bollt beeil (jivell

this undertaking.

1\: Then frau Beeker - first w(' hnvl' In lry ln brinq her Ln Kiel,

i.e. ,Lubeck - should lhis nol sueceed, we will lry to bring

her to Berlin, to the group that is in Berlin, and where due

to the special relations that exist - let's direetly use nnmes ­

SchOlude, Vogel and Meyer, most ean be expected. Herr Sehmude

has told OIe, I do not see any difficulties.

Then there is Celle, niedersachsen (administration) told Herr

SchOlude this afternoon, very elearly, that we have the same

objeetive. We have aeeepted the same poliey of forming small

groups of 4-6 prisoners who can associate daily for at least

foul' hours, joint exereise, joint sports facilities ete.

within the Quota for niedersachsen they are prepared to take

on even more.

A: In Berlin, one could say, no diffieulties exist, as the offers

have existed be fore women were there, have joint assoeiation

etc. Berlin is a positive solution which we have and then

there is the flexibility, according to Herr SchOlude, to move

one 01' other prisoners to Berlin.

A: Nordrhein-Westfalen has indicatcd clearly, even in writing,

that after the cessation of the hungerstrike they will examinc

a positive change. I\r, concerns the 3pplication5, we know from

the promise of Herr SchmurJe, wh;;t i5 mcant.hy U,em and that

we will do it. Which mean:; W;l['kf"r"l~lel<lnrlI\li J'J1l5en from

Werl, Rolf Heissler from StraulJillCl.
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A: Sct.ncider (Gert?) and Gunter Schneider will be part of a

~roup of four in Cologne-Ossendorf wlth conditions similar to

those in Oerlin. There is a problem in Nordrhein-westfalen,

this is Herr Wisniewski. This has not been solved yet and

cannot be so, quickly. Wisniewski, who is now accused in the

Schleyer proceedings, eannot be loeked up together with Rolf

Heisslcr, beeause Heissler is also involved in the proeeedings

and has al ready been promised a transfer to Cologne-Ossendorf.

Thc judge from the OLG (Regional Supreme Court) Dusseldorf,

Mr. Wagner, is responsible. He clearly stated that he ean't

agrec to an assoeiation with Heissler. This is formal argu­

ment, which we eannot refute, I think.

A: So that it is no small group isolation. Minule group isolalion.

That is the solution whieh is being eonsidered posilively and

which is the eondition under whieh this solution shall be

operated. They still ponder and debate, whether this solution

is not good all the same, and they aretrying to convince

Kiel to bring them to Lauerhof near Lubeck, because there is

aetually spaee there.

That's the perversion - that meanwhile our side argues with

the high seeurity traets, isn't it, that is really bad,

A: Baden-wurttemberg is prepared to build a group of foul'. mcaning

Knut Folkerts, Siegftied Haag, Roland Meyer and Gunter

Sonnenberg. In Stammheim.

A' Jt is important that Herr Wagner, the judge, elearly said to

the lawyer: I confess that basieally Herr Wisniewski is the

one with the worst remand conditions and that we have to find

a solution. But in this eontext I got the eertain promise

from Herr SchOlude that he takes it for granted that the

solution which is being sought, will leave no prisoner in

single isolation. This is the premise, and probably the most

important sentenee I will say to you - this is the premise

from which SehOlude and I negotiate.

(
B: 00 you have, I mean, that was one of the original demands,

Sonnenberg is ä special case. The thing is probably known

to OIe, the question of unfitness for confinement, yes, end

the demand, the demand was: for arelease, because it had to

be assumed that the injuries that occurred as a consequence

of the shot in the head can only be healed by normal con­

ditions,which beeame evident in the example of Dutschke ­

only thus was recovery possible.

\......-

Tliat meilns: there is therefore a green light in Nordrhein­

Westfalen, a Dulling together of the Federal Minister of

Justicc, who does not have the legal but the moral and politieal

authority and the authority of Justiee in Nordrhein-Westfalen.

I\nd flli~; j., a)~·,n illlflnrlanl -,inc·,' Uw judlJ"",,'nl::. a(J:ljn~,l

lo/ackernaycl and Schneider are now legally enforeeable and

.ludq.,WOlCJner i~; no longer llic re:;ponsible exeeutive, deeisions

have to be taken by the Justiee authorities.

A: No. The question of ability or disability for conf"irH'f1Il'rlt

of Mr. Sonnenberg was not discussed in this context.

That Mr. Sonnenberg aetually Is the problem for the whole

group of the hungerstrikers, the problem prisoncr no. I, whom

I'verylJouy a;,ks alJout.: what. ;J1)lllltGun!.•.r ~'(Il""'IIII'IIJ:'I t 111"

isn't integrated into the group of four, nothing happens .

MI. [yrieh knows this and also Mr. 5chmude - and MI'. Scllmullc

said this will happen in Stuttgart.

A: Mr. Rossner in Straubing, he stopped, because he was in

mortal fear, and heard about the eurrent negotiations, anu

said: That he wanted to have ta experience them, the

negotiations. The special problem is that no transfer

applieation for Mr. Rossner has been made, because his

lawyer Mr. P. is in Italy, has fallen ill there, and Rossncr

actually has no defenee for the moment. I ·spoke wi t h Mr.

should beFrau Hofmann and Frau Barabas

don't know who invented the expression - in

normal prison eonditions.

A: Now Frankfurt:

integrated ­

tandem, into

U: So "tandem" would mean that they ean assoeiate together and

exercise together, but under normal prison eonditions.
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SChmu(je about this, Mr. Schmude said: 1 stand by my ward

that when we have finished no-one will remaln in isolation,

and that nobody will punish hirn now for

(a) he has stopped the hungerstrike and

ß: (b) he has no defence.

fl,Ht I I I

A: From Bonn I talk with Mr. (representative of the prisoners)

at this moment, Thursday, 16 April at 3.40 p.m. and announce

tu Mr. (representative of the prisoners) that after the

eessation of the hungerstrike, Mr. Sehmude will personally

represent those cas~ci, where judiclal arguments still prevent

a eoming tagether in larger groups, he will make a commitment

as he has always said before, that none of the prisoners who

have broken off their hungerstrike will remain in isolation.

So fai these were the words of Mr. Schmude.

(

-t.~q-

Appendix 25
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After the termination of the hunger- and thirst-strike on

September 2nd, here in Hamburg, on the morning of the next day,

the eommon association/joint yard hour/bathing were permitted, .

in the same form as had been practised up to our transfer to

Stammheim in July and, es it had been promised by Senator Meyer

during the strike. We spoke extensively with Dr. Gnrlnch on

Saturday/Sunda about the neeessary medieal treatment for ouT

recovery after the strikej he was responsible for these measures.

On September 3rd we were also moved from the observation eells

to the old ones - four normal cells adjoining eaeh other.

Monday, 'September 5th between 6.30 and 7 p.m. 1 learned from

the radio that Schleyer had possibly been kidnapped, whieh was

confirmed in the following news announcements. Around 11.00 p.m.

the Inspector appeared on duty, accompanied by six uniformed

jailers, and he explained that my radio would be taken away on

the order of the Prison Director. There were no other measures

during that night. On the morning of September 6th, Iwanted

to make contact with Wolfgang Beer: "Kontaktsperre" (eontaet ban)

was the scanty answer from the station officer. Yard hour also

only alone. I had not been in the yard for 10ng (I had just

spoken to a doctor about the nourishment), when around 9.15 a.m.

a fairly large crowd of prison warders stormed into the cell,

around them a confusion of diverse heads of departments, higher

ranks of the prison administration and civil officials whose

identity and function were not disclosed.

1 was ordered to go with them, with that 1 was nearly dragged

out of the cell, without the possibility of even putting on my

shoes. Then brought into the cell no. 5 in the security station,

which is just near the central office. Two prison officers and

one of the clvil officials came with me into the cell - the

officers then ordered me to strip. The civil.official didn't

say one word during the whole procedure - he neither answered

my demand to show his card, nor my question whether he was from



\....,

,--.

- 2 -

the OKA: he Just stared at me - as If he wanted to frighten me.

After the procedure the three of them went .•. from the corrldor

I could hear the noise of their actlvity - the searching of our

old cells.

After more than 2 hours and repeated demands to explain how lang

1 was going to stand In the empty, dirty hole without shoes,

wearing only pants and a shirt, reduced by the hunger- and

thirst-strike - I was finally informed at 11.30 a.m. that I would

stay there. Shortly after I got my things - my papers, only

partly - one report of mine about the forced feeding was taken

away because of so-called 'untruth'. The cell I had been locked

in is permanently supervised from the nearby central office.

The cells to the right and the left were empty. P~neath and

beyond also no-one except warders. The part of the yard beneath

the window had been locked fo the others - to prevent contacts.

Actually there was no possible contact left to me. I couldn't

speak to anybody: except prison staff. Ouring the same night

the terror began which a certain number of the warders of the

night duty had chosen as their task: bangs and kieks against the

door, loud talking about what should be done with us - variations

about kinds of death, to shoot us or to hang us were the mostly

repeated ones - in such a way that I eould not fail to hear It,

or direet threats through the door: "you pig, soon we eome and

give you the k.o." and so on.

Th{~ prison m;Jn;HJPRl('1I1w;]~;f;'I1011j,:ally llylllq 10 pI"vl'liI ;J/lY

eontaet, to eut me off from any information: when during the

yard hour a prisoner appeared at the window, the tower warder at

onee ealled to the station to take him aW;JY; newspapers ]yinq In

the eentral office awniting distrllllllion were rcmovcu wlll:n1 wa~,

led into the yard, radios were turned down even if they could

barely be heard in the corridor. The director of this section

threatened me with the cutting off of the yard hour altogether

when I had stopped on ce only briefly in the yard. The person

had wanted to talk to was not allowed to come again after the

two talks we'd had at the end of September.

The total isolation since 6.9.77 is direeted at producing a

stress which will destroy - and you have to see that after the

'"

Q"

"
.~"
1::,.

"

2'34 -
- 3 -

cutting off of all contacts to the outside world, no radio, no

newspapers, that after this the separation from the other guerilla

prisoners is only an added bestiality. This is my experience In

these weeks - and clear that this aim of destroying me would be

achieved, if you didn't fight against it. In view of the possible

exchange it is the police tactic to attempt to destroy all thc

prisoners: without the consequenees which would follow an open

execution in this situation.

That it wasn't even worse than threats and insults from certain

warders in these weeks of contaet ban, lay only in the threat

that this would have consequences for Schleyer.

The sharpening of the stress'was continued with irregular observa­

tion through the cell spyhole - sometimes only every hour, some­

times every ten minutes - and with switehing on the cell light

at night. And then on Oetober 2nd the medical treatment after

the strike, medicine and extra food, were abruptly stopped.

From thereon there was only the usual diet - much too little,

even though malnutrition eould elearly be seen (only after 2

weeks eould I manage to get extra soup) - and the medicine we

got without examination be fore through the prison doctor, vitamins

and so on - we now only got after examination. I reJected this

because it is only information for the State Security.

'ihopping is forbidden.

The only information I got officially during the time from

September 6th until October 18th 1977 were:

On September 13th through an officer from the BKA during a

questioning of the prisoners: that I belonged to the 11 prisoners

whose release was demanded

and in the afternoon of October 18th, through the prison doctor ­

after being locked in a control cell: that after the 'liberation

of the hostages' Andreas, Jan and Gudrun had 'committed suicide',

and that Irmgard had attempted it, and that the supervision now

should prevent new 'suicides'. The camparisan with Brigitte Schulz

in the Israeli prison is evident: the only information she got

in the one year was: Ulrike (Meinhof) had committed suicide.
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In Lhe nlght to Detober 16th 1 had heard that an ultimatum had

expired - the threat against my life inereased. During thc

action I had been expeetlng my exeeution all the time - not by

flipped out warders, but by the Seeret Services, in ease the

Government would rejeet the appeals; but In this night I took It

as possible that one of the warders who again and again had

shouted that I had to be hung, would flip out. The night of

Detober 18th on the other hand was ealmer then. What had

it was there by mere 'ace ident': beeause everythin(J I ~lf't i 5

eheeked through very thoroughl y. (I threw it out of the window,

sinee I had no eontaet to a lawyer 01' to a prisoner whom

eould have told about it before making areport to the prison

warders) .•.

In the nlght from Oe tobel' 21st to 22nd at about 12 o'eloek I

heard a low sound at the door of whieh I took little notlee.

outside: tied in such a way as ropes are as used for hanging.

I don't know who had hung it there. About two hours later 1t

was (jone - also then I eoulan't. s('('whn dia It.

\.....

IlappPl\l'cIclurlng Ihilt nlght I lH'ill'din pi('('e~;frnm th" Jlli',IlIlI'I',

in the yard next mornlng. In the nlght to Detober 18th from

7 p.m. on I was watehed mueh more Intensively than in the time

before - sometimes not more than aminute went hy unt iI t.hc

spyhole wa'; upcned and elosed agiJin, and il\ L1iffCI'CllCe to t.Il1:

usual insults no ward was spaken. WHD was watehing me I don't

know. In the eentral office, where usually same warders are,

whose talks I can hear, it was unusually silent this night.

',111111 Iy ;1 ft (' r , Inn!.:,,,J ", 1111,' rinnI ;U1l! <,;lw" 11Iln:',,, hang 1"11

Because of these occurrences in the darkness and since knew

L

that adecision for 01' against the commando's demand had to

happen soon, I prepared myself for an attack in this night: the

situation, the atmosphere was clearly recognisable as dangerous

for me.

The most often heard sentence in these weeks was: "So hang

yourself finally" and mostly adding: "Alone he won't do it, one

has to ... help him" 01' similar suggestions.

The whole arrangement - the totalsupervlsion on one side - and

the declaration of Justice Ministers and high functionaires on

the other - unworthy of a human being - eontinuing supervision

eouldn't hinder someon decisive from committing suicide - that

means for me that more executions camouflaged as suieides are

possible ... Part of this arrangement is that I found in the tool

poeket of a boiler suit which I had just got from the prison

authorities - the broken blade of a knife about 10 cm long

sharpened to a point - this was in the end of October, 2 01' 3

days after the trousers had been given to me by one of the

officers. I can't say whether the blade had already been there

01' whether it had been put there afterwards, when I wasn't in

my eell and wasn't wearing the suit - anyway I do exclude that



flW
i3

S
T
A
T
E
1
1
J
i
!

)
J

r
-

2-
r
e
I
ß
t

r
>

C
I.

T
h
e

e
l
r
e
a
d
y

5
0
C
l
_
.

1
5
0
1
a
t
1
0
n

1
~
H
o
h
e
n
a
l
p
e
r
g

~
a
s

n
o
w
(
t
l
c
h
t
e
n
e
d

u
p

1
n

B
r
u
C
~
,
5
a
l

t
r
.
a
t

w
e

;
;
0
"

o
n
l
y

t
a
l
"

a
D
o
u
t

a
r
;
e
a
r
l
y

t
o
t
a
l

i
s
o
l
.
U
O
D

ot
C
U
e
~
t
e
r

S
o
n
n
.
n
b
e
:
,
.

F
o
r

•
•
a
:
p
l
•
•

-
N
o

e
x
e
r
e
i

•
•

l
D

t~.
y
a
r
d

w
l
t
~

t
h
.

p
r
l
s
o
n
.
r
.

t
r
o
.

b
i
s

.
1
n
g
,

b
u
t

w
l
t
b

t
i
v
e

t
o

t
e
D

.
e
l
e
e
:
e
d

p
r
i
s
o
n
e
r
s

w
h
o

a
r
a

n
o
t

a
1
1
0
•
•
4

t
o

t
a
l
k

t
o

m
f

e
l
l
.
~
t
.

'
.

-
D
O

a
.
a
o
e
l
a
t
1
0
n

w
~
t
h

o
t
b
e
r

~
r
l
s
o
n
e
r
•

-
n
o

l
e
l
.
u
r
.
-
a
e
t
l
v
;
t
1
e
.

W
1
t
h

o
t
h
e
r

p
r
1
s
o
n
.
r
.
,

o
n
l
y

e
h
u
r
e
h

O
D

S
~
d
a
,
.
.
,

p
o
•
•
i
b
l
,
.

.
o
~
.
t
l
r

•
•
•

t
l
1
m
-
.
h
o
~
,

b
u
t

h
e
r
•
•

1
.
0

D
O

p
o
•
•
l
b
i
I
l
t
,
.

t
o

t
a
l
k

to
o~t.er

pr1soner
••.

D
0

p
o
•
•
i
b
1
1
1
t
i
e
.

t
o
r

w
o
r
k
,

o
n
i
y
.
~
o
l
l
t
a
r
,
.

w
o
r
k

l
D

t
h
.

e
e
l
l

w
o
.

o
c
r
e
'

-
p
r
i
,
o
D
-
l
n
t
.
r
n
e
l

s
h
o
p
p
i
n
g

n
o
t

w
1
t
b

o
t
h
.
r

p
r
l
.
o
n
e
r
.

-
t
h
e

e
.
l
l
.

n
e
x
t

t
~

m
,
.
·
e
l
l
e
n
t

a
r
e

n
o
t

o
e
e
u
p
l
.
d
.
,

-
t
l
:
e
c
e
l
l

o
t

m
,
.
e
l
i
e
n
t

1
.

a
2
-
h
e
d

e
.
l
l

b
u
t

l
D
.
w
b
i
c
b

1
d
Z

b
a

1
.

1
.

•
o
l
i
t
a
r
y
.

c
o
n
t
l
:
:
.
:
e
!
,
t
.

"
:
'

-
d
a
1
1
,
.

"
o
l
l

r
a
l
d

•
•

I
I
v
e
r
a
l

t
l
:
.
e
~

•
.
d
i
.
,
.
.'
.

,
A
l
l

t
h
i
.

p
o
l
D
t
.

c
e
:
:
t
i
o
n
e
d

o
n
l
y

a
p
p
l
,
.

t
o

&
y

c
l
l
e
n
t

.
n
d

a
n

1
D

o
P
F
o
.
l
t
1
c

'
:
t
o

t
h
e

;
r
l
e
o
D

e
O
l
l
d
i
t
i
o
n
s

o
t

a
l
l

t
h
.

o
t
h
.
r

p
r
1
.
o
n
.
r
.

l
D

B
r
u
c
h
e
.
l
.

E
d
u
e
a
t
l
o
n
a
l
-

a
n
d

1
.
1
.
u
r
.

a
c
t
l
v
l
t
1

•
•

o
t
t
e
r
.
d

i
n

B
r
u
c
h
s
.
l
.

l
a
n
e
.
e
g
e

c
o
u
r
.
e
e
,

~
_
.
l
c

g
r
o
u
F
e
,

d
i
.
e
u

•
•
l
o
D

c
r
o
u
p
.
,

t
h
o
.
t
r
o

c
r
o
u
o
.
,

e
h
e
•
•
,

s
p
o
r
t
,

(
1
1
:
.
,

t
e
l
e
v
i
s
l
o
D
.

"
,

I
t
'
.

D
o
t
b
i
n
e

n
e
.

t
~
a
t

p
r
1
.
o
n

e
o
n
4
1
t
1
o
n
s

o
t

t
h
l
.

k
1
D
d

w
l
1
1

~
b
y
.
i
e
a
l
l
,
.

l
I
e
.
t
r
o
,
.
t
h
o

p
r
i
s
o
r
.
.
r
.

T
h
o

r
e
.
u
l
t
.

o
t

d
e
p
r
1
v
~
t
l
o
D
.

r
e
•
•
•
r
c
h

h
e
v
o

b
e
e
D

.ub:U
\ted

•..
'

:
....•

'
•

Ä
l
r
u
d
,
.

t
o
r

q
u
ih

0
0
•
•

U
•
•
•
d
i
t
C
e
r
e
n
t

~
.
4
1
c
.
l

a
t
.
t
•
•
•
•D
t
.

b
e
Y
•
•

"
t
o
t
.
c
l
,

.
h
l
e
b

•
•

p
r
.
r
.
q
u
i
s
l
t
.

t
o
r

t
h
e

r
e
e
o
v
.
r
y

C
r
o
m

t
h
o

p
h
,
.
.
i
e
&
!

r
.
l
U
l
t
.

o
C

C
u
.
n
t
.
r

S
o
n
c
e
n
~
e
~
&
.

h
e
.
d

l
r
.
J
~
T

r
.
g
.
r
d

•
·
t
o
r

.
t
1
:
u
l
a
t
1
o
D

r
i
e
b

I
i
v
l
n
g

.
t
~
o
o
p
b
.
r
e
"

e
n
d

m
a
n
y

h
u
=
a
D

c
o
n
t
.
c
t

•
•
•

n
e
c
•
•
•
•

r
T
.

I
D

a
n

o
D
l
~

r
o
l
a
t
l
v
e

.
o
e
l
a
1

'
1
0
0
l
e
t
l
o
D

•
e
o
n
l
l
D
u
i
n
e

w
o
n
e
n
l
n
e

o
t

b
i
.

p
.
y
e
h
i
1
c

.
­

e
t
t
1
e
:
:
e
y

h
a
.

t
o

b
a

r
.
e
k
o
n
.
d

w
i
t
n
.

r
h
o

o
t
t
e
c
t
.

o
t

b
i
.

e
O
D
d
i
t
l
o
n
.

l
n

B
r
u
e
h
o
.
l

a
r
t

a
l
r
e
a
~
1

n
o
t
l
e
e
a
b
l
.

D
O
W

t
h
r
o
u
c
h

b
r
.
a
~
~
o
W
D

1
D

c
o
n
e
.
D
t
r
a
-

U
O
D

W
h
e
D

h
.

1
.

r
•
•
!
i
n
g

o
r

•
•r
l
U
U
C
.

'
.
'
.
'

•
.
.

,
.

f
h
.

"
C
o
r

e
t
l
c
u
l
a
t
l
;
:

r
l
e
b

l
i
v
l
n
g

a
t
m
o
.
p
h
.
r
a
"

t
o
r

&
1

e
l
l
.
n
t

E
6
a
r
~

t
h
a
t

t
.
e
,
a
p
a
r
t

t
r
c
:

t
h
•
•
•

e
r
e
i
s
.

p
.
r
l
o
d

w
h
e
r
.

h
.

1
.

n
o
t

e
1
1
o
•
•
•d

t
o

t
a
l
k

t
o

t
h
e

o
t
h
e
r

r
r
i
8
0
n
e
r
s
,

e
x
e
p
t

t
o
r

o
n
l
,

1
.

l
o
c
k
.
4

i
D

O
D

h
i
.

O
_
D

C
o
r

2
)

h
o
u
r
.

a
d
a
,
.
.

'
.

,
,

.

_
A
p
e
r
t

t
r
o
m

t
h
o

C
.
f
t
,

t
h
a
t
~
7

t
o
r
.

o
i

l
m
r
r
l
.
o
n
:
e
n
t
,

.
1
t
h
o
u
t

.
Y
.
D

.
F
.
e
1

e
o
n
4
1
t
l
o
n
o
,

1
.

-
.
e
e
o
r
d
l
r
~

t
o

,
~
•
•
•
•

d
1
e
•
•

t
a
t
o
:
.
e
n
t
.

-
h
•
•
l
t
h
-
d
a
r
a
c
l
n
g

t
o
r

~
,
.
e
l
l
'
D
t
,

t
h
o

r
r
l
.
o
n

e
o
n
d
i
t
i
o
n
.

o
t

G
.

S
o
n
n
'
D
b
o
r
e

l
n

B
r
u
e
h

•
•
l

c
e
a
n
,

t
a
a
t

t
h
.

p
r
l
.
0
D

a
u
t
h
o
r
l
t
i
e
.

1
0
1
1
1

o
r

e
a
n
n
o
t

c
r
e
.
t

•
•

u
e
a

c
o
n
d
l
t
1
o
n

t
h
.
t

l
/
;
e
r
.
h
a
b
i
l
l
t
a
l
l
o
D

o
t

.
y
'
e
l
l
e
n
t

t
r
o
.

h
l
.

h
e
.
c
l

1
n
J
u
r
T

1
.

n
o
t

r
a
4
a

l111poss1ble.
11':.

cnrucuenee
1.

t!'lS
it.r.II"nt~

Sonun~
"-I~t

be
nl'

••1
t
r
o
n

F
r
l
,
o
D

b
.
e
.
u

•
•

h
o

1
.

n
o
t

:
l
t

t
o

.
t
a
y

l
n
s
l
d
o
.

rB
ec..

&
',

.hot
doW

'D
and

S
l
I
l
c
e

t
h
e
t

u•••

2
8
;
)
.
1
9
8
0

2
:ib

A
.

t
l
:
e
d
e
t
e
D
e
e

l
a
.
,
.
e
r

o
t

C
u
.
n
t
e
r

S
o
n
n
e
n
b
e
r
e

I
.
a
n
t

t
o

r
e
p
o
r
t

t
h
e

C
O
l
l
o
w
1
r
-
&
,

O
.

t
h
.

1
9
.
)
.
8
0

.
1
'
e
l
l
e
D
t

.
a
.

t
r
B
I
l
.
C
e
r
r
e
d

t
r
o
.

H
o
h
e
n
a
a
p
o

r
e

l
D
t
O

t
~
A
f
r
i
s
o
D

1
n

D
r
~
c
h
s
.
l
.

A
l
r
e
.
d
,
.

o
n

t
h
e

9
.
)
.
7
9

t
h
a

J
u
.
t
l
e
a

m
i
D
l
.
t
r
y

B
a
d
e
n
-
W
u
e
r
t
t
.
m
b
a
r
e

y
e
r
b
a
l
l
,

&
G
Y
I

t
h
e

t
o
l
1
o
.
1
~

~
S
~
D
C
'

t
o
r

t
b
e

f
u
t
u
r
.

~
r
1
.
o
n

C
O
D
­

d
i
\
l
O
r
~

o
e

.
,
.
e
l
i
.
n
t
:

.
C
~
&
t
e
r

S
~
:
n
e
n
~
r
g

r
e
c
e
l
v
e
a

tb.
D
o
r
&
&
1

p
r
i
a
o
n

c
o
n
d
1
t
l
o
D
a

t
o
r

prlac:er:t,
eSFee1al17z

..
_

h
.

w
1
1
1

r
.
o
t

b
.

p
u
t

l
D
t
o

•
•

p
e
e
1
~
l

d
n
c
,

b
u
'

l
n
·
.

D
O
n
r
a
J
.

w
1
U
C
_

•
.

_
A

O
r~l

exerel
••

&
l14

eom
r:on

lelau.re-actlvltl
••

-
•...

:.
',"

.
1
0

.
"
.
e
i
.
l

•
•
1
e
e
t
l
o
D

o
C

p
r
l
.
~
r
.
e
r
s

l
D

b
i
.

g
r
o
u
p
;

f
h
e

o
n
l
,
.

r
e
.
t
r
l
e
t
l
o
D
S

o
p
p
o
.
e
d

t
o

t
h
a

o
r
d
1
n
a
r
,
.

c
O
D
d
l
t
1
0
n

•
•

r
•
•

A
b
u
.
1
l
d
l
r
.
g
-
d

•
•

s
e
e
u
r
e

01
e
e
l
l

(
n
o

.
k
i
r
U
n
c

b
o
a
r
d

.
t
c
.
)

.
_

c
o
r
.
t
r
?
l
l

a
t
t
e
r

c
o
n
t
a
c
t
.

_
i
t
h

o
t
h
e
r

p
r
i
s
o
c
e
~
8
.

b
u
t

o
n
l
y

t
h
r
o
u
g
h

•
•
•
r
e
n

t
l
.
h
a
n
d

(
?
)
,

(
n
o

u
c
d
r
e

•
•
l
~

o
r

c
h
a
n
g
l
n
g

o
C

e
l
o
t
h
e
.
)

.

A
t

f
i
r
s
t

&
0

p
a
r
t
l
c
i
p
a
t
l
o
D

i
n

t
o
o
t
b
a
l
l

g
a
~
e
e
,

e
s

r
a
r
.
8

t
h
l
.

w
a
s

d
a
~
e
r
o
u
.

t
>
;
o
e
.
u
u

0
1
;
.
t
h
e

/
;
e
.
d

l
n
J
u
r
,
.

(
t
h
i
.

a
H
l
1
.
d

o
n
l
y

C
o
r

t
h
.

pe-rlo4
betore

the
"'ca

-oFeration
or

c1
ellent,

.hieb
.aaxalready

h
e
p
p
e
"
e
d

6
z
o
n
t
h
.

a
g
o
)
"
.

th.b
a:5=

u.ranc••••
re

.ln841
not

coa:;.11e4
.ith

19,R
O

hena.perb.
A
p
F
r
o
p
r

•
•
t
•
•

p
p
l
l
e
.
t
l
o
D
.

b
,
.
t
r
A

d
.
t
.
n
e
.
,

a
•
•
o
e
l
.
t
l
o
n

C
o
r

.
x
.
m
p
l
.
,

•
•
r
e

a
r
.
s
.
e
r
e
d

w
l
t
h

t
h
.

T
e
i
S
O
n
,

t
h
a
t

P
.
o
b
e
C
2
s
~
~
r
c

w
a
•
•

p
r
i
s
o
n

b
o
s
p
i
t
a
l

8
0
.
s
a
o
~
l
a
t
l
o
A

d
i
d
D
'
t

.
]
l
l
s
t
t
h
e
r
a

a
n
Y
W
.
f
·

1
•
•

e
v
e
r
a
l

F
r
•
•
•

r
e
p
o
r
t
.

l
D

J
a
r
.
~
r
,
.

a
n
d

F
.
b
r
u
a
r
y

o
t

t
h
l
.

y
e
.
r

t
h
.

p
r
\
,
o
D

.
1
t
U
L
t
l
o
n

o
t

a
,
.
e
l
l
e
~
t

l
n

H
o
h
e
n
a
.
"
.
r
,

w
a
.

F
r
e
.
e
n
t
.
d

a
.

q
u
i
t
.

1
4
J
l
l
t
c
.

A
l
a
o

t
h
a

c
e
_
•
•

a
s

b
e
l
~
c

s
F
r
e
a
d

t~~t
C
U
e
D
t
e
r

S
o
n
n
e
n
b
e
r
,

.
0
u
I
l
I

.
o
~
n

b
e

t
n
r
'
C
t
r

•
.
.
•d

t
o

3
r
u
e
h
s
a
l

a
n
d

t
h
e
r
e

"
,
o
u
I
l
I
b
e
'
p
u
t

l
n
t
o

D
O

T
r.l

C
'O

nditlons.
B

illt
u

..•.""A
lt',

lnnlr"
tot.al1"

dlffarent.

,
C
u
t
~
t
e
r

s
o
n
r
.
e
c
b
e
r
~
,
a
a
t

t
o
g
e
t
h
e
r

w
i
t
h

f
e
r
e
n
a

•~3tea
1D

:nni'e.
on

he
3rd

of
A

Fr11
1971.

C
~
e
n
t
e
r

h
a
a

b
e
e
u

1
n

1
s
o
l
a
t
i
o
n
.

S
e
V
t
r
a
l

\
l
~
e
.

G
u
e
n
t
o
T

~
~
a

&
~
c
.

O
D

h
u
n
«
e
r
-
e
t
r
l
k
.
,

b
e
c
a
u
s
e

l
t
s

a
b
a
o
l
u
t
e
l
J

v
i
t
a
l

t
o
r

b
1
.

\
0

h
a
v
i

b
~
a
n

c
o
n
t
a
c
t
,

t
o

r
e
c
o
v
e
r

t
r
a
m

h
1
e

I
:
n
d

l
r
.
J
u
r
,
.
.

O
n
e

d
a
,
.
.
C
t
e
r

h
l
.

h
u
r
~
e
r
.
t
r
l
k
e

O
D

t
b
e

2
4
.
1
.
7
9

I
I
I
S
t
.
U
L
h
e
l
m

G
u
e
n
t
e
r

•
•
•

t
r
e
r
.
.
C
e
r
r
e
d

t
o

t
h
e

h
o
.
p
i
t
a
l

o
t

t
h
e

p
r
l
.
o
D

B
r
u
e
h
.
~
l
.

T
h
i
.

m
e
a
n
t

t
o
t
a
l

1
.
o
l
.
t
l
o
D

C
o
r

h
l
m
.

~
h
e
n

)
)

o
t
h
e
r

p
r
l
.
o
D
e
r
.

a
l
.
o

w
e
D
t

O
D

h
~
e
r
.
t
r
i
k
e

l
n

.
0
1
1
d
a
r
l
t
,
.

.
1
t
h

C
u
e
n
t
e
r
,

J
u
s
t
l
e
a

~
l
n
l
s
t
e
r

D
r
.

I
T
r
l
e
h

C
r
o
•
•
t
b
e

J
u
s
U
e
o

z
1
n
1
.
t
r
,
.

!
o
.
d
e
D
-
l
l
'
u
e
r
t
t
e
m
b
e
r
e

p
r
o
m
i
a
e
d

.
D

or--al
~rl.oD

cond.1
tlona

tor
C

uenter,
O

D
C

'be
bad

ncovered
Iraa

t
h
o

h
u
e
&
.
r
.
t
r
l
k
e
.

A
L
t
e
r

1
:•
•

t
o
p
p
.
d

h
l
.

h
u
n
g
.
r
.
t
r
i
k
e

O
D

t
h
e

9
.
)
.
,

C
u
e
D
t
e
r

w
•
•

t
r
a
D
'
­

t
e
r
r
o
d

t
o

t
h
e

p
r
l
,
o
D

h
o
.
p
i
t
a
l

H
o
h
e
n
a
s
p
e
r
e
.

H
e

s
t
.
,
.
a
d

t
h
e
r
e

u
n
t
l
1

1
b
a

1
9
.
)
.
8
0

e
n
d

l
s

n
o
.

l
D

B
r
u
e
h
s
a
l
.

H
e
r
e
.

a
r
e
p
o
r
t

b
1

b
i
.

l
a
.
y
e
r
.

a
a

h
1
.

p
r
o
a
1
a
e
c
t

·
c
o
r
c
a
l
-

p
r
1
s
o
n

c
o
n
d
1
t
1
o
n
a
•

\

A
ppendix



- 2 -
-2'31-

Appendix 27

all over his body: but particularly on 11is hands and feet,

sweilings and contusions, a swollen nase, contusions and red

marks on the bridge of his nase, contusions on the genitals.

Terrible headaches.

Lessingstrasse 78

7500 Karlsruhe 1

Hannfried Matthies

lawyer

\......

f) res s Hel e ase

Karlsruhe, 31st March 1983

The insignificance of the alleged 'cause' of this

assault leads to the conclusion that it was prepared

and planned: ßernd Rossner is alleged not to have

had a pullover or shirt over his vest at 06.00 hours,

at the time when break fast w~~> I'anded out, wtdch was

an offence against the ru]es of the prison. He was

1''' t,,· ..·11 '"",;"" I ,,'. t. I1 i·. I' 1111'''.1 ."1" i 11'.1 t h;d w .• '. 1111'

signal for the summoning of the sQuBd.

\..-0

Oll 79.'.,1\'. my .-lirnl Opl'IHllllY,r,NfH,prl~;oner frolll11,,,IU't, ]"

Lhe IJl'i:.1)11'rallkenthal was beaten up by a squad of 10 prison

officers.

They took him brutally by the neck, choking him, tore his arms

behind his back and applied handcuffs which were pulled tight

to hit the bane. His legs were torn backwards and he was

dragged face down, under kicks and punches, to the punishment

eells.

On the way several officers pulled his legs apart and one of

them kicked him hard and purposefully in his balls. The hand­

cuffs whieh had been applied to his hands behind his back, were

used to 'carry' him, whilst his legs (which were also used to

carry him) were torn apart and his feet turned outward. In

this way the practised and purposely used manipulation caused

extremely severe pain.

Onee down below, the officers tore all articles of clothing off

his back, partially tearing thern, and then dragged him naked

into the cello One of the officers incited the others by shout­

ing:

"get his legs apart and get his trousers down, and we

can better hit him in the balls".

Then again, kicks into the genitals to cause maximum pain.

As a result of these brut.Rl mp~C:II""C: tn•• n ••l c~n~" h __ -- .• ---

The mistreatcmnt is rart 01' Ihe r11ysir:Bl ils~.au]tc. on

pul I1 i";JI I'l'i:.,}I"·I:.wl,i,'hI,.•v'· illl ,,· •••••·1111'11'1111)1./11'

last few months:

_ Christian Klar, Brigitte MOhnhaupt and my client

Adelheid Schulz have been maltreated several times

following their eapture, for the purposes of

"obtaining information" and for "identity parades".

_ Ouring the cell searehes, wl1ich immediately fol10wed

the capture of Brigitte Mohnhaupt and Adelheid

Schulz, of all politieal prisoners throughout the

Federal Republie, Andreas vogel and my elient

Bernd Rossner were beaten up, furthermore ßernd

Rossner has CS-Gas sprayed into his face from

elose range.

Sinee his eapture in 1975, Bernd Rossner has been isolated

almost without interruption. He fought for joint imprisonment

for prisoners from the RAF by means of several hunger and

thirst strikes. Bernd Rossner is the first prisoner who is now

applying to be moved into a group of pol1tlcal prisoners within

the framework of a new initiative for the joint imprisonment of

prisoners from the RAF and the anti-imperialist resistance.

(Bernd Rossner wants to go to Celle in order to be with the

group that exists there.)
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The first reaction by the Ministry of Justice of Rheinland­

palatinate was to offer him yard exercise with three other

prisoners from a special wing. It was known that Bernd Rossner

would refuse 'this offer' because he wants to be with his com­

rades in Celle. Ihe purpose was to then deny him yard exercise

altogether which is what happened.

Ihe second reaction (to his application) was obviously the

assault on Tuesday, with which the State attempted to break

Bernd Rossner's will and determination to fight to be with his

comrades.

H. Matthies

-291 -
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Hannfried Matthies

lawyer

Lessingstrasse 78

7500 Karlsruhe 1

Karlsruhe, 22.4.83

On 8.4.83, the Federal Criminal Bureau initiated the searching

of the cells of more than 30 political prisoners when letters

demanding joint imprisonment were conflscated. It was the alm

of these cell searches to prevent initiatives which might lead

to a change In the condltion5 of isolation and to crlminalisc

the debate concernlng such initiatives.

ßy 21.2.83 Bernd Rossner had al ready had his yard exerclse

stopped. Since then he has been Iso1ated for 24 hours daily

in his cell wlthout the posslbl1ity of exercise and wlthout

adequate fresh air.

Since J8.~.83, my client ßernd

has füught für his transfer to

RAr prisoners in Celle by means

PIe s s R eie ase

Rossner, prisoner from the RAr,

one of thc existing groups of

of a dirty protest.

On 29.3.83 he was overpowered by a squad of 10 prison officers,

handcuffed and badly maltreated with aseries of systematic

blows, as already stated in the Press Release of 31.3.83. The

excuse for this occurence was that he" had defied the order of

the prison in Frankenthai.

"-'

Extracts from the Oirty Protest Declaration by my client:

• ••• my Dirty Protest means that I:

- shall no longer use the toilet for my daily needs,

but the floor of my cell;

- shal1 refuse to shower twice a week;

- 35 uf now shall refuse all mixed food and all

beverages from the boiler on the food trolley in

order to avoid the possibility of imbibing mani­

pulative medication;

- shall smash the glass of the cell windows if the

security lock on the windows is fastened so that

fresh air can no langer reach me .•. n

Bernd Rossner has been isolated for the last eight years.

Bernd R05sner is the first prisoner who, within the framework

of thc new initialivefor tlle joinl imprisonment of prisoners

from thc Rllr and from the anti-imperialist resistance, applied

for his transfer, on 8.2.83, to the Ministry of Justice of the

Rheinland-palatinate.

The responsible authorities had not managed to achieve their

aim:

Bernd Rossner continued to show his determination to fight for

his transfer to Celle.

In a discussion with Bernd Rossner's lawyers on 15.4.83, a

representative of the Ministry of Justice of the Rheinland­

palatinate announced the transfer of Bernd Rossner back to the

prison in Straubing (Bavaria). Within the next few weeks, as

soon as Christian Klar would have been moved from Straubing.

Apparently this had been so planned from the beginning. ßernd

Rossner had been isolated in Straubing for the past five years

of his eight years of imprisonment, up to his transfer to the

prison in Frankenthai in December 82.

During these five years he fought by means of several hunger

and hunger and thirst strikes for his transfer away from Straubing

into a group of his comrades.

All applications in respect of this were rejected by the

Bavarian Ministry of Justice.
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Since t/IC beglnning of his Dirly Protest, Bernd Rossner has been

locked in thc punishment cello This cell, which is tiled white,

lit with harsh neon lights and completely empty is heated by

means of hot air ducts producing very dry air which comes through

several air vents in the wall and which causes difficulty in

breathing. visits are not allowed. Apart from letters from his

defence lawyer, no ether letters can be sent er received.

Bernd Rossner has declared that he will centinue his Dirty

Protest under all circumstances and against all attempts to break

~ his struggle, and in every place until he is transferred te Celle.

H. Matthies

(lawyer)

o
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Appendix 29

Holqer Melns: Report about Force Feedinq Oct 1974

artery, another artery and the vagus nerve agalnst the mlJscle,

which doesn't only hurt most at the time, but also contlnued

most of the following day.

As soon as the jaws are far enough apart, the medic pinches­

pushes-presses the lockjaw between the teeth. That is a scissor­

like thing, two fingers thick, with gum and with a screw at the

joint, with which the jaws are pressed apart. The tongue is

pulled forward and pressed down with flat tongue pliers or the

doctor does it with his finger, over which he wears a steel

finger stall except for the finger top.

Q"
<4

t)
o"
c:,..
'"When the tube is inside the stomaeh, a broad funnel is affixed

to the top, and then out of anormal size cup (about 1/4 litre)

slowly the broth is funnelled in. It is a kind of meat broth,

muddy, slimy, greasy (anyway with vitamins, dextrose, egg? little I:
things) and with a thick brown semolina type residue. The feeding ~

lasts about 2 or 3 minutes. All the contents cf the cup are

always administered. Even when the retching became extremely

Force feeding: they use an ordinary red stornach TU8E (not the

special tube) which is about as thick as amiddie finger. It is

oily, but actually never slips inside without automatie retching,

since it's only 1/2/3 millimetres thinner than the aesophagus;

you can önly avoid it, when you co-swallow and altogether are

very calm. With the slightest agitation the insertion of the

tube leads immediately to retching and nausea, then to a tighten­

ing of the museies of chest and stomach, to convulsions which go

in chain reactions and with growing intensity und strength through

your whole body, which is rearing against the insertion of the

tube. The stronger and the longer - the worse. One single

retching and vomitting, accompanied with waves of cramps. You

can only avoid it or make it easier, if you are very relaxed,

loose and calm yourself, if you can breathe long and regularly.

Under these conditions and with resistance it is completely

impossible - and in all respects it's only possible with calm

concentration and with self control. Under the condition of

direct force it always means: self suppression and self discipline

_ but even then the buckling is the CONOITION of this kind of

force feeding, since the body reacts "naturally".

Against the strength of the jaws they have three grabs: to press

apart with the fingers beneath the lips and at the same time

tearing of the beard; strong pressure beneath the ear and against

the jaw joint, which hurts very much; with peaky fingers take

the museie from behind, which is leading from the front up to

behind the ear. Ooing this they press and knead the carotid

Mouth: from the right the doctor with a little "jemmy", about

20 cm long, one side peaked, the other side pan-like, wrapped up

with leukoplast. With it he goes between the lips, which are

pulled apart with the fingers at the same time, and then between

the teeth and levers them apart, either by screwing or with the

pan under the palate, easily leading to injuries on teeth and

gums.

Since September 30th (12 days now) force feeding is once a day.

lt takes place in the infirmary (a single storey addition to thc

'8' wing, like a worm, I am in 'A' wing, middle of floor 1). I

go up to the treatment room with them voluntarily. An escort

of 5-6 greens, 2-3 ambulance men, 1 doctor. The greens bundle­

drag me onto an operating chair. It is actually an operating

lable wilh all its tricks, e.g. it can be turned, lipped, elc.

and can be converted into achair with head and arm rests.

8~ckling: two handcuffs around the ankles, about a 30 cm broad

belt around the hips, left arm with two broad leatherpieces and

four straps from wrist to ~lbow, right arm two - wrisl and clbow ­

one around my ehest. From behind, a green or medic, who is firmly

pressing my head against the head part of the chair with both

hands around my forehead. (With active head resistance still

another one on the right and on the left side. Into the hair,

beard, around the neck - thus the whole body is strapped down,

ir necessary another one holds knees or shoulders. Movement is

possible only of my muscles and "within" the body. This week

they fastened the belts/straps very tightly. So that the blood

supply to the hands stopped, so that they turned blue .... )

\.....,

\...."
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strong and the body totally selzed in a cramp - without con­

slderatlon, which once lasted at least 5-6 minutes.

The feeding is only posslble if one Is relatively "ca1m", since

wlth strongwretching the broth spurts out of the funnel again,

but it also ascends outside the tube into the throat, which can

lead to suffocation attacks: that happened twice.

The retching itself and the spasms as weIl es the swallowing are

naturally painful, especially in the larynx, which with each of

'-' these movements 15 pressed against the tube.

The levering with the iron tongs has lead to an injury of the

gum, the underlip 1s injured on the inside as if "bitten" - and

s11ghtly inflamed, the throat is "roughed-up". The larynx 1s

hurting all the time and I'm hoarse.

Until the tube is pulled out it lasts 3-5 minutes, this depends.

Afterwards I remain strapped down for at least 10 minutes (some­

times it was longer) and my head remains pressed down, to "calm

me down".

Up to now the doctor refused to tell me his name (it is Freitag).

A green cop (named Vollmann) - 1.90 met re tall - mostly does the

head pressing - he always pressed my head against the leatherpart

with all his power, until his hands began to tremble with exhaus­

tion: a sadist. Another one pulls the straps as tlght as possible,

which has lead to cuts in the ankles, blue marks on legs, arms

~ and so on. This always went strictly according to procedure,

1ncluding the 10 minutes afterwards.

-)~1-
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/lPPENDIX 33

Account of Ingrid Schubert about the attack of 8.8.77

lhe overt brutallty of the attach this mornlng is the signal

that the Security Service, the Minlstry of Justice - Baden­

Wurttemberg and Bender, are set on the "Endlosung" - Final

Solution - in Stammhelm wlthin the next few days. The direct

physlcal attack (on Gudrun, Andreas and Jan in the sixth year

of thelr confinement) Is certainly not the culmination of the

offensive - systematically escalating in Stammheim durlng the

last week: simultaneously with an escalation on all levels:

the campaign against the lawyers' office here in Stuttgart

the falsifications

the attempts to connect Croissant (the lawyer) with the

death of Ponto

the fascist image of us as enemies, as "terror-spooks" ­

all this is intended not only to escalate the manhunt outside,

but also to prepare the public for the planned liquidation of

the prisoners.

It is thc pattern of psycholllqir-;l1 warf;)rc, i.I'. nf a rI,",i<!lI

that uses military, psychological and economic means ta llquidate

an opposition movement.

1111' h;,cl-.l/rolllld~;t.()rywhich J"IIII~,'"l/""'"Y 111 1111' mall," j', 1/",

high probability that the KSZE conference in Belgrade - follow­

ing the rejection of the revision - the Commission for Human

Ri~hts in Strasbourg and the LJN will bp. r.onCf'rnf'rIwil"llt.Iw

iJircetiulI 01' Lhe "!;how-lrial" ill ~,[.am""lIdfll,fur whicil Ilel""dllll,

in the meantime the most senior prosecutor in the FRG - was

responsible in his capacity as thc chief ministerial director

in the Justice Ministry, Baden-Wurttemberg - this is not to

mention the bugs in the defendants' cells and the deaths of

Ulrlke and Siegfried In Stammheim.

It is clear, that this rogue, who in the most literal sense

has furthered his career "walking over corpses" - i.e. thc

corpses of prisoners and that of his predecessor now wante, ta

rid himself of the trouble caused him, by a combination 01

witchhunts and murder. Now after Ponto's demise he is maklng

the fact evident, In a new dimension - that we are hnstages of

the Federal Prosecutor's Office though this was already clear

after Buback's death.

lhe individual phases of the escalation:

After the "binding promise" from Rebmann - still as the person

responsible in the Justlce Minlstry - we broke off the hunger­

strlke. But for seven weeks nothing happened at all.

They are constructing here aperfeet machlne, whlch can register

and control our every move - an architecture, which is a bastard

crossbreed between a bulletproof bank-counter window, behind

which the screws can observe uS every single minute, and a

carnivor house in which we are sittlng, supposedly oomposlng

our 12,OOOth secret message - and brooding on new sensatlonal

crimes .- the lawyers and politlcians never lie. The place is

crammed with electronic surveillance and alarm systems in such

a way that the screws themselves often can't find a way through,

they press the wrong buttons and set off the alarm beIls. At

night 2 TV cameras observe with an electronic sophistication

that reacts to every fly or fluttering bit of paper and sets

off alarm beIls.

lhe conslruction work has now extended for seven weeks. After

this 3 prisoners will be moved here from Hamburg and we will

then be 8 instead of the six previously. Ratte (Vercna Recker),

"''',piI" ;, ',jx-WI.,,'I, IlIlIIqerstrikc ;lfIdNU~.'~,CIO~;lCl:urdcd pru"'I~'e,

is not coming onto our wing. Gunther is being transferred from

Slammheim into the total isolation wing in the mental institute

.w,'is~,r.n;1lJand frnm t.herc Into tlle infnmolls pri',on p"yeld;)1 ri,"

ullil, llle Huhenasperg.

Nusser and Schreitmuller have made it quite clear, that the

Ministry of Justice in co-ordination with"the Federal Prosecutor's

Office is pursuing a delaying tactic. The Federal States

suddenly no langer know anything about agreements and they

reruse to transfer prisoners. Since the middle of July It

becomes ever clearer that their promises aren't going to be kept.

lhe Federal Prosecutor's Office formulates an absurd allegation

of attempted murder against Newerla and Muller (lawyers)

I'I
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In t.I\f' I:;C-Report from NATO, this method of gilling an outlet

to the old megaphones of the protest movement in order to turn

thcm around and to use them for their own ends, is called co­

optation - i.e. 'drowning the revolution in its mother's milk'.

nut. further, t.he shamelessness with which this is goinq on here

shows what we have always said: that with the first armed action

the phase of protest 1s over - that we are no longer revolu­

tionaries but we have become enemies of the system - that the

harmonious relationship of man with imperialism as Andreas has

already said - is war.

It is not our hatred that contorts the face because our hatred

is human, but it is rather ignorance, contemptuousness and

cretinism in which the enmity of the system between those who

are excluded must reproduce itself, as lang as they come to

terms with the ghetto instead of fighting in the dialectic.

Scarcely one day had he been on Buback's throne be fore Rebmann

began a propaganda offensive against the prisoners and their

lawyers, in particular against the Stuttgart lawyers' office.

At the end of July Der Spiegel magazine published an article

by the State Security Department (TE) - which represents a new

type of state security journalism and was a fabrication from the

first lo the last word as it included almost all the lies the

Constitution Protection Agency had contrived against the

lawyers from the last nine months of the year.

At the end of July - two days be fore the Dresdener Bank

suffered the loss of the "fellow-worker" who had made it into

the most aggressive monopoly bank in Western Europe _ Rebmann

declares openly that he, as Federal Prosecutor General will not

keep the promise that he gave as 'ministerial advisor' to the

Ministry of Justice Baden-wurttemberg end that the group (in

Stammheim) will not be enlarged.

Finally one hour after the assassination the most massive

propaganda campaign yet escalates and is increasingly directed

during the course of the week against Gudrun and Andreas.

because they arc unable to sLop Verena (Gecker) and Sabine's

(Schmitz) hungersLrike - and in order Lo eliminate the last

two lawyers who still visit the prisoners here - for Heldmann

and Schily have long since crawled away into the woodwork, and

thlJS to eliminate every outside control.

As a matter of course, outside now, the idealogical whirlwind

is being whipped up. The child stars of the student movement

grown fat and false and the old hands from the time of the easter

march now mceL at thc "anti-terror" front of the SPD. Here

they have suddenly, a genuine class hatred against the have­

nots, illegals, the prisoners, of a kind which would not have

occurred to them to develop against the power of the state ­

which ~,cans nothing oLher than the puwer of property. IIfter

Carter intervened, for Cohn-Bendit, with the state department,

Cohn-Bendit is now being used for Carter: he launches the idiotie

St.atcSecurity propaganda campaiqn hy Klcinz in Der Spiegcl,

and draws up a list for the authorities of the last Frankfurt

militants as though these weren't already completely known.

Gollwitzer, who found no receptiveness in Stammheim for his

social democracy which he had championed broadly and without

shame, is now taking lessons in establishment journalism. At

the same time he publishes the multiple rags of the left: 'ed',

'id', 'links', a dirtily contrived pamphlet against the RAF in

which he attacks the self-reproduction of opposition elements

possibly because they, more plebian than he even in his better

times, could make themselves independent of church rates, and

the state budget. Last but not least Albertz appeared on TV

with the particular variety of humanity which caused him to

resign in 1968. They have the job of neutral1sing the reflexes

of the left wherever they may still exist, to the planned

murders of the prisoners.

Nobody knows whether that will work, but it reflects the way

in which they are being used in the 'intellectual confrontation' ­

which is not only the totally centrally structured and viciously

executed censorship of our arguments, but also of all facts

which explain us - this forms a new dimension in psychological

warfare.
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On Sunday Il is lhe lurn of lhe Slultgart lawyers' office.

Zclss, who adopls the role of the Skorzeny of the Federal

Prosecutor's Office, undertook a raid on the Stuttgart lawyers'

office, armed to the teeth. He has subseQuently advanced the

Infamous lie that during the search of the offices, the original

of lhe declaratlon of the Commando Ulrlke Meinhof had been

found, and that Gudrun had been Identlfled as the author. In

the lists of the artlcles found in the raid one can read,

'I envelope wlth a letter clalming responsibility' and naturally

this Is the thing that sent the Commando in all directions.

As usual the matter reached a head in Stammheim. As always,

when they are preparing something, the officers on duty were

changed. Grossman, the bastard who had opened Ulrike's cell on

the morning of her death, is there again despite his leave.

The greens (screws) become provocatively aggressive, there is

a prevailing atmosphere on all levels, which indicates that we

have got to reckon with some sort of attack.

Friday evening, whilst Gudrun is still with her lawyer, Andreas

went Into Gudrun's cell to fetch something, whilst the food was

being distributed. A procedure that is followed a couple of

tim,,',I'v.'ryd'lY. l'rat:l.if:allya]] 1.I11: yree"s lIIu~;lha v•. ~;':cn

this. Shortly afterwards Gudrun returns to her cell and some

time Inter Gabi (Moller) arrives and enters the cell having

been In the cell where the fruit is - and - thc unthlnkable must

I'" i"';lfli" •.d h"r.: - I\ndreas Is in a cell wilh lwo 'iee-cool,

calculating, sharply drilled murderesses' (as they were des­

crlbed by leaderwriter Zehm). The screws who saw what happened

abruptly lock the door in front of me. Compared with the usual

fuss they create when two of us are out of sight, we found ,that

rather funny. I was standing directly in front of the door and

It was completely obvious that they knew where Andreas was. It

occurred to me that they were all nervous and were whispering

together in front of the glass box. The three in the cell were

obviously surprised as weIl, because immediately afterwards the

alarm system lights flashed and the cell door was opened. Gabi

came out, went into her cell to fetch something. Munzlng, the

senior administrator, who has only been pos ted here since last

week, went past me Into the cell, walked ac ross to the windows

and knnr.kprl rtt thp h==-rc; nf hnl"h ""innnwc: thon tll'rn" •..• "".•..""lInrl ..,"""

- :tS3-
- (, -

walked out again, past Andreas who h~d obviously been searchinq

lhrough the folders In lhe bookshelf, was eallng an apple and

watching hlm, thus he wasn't hiding at all. He passed me again

as he left the cello I was discussing briefly with Gabi, lhat

I would go R (Verena Becker) for the night. She is Isolated

from us in another part of thc floor/wing, but we can see her

at lunchtime and at night. Then I went out to the table in the

middle of the corridor, and Munzing immediately, and wlthout

saying anything, closed the door behind me. Whilst thls

"comedy of manners" was unfolding, at least five screws were

standing about in the tract. Later we established that at

this point none of us knew that the whole thing had a purpose.

I am not in the mood to explain, why, pfter 6 years of isolation,

we still feel the need to be tOlJ~::'er - this even under the

power of violence which is intended to make very feeling, every

thought and every movement unreal 01' turn it into the real kind

of pain we cal! torture. Because it is planned, because it is

done consciously, scientifically and on purpose.

We Were amazed, but also found it Quite funny, because it is

not our business to carry out this dirty spying designed to

persecute us and register every movemcnt we make.

I" ;I"I.II;]} f;!CI,: i" Ihf' 1\ y,-;II", w.' 1''1VI' 111'1'11 llIli,'1I1I'1 111'1'1' 1111'

system is such that the warder who has to wateh US conlinuously

and wllo is relieved every 20 mlnules - at first liIere were 3

warders sitting next ta each otller on slnols starinq al US -

ir I' ur u:" !lul !lr 1.I11: :.;""1.' :',·x 1:;111' I. 1,,_' ~,':"II, ,:V,'II Itll d

second, the warder makes a nolse to attract the 3 other warders

who slt on standby behind llle curtaln. They come inlo the

wing Immediately ta intervene. ßcsidc5 thls thcy al] have 3

checklist on whlch they make notes - If even one person can't

be seen and which of the two open cells he may be in. It is an

infamaus and perfect system of total control, whlch leaves no

chance for any unobserved expression of belng alive.

The meaning of the actions became clear to the others an hour

later when they fetched Andreas out of lhe cell, and, lhen

furtller on the followlng morning, Sal.urday. Tile provocalions

and aggression shown by them slnce Ponlo's dealh, are now accom­

panicd by a grisly humour, and lhey are now exacerbating the

I ~
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situation further. They announce that "on Monday the others

are coming". Both the cell doors, whlch up to now had been

open, remained closed - what I mean is that the greens stand

there, on the wing, until they are closed wlth the result that

during the whole of the weekend (rec-time there are 3 and

semetlmes 4 officers threatenlngly standing around during the

time lIliJtthe cell doors are open). That Is apart from him

sittlng In his bulletproof cockpit. When asked why they wanted

tn C;JW;I~ t.ruut.deand why they had created the situation on

rriday, they react with aggressive threats "we'll soon see",

"somcthing's going to change here", as Emil said.

It becomcs clear that they believe they can afford to persecute

us with their obscenities and deceit ridlng on the wave of

chauvinism which the psychological warfare has unleashed. They

brag, not only about it being within their rights to behave

like bastards, but most particularly because they are males.

Although it must be quite clear even to the densest warder,

during lhc 11 years that they have been watehing us, that the

intimacy in the relationShips within the group (and certainly

in prison), function on a level where sexuality, apart from

tenderness or perhaps sensuousness, has practically no role

at all. The three who found themselves in one cell on Friday

evening, certainly had other problems - and that became com­

pletely clear in the situation at around 4 and 5 o'clock when

Andreas was taken out of the cello

Since lhen they only talk - if they talk at all - about fucking.

Grossman eventually said - word far ward - "I never thought it

of yau, that you got up ta that - fucking", in such a way that

Andrcas's blood boiled, and he said ta him "If yau don't stap

lhat, then 1'11 shut yau up". This was the only threat that

was uttered at all and it is quite clear fram the wording that

the rubbish spoken by Grossman is pure invention and recagnisable

as such by its style.

Monday morning, everything is destined for a total canfrantation:

from 9.30 a.m. onwards the greens are standing on the wing

watehing every movement. During the i ho ur lang canfrontation

(

when we requested thcy leave, Nusser, Schreitmuller, Haug,

Bubeck etc. stoad behind the curtain listening, emongsl lhem

was the little one with the pock-marked face and weasel

features wha had often boas ted openly In the canteen, that

he'd go up and finish Andreas off in his cello

Around 10.00 a.m. in stormed the riol squad. I reckon lhere

were between 40-50 scrcws in ill], ilt U,C ~\ead the trumpelinl)

Nusser, and just behind him Schreitmullcr fat and grinning,

and of course Haug as broad as he jstall, he js the most

hated screws In the whole prisen. Just the 'commanders' of

this army alone must h;IVC wcjql,,~(j/,()(I P(""J(J~;. Mn~,t.nf t1",'111

we had never seen before. The screws who normally work here

llke Meisterfeld far example, are not there - as is ~~ual when

they are planning something. The whole troop came at us from

the rear ~nd approached the open doors, and Nusser, without

even listening to our attempts to reason, ordered "Shut the

doors. No discussion". Andreas answered quite calmly saying

that he is creating this overt escalation. We positioned our­

selves in the doorway of Andreas's cell whereupon Haug

immediately attacked Eagle (Wolfgang Beer). Jan screamed at

Haug that he should let Eagle go and first explain what they

want. A fat screw stinking of beer, who was standing just

behind Nusser, started to hit Leo (Helmut Pohl) with his fists.

Andreas, who until then had stood there with a coffee cup in

his hand, threw it against the bars. Schreitmuller later

reported that it had been "aimed at his head" (you only have

to remember that as early as 1974 he falsified some proclama­

tions by the prisoners in Stammheim in an attempt to smear the

RAF - the fraud was revealed because the real authors contacted

the press after he had published his falsifications). The cup

smashed 1 to li metres away from one of the greens and Andreas

was only 2 metres away. Schreitmuller himself a former Public

Prosecutor be fore he warmed his way into the penal service, was

the responsible prison officer when Ulrike (Meinhof) and

Siegfried (Hausner) died here - is blatantly lying and of coursv

he is doing it with the certainty that his contrlbutJon to

internal state security - the incitement of 50 brutalised

bastards against the prisoners - will win the' support and the

understandlng of all institut ions of the law.
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Tllen it tJegan:

6 screws grabbed hold of Werner (Hoppe), who had only shouted

that they should let go of Eagle and started beating him. At

tt.c same time 6 screws Jumped on Andreas and both were thrown

indiscriminately Into aceli. Then it was Leo and Eagle's

turn and in such a way that their heads and backs were banged

against tables and shelves. lhey started to beat Jan up right

in front of Andreas's cell. I screamed at them and Haug pushed

me away. Next to me, by the radiator, I saw Gudrun lying on

the flopr - and I got the impression that the whole beastiality

culminated on her. One of the bastards had her whole face in

his hands pressing down on it, two were pulling at her arms

behind her back, on the "eft side of her body, and was pulling

them together, at the same time trying to knee her violently in

the side with all his strength. The whole thing had the

appearance of murder. I tried to get to her, but at that

moment I was grabbed by 6 screws. I can still Just see Gabi,

who had been thrown onto the floor, then I was thrown this way

and that for a while then to the floor so that I banged my

head. When I tried to defend myself against the kicks into my

sides and kidneys, Haug, with all his weight and strength

When they finally opened the door and came In, I immedialely

rushed out into the corridor and called for Jan and Andreas

and hadn't even tried to go to Andreas's cell, when the drunken

screw grabbed me from behind by my hair and twisted it by tt1C

scalp pulling out handfuls of hair. The other scrcws grab Iloid

of me as weIl and starting hitting me from behlnd, preclsely

and sadistically in the na pe of my neck and in my back and

sides swearing at me, "You're getling what you dcservc now ynu

dirty bitch", "We'll show you". They dragged me away from my

cell and then Haug kicked me brutally in the small of my back

which sent me flying right through the cell against the extcrlor

wall. Then he roared, "Disappear you bitch".

Apart from bruises over my whole bOdy, kidneys pains and pulled

tendons, above all I have a painful swelling on the right side

of my head behind my ear as weIl as a swollen ear. About 2

hours later severe headaches develop, pressure on my eyes,

shivering, sickness, circulatory weakness. The whole thing

happened 48 hours ago now, and I still have the severe headachcs

despite the strongest analgesics they have here.

Since the beating we've been completely isolated, we can't see

dl"I'III'dlIi',1'11"1", d"wlI 1111111 ,uy III''11!I"'H,·,i'"1jl I""d illl" ""'

rloor, lhcll lIe lifled my lIearJanlj büllged it ~ or 6 times on

tllf'r]nClr. 11 la,;t,'d~""u.'I jUli',a qnnd fiv,~ minutf'~;, I,,>lil

they dragged me the 30 met res to the other end of the wing

wl"'Ie tlll'Y""'11 "'r,'w ""~, 1111 '111 rIlUr~" illl" I."qll"s f:f~l]~;u

thatIagaln banged lhe back uf my head and my bark. Ican

\....---
ulllyremember wakiny up -5l j J Ilying on ttwfloor-Idon't

know

IfIw;)~.outfOTsccnnrls or minutcs.ThcnIvOlllittcr]and

I feIt cumplelely exilausted.

Around 2 o'c]ock came tile second wave. They fetched us out of

the cells into which they had kicked us in order to put us into

other cell s. 1(1 screws, led by Haug, Grossman and the drunk.

After the failed attempt to fetch Andreas out, who they

couldn't get hold of, they retched Eagle out of my cell and

pushed him into an empty hole - I can still hear the sound of

the punches. Passing by in rront of my cell, Haug threatens

me, "You'll have YOUT turn ~,[I0n,you bilCh".

,11' ",pf';lktn (';II:hC1t'"'r, C111rrrl'f'''''lIrh,,',111'1'11 ',1111'1"'11dill'

every step on the corridor takes place only in tllc pre5cnce 01

3 screws. We have communicaterJ by SilOutiflljlu e;,,"11uiller

through the slits in the doors. We have bcgun a hungerstrike

ulld have declared lhal wc will begin a lhir~;lstrjl,,' ;1',weIl,

unless within a few hours the old regime isn't relnstatcd

without one single restriction.

I am certain that the brutalilies and humilialions 01' lhe type

practised here and for which in thc meantimc Sl;lmmhcillllias

become internationally renowned, must either stop - or they

will carry us out of he re dead, one after another.

"We can only be surpressed if we stop
thinking and stap fighting. People who
refuse to stOJ'the fight cannot bc sur­
pressed - UH'Y eilher win and die inslead
of losing and dying, so said Ulrike"

9.8.77 INGRID SCHUBERT
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At around 13.00 hrs, the prison guards entered by cell to take

mp. hefn!'('the HKI\. I reccivct! 1\0 answcr wllcn I asket! why. I

therefore refused to go, not understanding the re~~on for going.

they left, then returned S minutes later to ~ummon me, on the

grou~ds of an officia1 ruling. I asked to see it and was refused

w1thout nny fUl'thr:r informntiol\. MC<:Hlwhilc (J COIIIßlundouf 6-8

pcop1e had appeared, without succeeding however in changing my

mind, that was because the previous motives were no langer put

forward.

'---

A/i/"u(1 i.\' "14

5T[rAN WI5NIEW5KI

On a confrontation with wit­

nesses under restraint, with

a sampie taken of blood,

saliva and hair

or how thc nKA fabricates its 'proof'.

JVA Frankentha1

23.10.78

during which they stuffed a towel into my mouth so that 1 cou1d

only breathe through my nase, whilst another dug his knee into

my chest. This stopped me from breathing and I began to lose

consciousness.

That is when they took the chance to more 01' less shave off my

beard. Then they removed the towe1, so that I could breathe

more deep1y. Laughing at me he said: "He could still da this

different1y"; so I answered him by spitting in his face. That

is when he put the towe1 under my chin to "soften" the blows he

was about to give me. Then one of the BKA cops sat opposite me

to read the Kuhn ruling to me, so that I would know what wa~

going on. The order was dated 13.9.78 and allowed the confron­

tation with witnesses in order to lead to the identification of

the accused, suspected of participating in the 5chleyer kidnap­

ping (also with the aim: taking samp1cs of b100d, sa1iva and

hair).

Ouring this whole procedure they tr1ed to photograph me - and

also during the confrontation.

I continued reading my book until the guards took thc opportunity

to jump on me. They put handcuffs on my hands and feet and, what

is more they gagged me tight1y. In this condition I was taken

to the bunker in the ce11ar.

Then they waited for the doctor who did not come. After lS

minutes I was once aga1n tied to my chair and that is how I was

carried to the second floor for the confrontation.

There, S "look-al1kes" were already waiting; I learned later

that they were BKA cops. Two of them were in the same state as

me, but closely shaven and hai I' properly combed. One of them

was even given a sweater, because I was the only one wearing

one.

For the confrontation they used the sports bui1ding

\.~~

From that moment the BKA took charge. There were more or less 12

BKA cops. I was tied hand and foot to achair, hands behind my

back, then someone appeared with an electric razor and a pair of

scissors saying that they had orders to cut my hair. I was held

down by G BK" cops (even though 1 was still tled to the chalr):

two of them kneed me in the stomach, another tightened my gag and

a fourth pulled my head back by my hair. C1umps of my hall' were

Quite simp1y pu11ed out instead of being cut. After that they

ran the razor over my beard, resu1ting in a row of scratches on

each cheek.

In this position I cou1d only defend myself by lurning my '.end.

So they pu1led my head back so far that i thought my neck wou1d

break at any moment. The "ha1rdresser" decided 1 was not Quiet

enough for him to be able to shave me, he stopped for a moment

arEN
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The 11th and 5th look-al ikes also har1 hanclcuffs to bind tt1r'm

11 Procession: this time I was third, The two look-alikes in

front of me were bound, but not to their chairs. As for OIe,

it was the same performance as before: eyes closed, tongue stuck

out, struggling - if it is possible to struggle in such a

situation.

'---

Trle passage: the other 5 were similarly tied hand and foot, but

without handcuffs, which did not go against me. Each in turn,

the 6 of us were carried in, his chair in front of the witnesses.

Or more exactly, the so-called witnesses. What must have been

noticed by the so-called witnesses was of course the handcuffs,

the blood on my cheeks after my enforced shavej they could also

see that my clothes were still covered with halr. I went second.

They took me, yelllng, into the sports room. I closed my eycs

but I still took notice that there were 16 to 20 witnessesj they

pulled my hair back to expose my face. 3 minutes later, 5 BKA

cops took me out (after taking more photos).

to their chairs (not the last) but considering that

pairs of handcuffs it did not make much sense since

identifiable (Not to mention everything else).

had two

was easily

"'--,

3 or 5 metres from the exit was the last witness, and the BKA

cop spoke to OIe loudly: "Wisniewski, that was pretty quick after

all". Then the other 4 arrived, as the first look-alike had not

made any noise, the following 4 'had to struggle and shout. Over

this, with a lot of noise the BKA cop (surely the one in charge

of the whole business, and also the same one who transported OIe

illegally with the BKA from Paris to herej he has mousey hair,

a moustache 1 metre 75/80) said: "Don't da it as loudly as

Wisniewski".

wi th a great laugh they let lhcmsel vc:, lle eil)) j I:d t.h)l)lJ~JhUw

open door to play their part in the sports room. As all this

went on so as to be very audible, you could have velieved you

were at D ('nhnret [lerformance (if it harl not. hren so rlcs[llcahlr).

The last of the 5 look-alikes did not shout like the previous

ones, on the contrary he just laughed. Since in the meantime

hnd nlrl'OIr1yin.illrl":~,due lo my !JlnfldclrclIl:Ilionllf'inq ';loPI','d

by lhe handcuffs which were closed too lightly around my halIds

and fee, Iwanted to get myself into a more "comfortable"

position in my seato As soon as I moved there was no hesitation,

the BKA cop was on top of me and he punched me full on the nose.

As he had forgotten the towel this time, I ended up with a large

bruise and an open wound cf 1 cm in diameter. 8100d ran from

the wound, but inspite of this new disfiguration the second

procession in front of the witnesses still, cynically, took [lIace.

A BKA cop thought me too loosely bound and they fixed another

pair of handcuffs to tie me even tighter to the chair.

80th times I defended myself (shouting loudly) and I was able

to establish (everything was audible) that the 5 look-alikes

laughed each time they were carried in or out of the room, they

swopped roles in front of the so-called witnesses. One would

shout loudly, one would not.

After that, it was over and I was taken back to the bunker.

No longer chained to the chair, but still handcuffedj the doctor

had arrived in the meantime. In the bunker I was leant against

the wall, body and head bent, and legs apart. My body was hang­

inrj ovrr r(~~1inq on my hi[l~. This meant. Cl lot of wrirjllt on my

~huulder:'; luckily I uiu a lot of sport otherwise samething

would have gone.

Illl'V 11)01·:a hlood ',:lll11'I,'frolllIIIY arlllwlli,'h h:ld :',wnll,'n,'clI,:;ld"r,

ably having been tied bchind my back. After, I was allowed to

sland up and turn my Ilead, and saw therefore the young doctor

(a stranger to the prisons) smiling cynically behind my bClCk.

1111'clill'to):,aid to tlll'111</\('01':",lu:;!.c:,I.111I1: :lIlll1'11 tOlk,'

another blood sampie". Meanwhile I had salivated so much that

spat in the doctors face - his spectacles were covered - which

provoked another blow to my kidneys.

The doctor went away complalning, then I was once more tied to

my chair (according to the ruling the doctor should have stayed),

He wanted to take more saliva from me. This was the most

difficult because I wouldn't open my mouth and to be ewen more

dlfficult, I kept my teeth clenched. A BKA cop pressed like
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m~d again~t the jawbone behind my ear, but did not succeed

because by then 1 had learnt, from the experience of the towel

they tried to push into my mouth, how to keep my mouth closed.

After that they pulled my head back by the hair (1 was gagged

completely as weIl), one cop held the handcuffs around my ankles,

the other hit me repeatedly on the chin and then pushed my head

back, but 1 would not unclench my teeth.

After a short pause, the BKA cop tried to explain to me that

others of my friends had not tried to defend themselves in this

way. At that moment I triumphed for the first time because I

knew they could not unclench my teeth. They started the same

thing again, one of the BKA said: "WeIl, we'll have to stop him

from breathing". First they pinched my nostrils, but th~t

achleved nothing much because I still had an openings for air ­

a gap in my teeth.

Instead of pressing against my ehest, this time they put the

towel around my neck and cut off all my air intake.

Each time I thought: now it's over, my head is bursting - and

then they would release the towel. This operation was repeated

3 or 4 times, I clenched my teeth instinctively and it worked,

but in my head I was so confused I could fee 1 neither the hand­

cuffs nor the gag.

lhe official result of this production has not been communicated

to me yet, but those jokers did not get black and white results.

Although thc ruling had been made 5 weeks earller, lt does not

surprise me that neither my lawyer nor 1 had been informed of

it earlier.

Stefan Wisniewski

P.s. As I was barefocl throughout the BKA made the most of this

and brut~l~y trampled on my left foot.

The: cop who 1 first spat on is ttlC same one that is there

behind the glass during visiting.

I
~, Once they had had enough of this and given up, I got my breath

back - I was "safe" because they said that the saliva from my

mouth would do. Then they pulled out 6 tufts of hair (they

claimed that they needed the roots). Then they took me back to

my cell, still tied up. It was 15.10 hours. There, I could see

myself for the first time in the mirrar. My nase and my chin

were swollen and bleeding and my right big toe was damaged, my

beard cut about in all directions (like a hedgehog).

1 have strangulation marks on my neck (when I think of the BKA

cop I still want to spit in his face) - an attempt to take my

saliva, yes, but in the face of the BKA.
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don' t take part any longer, save yoursel f, give the pigs a

victory, which means surrender for us, then YOlJ are the pIg,

whlch splits and enclrcles to survive yourself, and then shut

up about It. "As sald, the practice. Long live the RAF. Death

to the plg system." Then - I mean, when you don't hunger with

us any longer - you bettcr say, morc honeslly (if you still

know what 1t ls: honour): "As said: I live. Down w1th the RAF.

Victory to the plg system."

Either plg or human belng.

Either survival at any cost or struggle until death.

Elther problem or solution.

In between there's nothing.

Victory or death - they say it everywhere and t~at is the

language of the guerilla - even in the mi~~(e dimension here:

with llfe it's the same as with dying: "Human beings (i.e. us)

'who refuse to finish the battle - either they win or they die

instead of 10sing and dying."

"-"

'-

Appendix 35

Last Letter of Holger Meins, 31.10.74

Ihe only thing that counts Is the struggle - now, today,

tomorrow, whether you eat or not. What Is of interest Is what

you make out of it: a jump forward. Getting better. learnlng

out of experience. Exactly that, you have to make out of It.

Everything else Is shit. The struggle goes on. Each new fight,

each action, each combat brings about new experiences and that's

the development of the battle. It develops only that way. The

subjective side of the dialectles of revolution and counter­

revolution: "The declsive factor Is that you kn6w how to learn."

Through the struggle, for the struggle. Out of vietories, but

still more out of mistakes, out of flips, out of defeats. That

is a law of Marxism. To struggle, to succumb, to struggle aga In,

to succumb again, to struggle again and so forth until the final

victory - that's the logic of the people. Says the old man.

Certainly: "matter": man is nothing but matter like everything.

The whole man. Body and Consciousness is material matter, and

wh;II :,uh:.til.ul.c;;lila11 , what he is, lli~ frcellolll- mean,. thaI.

consciousness rules matter - onself, and the nature outside and,

foremost: one's own being. The one side of Engels:crystal clear.

The qucrill;) hnwpvror rp.alises himself in thp. slruqqlp., in thC'

,cvo!ul.i'"l:,ry actioll, ;Jlldthat means: wltl10ut elld: st.ruggJe

until death and of course: eollectively.

Il1i,.is not ;l qu,~<;tion of matler, hut onc of [>alitie<;. Of

practicc. As you say. The question now as weIl as berore.

Today, tomorrow and so forth. Yesterday Is gone. What Is - now ­

lies first of all wlth you. The hungerstrike is not going to

stop for a long time.

And the struggle never ends.

But

of course there 1s one point: when you know that with each plg

v1ctory their real a1m of murder becomes more real - and you

Rather sad, that I have to write this to you again. Of coursc

I also don't know how it is - when you die or when they kill

you. How s~ould I know? In one moment of truth one morning all

this shot throufJh my hc;)rJin onp qn: ';n Ih;ll",Illi' w;'y il i'; (;1<111

! diun't kllow ulltil theII) aou thell (ldCi"lJ UIf! !Jarrel, ;Jiflll.:iI al

the spot between my eyes): all the same, that 1'1;-1" it. On the

right side anyway.

You should know something <loout. th,lt as wel I. 1\11 the same.

Certainly everybody has to die. Question i5 onJy hOw, and how

y0u' ve 1ived, an d 1t I S Q uitc cl ca r: s lrlJ9CJ1 in(] :,q;lins l lhc n iq S

<J'; a human l)('inCJror ll1c 1illl'l":1Ii Oll (11 111;111: II'vllllIli(ln;'IY jll

the battle - with all love ror lire: dcspising death. That's

for me: to scrve the people - fll\r. o
()
c;
,

"­"
c;
'"

~

~,
V>
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In the ~coceedings against the prisoners from the Commando

Holger Meins I, as defence counsel of Karl-Heins Dellwo, sub­

mit the application,

1.to summon and question the following persons in the main

trial:

1.1. Government Inspector Auster, prison Wittlich

1.2. Andreas Baader, presently in prison in Stuttgart-Stammheim

1.3. Mr. Bauer from the press agency Reuter, Moeglingen bei

Ludwigsburg

1.4. Lawyer Marie-Luise Becker, Heidelberg, Merzgasse 7

1.5. Dr. Berroth, judge at the court in Stuttgart

1.6. Federal Prosecutor Siegfried Buback, Karlsruhe

1.7. Lawyer Or. Klaus Croissant, Stuttgart

1.8. Dr. med. Degenhardt at the prison in Kassel

1.9. Dr. med. Demers, specialist for throat, no se and ear

illnesses, Wittlich.

1.10 Government Director Essmayer at the prison in Wittlich

1.11 Prof. Dr. med. Rudolf Frey at the University Clinic Mainz

1.12 Government Director Greus, prison Zweibrucken

1.13 wolfgang Grundmann, Frankfurt/Main

1.14 Lawyer Kurt Groenewold, Hamburg

1.15 Siegfried Haag, prison Frankenthal/Rheinland-Pfalz

1.16 Dr. med. Jacques Hassoun, Paris

1.17 Rolf Georg Hecker, Koblenz

].18 Justice Minsiter A.D., Dr. Karl Hemfler, Wiesbaden

].19 Mr. Hennig, prison warder, prison Wittlich

].20 Dr. Horst Herold, president of the Federal Criminal

Uffice (DKA) in Wiesbaden.

L

"-

AppendJ x 3,,0

Dr. Klaus Croissant

Lawyer

To the Court

IV 15/75

4000 Dusseldorf

Submission for evidence

Stuttgart, 7 February 1977

1.21 Richard Hohwer, prison officer, prison WiLlllch

1.22 Dr. med. Hulter from the wittlich prison

1.23 Klaus Juenschke, prison Zweibrucken

1.24 Government inspector Koepper, prison wittlich

1.25 Dr. med. Helmut Kreiter, principal doctor at the medlcnl

Clinic at the General Hospital Kaiserslautern

1.26 Lawyer Juergen Laubscher, Heidelberg

1.27 Federal judge Albrecht mayor, Federal Court in Karlsruhe

1.28 Prof. Dr. Werner Mende, Munich

1.29 Prof. Dr. W. A. Mueller, Stuttgart

1.30 University lecturer Dr. med. Werner Naeve, Head of the

Medical eourt Office of the Health Authority in Hamburg

1.31 Mr. Gunter Nollau, president of the Federal Office for

the Protection of the Constitution A.D., Federal Ministry

of the Interior

1.32 Lawyer Rupert voh Plottnitz, Frankfurt

1.33 Justice Minister Dr. Dieter Posser, Ousseldorf

1.34 Prof. Dr. Ulrich Prouss, legal department at the university

Bremen,

1.35 Dr. Theodor Prinzing, presiding judge at the court in

Stuttgart

1.36 Prof. Dr. med. Wilfried Rasch, Berlin

1.37 Government directorcRingel at the Justice Ministry of

Rheinland-Pfalz

1.38 Lawyer Otto SChily, Berlin

1.39 Prof. Dr. J. Schroeder, medical superintendent at the

medical clinic of the Buergerhospital, Stutlgart

1.40 Federal judge A.D. Scharpenseel, Federal Court In Karlsruhe

1.41 Mr. Karl Schutz, Federal Criminal Office in wiesbaden

1.42 Dr. Tim Shallice, London university College

1.43 Dr. Stiefenhoefer, presiding judge at the court in

Kaiserslautern

1.44 Dr. Folker Stoewsand, Hamburg

1.45 Lawyer Hans-Christian Stroebele, Berlin

1.46 Prof. Dr. med. Sjef Teuns, Blaricum/Hol1and

1.47 The Justice Minister of Rheinland-Pfalz, Dr. Theisen

1.48 Federal Justice Minister Dr. Jochen vogel, Bann

1.49 Government director Dr. Wachter, prison in Schwalmstadl

1.50 Federal lawyer Peter Zeiss, Karlsruhe

1.51 Dr. med. Zwecker, prison in Schwalmstadt

1.52 Govcrnment director Gcorg Bucker, governor of lile prisun
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i'. to inr:llIlka double v(Jlurnl~of lil('~,uf Ull~ pencJinll trial i1t

the second Provincial Court in Stuttgart against the prisoners

from the RAr.

The questioning of the above-mentioned witnesses will prove:

Holger Meins was, during the collective hungerstrike which the

prisoners from the RAF carried out against the systematically

destructive prison conditions in 8 prisons in the rRG from

1.9.74 to 5.2.75, systematically executed under the direction

of the Federal Prosecutor Siegfried Buback and the head of the

State Security Oepartment of the Federal Criminal Office and

its president Or. Horst Herold, through conscious manipulation

of the latest date for his transfer to the prison Stuttgart­

Stammheim under the shared r~sponsibility of the presiding

judge Or. Theodor Prinzing and authorative prison officers.

The proposed hearing of witnesses will also show:

that the guerilla commando in Stockholm named itself after

Holger Meins to make the meaning and the aim of its action

clear to everybody: to save 26 political prisoners from further

conditions of destruction ilnd tlle total destruction of their

political identity.

The facts to be proven reveal themselves in the following facts

of the case:

From 13.9.74 until his death on 9.11.74 Holger Meins took

pint in a clI]]f'I'tivl'alld urllirnit"dIHJnq"r',trikf' hy UII' pri';nlll'r~;

from the HilI. 1he State 5ecurity Autl10rities have fought C1gClinst

this hungerstrike as an allegedly illegal attack on state

security, as a kind of coup attempt, with a great propaqandis!.ic

di'.play wit.l,t.l1I'"II-III"-r;llillllnf Ilw 111'1',',mcdi;t. Ihi:, pr"I';Jq;II'­

distic display was not employed for the preservation of state

:;('curity bCC;IU~;(' tlle rowt:r strur.tuI'l'01 a country cannot Ile

threatened through a hungerstrike, a peaceful and legitimate

form of resistance. The reason for the huge propaganda display

by the State Security authorities was exclusively to stop the

enlightenment of the population through the hungerstrike, which

made the missing legitimacy basis for the isolation of the

prisoners from the RAF, the permanent violation of general human

rights visible. Faithful to this aim the State Security

iluthoritle!. I'ave made special efforts to falsify thr~ hIHllJI'r­

strike demands of the RAF prisoners and to mislead trle popula­

tion regarding the name of the hungerstrike by spreading tlle

lie that the prisoners, through their hungerstrike, were

attempting to thwart the realisation of the main trial and to

force their release from remand imprisonment.

The truth is: With the hungerstrike the RAr prisoners fought

with the only and least means available to them for the

restoration of human prison conditions, for the lifting of

their isolation in prison which had lasted months and years,

for the removal of any form of special treatment, for their

equal status with all other prisoners. With the hungerstrike

the RAr prisoners fought against their destruction through

long term isolation after all legal means, with which their

defence counsels had tried to push througn the legitimate

demands of the prisoners, had failed.

It is proposed,

to hear Slegfried Haag, who had last visited Holger Meins in

the prison in Wittlich, as witness to give evidence to these

facts as weIl as the lawyers: Or. Klaus Croissant

Kurt Gronewold

Prof. Dr. Ul rich Preuss

Olto Schily

Hans Christian Strobele.

The isolation of prisoners - praclised over monlhs alld years _

the construction of a second prison (within the prisonsJ

around the prisoners, the construction of an 3rtifiC81 world

ur ~,i]eltcc antl wililoul ~;ocial cOlttac! witll IIt.1lt'ri'rj~""It'I~,j",

torture, which causes thc destruction of psychological and

phys ical funclions and has lhcre fore 1.0 bc ca] J cd torlIIre ;]n(1

inhuman treatment.

1t is proposed,

to quest ion the specialists: Jacques Hassoun

Tim Shall ice

Sjef Teuns

with regard to this.



- 5 - - (, - -27-1-

\.....

\.-.--

The health destroylng results of long term Isolation have

by now been established by all the medical experts which the

State Securlty Courts In Stuttgart, Hamburg and Kaiserslautern

have asked to make medical reports on the ability of the

prlsoners to attend their trials, a result whlch was to be

expected with regard to the known examinations of isolation

research.

It is proposed,

to question the experts:

Pro f.Dr.J.Schroeder

rrof.

Ilr .W.11.Mu]]cr

Pro f.

Dr.Wilfried Rasch

Prof. Dr. Mende

Head physician Dr. Kr~ltzer

Prof. Dr. Rudolf Frey

Dr. med. Folker stoewsand

University lecturer Dr. Naeve

with regard to this.

The use of such torture methods is connected with the expec­

tation of being able to present the isolated prisoners in

later trials to the public, as disorientated and politically

weak-minded showpieces against revolutionary politics. The

lifting of isolation was therefore a question of survival for

the RAF prisoners. the continuously repeated assertion that

with the hungerstrike's further reaching demands than the

lifting of isolation and the equalisation with other prisoners

were aimed at, has been refuted by the defence counsels in a

number of press conferences with the clear statement: that

the hungerstrike would be stopped immediately if the justified

demands for the lifting of isolation were complied with.

It is proposed,

to ask the above mentioned lawyers to appear as witnesses to

this.

The people responsible for the continuous isolation confine­

ment knew about the scientific examinations and the medical

results which show what deep striking psychological and

physical damage can be caused through long term isolation.

It is proposed,

to quest ion with regard to this:

Federal Attorney General Siegfried Buback

The President of the Federal Criminal Office, Dr. Horst Herold

The Federal Judges - Knoblich, Mayer and SCharpenseel

The Presiding Judges - Dr. Prinzing, Stuttgart and Siefenhofer,

Kaiserslautern

The Minister of Justice Dr. Dieter Posser, Dusseldorf

The Minister of Justice A.D. for Hessen, Dr. Karl Hemf]er,

Wiesbaden

and The Federal Justice Minister Ur. Vogel, 80nn.

The Federal Prosecution and the Federal Criminal Office were

informed continuously during the hungerstrike about the con­

ditions of health of the RAF prisoners. They, as weIl as the

presiding judge at the Stammheim court, Dr. Prinzing, were

informed through numerous urgent applications by the defence

counsels that especially in the prisons Schwalmstadt and

Wittlich, where at that time the prisoners Andreas Baader and

Holger Meins were still held, the medical care by the prison

doctors was not designed for the physical wellbeing and the

life of the prisoners on hungerstrike, but was only determined

to force the prisoners to break up their hungerstrike through

painful procedures at the force fee dings and through other

measures - especially withdrawal of water. The defence counsels

therefore demanded, several times, the admission of trusted

doctors for the examination and treatment of the prisoners,

as weIl as the immediate move of the male prisoners Baader,

Meins and Raspe to Stuttgart-Stammheim as the force feeding

there was carried out according to the rules of medical ethics.

It is proposed,

to quest ion the witnesses Siegfried BubBCk and Peter Zeiss,

Dr. Horst Herold and Karl Schutz as weIl as Dr. Theodor

Prinzing with regard to this.

The defence counsel demanded especially the admission of

doctors of the prlsoner's own choice to examine and treat the

prlsoners Bccording to no. 91 of the "uniform minimal prinCiples
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of the UNO for the treatment of prisoners from 1955/57"

whlch has the following wordlng:

"Based on a weIl founded application a prisoner on remand

has to be given permission to be examined and treated by a

doctor of his own choice If it is possible for him to pay

the expenses Involved."

On 6.10.74 the lawyer Dr. CroIssant filed an application to

allow the medical examinatlon of all defendants in the Stammheim

trial by doctors of their own choice. In the same application

the defence counsel urged on ce aga In that the male defendants

should immediately be moved to Stammhelm. The application has

the following wording:

"The doctors worklng in the prisons have without disagreement,

tolerated or have actively taken part in the special treatment

of political prlsoners and their systematlc isolation over

many years. As integral parts of the state prison system,

they neglect their medlcal duties and keep silent about isolation

torture and brain-washing which are practised on the political

prisoners to destroy their identity and blackmail them into

making confessions. The prisoners therefore refuse to be

examined by a prison doctor.

"The medical examination is necessary to prevent the increasing

danger to the body and lives of the prisoners.

"Because of the extreme urgency we request adecision on the

application according to 33, Para. 4, Clause 1 stPO without

a preceding hearing in the presence of the State Prosecutor.

"The examining judge has already - on account of special

urgency - ordered the force feeding of all prisoners without

a preceding hearing in the presence of the defence counsel.

A photocopy of the examining judge's deeision, dated 27.9.74,

is attached. After receipt of the indictment the trial court

is responsible for making adecision on this application.

For the examination of the prisoners doctors of their own

choice are being named:

1. Dr. med. Jacobeit, specialist for internal medicine,

Medical University Clinic, Heidelberg

2. Dr. Med. Ernst Pickardt, specialist for internal medicine,

Cologne

"3. Dr. Med. Juergen Schmidt-voigt, special ist for internal

medlclne, Bad Soden

4. Prof. Dr. med. Lange, specialist for urology at the

Universlty Clinic in Marburg

5. Dr. med. Surger Lichtenstein, Tubingen-Derondingen

6. Dr. med. Helmut Beilharz at the hospital in Sobllngen

"For the prisoner Raspe, it has to be pointed out that the

prison doctor, Dr. Bechtel, at the prison in Cologne as weIl

as his predecessor, Dr. Gotte, did not protest against the

brain-washing wing into which Ulrike Meinhof was moved 3 times

(the first time for the length of 8 months), but he has

instead given it the air of legality through his medical work

in the psychiatric wing of the prison in Cologne.

"With regard to the prisoner Baader, I refer for further

reasons for the application to the attaehed photocopy under

Appendix 2: the applieation by lawyer Strobele from 23.9.74,

to the report in Kursbuch no. 32 (compare page 94-95,

appendix 3) as weIl as to the press statement from 18.9.74 ­

photocopy Appendix 4.

"While the prisoners Gudrun Ensslin and Holger Meins have

been forcefed daily since 30.9.74 and the prisoner Jan Carl

Raspe sinee 2.10.74, the defendant Baader was on Friday,

4.10.74 examined forcibly by the prison doctor Dr. Sehaefer

(prison Kassel) under threat of physical violence.

nphysical resistance against this examination, which would

havc included a forcible use of a catheter, was totally

impossible for the defendant: 3 medical staff (warders) were

present to help the prison doctor to strap the emaciated

prisoner down by force on a special table which was equipped

with 2 straps for the ehest, 4 straps for each arm, 2 straps

for each foot and one wide strap for the head.

"The forcible medieal examination was not covered by the

decision of the examining judge from 27.9.74: this decision

only deelares the force feeding as admissable, insofar as the

prison doetor regards it as necessary. If the prison doctor

was not able to decide whether force feeding was neeessary

without preceding medical examinations (measuring of blood

pressure, taking of urine, taking of blood amongst others),

I ''''/l he was not allowcd to undcrtake unauthorised medical

i

i

I·
I
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"cx~mlnations undcr threat of force in ca se of reslstance.

"ßeeause of this breach of the law we have brought acharge

agalnst the prison doctor Dr. Schaefer on account of coerclon

(eopy appendix 5).

It is proposed,

to establish the exlstence of this document in the files of

the Stammheim trial and to hear lawyer Croissant and Dr.

Prinzing as witnesses.

"We request onee aga in,

to stand up now, to this penetrating attempt by the Federal

Prosecutor through an unmistakeable judicial decision.

"The prcventlon of further breaches of the law is connected

wlth considerable practical difficulties for the defence

rnlln~el5 nnd thc court because the different prlsons nre fnr

apart from each other. The transfer of the prisoners to

Stuttgart is therefore an unavoidable necessity of welfarc

duty which is the task of the court for all prisoners.

"Rs long os the hungerstrike continues, and it will continue

as long as the justified demand for abolition of special

treatment has not ·been fulfilled, the dangers to body and

life ean only be reduced through a move to the prison

Stuttgart-Stammheim, where their trial is taking place - apart

from the admission of the doctors of their own choice.

"It is therefore proposed,

to request adecision without any further delay and further

waiting for eventual statements by the Federal Proseeutor

and the prisons on the complaint from 5.6.74 against the

negative deeision by the examining judge, which has been

passed onto the court.

"It must be noticed that this decision has still not been

made after 4 months now, and this despite the obvious urgeney

whieh exists aceording to the presented reasons. This shows

that it is in reality the Federal Prosecutor and his auxiliary

organs, the officials of the State Security department at the

Federal Criminal Office who, through the pretence of alleged

seeurity eonsiderations, are determining the date of transfer

best suited to them. This date is obviously meant to be as

near as possible to the starting date of the main trial, so

that a most effeetive defence and the achievement of a common

defenee strategy can be prevented as far as possible.

,--.

\.-

signed Croissant"

With the appllcation by lawyer Dr. Croissant from 6.10.74

the defence applicatlon by lawyer Strobele from 23.9.74 was

pul. befare Dr. f'rlnzlrH), whir:h InclurJed t1,e appl1cation to

allow the medlcal examinatlon and - if neecssary - the medical

treatment of the prisoncr Baader by the spceialist for

uroloqy, Prof. Dr. Lnn(Je, st thc llnivero.ity [linie in M;,rh'Jrq.

Thc reasons for this application were as folIows:

"At the beginni~~ of June 1973 the accused suffered a kidney

disease after 5 weeks on hungerstrike in the prison Schwalmstadt,

as a result of having been refused drinking water for 10 days.

"The doctor, Dr. Seibold, diagnosed during a medieal examina­

tion on 1.6.73 pressure and tapping pains in the area of both

kidneys and in the lumbosacral area. On 12.6.73 a clear

microhaematury was identified and on 15.6.73 masses of

enythocyten were dlscovered in the urine. An appropriate

treatment was started immediately.

"In the middle of September 1974 the aecused again suffered

considerable pain in the kidney area.

"The aeeused has been on hungerstrike sinee 10.9.74 to aehieve

for himself and other political prisoners the abolition of

special treatment after more than 2 years of isolation.

"The examination by a specialist is urgent and must be earried

out as quiekly as possible. Every delay can result in the

most severe damage to his health, in view of his illness in

the summer of 1973. The proposed admission of the external

doetor, whom the aeeused does not trust, is justified and

necessary.

"After his experiences in the spring and espeeially in the

summer of 1973 the aceused quite rightly has no trust in those

doetors chosen by the prison authorities to treat him. This

matters especially es he is again on hungerstrike. Dr.

Oegenhardt from Kassel, who had been asked by the prison to
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"attend to ßaader, had on 22.5.73 carried out the force feed­

ing in a way which was very painful for the accused even

though the accused had consented to drink the nourishment

fluid.

"lhe accused has therefore brought acharge against the

doctor. The lawsuit, which was instituted as a result, was

dismissed but only because there was allegedly no evidence

against the doctor to show that he had heard this statement

by the accused, (dismissal deeision by the Publie Proseeutor

at the Court in Marburg, 4.12.73, ref.: 4 Js 475/73).

"This Dr. Degenhardt from Kassel, who had been eonsulted by

the prison, had also reeommended and ordered that the aeeused

should not be given any drinking water to 'bring to his eon­

sciousness the stupidity of his behaviour'.

"With this he has eonsented to, and ordered, an interferenee

in his health whieh was not meant to sooth pa in and to eure

but to inflict pain on the aceused, to torture him with the

aim of breaking his will.

"The lawsuit brought against this doetor because of his

lJel1aviour has in the meantime also been discontinued.

"After this the aeeused refuses on prineiple to be examined

and treated by a doetor eonsulted by the prison.

"The doetor Prof. Dr. Lange has expressed his readiness to

examine the aeeused.

withdrawal of drinking water, written by several lawyers,

which was published in Kursbuch no. 32 on torture in the FRG.

With the applieation, dated 6.10.74, the presiding judge Dr.

Prinzing also received the press statement by the defence

eounsels from 18.9.74 whieh states amongst others:

"The State Security Department at the Federal Criminal Office

and the Federal Prosecutor know also that numerous prison

doctors firmly reject the deprivation of drinking water. One

of these is the· senior doctor at the prison Stuttgart-Stammheim

prineipal medieal offieer Dr. Henck. The transfer of Andreas

Baader, Holger Meins and Jan Carl Raspe to stuttgart-Stammheim,

whieh had been planned for a long time, has been delayed until

now because securlty considerat;~ns would not allow this tran­

sfer. In reality these eonsiderations are just apretext:

All security problems had been solved since Gudrun Ensslin

and Ulrike Meinhof were moved to Stuttgart-Stammheim at the

end of April 1974. The real reason is th~t by not moving the

prisoners - apart from the practical obsta~les put in the way

of the defence eounsel - the possibility can be created of

bff~aking up the feared third hungerst rike in il prison whicl1

is prepared to accepl lhc dc<:Jt,hof l.IH! pri~;oncrs a~; ;) rl~slllt.

of dying of thirst. The prison in Scl1walmstadt is predisposed

after the concrete experiences of the last hungerstrike to

praetise the withdrawal of water despite the threatening

death of Andreas Baader.

"I request to make an immediate deeision because of the

health risks. The prison governor has reeeived a eopy of

this applieation with the same mail.
"-

signed Strobele"

"The fascist agitation by the Springer press tries with all

means to seeure such attempted murder with propagandislic

methods: they once again refer to write 'Baader gang', lhe

'cowardly and cunning Baader' or about Andreas Baader and

Gudrun Ensslin who were formerly 'drifting through the FRG

burning and killing'. (Bild am Sonntag on 1.9.74)

It Is proposed,

to estäblish the entry of this document into the files of the

Stammheim trial and to hear lawyer Strobele and Dr. Prinzing

as witnesses with regard to this matter.

with the application of 6.10.74, the presiding Judge at the

2nd eriminal court In Stuttgart recelved areport about the

"The same press statement had already been in the pos session

of the Federal Proseeutor and the Federal Criminal Office,

as all press statements by the defence counsels in the

Stammheim trial were systematically collected by the State

Security Authorities via their freeJance assistants.



'Because of the obvious urgency of the above mentioned

judieial orders we request also adecision on the applica­

lions accordlng to 33 Pnra. 4, p.l StPO WiUlClut precef1inr:

hearing of the Federal Proseeutor.

'On the other hand it has to be stated that the only

legally permissible objective for force feeding can be

to save the accused from death through starvation. For

this reason alone it should be the duty of those prison

doctors responsible for carrying out force feedings, that

they do it with the medically most considerate mean~.

This includes first of all the use of tubes whlch are

common in the medieal fleld for iJrtiflei<Jl Icedinl]~, and

where the danger of injuries or traumatisation of mueous

membranes can be kept to an absolute minimum. In the

area of medical eare, tubes wi th ;j diarnptpr of \lI-Ir,

Charrieres are being used for arti fieial feedings whictl

can also be inserted through the nose.

'The quite obvious attempt to force the aceused thr~uvn

the practis~d method and manner of force feeding, to

break off his hungerstrike finds no legal basis in the

criminal code. The legal viewpoint of "order in thc

prisons", 119 Para. 3 StIlO, also eannot justify the use

of any kind of force through which a prisoner is meant

to be forced to break off a hungerstrike. Because as

prison rules in the sense of 119 Para. 3 StPO, only the

outer limits of the prison can be defined as neeessary

for the execution of the remand imprisonment of a remand

prisoner. Through the hungerstrike of the accused this

outer limit is not being touched in any way.

'A judicial decision according to the 2nd submitted

application is necessary insofar, because the measure of

withdrawal of water is suspected in view of earlier

experiences. Because of their legal inadmissability the

above mentioned explanations can be referred to. The

dangers to the life or the physieal entirety of the

accused connected with the measure of the threatened with­

drawal of water, need no discussion, especially in view

of a kidney failure.

\.-.
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"Il is pruposed,

Lo QIJesLion the president of the Federal Criminal Office,

Dr. Horst Herold and the former president of the Federal

Office for the Protection of the Constitution, Gunter Nollau,

as witnesses with regard to this.

"On 7.10.71, the defence counsels through lawyer von Plottnitz

SlJhmitl"0 an app] leation for Ho]ger Meins:

I) In protdbit the prison doctors at the prison in Wittlieh

who are responsible for the force feedings from using

tulles wi th a bigger diameter than 16 Charrieres at the

furu! feecJings (uni t of measure for flexible tubes or

catheters),

2) ~ü prohibit the prison doctors, or the administration of

the prison, from withdrawing water from Holger Meins

during his hungerstrike.

"The application contained - in part - the following reasons:

'Since 30.9.74 the aceused has been forcefed daily in

the prison Wittlich. The force feeding takes place in

suCh a way that he is at first strapped down on a table

with several leather straps. Then a tube, about the

size of a thumb, is inserted through his throat and

gullet into his stomaeh, through which finally the mash

is pumped through. Because of the thickness of the

tube, during the force feeding, the mucous membrane of

his throat and his gullet are constantly traumatised

whieh leads to eramps so that parts of the food are

being pumped back. This often causes a bloekage of the

windpipe which results in agonising suffoeation attacks

and carries the real threat of death through suffoeation.

'The above stated method and manner of the force feeding

which had al ready been practised on the accused during

the last year when he was also on hungerstrike, shows

quite elearly that the aim is to force the aecused through

a torturous procedure during force feeding to break off

his hungerstrike. It is not the worry about the health

and physical well-being of the accused they are concerned

with, but the endeavour of hindering the accused from

canyinlJ llut the only resistance possible for hirn against

unbearable prison conditions.

- jI, -

signed von Plottnltz'

--1,~-
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"The court would also 1ikc lo point. oul lllal it is nol in

the habit to make decisions on applications whieh include

defaming formulations.

It i5 proposed,

to estabJish the entry of thJs document into the files of

the Stammheim trial and to question lawyer von Plottnitz

and Dr. Prinzing as witnesses with regard to this matter.

The defence counsels through lawyer von P10ttnitz brought an

action on 15.10.74 against the doetor in the prison Witt1ich,

aeeusing hirn of inflieting bodi1y injury whi1e on duty. It

gave the fo11owing reasons:

"In view of the other defendants the application does not

prove that the doctors in the various prisons are neglecting

lheir tluUcs or are flot üwarc 01' lhcir rcsponsibili lies. for

the defendant Meinhof the court has already come to adecision

(compare deeree, dated 4.10.74 - aARs 22/74). For the

dcfend~nts (nsslin, MeJns and Raspe, for whom no flew faet5

have been presentcd, the same applies.

"As prison doctor in the Wittlich prison the accused i5

responsib1e for the way in which force feeding is being

condueted. The force feedJngs are being carried out

daily under his personal instructions and participalion.

As a doetor it should be the duty of the aceused to con­

duet the force feeding as an artifieial feeding aceording

to the rules of medieal ethics - as caring as possible

for the defendant. This would first of all mean the use

of the kind of tube which is being used in hospitals

when feeding patients artificially. Their diameters are

construeted in such a way that the danger of tearing and

of injuries of the throat and gullet mucous membranes are

avoided as far as possible. The diameter of the tubes used

in the medical field is between 14 and 16 Charrieres and

they are as a Iule inserted through the .nose.

"Compared to this the aeeused uses a tube which is only

slightly thinner than the gullet of the defendant and the

insertion of this kind of tube into his throat is aimed at

foreing the defendant to break off his hungerstrike by

inflieting pain and agony on hirn during the dai1y procedure

of force feeding. The aceused is willing to put up wilh

severe risks to the life of the defendant. Secause of the

convulsions whieh occur during the force feeding procedure

and whieh so far have not led to a diseontinuation cr to a

changed method of this procedure, the constant danger of

suffoeation or respirative paralysis exists.

"The aeeused also tolerates further torment of the dcfendant

whieh Is inflicted by some of the prison warders presenl al

the force feedings. At some of the force fecdings thc

leather straps and handeuffs which are used to strap down

the defendant, have been pulled so tightly that lhe defcn­

dant had severe pain and the blood eireulation was impaired.

One of the prison warders present at the force feedings

presses the head of the defendant so hard against the head

rest that he ineurs eonsiderable pain - without being

reprimanded by the Beeused.

"Neither in the eriminal code nor in any other legal orders

Is there a jwdieial basis for the deseribed behaviour of

)J

Dr. Berroth"Dr. FothDr. Prinzingsigned

The application by the defence counsels from 6.10.74 to

agree to an examination by doctors of the prisoners own

choice and to move the male defendants to the prison

Stuttgart-Stammheim, were rejected by the presiding judge

Dr. Prinzing and the assessors Dr. Foth and Dr. Berroth on

14.10.74 or - as far as the transfer of the male prisoners

to the prison Stuttgart-Stammehim had been applied for, no

decision was made at all.

The decision from 14.10.74 gave the following reasons for

rejection:

"The defendants are on hungerstrike, but refuse to be examined

by the authorised prison doctors. They demand the admission

of 'doctors of their own choice'.

The defendant Baader is presently a convicted prisoner and

therefore the court is not competent to make decisions in his

case (compare court decree, dated 8.10.74 - 2 ARs 27/74).

'-..:

\-
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"the accused. The behaviour of the accused is not determined

by a concern for the physical well-being of the defendant

but Is qulte obviously aimed at forcing the defendant to

break off his hungerstrike.

"Since 16.9.74 over 40 political prisoners are on hungerstrlke

In scveral prisons in the rne and w. Gerlin. ns far as

force feeding has been started - and as far as we are

informell - forr.e feeding has only In one fllrllwr c,]',,,IH'CIl

conductcd in such an agonising way as in the case of Holger

Mein~. This concerns the remand prisoner Ronald Augustin,

who Is imprisoned in Hannover. In the case of thc remand

pr IsOller nll<JlJ~,l.lllLIpLlraly~i~; 01' ll1l!re~pl rat.nry mWiCllJdr

system has already occurred once. The lawyer of this defen­

dant has also brought an action.

"We sllggesl to .question the accused immediately aft.er recelpt

of this indiclment with regard to the charges according to

133 StPO because only this will make it possible to prevent

the accused from inflicting further bodily injuries on the

prisoner in the future.

·We request further you inform us immediately 01' the reference

number of the preliminary proceedings which will be instituted

on aecount 01' this charge. As the prisoner intends to appear

as co-plaintiff in the criminal proceedings against the

accused we also request you in form us on your own accord

about the progress of the inquiries.

signed von Plottnitz"

On 15.10.74 a copy of this charge was sent to the presiding

judge Dr. Prinzing with a covering letter, by the lawyer von

Plottnitz. In the covering letter it was proposed:

1) to prohibit the doctor in the Wittlich prison, Dr. med.

Hutter, immediately from carrying out any medical activity

with regard to the defendant Meins,

2) to allow a doctor who has the trust of the defendant Meins,

to be present at future force feedings by other doctors

employed by the state Rheinland-Pfalz.

The reason for this appllcation read~ as foliows:

"ln the interest of the physlcal weJl-belng of the defendant

a judicial decision with regard to the above mentioned

charges, as weIl as to our application, dated 7.10.74, Is

now imperative. Because of the requested presence of a

ductor 01' his own choice we refer to the application already

made by the co-defender, Dr. Klaus Croissant.

"We aJ~() request to be lnformed of what kind of nutritious

components the nutriment liquid consists 01' which has so far

been used for force feeding and how much of this the defen­

11;1111 I,a'.twen qivl'll ;11 111" cI,li Iy force fef~rJlno~·

"We attach a written declaration by the defendant in which

he absolves Dr. med. Hutter from his medieal professional

discretion towards uso

signed von Plottnitz"

All the relevant documents were not only sent to the 2nd

criminal court in Stuttgart, but were also either passed on

by telephone or copies were sent immediately to the Federal

Prosecutor.

It is proposed,

to hear the witnesses Siegfried Buback, Peter Zeiss and Dr.

Prinzing with regard to this matter as weIl as establishing

the existence 01' the significant documents in the files 01'

the Stammheim trial.

Even though these facts were known the presiding judge Dr.

Prinzing did not order the examination 01' the defendant by a

doctor 01' his own choice. The examination by trusted doctors

for all defendants had been refused by the 2nd Criminal Court

on 14.10.74. Following the application, dated 7.10.74, by

the lawyer von Plottnitz, to use only nase tubes with a certain

diameter at the force feedings it was merely decided on 22.10.74

to use a tube at force feedings whieh could be inserted through

the nase. The other points were rejected.
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Ihe reasons for this decision were as foliows:

"Ihe defendant is being force fed. According to the prison

doctor a 12 mm strong tube is being used which is inserted

through the mouth. A thinner tube could be used but would

have to be inserted through the nose. Ihe prison does not

see itself in a position where the medical and nursing

staff are able to do this. According to the Government

medical officer Or. Lang, who has ordered a tube which is

inserted through the nose for the prison in Stuttgart­

Stammheim, this is a common method. A special ist is not

necessary for this. According to the requirements of

119 Para. 3 StPO the more considerate method should be

chosen, when this is possible. That is the case here. The

provision of the necessary medical staff is left to the

prison administration. Organisational problems do not, as

a rule, stand opposed to a legally a~visable directive.

"The other points in the application from 7.10.74 are not

substantiated. It is not up to the court to give instruc­

tions to the doctor on the quality of the tube he is using,

its strength and such like. Orinking water is not being

denied to the defendant; a directive for this is not

necessary.

- ,iSS--
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Not until 21.10.74 did the 2nd Criminal Court decide on the

complaint, dated 5.6.74, which the defence through the lawyer

Or. Croissant had lodged against the decision of the examining

judge. In this decision the transfer of the male prisoners

ta Stuttgart-Stammheim had been refused. To decide on the

cumplaint the court had taken 4, months, although the defence

counsels through lawyer Dr. Croissant had pointed out on

3.7.74 the extreme urgency of the transfer as foliows:

"We assume that the complaint has by now been passed on to

the court for adecision.

"With regard to the explanations in the written complaint the

transfer for an orderly preparation of the defence cannot

"onger be drawn out.

"The impression should therefore be avoided that the Federal

Prosecutor's Office and its auxiliary agencies, especially

the State Security Oepartment of the Security Group in the

Federal Criminal Office are making the decision about the

transfer and the police exercise involved in this.

"A copy of our complaint is attached, in case that it has not

yet been passed on to the examining judge.

signed OI. Prinzing Maier Or. Berroth"

signed Croissant"

ltll~court decision allouL the transfer, finally passed on

7].]0.7/1, was afficiillJy rjiven to the dcfence counseJs anly

Dll.er Lhe death 01. Holger Meins. Jt stated:

"ll\c defendant Baader Is to be moved to the prison Stuttgart­

SI ilmmheifIlin tlle W(>f~kilft.rr7 Novemher lq7/J at Ihr 1all'sl.

1.1",rJl,tvIltl')flLsHaspe LlfldMeins at tlle JatesL up uoLi 1

'2 Novr:mhcr 197/,.

'---

With regard to the further application by the defence

counsel, dated 15.10.74, to pruhilJit the doctor at tlle

Wittlich prison from any further medical activity in connec­

tion with the treatment of Holger Meins, to allow a doctor

of hfs own choI('e 1.0 111' prf'~;l'n'al. ruf IJrr~rorr:,'r",'di'"I" ;,,"1

information about the exact amount of nutriment given to

Holger Meins neithcr the prcsiding judgc Or. Prinzing nor 111s

deputy Or. Foth made any decisions, despite the obvious

urgency for judicial intervention.
signed Foth Maler Or. Ocrroth"

It is proposed,

to question Or. Theodor Prinzing as witness with regard to

this matter.

Wllh regard to this transfer decision the Federal Prosecutor

wrote the following to the court on 24.10.74:

"For the accomplishment of an orderly transfer I propose ­

according to the usual practice when moving these defendants ­

ta make the fol10wing arrangements:
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"In vlew uf lhe heightened danger of escape, lhe known

lIberation plans of members of the criminal groups and the

behaviour of the accused so far, the defendants should be

strapped down during the transfer.

"The transport of the defendant will be carried out by members

of the Federal Criminal Office. Irequest therefore to inform

the governor of the prison in Wittlich to hand over the

defendant Meins to the officials who are responsible for his

11'111'.[1011, allel10 iIIfornr t.Iw l]overnor of t.Ilf~ ~Jt llt. Iqarl [Iri ~;""
lu rccelve him.

"As a preceding hearing of the defendant could endanger the

ohjectlvc of the instruction Irequest to abandon this

,lccordlll\Jlo 33 para. 4 SlPO.

After receiving the lelter frorn lhe federal Proseculor, daled

24.10.74, the 2nd Crlminal Courl in Stutlgart extended thc

latest transfer date for the dcfendants Melns and Raspe for a

further 2 days until 4.11.74, as the assisting judge Or. Berroth

confirmed to the journalist Bauer from the Reuter agency.

It is proposed,

to question the judge Dr. Berrolh and the journalist Bauer from

Ihe flf'lll.er ,HjI'ocy Wit.ll rC'q;lrr1 111 I bi'. 1lI;·III,~r.

But the date of 4.11.74 was also not kept by the Federal

Prosecutor and the Federal Criminal Office, neither Holger

Ml~ill~:. nor .I:lll C;lr] ILI~;I'f' Wl~re Ir:tIl~..I'I'rrf·eI1.(1',llIll.q;nl-'>tammlll'im.

It is proposed,

to Question Federal Prosecutor Siegfried Buback, Federal

Attorney Peter Zeiss as weIl as Dr. Theodor Prinzing as wit­

nesses with regard to this matter.

"The transport of the defendant will need thorough preparations

and security measures. I must therefore point out now that

thc \.r:1nsfer dates mentioned atJove cannot be adhered lo.

But I will try to expedite the matter as quickly as possible.

signed LA. Zeiss"

On 4.11.74 the force feeding of Andreas Uaader was stoppcd.

The defence counsels therefore submittcd the following applica­

lion lbrough lawyer 01'. Crois~;:JlIlon '/.11. /11:

"I. to instruct the Federal Prosecutor 01' the State Security

department at the Federal Criminal Office, to carry out

immediately the transfer of the prlsoners Baader, Meins

and Raspe, which had already been ordered severalweeks

aga by the court, to the prison Stuttgart-Stammheim,

2. to order the examination of the prisoner Baader by at least

one doctor of his own cholce - as named in the application,

dated 6.10.74."

\........

The statement in the letter by the Federal Prosecutor, dated

24.10.74, that the transfer dated could not be adhered to

because of " thorough preparations and security measures" is

an obvious lie. In reality the Federal Criminal Office had

all material and personnel means available to carry out the

transport with no effort, within the given time.

It is proposed,

to question Siegfried Buback, Peter Zeiss, Dr. Horst Herold

and Karl Schutz as witnesses with regard to this matter.

This is also demonstrated by the transfer of Gudrun Ensslin

and Ulrike Meinhof who were already moved in April 1974 to

the Stuttgart-Stammheim prison, the place of their trial.

The application contained the following reasons:

"Andreas Baader has been a remand prisoner since 1.11.74. The

court is therefore without any doubt Qualified to make the

proposed decision also on his behalf.

"The proposed decision is neccssory to prevent the deattl of

the prisoner. Government dircctor Wachter from the prison in

Schwalmstadt has ordered the suspension of the force feeding

of the prisoner on the same day on which Jean Paul Sartre had

submitted his request for a visil lo Andreas 8aader. The

defence counsel does not regard ttlis noticeable timely coin­

cidence as an accident.

"Al ready during the lasl hungerstrike in May/June 1973 the

prison administration in Schwalm~tadt and the doctor Dr.

Degenhardt, senior doctor at lhe prison hospital in Kassel,
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"have withdrawn Andreas Baader's drinking water. Through this

ca!culated attempt of murder, the kidneys of the prisoner

have been severely damaged: they are only functioning at a

Quarter of their capacity.

"The force feeding during the hungerstrike now taking place

was only carried out irregularly every 2 days. This resulted

in the prisoner constantly losing weight.

"Government director Wachter has justified his order to stop

the force feeding with the remark by the prison doctor Or.

Zwecker, that further force feedings would not prevent chronic

malnutrition. Government director Wachter remarked to Andreas

Baader that if he was lying In a coma he would review the

situation.

"ln view of this situation the proposed admission of a doctor

of his own cholce is unavoldable, its extraordlnary urgency

obvious.

(

1t is proposed,

to summon Horst Herold, Siegfried Buback, Karl Schutz,

Government director Wachter, Or. med. Zwecker, Or. med.

Oegenhardt and Or. Prinzing as witnesses with regard to this

matter.

The aim of the suspension of the force feeding of Andreas

Baader was to cause either the death of this prisoner or the

destructlon of his political identity. If he was the first

to be moved to Stammheim - contrary to the judicial decision ­

then it was only for the reason that the plan for his liquidation

had become public on 7.11.74 through the press statement whieh

had been passed on by telephone to the press agencies by Or.

Croissant several hours be rare his transfer.

1t Is 'proposed,

to summon lawyer Or. Croissant, Siegfried Buback, Or. Horst

Herold and Karl Schutz as wltnesses with regard to this matter.

"The court will spare Itselr the trouble of dlscusslng the

suspiclons expressed in your letter with regard to the vlsit­

ing appllcation by Mr. Sartre.

"ln rl'p!y III yuul Idl.", frulIl1.11.111, I inform yuu thüL Lhc

accused Baader has now been moved to the prison Stuttgart­

Stammheim. Meins and Raspe will also be moved withln a

1('OI"un;lh]•. ';1';11:1' (lf l illl"~.flr, l.tw conni I.ions of IOl'dic;]!carl'

are different in the prison Stammheim then in Schwalmstadt,

the court assumes that your applicatlon from 7.11.74 Is now

out of date.

On the same day, shortly after receipt of the application and

after Or. Croissant had issued an appropriate press statement,

Andreas Baader was moved by the State Security Oepartment of

the ßKA, even though he should have been moved as the last person

accordin~ to fhe court decision from 21~10.74. With regard to

thc defence application from 7.11.74, lawyer Or. Croissant

received the following letter from the presldlng judge Or.

Prinzing on 8.11.71,;
\......,

slgned

signed

Croissant"

Or. Prinzlng"

The Interest or the State Security Authorities in the death of

such prisoners, which they regard as "leaders"; Feder;]1

Prosecutor Buback has expressed in an interview wllieh was pub­

lished in February 1976 in the news magazine "Der Spiegel". He

stated:

"['ur some ~ dcf •.nd;lnts in ~.llJlL9;Hl wcrl~ ,i1I •.•• dy filII '"'"IY".

It is proposed,

to qlH'stion Feder;]] PrO~,f'rllt()r(lldl;']rk;,'-,wi Inl",·, will, f/''i''ld

Lu lids.

On Friday, 8.11. 74 Holger Meins phoned the lawyer L;JlIhsrhf'rin

11f' i d l' I h l~ r CI • on t.Ill' ] ;,1 " 01 f I I' fll 11IIIl f I "'" W i I I I i, I, I' J i ',1111, ' IIIt I

told him that he was in a very bad state of health. lie said:

"I cannot get up any more". According to the impression nf

lawyer Laubscher, Holger Meins had considcrable diffleulties

in speaking clearly and to concentrate himself.

It is proposed,

to Question lawyer Laubscher, Maerzgasse 7, 6900 Heidelberg,

as witness with regard to thls matter.
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Hecause 01' lids pt10ne call by Holger Meins the lawyer Haag

drove to wittlich on Saturday morning, 9.11.74 He arrived

there shortly after 11.00 a.m. After Haag had been recorded

into the visitors book a prison security official appeared after

a ccrtain time and explained that Holger Meins "allegedly" could

nn longer walk from his cell to the visitor's cello By using

the word "allegedly", the security official obviously wanted to

qlvt' I.he imrHc!;sion that the prisoner Meins was only faklng.

wi 1.11ll"Jald to lIll~informatioJl LJy the securily onicer Ha<lg

le(]uestcrl he conejuct. his talk wi th the prisoner Meins in his

ccll. Ihis was refused hirn by the security officer with the

I"(llall;1I11111""li JlollllllyWil~. nll()wl~llln qo ildo 111" Cl~]J 01'

lIo1qer Meills wilhout permission by lhe prison governor and the

Millisl.ry or J1J'::jce. On the strength of that Haag stated that

he would not leave the prison before speaking to Holger Meins.

lhe !;l'curity offici31 finally agrecd to conlact thc prison

governor. As a result of this inquiry he then explained to Haag

that the prison governor was not allowing the lawyer to see

Holger Meins in his cell, for "security reasons". After trying

unsuccessfully t.o motivate the prison officers present to

in form the Minist.ry of Justice in Mainz and the emergency

services in Karlsruhe, Haag left the prison and phoned Dr.

Croissant in Stuttgart. A phone call from the prison had not

been allowed with the reason that it was not possible to settle

the costs for the phone available on Saturdays.

It is proposed,

to question Government Oirector Essmayer and the Security

Inspector Auster with regard to this matter.

At around 12.00 a.m. Haag informed lawyer Or. Croissant, by

phone, about the situation. He asked hirn to contact the judge

immediately and to submit the following application:

1. to order the Wittlich prison that the lawyer's visit can

take place in Holger Meins's cell,

2. to order immediately that a doctor of his own choice can

visit Holger Meins in prison.

1t is proposed,

to question Siegfried Haag, prison Frankenthai as weIl as lawyer

Or. Klaus Croissant, Lange Strasse 3, 7000 Stuttgart I, es wit­

nessps with rpn~r~ tn this m~ttpr

1t was not possible for Dr. Croissant to make immediate contact

by phone with Or. Prinzing. He had requested at the beginning

of the hungerstrike to have Dr. Prinzing's private phone number

for urgent calls, but this had been refused by Dr. Prinzing who

told hirn that he could get in touch with hirn via the court office.

Croissant therefore had to ring there first which meant that

much valuable time was lost. At first he got hold of an official

named Ginger. Dr. Croissant explained ta hirn that hc must. rinq

Dr. I'rinzing on a very urgent matt.er as the life of one 01' thc

defendants was in danger , and tn ilrran~Je fnr h Im to c;l! I h;)I'~.

The official replied that he would not take orders from Crnissant.

On]y aftcr a 10n<1 convl'r~:,;d.lolldill InwY"1 1·IOI·.~,;lld 11I"0;111"111

convince the official that it was his duty to comply Wittl his

request. The official then replicd that 111' first hnd tn wol,

his superior, a Mr. Stimpfig. Croissant had to phone back a

second time after 15 to 20 minutes and rClllind thcm once again

about the urgency of his getting in touch with Dr. Prinzing.

At about 12.30 p.m. Or. Prinzing finally rang Or. Croissant who

described the situation to hirn and drew his attention especially

to the fact that the condition of Holger Meins was now extrcmely

critical and that he was not able to walk any more, but that

lawyer Haag had not been allowed to enter his cell for allegcdly

security reasons. Or. Prinzing explained that he was not ablc

to verify the mentioned security considerations. Or. Prinzing

was furthermore annoyed that Croissant rang hirn on a Saturday.

He explained that he was fatigued by the Baader-Meinhof trial

wh ich took place five days a week and that he needed the weekend

to relax, to be able to concentrate hirnself on the coming week.

In future he would make sure that nobody could get in touch with

hirn at the weekend. Croissant replied that it was Or. Prinzing's

duty and responsibility to

1. make sure immediately by phoning the prison that lawyer liHilg

could see Holger Meins, that a simple phone call by hirn wuuld

be suffieient

2. order in this situation that Holger Meins should immcdiately

be seen by a doctor of his own choice.

To this Or. Prinzing explained that it had already been derided

that doctors of the prisoners choice would not be allowed to

see the 5 defendants and that it had to stay like that. Wauld
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It is proposed,

to call Siegfried Haag as weIl as the witness Auster with regard
to this matter.

When Haag realised that the people in charge of the priso~ were

not present or not reachable he left the prison and reported

to Croissant by phone of what was happening.

As Croissant was no longer able to reach the judge by phone,

Haag dictated a letter by phone, addressed to Dr. Prinzing, in

which he was asked to act immediately to save the life of Holger

Meins. The letter had the following text:

"I have tOday, Saturday 9.11.74, visited the prisoner Holger

i Meins in the Wittlich prison.

"Since 13.9.14 Holger Meins and 35 other political prisoners

have been on hungerstrike against isolation and special treat­

ment, against their destructive imprisonment which is aimed at

destroying their revolutionary identity. Their destructive

prison conditions are still continuing.

to manage a slightly louder sentence. Holger Meins asked him

urgently not to leave him alone and Haag stayed at his side.

After Holger Meins's condition deteriorated continuously Haag

left him at 15.00 p.m. to try for immediate medical aid, to get

intensive treatment started for saving his life. Between 15.00

and 15.15 p.m. Haag talked to the prison security officer who

informed him that the deputy governor had left the prison and

that the;prison doctor was away travelling and would not return

before Monday. Haag pointed out that Holger Meins was dying

and that immediate aid was necessary. The security officer did

not respond to this but replied instead that Holger Meins had

been able only yesterday to go to the telephone aad that a

doctor saw him every day. It was quite impossible that anything

could happen, and should a case of emergency occur, which the

medical orderly in the prison hospital would be able to ascertain,

then the emergency doctor in the town would be called.

he can no Ionger

the latest he will

his death because

less than 42 kilograms,

talk. He is dying. At

You are responsible for

"Holger Meins weighs

walk, he can hardly

be dead in 2 days.

)

It is proposed,

to question lawyer Dr. Klaus Crmissant and Dr. Prinzing as wit­

nesses with regard to this matter.

Haag had returned to Wittlich prison after his first phone call

with Croissant. There he was told that the visit could be con­

ducted in such a way that Holger Meins would be brought to the

administration wing on a stretcher and that the visit could take

place there. This procedure had been agreed to by the Ministry

of justice, the prison governor and Holger Meins. Shortly after

13.00 p.m. Holger Meins was carried into the visiting room on

a stretcher. He was lying on a stretcher with his eyes closed,

his body emaciated to a skeleton. His condition was extremely

critical. During his talk with Holger Meins, Haag's conviction

strengthened that Holger Meins's life was in imminent danger.

Holger Meins showed him his body. He had put toilet paper and

paper handkerchiefs into his trousers to hold up his trousers

aad to prevent the belt from cutting into his hip bones. His

talk with Haag was very laborious because most of the time he

was only able to whisper. Haag had to press his ear onto Holger

Meins's mouth to understand anything at all. Holger Meins

managed only sometimes, by pulling all his strength together,

Dr. Croissant please advise Meins to stop his hungerstrike and

to eat again. When Croissant pointed out to him that an action

had already been brought against the prison doctor for serious

bodily injury and serious neglect of his medical duties, that

Dr. Prinzing had a copy of this charge and that it was in his

power to change the decision, Dri Prinzing e~plained that he

could not do this on his own, that only the court was able to

do this. But that it would not be possible to assemb~e every­

body now and Croissant should try to contact the standby judge.

When Croissant once again pointed out to him that none other

than he himself was authorised and able to act quickly and

effectively, Dr. Prinzing promised to phone the Wittlich prison

if Holger Meins's situation was critical. After about 10

minutes Dr. Prinzing informed Croissant by phone that lawyer

Haag was presently visiting the prisoner. An indication that

the condition of Holger Meins was getting worse was not given

by Dr. Prinzing.

)

'D:'!~ll.,
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"YOlJ are dclermining the conditions of his imprisonment.

"Vour responsibility slays with you even if you should phone

the prison in Wittlich and should get information ab out his

condition from there.

"Thl~ fact is that in Holger Meins's case ttlC destructive con­

dition~ of confinement are aimed at his death through slow

starvation.

denied despite the extremeiy critical condition of Holger Melns

with the remark that Astrid Proll had gone underground after her

release.

It is proposed,

to question the lawyers Marieluise Oecker and Klaus Croissant

as weIl as 01'. Prinzing as witnesses with regard to this matter.

"-

"Vou have known

will be ended

been stopped.

sibility.

from the beginning of the hungerstrike that it

when the isolation and special treatment have

Vou are therefore fully aware of your respon-

At the time when the lawyers 8ecker and Croissant were talking

to Dr. Prinzing, Holger Meins had already died. The doctor

who had been called at 4.00 p.m. by a prison officer could, at

17.15 p.m. only establish the death of Holger Meins.

~

"Allow the immediate presence of one of thp trusted doctors

mentioned in our letter, dated 6.10.7~. As a further doctor

1 name Dr. Christof Locherback, 7401 Talheim, Romerweg 5.

For lawyer Haag

signed Marieluise 8ecker"

That letter was taken personally by the lawyers 8eeker and

Croissant to Dr. Prinzing's private flat as it might havc

taken more time on a Saturday to send it by telegram. Or.

Prinzing came to the garden gate to receive the letter after

Croissant had explained to him via his intercom "10lust speak

to you at onee. Holger Mein~ i~ dying." II(!was inforllled

verbally about the content of the letter when he received it.

Marieluise 8ecker as weIl as 01'. Croissant pointed out to him

that hc was abl(~ tn prt'vf'nt Ihe rlt!;Jthnf 1111' prhrllll". llwy

insisted that iJ doetor trusted by the pri~uner be adlllilted.

They referred to the application IIY t.he dcfenec counsel, dated

6.10.74, in which 6 doetors, amongst them leading authorities,

whosc spr'cialist knowlcrJqe was alJov(!all dOlll)t, hild heen namer1.

1t was explicitly pointed out to Dr. Prinzing that Dr. Jurgen

Schmidt-Voigt should oe askcd to COOle. This doctur h;IIJ~Iiven a

medical report on Astrid Proli, who as a result of being

imprisoned in the empty wing of the women's psychiatry in the

prison in Cologne where she had also been subjected to acoustic

isolation, had been tortured to such an extent that shc Ilad

become unfit for imprisonment and had had to be relcased. The

demand by the defence lawyers to consult the trusted doetor was

Holger Meins was 1,84 m tall and when he died his weight was

down to 39 kg. He died through slow starvation.

Holger Meins had left the following declaration with his defence

counsel Croissant:

"wittlich, 9.3.74

Should I ever die in prison then it was murder - no matter what

the pigs ~ill maintain. I will never kill myself, I will never

give them any pretext. I am not a Provo and not an advcnturcr.

If they say - and there are indications for this - 'suieide',

'serious illness', 'self defence', 'trying to eseape' don't

believe the lies of the murderers.

Meins"

1t is proposcd,

ta Qücstion lawyer Klaus Croissant as wilncss with regard to this

matter.

If Dr. Prinzing had ordered immediately after the phone e.111 wlJir:h

he had with Croissant on 9.11.74 at about 12.30 p.m., that

Holgcr Meins bc examined at once - if ncccssary by an cmcrgency

doctor - Holger Meins could have been taken at onee to the inten­

sive care unit at the University Clinic Mainz und eould have been

saved. This has been confirmed by Prof. 01'. Frey at the

Anaesthesia unit at the University Clinic Mainz, to Croissant
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when he was visitlng the prisoners Grundmann and Junschke who

had been taken there.

It Is proposed,

to Question Prof. Or. Rudolf Frey from the University Clinic

Mainz as weIl as lawyer Or. Croissant with regard to this

matter.

But his Ilfe could have been saved with absolute certainty if

Dr. Prinzing had insisted the Federal Prosecutor adhere to the

given transfer dates to the prison Stuttgart-Stammheim, which

at fIr~t wn~. ;>. 11. 711 an d wh ich ha d th P. n bc cn e x t end e cj t n 11. I1. 1/,

at the latest. But Dr. Prinzing submitted himself to the orders

of the State Security Authorities even though he was inform~u

since the beginning of October about the insufficient conditions

of medical treatment given to Holger Meins. At the same time

Or. Prinzing neglected ta inform himself during the hungerstrike,

until the death af Holger Meins, of the prisoner by the prison

doctors.

It is proposed,

to Question Dr. Prinzing as witness with regard to this matter.

In the indictment by lawyer von Plottnitz from 19.11.74 the

behaviour of Dr. Prinzing is described as foliows:

"In view of the information he received at lunchtime on 9.11.74

about the physieal condition of the murdered Holger Meins, the

accused Or. Prinzing should - certainly under the aspeet of

his judieial welfare duty - have feIt obliged to immediately

take judicial measures for the medieal care of Holger Meins.

There is no doubt at all that measures for the preservation of

the health and life of a remand prisoner who is in danger of

dying are part of the judicial welfare duty. It was therefore

the legal duty of the accused Or. Prinzing to aet immediately

at the time of his phone call at lunchtime on 9.11.74 with

lawyer Dr. Croissant. The aeeused Or. Prinzing should either,

as suggested by Or. Croissant, have permitted the presence of

one of the trusted doctors, earlier named by the counsel for

the defence, or he should at least hnve ordered the prison to

immediately start measures for medical care, if necessary by

transferring the murdered prisoner to the Intensive care unlt

of a hospital. The accused Dr. Prlnzing was authorised to give

judicial Instructions of the above mentloned kind according to

125 para. 2 clause 3 StPO. Contrary to his remarks made to

Or. Croissant, a contact with the other court judges was not

necessary. The remarks by the accused Dr. Prinzing must be seen

as excuses.

The accused should also not have relied upon the prison

Rlilhorities or the prison doctor In Wlttllch to instignte the

necessary measures for the immediate medical eare of the

murdered prisoner. Beeause the aeeused knew already before

9.11.74 that the prison authorities and the prison doetor neither

seriously wanted to provide adeQuate medical care, nor were they

in a position to do this considering the possibilities within

the prison. On the strength of an application by the defence

counsel, dated 7.10.74, Dr. prinzing's court had to order the

prison administration and the prison doctor through a deeree,

dated 22.10.74, to carry out the force feeding with a nose tube

aeeording to the rules of medieal ethics. Before that the prison

administration had made a statement to the 'court that they were

not able 'with their existing medieal and nursing staff' to use

a nose tube.

Dr. prinzing has in a striking and totally unjustifiable manner

violated his legal duties. At lunchtime on 9.11.74, Dr. Prinzing

has - despite knowing that a danger to the life of the murdered

prisoner beeause of his weakened condition could not be exeluded

failed as a judge to order that even the most minimal medieal

eare was provided for the murdered prisoner. In view of his

neglect he has at least consented to the death of Holger Meins.

Had Dr. Prinzing ordered immediate medical measures at lunchtime

or on the afternoon of 9.11.74, especially drips or similar

measures, the life of Holger Meins could have been saved. To

that extent we refer to the obtaining of an expert report in

the preliminary proeeedings.

The reason far the behaviour of Dr. Prinzing was first of all

his disinclination ta take up further judicial responsibilities

on top of his phone call ta the Wittlich prisan on a Saturday.

This shawed itself in his unconcealed irritation at being
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"bothered at all on a Saturday with information about the

extremely critical condition of Holger Meins's health by Or.

Croissant. Considering all circumstances such a motive in

the case of the accused Dr. Prinzing must legally be regarded

as base according to 211 StGB. To that extent the extreme

disparity between the behaviour of the accused Dr. rrinzing ­

his need for a restful Saturday - and the death of Holger Meins

caused through his neglect has to be emphasised (compare Dreher,

note I B a 211 StGB). Especially with regard to his position

as a judge, the accused Dr. Prinzing must know that he has to

undertake everything required of hirn to save the life of a

remand prisoner, irrespective of whether the remand prisoner

is on hungerstrike or not. A judicial point of view which

values the life of a remand prisoner less than a personal need

for rest on a Saturday is incompatible with the position and

the responsibility of a judge in the legal and constitutional

system of the rRG and therefore especially objectionable."

The remand prison rules include the following instruction under

no. 57:

"Should hospital treatment become necessary the remand prisuner

will be admitted ta the hospital wing of the prison. The trans­

fer to a public hospital requires the consent of the judge. If

the necessary treatment cannot be given to the siek remand

prisoner within the prison the governor has to request a

decision of the judge."

The df'Gth of 1I01ger Meins is tl1c cnmmon dcerJ uf t.llf; ',tale
Security Department at the Federal Criminal Office and the Federal

Prosecutor. It is the intention of this State Security Department

that especially those persons, who are directly in a position Lo

give help, should not order those urgently needed measures for

saving the lives of prisoners from the RAF. This is shown hy

a house announcement in the prison Cologne-Ossendorf from 2.8.73

which also applied for the prison Wittlich:

in the mentioncd house announcement it says under the column

"Moving a prisoner":

"Moving a prisoner - even In extreme emergency sItuations (for

example danger to life) can only be done when the Security Grnup

Bonn (telephone 02221/353001) has given appropriate instructions."

It is proposed,

to hear Justice Minister Theisen, Government Director Ringel,

Federal Prosecutor Siegfried Buback, Karl Schutz, Dr. Horst

Herold as weIl as Government Oirector Bucker, the governor of

the prison Cologne-Ossendorf as wltnesses wlth regard to this

matter.

Thls document demonstrates who can make the last decislon over

life and death of a prisoner from the RAF: the State Security

Department at the rederal Criminal Office. This order shows at

tne same time that the security interests for the political

prisoners have a much higher priority than their lives.

Corresponding orders with regard to the confinement of the RAF

prisoners also exist in other prisons. When the prison doctor

Dr. med. Hassas from the prison Zweibrucken said to the prison

governor Greus that the prisoners Junschke and Grundmann had to

be urgently treated in a hospital, the prison governor declared

thaL he shnuld keep quict, otherwise he would not be naturalised,

the Security Group Bonn had stated by phone that a transfer to a

hospital would be out of the question.

It is proposed,

to question the prison governor Greus, Karl Schutz, Dr. Horst

Herold as weIl as Wolfgang Grundmann and the prisoner Klaus

J"'1~.r:l1kr.;)5witflr.5~:,C~>with rcqard tn this matter.

The prison doctor Dr. Hutter, who was responsible for Holger

Meins, had already at the beginning of the first hungerstrike

hy the RAF prisoners in February 1973 demonstrated l1is deter­

mination to break the hungerstrike with medically irresponsihle

and life endangering measures in a letter to the prison governor.

in this letter by the prison doctor to the governor of the prison

in wittlich, he writes already one day after the start of thc

hungerstrike:

"Tn make the health damaging hungerstrlke more difficult for

thc remand priS1ner Melns, I consider the wlthdrawal of drinking
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"waler as weIl as the addition of salt to his washing water as

necessary."

ßefore the death of Holger Meins the prison doctor said In front

of witnesses:

"He will die anyway."

It 15 proposed,

tu qucslion the former prisoner Ralf Georg Hecker as weIl as

Government Oirector Essmayer (ta give evidence for the suggested

withdrawal of water and salt in the washing water at the first

IIlJl"i"r,,1r Ikl') il~;wltnC5scs wl th regard to thl~. matter.

Only as a result of the decision by the court In Stuttgart from

22.10.74 could the prison doctor 01'. Huttel' be forced to stop

u·.illqUfl',lliI;lill,~.Ifl~;tru,"ellt:;uurlllU the force fecdJnu whieh h;lll

been agonising for the prisoner. The prison doctor was personally

instructed by a specialist for throat, nose and ear illnesses on

23.10.74 on how to use astamach tube. He was then also informed

by the specialist that 9 tablespoons of the nutriment mixture

"Stardit" were sufficient for artificial feeding, according to

the printed instructions.

It is proposed,

to question the specialist for throat, nase and ear illnesses,

01'. med. Oemers in Wittlich, as witness with regard to this

matter.

Contrary to the information given to him and to his knowledge on

the grounds of the instructions given for the nutriment mixture,

the prison doctor gave Holger Meins from 24.10.74 onwards only

3 tablespoons of "Stardit", which corresponds to a daily calorie

amount of 400. This 15 shown in the records on the consumption

of this nutriment mixture which is contained in the files of the

Public Prosecutor in Triel'.

1t is proposed,

to produce the files from the Public Prosecutor Triel' - 7 Js 1235/74 ­

and to read out the document contained in it as weIl as to

question Or. Huttel' as witness.

The prison doctor knew perfectly weil that he was gradlJally

starving Holger Meins by giving him such insufficient nouristlment.

About this fact and the apparent worsening of tlis physical con­

dition, which in the week be fore the death of Holger Meins led

to rapid malnutrition, 01'. Huttel' has informed the prison

governor Essmayer as weIl as the Ministry of Justice, the Federal

Attorney General and the prison doctor Oegenhardt in Kassel, who,

as prison dnctnr had the special lrust of the Federal Prnsf'cutnr

and the Security Group/State Security Department at the BKA for

his withdrawal of drinking water from Andreas Baader. This brief­

in'] folIowen as n resull nf il (jrnernl inslrurtion "tn infnrm t11l'

Mifli~,lry of Ju:.lir;l~;llllJlI,c I cllcr;ilJ'rD~;"culur ;JI)[)ulilny ~;P('Ciill

particulars". AllsperlaI occurances in connection with Holger

Meins were discu~3ed "by justice officials" with the responsible

nffiri;lls al thr' Fen"r;]1 rro<;rrIJlnr'c. Offir".

1t is proposed,

to question Siegfried Buback, Horst Herold, Karl Schutz,

Government Oirector Essmayer and Or. Huttel' as witnesses as weIl

as Government Oirector Ringel, Justice Minister Theisen and

Federal Justice Minister Vogel in Bonn with regard to this matter.

Even though the Federal Prosecutor and the Federal Criminal

Office knew about the extremely dangeraus health situation of

Holger Meins, even though the two State Security Oepartments

were also informed on the day that Holger Meins died, that the

prisoner was no longer able to walk and that he had to be carried

into the visiting room on a stretcher, the two people most respon­

sible, the witnesses Buback and Herold, have given no instruc­

tions for admission to a hospital - the only possibility to save

his life.

It is proposed,

to question the security inspectors at ttle prison WlttJich,

Auster and Kopper, Govcrnment Olrector Essmayer as weIl as

Siegfried Buback anel Horst HeroIn with reg;nd to thls matter.

Even though thc physical situation of Holger Meins had become so

severe on 7.1].74 thal there was an acute danger to life, even

though Holger Meins had dpmaneled the admission to a public
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hospital on 8.11.74, cven though the force feeding had to take

place In his cell on 8.11.74 because the emaclated prlsoner was

not ahle to walk any more, and desplte the fact that Holger Melns

had to bc carrled on a stretcher on 9.11.74 to talk to lawyer

Haag, nesplte all these facts none of the responsible officials

had taken any kind of measure to save his life. Even the official

at the Minlstry of Justice, Government Oirector Ringel only

suggested in a phone call with the witness Auster on 9.11.74 to

bring Holger Meins to the visiting room on a stretcher, even

though he knew about the acutely dangerous situation and about

his legal duty to act as weIl as the other officials of the state

machine.

It is proposed,

to question the witnesses Ringel, Essmayer, the medical prison

warder Hennig, the security inspectors Auster and Kopper and Dr.

Hutter, Dr. Oegenhardt, Herold, Schutz and Buback with regard to

this matter.

The presiding judge Dr. Prinzing received at about 1.30 p.m. the

information from prison officer Richard Hohwer that liolger Meins

had been carried to the visiting room on a stretcher. In view

of this information Or. Prinzing declared, after he had expressed

to the witncss Hohwcr, his anger about the disruptlon nf his

Saturday rest by lawyer Croissant: "that he then regarded the

matter as scttlcd."

It ls proposed,

to question Dr. Degenhardt, Dr. Hutter and the Justice Minister

for Rheinland-Pfalz, Dr. Theisen, as witnesses with regard to

Uds matter.

The death of Holger Melns ls - as weIl as the death of Siegfried

Hausner - a model example of the liquidation of an Imprisoned

guerilla fighter as part of the destruction strategy by the

state under exploitation of favourable conditlons: slow starvation

through infusion-of insufficient nutriment amounts in the case of

Holger Meins, the manipulation of the date for his transfer to

prevent a medically faultless force feeding and the deprivation

of any kind of medical help shortly before the beginning of the

acutely dangerous phase.

The hom~cide of Holger Meins under the direction of the State

Security Authorities shows that the FRG continues its war of

destruction against the guerilla also against the prisoners.

The discussion of the offered evidence is also important within

the framework of the proposed dismissal applications submitted

by the defence counsels at the beginning of the trial. In the

reasoning of this application it was shown through the presented

facts, that the facts which have to be judged in this trial can

only be understood under the international law of war, so that

there is no room for the application of state internal criminal

law.

It. I 5 rH()po';f~d,

'--- to question Dr. r>rinzing and Richard Hohwer as witO(~sses with

regard to this matter.

On 8.11.7Il, thc day before the death 01' Holger Meins, the prison

doctor Or. Hutter phoned the doctor at thc Federal Prosecutor's

Office, Or. Dcgenhardt in Kassel, in full knowIed~le of the

critical condition of the prisoner, to InQuire whether he could

take a holiday untll 10.11.74 despite thp criticnl conrlition of

the prisoner and whether he could thercfnre dlscontinliC the force

feeding for one day, 9.JJ.74. Or. Degenhardt expJnlned to him

that he could leave the prlsoner alone.
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TI1f'FpljpraJ rro~;ecllt.ormakes t.he followinll statement wl t h

rcgard to tl1e application, daled 7.2.77, by lhe lawyer Ur.

Croissant, which he has read out in courl and termed as

"evidence" for the defendant Oellwo and which the other defen­

llallt~, IliIV(' alJl't:l:ll w i 1I1.

The dcfcnce counsel for the defendant Dellwo, lawyer Dr.

Croissanl, has 6n the 7lst day of the trial, in l1is capacily as

an independant organ of the administration of justice, read out

a statement which surpasses everything that has been presented

so far in this trial by that lawyer.

'-

Appendix 35C

Federal Prosecutor

at the Federal Court

1 StB 1/75 16.2.1977

the death of Holger Meins is - like the death of Siegfried

Hausner - a model example of the liquidation of an imprisoned

guerilla fighter as part of the state's destruction strategy

under exploitation of favourable conditions (page 42)

the homicide of Holger Meins under the direction of the State

Security Authorities shows that the FRG Is contlnuing their

war of destruction against the guerilla, even agalnst the

prisoners (page 42)

And finally to crown it all:

Llle federal Proseculor has expressed lhe interest of lhe

Slalc Securily Authorilies in the death of such prisoners

in an interview by stating:

"For some, 5 defendanls in Stutlgart were already loo many".

(page 26)

Lawyer Croissant has consciously falsifled the quote in Der

Spiegel interview by taking a sentence out of its context:

\.......

The deliberations of this lawyer in his application of February

7th, 1977 are not the kind of usual blunder which might have been

made partly from a certain excitement, but are obviously

deliberately planned defamations whose monstrosity will be shown

he re by same especially exemplary passages.

Lawyer Or. Croissant maintains amongst others:

that Holger Meins has been executed systematically under the

direction of the Federal Prosecutor Siegfried Buback, and

the head of the State Security Authorities of the Federal

Criminal Office (BKA) and its president 01'. Horst Herold

(page 4),

that the suspension of the force feeding of Andreas Baader

was aimed at the death of this prisoner (page 26)

the plan for Baader's liquidation had become public through

a press statement (page 26)

the death of Holger Meins is the common deed of the Slale

Security Authorltles of the Federal Criminal Office (BKA)

and the Federal Prosecutor (page 37)

Der Spiegel had put the question to the Federal Prosecutor

whether it would not have been possible for the avoidance

of unnecessary expenditure of tax money, In the region of a

million Marks, to combine the proceedings at the Court in

Stuttgart and at the Assize Court in Kaiserslautern whose

trial subject was very similar. Ta this the Federal

Prosecutor had replied:

"For some 5 defendants in Stuttgart were already too many.

We had long discussions whether we shouldn't form groups of

2 defendants or even charge the people individually."

Whoever, like this lawyer, does not only bring a falsified Quote

but also has the impudence to apply for the appearance as witness

of the person whose Quote he has falsified, this lawyer shows

that he is not interested in finding the truth through his

applications, but that he really wants to mislead the court and

public opinion. At the same time he demonstrates that he has

fully accepted the rule that the RAF is expecting of him as a

lawyer.
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Part of the lawyer's responslbl1ity is, according to a cell

circular which was found In July 1973 in the cells of the

prisoners Ensslin, Baader, Moller, Meinhof, Muller and Braun:

"Fact Is that the lawyers are an Important part of the

popular front strategy, and as the base Is still weak their

function is the creatlon of a democratlc publlc, a public

opinion, whlch Is of course one of the prerequlsites for a

proletarian front." (documentation by the Federal Ministry

of the Interlor about activities of anarchistic criminals

in the FRG, p.llO)

How seriously lawyer Croissant is taking this duty and how much

knowledge he has about the activities of the "guerilla" is shown

In his interview with the ZDr which was shown on 2S May 1976:

"It is possible to kill a revolutiohary but not the

revolution. The continuity of the guerilla is unbroken.

Quite the opposite, it has become stronger because through

their struggle, the worldwide struggle, the contradiction

between the state and liberation from the control of the

existing production and property relations has become

visible.

zaF: So this me ans the struggle will continue?

Croissant: Yes."

Part of this struggle is the continuous defamation of justice

according to the example of successful demagogs: one only has to

hint at the untruth often enough - something will stick in the

public mind!

And what is easier to make use of emotionally after the experiences

of the Third Reich, with its mass murders ordered and planned by

the state, than the assertion that the state organs are once

again engaged in liquidating political opponents.

In the al ready quoted cell circular, da ted July 1973, it says:

"Through the lawyers, the judges and public prosecutors

will be seen as what they really are: under their appearance

they will be seen as politicians, as the darkest reac­

tionaries, servants of capital, imperialist pigs, communist

haters, desk criminals, murderers."

(documentation by the Federal Ministry of the Interior, p.IIO)

The culprits had therefore already been determined, long be fore

the first death through hungerstrike occurred. It was therefore

only logical that the potential victims had already decided who

the culprits were and according to their wishes certified to the

lawyers as Holger Meins did:

"In the case that I should die in prison it was murder - no

matt~r what the pigs will maintain."

dut the truth looks different. The truth is that all the par­

ticipants in the hungerstrike like Holger Meins had quite realis­

tically judged the risk to life and health and had, despite this

knowledge, used the hungerstrike as a means in their fight against

society.

In one of the RAF papers found in February 74 in a conspiratory

flat in Frankfurt/Main it. says about hung~rstrike:

"It is certain that nobody will give any evidence - the

breakdown only means that the people will be finished as

fighters - because it will be much heavier in connection

with actions outside then the last time."

(documentation by the Federal Ministry of the Interior, p.lOl)

A JUdgement which was also shared by Holger Meins. On 31st

October 1974 he wrote a letter to the gang member Grashof, in

which he very heavily criticised him for breaking off his hunger­

strike. This letter, which was later confiscated from Dr.

Croissant's, starts with the following words:

"You stupid idiot.

You will start again immediately and continue - if you haven't

done that yet. This and nothing else. No matter what day it

is today.

It is of course the last straw, what you have done there, you

know, really filthy. You are areal pig. WeIl alright.

You freaked out - which isn't the first time it happened, as

I remember along with a few other things as weIl. This



- 5 -
- 6 - - 30q -

\....,

L

happens with every action, somebody always freaks out and

the daily shit, the anger - just wait, you arsehole.

As it happened this stayed within the family, and it should

really have been clear to you what that means for the pigs

and against us (by now in any case) -

in the middle of the action, if you have eaten at that point

with full consciousness - as a way out - then you are out.

Then I wish you a good appetite (does it taste good?). Then

we are finished. If it was a freak-out, a break, totally

stupid. But that can happen - despite everything that has

been said. We all know about that. But then you will have

started again already, or what? If not, then start

IMMEDIATELY."

This passage from the letter by Holger Meins to Crashof is miss~

ing in the so-called "letter by Holger Meins of 31st October' 1974

to a prisoner who has discontinued his hungerstrike" and which

was given by Dr. Croissant to Der Spiegel for publication.

The letter by Holger Meins published in Der Spiegel also contains

significant statements by the writer on the hungerstrike. He

writes for example:

"The guerilla materialises himself in the struggle - in

the revolutionary action and of course: without end ­

precisely: fight until death and of course: collectively."

and

"Of course everybody will die one day. The question Is just

how and how you have lived. And the thing is quite clear:

while fighting against the pigs for the liberation of the

people: revolutionary, during the struggle - despite all

love for life: despising death. For me the only thing that

counts is: to serve the people - RAF."

The truth is therefore: Holger Meins has in full knowledge of all

consequences consciously sacrificed his life for the aims of the

RAF. This was also known to lawyer Dr. Croissant. It was also

known to him that the Public Prosecut.or had already dismissed

the charges of accidental homicide against the prison doctor,

and others, on 20 August 1976.

In the meantime the Prosecutor in Koblenz has rejected the com­

plaint against the dismissal of the charge. In his decision of

8 February 1977 he says, amongst others:

"I can also not object to the fact that the Public Prosecutor

in Trier has not dealt more strongly with your complaint that

the persons denounced by you, especially the presiding judge

Dr. Prinzing, were guilty of murder. These accusations are

without support. Your complaint does therefore not include

any new points.

"More important than t:,e debate of an apparent or alleged

misconduct by the agencies of justice and the police, would

be an inve5tigation of ltle que5tion, which i5 not raised by

you either in your first charge from 19 November 1974, nor

in your complaint from 7 January 1977, whether those people

are to blame for the death of Holger Meins. Those who have

induced him to carry out the hungerstrike and who have later

urged him to continue despite the possible and foreseeable

fatal consequences. The Public Prosecutor in Trier has taken

the view in aseparate decision, given to other complainants,

that it would not be possible to refute the statements by

the accused, that they believed that the prisoner would be

kept alive through artificial feeding. Within the framework

of the preliminary proceedings under consideration, a judge­

ment about their moral complicily cannot be made."

Even though lawyer Dr. Croissant has termed his application as an

"evidence application", it is not considered as such according

to 244 stPO. Whether it is a formal "evidence application" is

not determined by its wording, but by its significance (BCH NJW

51, 368). The obvious attempt to mislead the court through his

application of 7 February 1977 is really aimed at making public

propaganda for the RAF.

With regard to such propaganda actions, the Federal Court has

stated in its judgement, dated 12 October 1965 - 3 STR 15/65 ­

against the South Tirol bombthrower Norbert Burger:
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"According to the penal code, the court only has to establish

those crimes committed by the accused and to sentence him

fairly according to his personal guilt. Radical circles, be

they from the left or the right, have always tried to make

propaganda for their political views in the court room. The

courts have always emphatically rejected this (BGH St. 2, 284;

17, 28; 17, 337, 343; RGSt 45, 13B; 65, 58; 66, 14). They

have rejected all such applications as inadmissable."

To this the Federal Prosecutor has nothing to add to the applica­

tion by lawyer Dr. Croissant from 7 February 1977.

11.

Even in a case where the application could be regarded as a sub­

mission of evidence the proposed inQuiries would have to be

rejected according to 244 Para. 3 StPO:

A. With the assertion that Holger Meins had been systematically

executed by officers of Justice and the police, the aim is

to draw out the trial, as weIl as the pursuance of aims

unconnected with this trial. Lawyer Or. Croissant has

already stated at the beginning of this trial, that he would

do everything possible in this trial to clarify the death

of Siegfried Hausner and Holger Meins.

As the defendants have not been charged with their deaths

and as it is of no importance for this trial it can only be

an application - as is clear from the choice of the named

witnesses - with which the publicity~ that this trial is

receiving, is being used and that the trial will be drawn

out with irrelevant discussions.

B. As far as the application is meant to show

"that the guerilla commando in Stockholm had named itself

after Holger Meins to make the meaning and aim of this action

clear to everybody"

the application is also to be rejected ( 244 para. 3 stPO).

The fact of the naming has already been established. The

(

reason for the chosen name after Holger Melns is legally

without any significance for the decision.

The 52 named witnesses, and the other mentioned evidence,

are all completely unsuitable because the establishment of

objective facts would not result In any conclusion on the

subjective ideas of the defendants.

Even after conducted evidence hearings, nothing would have

been proved in connection with the subjective offences on top

of what the defendants have so far stated in this trial.

The Federal Prosecutor is of the opinion that the statements

and the behaviour of the defendants in the trial ~~ far have

made the aims of their offences sufficiently clear. But

the~e are, as already pointed out, for adecision for legal

reasons without any relevance because the defendants can for

their offences neither call on reasons of justification nor

reasons of guilt exemption: I

That an objectively illegal attack by the state on the 26

comrades of the defendants who have been arrested or sentenced

according to legal principles has not taken place, does not

need any furt her explanation. The conditions of imprisonment

have been described by th~ hlghest courts as being In accor­

dance with constitutional principles. The European Commission

for Human Rights has refused the complaint no. 6166/73 by

Baader, Meins, Meinhof and Grundmann against the FRG, because

of their prison conditions as inadmissable and obviously

,unfounded.

In a further complaint no. 5521/74 by Heinrich Jansen agalnst

the FRG the Commission has stated:

"The complainant was not totally isolated, but he was merely

separated from the other remand prisoners to ensure the

security of his imprlsonment and to therefore uphold the

order of the prison. On the other hand he Is al10wed to have

visits. In reality he is subjected more to an Imprlsonment

of separation then solitary confinement (see declsion of the

Commission about the admissability of the complalnt no.

6038/73, X. against the FRG, declsion collectlon 44, p. 115).
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'he commissiOIl comes to the conclusion that the e~amination

of this complaint does not show any violation of the rights

and liberties mentioned in article 3."

Justification reasons like "help-in-need" 01' a "right to

resistance" are therefore e~cluded in any case.

C. It couId possibly be considered whether the evidence asser-

t iOll:;!:(llIld hl~ uf legal signi ficance within the framework 01'

a prohibition error aeeording to 17 StGB. The following

has Lo be noted in the case of an eventual prohibition error:

l\r:cClrrJillrj10 ttll:>irstiltements in the trial the defendants

knew fully wel! that their offences are illegal according to

the law ~~ the country to which they belong. They chose to

consciously commit aets of murder with the objeetive of the

cuercion of the Federal Government, because they reject the

penal code insofar as it means a restrietion on their

political actions.

But if the cuIprit is aware of the illegality of his action

and if he rejects the penal code for politieal reasons by

denying the application of its norms for himself, he cannot

refer to a prohibition error. (BGHSt 4, 3)

Whoever is living in a community must aecept the law, which

is valid, for himself. The assertion by the defendants that

they are in astate of war with the FRG and do not feel bound

to its penal code, therefore contradicts the assumption of a

prohibition error.

This is even more relevant as martial law prohibits the

killing of hostages.

But even if the defendants had been of the opinion that the

26 prisoners were threatened with the same fate as Holger

Meins, amistake about presumed "help-in-need" 01' "resistance

right" would not exist aecording to 33.34 StGB.

Because in front of a court of a constitutional state nobody

can on prineiple be heard on the grounds that he had to carry

through the rights of third parties with violence against

uninvolved people (compare BGH judgements, 12 Oetober 1965 ­

3 STR 15/65 - and 7 November 1965 - 6 STR 137/55).

Self defenee and help-in-need would have a legal meaning for

the subject!ve offence only then, as is also the case wilh

the general right of resistance against state despotism, if

it had been directed against legal possessions of the aggressor

(OGHSt 5, 345/2/18). But from the staff at the German EmLJassy

in Stoekholm no danger was forthcoming for the 26 prisoners.

With regard to the facts of the case according to 105 ilrld

239b StGB, there is no reasonable doubt that the defendants

have conseiously acted in opposition to the penal code. The

attack was from the beginning, directed against totally

uninvolved embassy officlals. The defendants knew - this is

shown in their statements to the effect - that only through

an attack on the physical entirety and the life of the

embassy staff could their aim, the coerclon of the Federal

Government to release the 26 prisoners, be achieved.

Whoever knows that the murder of a person is illegal cannot

object, with regard to hostage taking as weil as to the

killing itself, perpetuating the coercion of the Federal

Government, that the eonsciousness for committing further

offenees had been missed by him.

As the defendants had the intention of committing crimes by

hostage taking and the killing of 2 hostages, they also knew

that the pressure on the Federal Government through the

hostage taking and the killing of 2 hostages could not have

been legal.

The application is therefore also not appropriate to demUIl­

strate an alleged prohibition error.

The proposed submission of evidence can therefore be of no

significanee under any faetual 01' legal basis in view of (he

decision which has to be made. 1t is therefore refused

aecording to 244, para. 3 StPO.
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D. As far as the app1ication once again mentions the Question

of the application of prisoner-of-war rights, 1 refer to my

refusa1 statement of 20 October 1976.

II I.

As a summary the f0110wing has to be stated with regard to the

application by 1awyer Dr. Croissant:

-:7/fS -

..

~ 1. The read-out application has to be rejected as inadmissable

because, dressed up as a submission for evidence, it only

includes at tacks against state agencies wlthout any concrete

relevance to the trial .

2. The proposed evidence is, insofar as it is aimed at objective

statements, to be refused because of its pursuance of aims

which are irrelevant to this trial and because of delaying

the trial, as far as statements on the offences of the

defendants are to be made. lt is without'an~ ~ignificance

for the decision and unsuitable.

Signature

l..-
I!

I

.~ .•..,
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1) Pnl1&1na17 report b1 the OovwnllMntWe-Wuerttellberg. p. 11.

&leo "00 a1l 4•• baTBAvLr niebte &W\W.t·, p. U. repon b1 th. International

lzlqu1l7 eo-1.donl 1be cl•• UI ot Ulrllc. Ke1llhot. ohapter 111, 2 - 6. _

Sclluberl to .-ot baoll.•• nui printe tlIen tal.lted t.o Cudrun and Jar.• .u "bout 12.00 ••••

1l.\Ö.\ebarrived. u.clrea. oal.r wb v.p At w. t1ae and I va. worr.led t.h&\ h. w~.

vp UJot l.A.icl.I1; vu clear Vla.lebODeot the _&l. be voul.1 ,.t. 2he prieon autho­
rU1e. ha4 t.otal coatrol over vho jO~ vhat Und or too4. 'lbd W•• olNr. lobody
vwnt oe. t.he root t.üat attcmooll. I hea1jtatfld wh~~ler I ahould hl.n a bath. At

.beut 20.a1nllt.5 alter 2 p••• pr1.OIl ofl'1"er. ver. at Andre•• •• door. n.. cloor va.

OpeGe4. there ViA .~ur~. I thouabL that be v•• ~~ tor. batll. !~,.}o p•••

At tlnt I want to aak vb.1 the wbjeot bu bMn •• o«1t'Loe4. !t1e ••• bu u•
b1.t.ol7.

V. hUlt to 1\llt1l &D order 117the W.n-Yunttelllberc Parl1.u8nt. lnclud.d 1.

the qunUon ot tn..,h ••••nt 117a th1rd parl7. Tou Mn uke a .tate~nt vith
npr4 to th1. wbject.
In the n1Sht trotl the 16. to th. 17.10. I cUdn't eI•• p. : va1h4 tor nev••

In ~ cdl va. th. pdecn 1'8410wblob vae tunuo1 ort. Ve hd •• lead t.o ha'ftl

U türned ort in Ule .UllllMr•• J.t vae ponlb1e that v. vere beine U.tened t.o
Y1& th1e c1rcui t. tbe c1rcuJ.t vae 41ecoMeoted 117th. houa_lectrtc18.11.

[On tbe U. s.ptellber I vae 110.•.•4 int.o &DOUlero.ll~ In th. IIOI"Il1ncI b.ud
th. MV •• !he t1nt 1IIpneeton I aotl th. pr1eon ort10er }Nt _ p1.0. ot

1l:ree4in .,. oeu.[sino. tne 15. vw on11 nceiYed pd_ t~.::J •• t.ve••
1.00 an4 8.00 _.11. the eound-;root1zle vae l'WlIClft4tzoo. the oelle. 'ft.e•• ClOn­

.tl\lcUone bad bnn lIOuntedon th. 13./14. Septe ••ber.Outetde .,. oeU-4oor
there v.re tvo o1Yll1an., I d1econred tbat thee. v.re tvo prl.et., an

e~l1ca1 end _ o.tboUo one. I nplaLned t.o th •• the ••• w.rel vhicb bad

b•• D talten ap1net u.. bow the _tac~bul vae be~ u..d to eutfocate Wh I
1014 the. thet 1t th.1 th/ou&ht - ud •.• 1•.•_ - tbat th.Lr 1neUtllUon

(churoh) ba4 DOt beeD talteD over OOlllplet.l.1b1 th. etate, t~t t:le1 ahoulcl

thGl lIÜe Oll%'dtu&t1oll publ1c. I then vante4 t.o &0 to the oeU ot Ine;r14
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I beear. WODdorlacwben he vu. ~~ tI1aAhe •••• biook&D4wllnt to Oud.rwl'. 400rl

eoaebo41 ha4 be'li t.t.en tl:Ola the Pwderal Ct.a.nc.llor'. Olt1oe. DOt IdllMler. but

_ UIl wbo o~d t.o be Ul claJ.11_taot v1th Sohuel.r • .b4nu 811ft 80_ d.t.aJ.~

ot th. tan.[Öo the 29.~. ~. 1M.4taltBAthe Wt1&t1'ft1 to aak -bod.J tro.
th. Cha.ocelJor'. 0lt101 to -J Oll the _ 4A.1.f.Adnaa to14 JOUJ.that he bad
.ta.rted thf.t _tut. !be 1IU wun't a13ll t.o crup th. cl1HneioD ot the wbole
th1J1&.It vae DOt clear vhether thl Pwderal Oonmaed v•• oll_r abaut tbe pol1U­

oal1apl1cat1oll& ot a nle •••• ! ooncUUoli tor ••• 1ac &Illbod1troll the Chancellor'.

Oltic. wu, tbat tho Cowrment v•• pnpa.nd t.o ez~ wwf9n Mond&)'altemoon

_ lIU11'1'CIIIthe Ch&r1cellor'. Ol1'ioe _ (lUn1.ter1alcUr14ltnt Ilr. Jr.Plau):;} Se
uked Wn •• 1t he bev 11:1.people tro. tbe c-Ddo pereonal13. Andreae t.o14
h1a tbat he 4J.dn't. It became oleu thet he bad on.lJ' _. t.o t1M out 1t w Ialew

the Co;u:an4oto ore_t. ~ •• pnrequidte tor the CSCi-~ _ OUOIl• .f.ndre•• bad lu.:rt.her
cU.Cu..1ed the roll ot 11:1.&'D in the Vietnu-war a DeIth. ro1e ot tb. hd"r.!
Qovvmmed. SI t.ü.kecl acout tho .trateQ er &.beIU' &D4th1.e 1'BYMl.e4the~ the-

MA trGll the CbaAo.llor'. Olt1oe ha4 the e& _ oonaclo\W1olM_baut 11:1.probl._Uc
ot ~. S?p •.• vo cl14. t.ut tnat h. bad DO14e__ baut our lA.)' ot th1Jlk1n&.'1he
Oovel"Dlllllitbad WICl,r.i064 Oll%'eantenco -It ~ be "'lIIMd. that w vill DO~return

to th. J'BC· in Illeb _ V&3tbat w ven DOWcOllte~l.&t1.a&-IDtemaUon&l Twrrori.".
t'urorillll 1&Dever the a1a ot the IU' - oenr. Our a1IU an .t.rateg10 _oUona

vh1ch DOveC1e ola."-.~l'\I6blo {0l'WU'd• .Andre•• tben upl.&1.ned the 4etail. tor &D

achaniv &D4that w. cUdn't 1na1et oe &D internaUon&l Jlu •• -oantennoe. Se hae

upl.&tnd •.•.•rrth1rl6 •.• tar •• po.dble. ~ tro. the XI. val &l8OJlre•• nt.

Andr••• expl&iDecltbat th. onl.1 po.dbil1t,r t.o .top the ~uon wu 1I:Iea­oha1.geof thll pdeo::ler •• Q10ulclthJ.. Mt Lappen 1I:Iellthb 1.e4 t(, &D e.O&l&tion
or the nz • .Andzeaeeai4 c.at VBv.re oondder1J1& tbe po•• 1b1Ut.T t.o e-t lc111.d

er t.o 41e 41U'1n&a b~r.tr1ke. !h. !pp ~!,>14-th.n be toraed to ~tate openl.1

•• a wax'-~t.r 1nateacl 01' cSo~ 1t hUden • .le • vU"-pan1 the SP~.~rategy eo tar
wou.ld\ICl 1IIpo•• 1131e.12l• .ul undent.004 thu.

.u abaut ".00 p••• 1 bear4 Owlnlll'. YOloe- bu.t 1 vun't oun. ~ lIOuIldprooftn&

ha4n't beeil tiz.d tel th. door 7et. I bad apeoted that .,. 400r vould be o~n ­

.ore. 10th j;IA &D4I 0&1.1ecl1011411tel~. Ve hea:rd Andnae r1n&1ng the bell.

.u 4.45 J••• Oud:rIaDre~umecl, thell the eouncl-proottn& v•• _ttached. I na.d an4
41.411'\beu &llltI1~ untll 11.00 , ••• .u ,11.00 p••• the l~t va. tumed ott. I
hear4 tbat ~ •• '. hetoh va. opene4. I bea:rd Y01o••• DOt 'ftIr)' o1•• r. I bea:rdl

"B.rr 1u.4e:r• .1u.t waU a •• 0004- et.o. !hell the7 vent to Jan, hen en17th1.ac

Ra oo.p1etelz .UGlt. !hID I 41d1l't bear ~th1ng ~re.[ODtU 10.00 p•••

I 11.~ to tbe Den, hear4 th. So.b814~li&hrta1k.:;]'1hBAI ooattnued ree4lnc.
I 11.tenecl to ••• 10 throl.\&beu--pbollB•• tbeli I ba4 to npair th. oabl. of the

AII/Il,"d; x J 7

""illllt(.,c; ()( jnt~rrtl':'I' ion or Irm'!ffrtl XiiI/ar l)('()rr. t/,'~ r"l'f'"st/t:lJtiv('

(o,.mirtt.c ,,( 1:lftl,.n-~·lIrtteml.er'· Stlltt? I'ar/iam'-'It on J6,J, J97h

Ten .'1, p' S tao" IIlfr t j n t I/e sess I on prcl:/ rlp.d over h.I' lIr, ~'u,101(
Schitder,

At 16.30 rrm~lfrd 1öl1er js hroll~ht (orwlfrd in hnndcllffs, She i5
aceompnnied by [cldmalln alld Juttlf tuhr Jenducs,

Six of(jcilfls sit fBeing the speetaturs,

Tllis rceord was written b)' ~·ailwr f'romann, but it is not wurd (0/-
word, There art.' ,o;omeomissions, ",T.n,

.'Iöll ••r'
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SCHIELER, Is it correct that you heard the news on 17th October?

- s -

SCH IELER, I'd now 1ike to ask a question • You said that you

had had no contact with each other. How was it then

possible that the conversation of 17th October

between Albrecht Klaus, Hegelau and Baader had been

communicated?

HOLLER, Because of the Contact-Ban all our senses were

heightened. we were very attentive, we were very

tensed-up. We always jumped to the door immediately

we heard something outside. Andreas had gone to the

door of Gudrun's cell, he was telling her about the

meeting. so loudly. 'that we, Jan and myself, could

hear it. We made very little use of this possibility

of communication, we ourselves were our last line of

defence after the exclusion of our lawyers. We

accepted that in any case we had to mutually defend

ourselves. We did not want to provoke an.even greater

separation.

., (

\.......-

'-

~, I'd hidden my earphones. I didn·t want to remind the

guards of the connection in my celi. on,5th September

everything had been taken from the,cells by the BKA.

TV, Radio. Record Player etc. on Tuesday the 6th Sept­

ember we got everything back. On Wednesday the 7th

September the others had everything taken away again.

Andreas complained of damage to his possessions when

they were given back. Tuesday afternoon - it was at

that time that I got back my earphones. I didn't want

to remind them that in my cell there was the radio

connection. although it had been cut-off. I used that,

I knew how tOt the electrician bad cut through two

wires. I had installed a connector and could use it

as previously. I regularly listened to the radio from

13th September up to 17th October.

; I
!
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SCHIELER' Why only from time to time? They were important

things you had to tell.

~. The important thing was that the contact we had

shoUld last aS protection. On 15th, after the

Government's announcement by Schmidt in which he

outlined the pOlice's tactical solution and stated

that there will be no threat of murder, but that

the Government would remain prudent etc•• then I

called out at night. The immediate consequence was

the putting-up of the foam rcbber baffles. Then

you would have had to shout like crazy. By day

shouting was possible but it had no point.

SCHIELER, Did JOu know that affairs in Hogadishu were reaching

a decision.

HOLLER, I had no knowledge of this. I laid awake but the

prison radio was turned off after 10.00 or 11.00.

The last time I listened was at around 10.00.

SCHIELER: During this night did you have any contact with Jan

by shouting?

~, I know that Jan didn't have a radio.

SCHIELER: on 17th October there was a visit by the two priests.

You hadn't requested a visit. When was Gudrun Ensslin

locked up aga in?

HOLLER, Around 17.00 hours.

SCHIELER, Did you hear that came ~~R at around 17.00 hours?

HOLLER: 'Andreas asked after her, 1 deduced it from that.

Subsequently I deduced that she was at that time

with the priests.

SCHIELER. 18.00 hours. Officials were with Andreas Baader.

For his medicene?

(

(

SCHIELER. Did you keep up t~ date on the Schleyer affair and

inform your fellow prisoners?

MOLLER • I called out from time to time.

HOLLER, Yes. Andreas received medicene every evening.

SCHIELER. (Requests a description of the shot)

HOLLER: That is difficult to describe. A stifled crack,
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SCHlEIER. On 17th OCtobcr did you still hope to be exchanged?

MOLLER. Yes. Klaus was there on 5aturday and because I was

listening to the radio and knew that the Kommando

had rigged up explosives on the plane, I presumed

that the Government wouldn't risk the deaths of

eighty people. 50 I imagined that we would be ex­

changed. For me both were possible - exchange and

the storming of the plane as indeed subsequently

happened.

~ 5CHJELER. Did you only regain consciousness after leaving

the cell? Have you no knowledge of how you received

the wounds?

HOLLER. No. But I didn't inflict them myseif. I don't know

how that happened. I have only a vague memory of

being transported. In Tubingen the State Prosecutor

(Rainer Christ) came to my bed. I don't know how

the doctors came into my cello I also don't know

how I was on the stretcher and how I was taken out

of the cello

That's a provocation. There was no agreement on this.

After Holger's death that was clear. In August we broke

off the hungerstrike, i.e. interrupted it when we learnt

from Amnesty that the State Security Agencies and the

Government had our deaths in view. outside of the perse­

cution since Ponto the escalation since for longer than

half a year i.e. since we had been treated as hostages

after Buback's death, We knew that the repressive

measures would be intensified. In OCtober we still didn't

have any idea of when this would all come about.

HOLLER. (CONT'D) twice, one shortly after the other. ] didn't

make the association with a shot, 1 had no idea thal it

was a weapon. And a further point. Shortly before the

hunger strike 1 had a swollen neck, 1 said to the prison

doctor, Henck, that 1 had this complaint. He passed this

on to Schroder and suggested that he examine me. Andreas

spoko of terrible headaches, When 1 told him that 5chroder

was coming the following day, he asked me to see to it

that he saw him as weIl. Strikingly, three or four days

after the'start of our hungerstrike the pains stopped.

All the measures put into practice since the 5th Sept­

ember ( i.e Nusser's orders that there s~ould no common

shopping, no common washing, no toucr.ing of common

objects, a ban on the buying of ~ruit, a ban on additional

allowances). All these measures introduced since the 5th

~eant that we were tied directly to the institute's food., ..
We had our faces pushed ~nto the pr~son food. It was then

that we made the association with poisoning. I'd been

receiving the food since the 13th but I hadn't eaten any

of it and I suspect that the others had also done this.

SCHIELER. (Asks about the consideration of suicide)

You know comments have been made. people who have spoken

to you have commented that they saw such a danger.

HOLLER: If ~e are talking of dead prisoners, but only ever as a

consequence of the hungerstrike. It is absurd to maintain

that we thre~tened suicide.

SCHIELER. But you can kill yourself by means of a hungerstrike.

HOLLER:

(

(

THE PRESlDENT OF THE COHMITTEE, DR SCHIELER WANTS

TO CONTINUE THE QUESTIONING BUT IRHGARD HOLLER

INTERRUPTS -

For six months I have been in total isolation, cut

off from all prisoners. I request now a pause of

a quarter of an haur.

THI5 ENSUES.

Koife and Fork, Scissors, Razor Blades, everything

was there. Razor Blades, e.g. to cut things out or

as a further example. to patch up the cable to put

an end to the iSOlation. I still feel the consequencies

of the wounding. When I run quickly I feel it in my

heart. l'm no medical expert, you're better informed

about my wounds than I am. It was the pericardium

HOLLER.

HOLLER.

'-
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(CONT'O) and the heart musele has now healed.

''''\1

QUESTIONERI" What do you then say to Baader's comment " If

the Federal Government doesn't aet quickly, then

it's going to have to move quiCkly ••?

QUESTIONER, But nonetheless you were ab1e to earry on a

conversation for over ten minutes and without

the foam rubber baffles you eould have shouted

to each other. Why then wasn't this possib1e?

HOLLER. Somebody would have come immediate1y to stop it.

If we could have made arrangements then that wou1d

have had unavoidable eonsequencies. I didn't know

that on 8th October Klaus was with Andreas. On

9th OCtober Gudrun wanted to speak to Klaus. I

heard the ~arders say ••But he was only here

yesterday". I had no knowledge of the conversation

of 8th October between Klaus and Andreas.

Everything I got to read was censored. I don't

even have a copy of the official version of the

Federal Government. You are confronting me here

with things that I don't know about. Your reason

for this is obvious. I only regained eonseiousness

on the morning of 18th OCtober. I've no reeollection

of the time before that, I only remember neon light.

Not on the interior of the cell but in the corridor.

Witnesses have given evidenee to the committee that

you were found moaning and conscious in your cello

I can only say what I remember. I can't remember

the cell at all. During the trials of the others

I was always with Ingrid Schubert locked up in

Andreas' cello Since January 1977 I have been in

Stammheim. We were always locked up in Andreas' cello

Yes. Without further ado it was opened and shut

when he wasn't there. I saw how Andreas was searched

when he came back. Gudrun was taken into another

cell to be searched. Before Andreas came through

- 1() -

(CONT'D) came back. We hadn'l agreed lo commit

suicide, this was a technica1 impossibi1ity.

But above all we didn·t want it.

~.

OUESTIONER.

HOLLER I

HOLLER.

(

(
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If a prisoQer were to shoot himself after

years of isolation would you then speak of

suicide?

Given the hypothesis that death follows

hunger, would you then say that was suicide?

No. That's murder. As happened in the case of

Holger Heins. Hanipylation of the deadline for

hospitalisation by the Federal Prosecutor's

Offiee.

You have given us a detailed exposition of the

conversation between Klaus and Baader. Howwas

that possible?

This ,is a provocative quest ion and a hypothetical

~~e. The aim of the question here is quite clear.

I have made it quite clear what constitute's

murder. Jan didn't have a radio and as we all

had none - I knew what radios we had - I knew

every single one and they were all taken from

us on 5th September.

Andreas was reporting to Gudrun, standing at her

door, and we couldall hear. The conversation at

the door lasted for ten minutes at the most.

Guards were there and they were listening. It was

the usual practiee tha~all the prisoners were

immediately returned to their cells but as far as

it was possible and necessary we seized the opp­

ortunity to talk with each other outside the cell

doors.•Andreas had to defend himself of course,

The guards were shouti~g out nonsense all the

time" Come over here etc •••• They were also

interested to learn what we were saying and thus

it all went off without great difficulty. You only

had to fight tor some room. I only know when Gudrun

~I

~.
QlTESTIONERI

QUESTI ONER I

~:

OUESTIONER:

~.

~

\......-
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~. (CONT'O) the barred-door into the seventh floor

part of the prison he was searched from head to

toe. Body searched and all his things as well.

I can·t say how often, I didn't keep a check list,

but it happened in most cases and when it didn't

happen you couldn't be sure that it wouldn't.

OUESTIONFR. witnesses have given evidence to the committee

that there were no body searches of prisoners

when they returned to the seventh floor.

~: I have seen it myself on more than one'occas~on.

I had arecord player, speakers and earphones,

I listened to music at night perhaps to two o'clock.

Since the 6th October with batteries. Since from

the 4th the current nad been shut-off at night.

The prison knife was made of chrome. (This knife

is shown to Irmgard Holler - the knife with which

her wounds were supposedly inflicted. She says

that she did have such a knife in her cello After

she is shown a photograph of the razor blades which

were found in her cello She says ••I never such

razor blades, I had only half ones, these weren't

my razor blades. The scissors which I had in my

cell were pointed at the ends. I was wearing a

NICKI-PULLOVER, green and Corduroy jeans, grey.

The news that I had heard I had only passed on

in the most seldom of instances. I passed on the

most important things, yes. But the most important

thing was our mutual protection and the will not

to provoke further separation and in consequence

we spoke much to little. I never received any

reference from the other prisoners on what was

happenong outside Stammheim, never. Hy last memory

is of an intoxication in my head. I hadn't smoked

anything etc., I never noticed anything outside

my cell door.

AS ntE PRESIOENT GOES TO WIND UP THE SESSION
"' .

IRHGARD HOLLER SAYS ••I want add somethlng".

(

MOLLER. (CONT'O) If this torture, these conditions of

imprisonment sby the same. If the isolation

continues then I will, and I am sure that all

others of the R.A.F. and from other Social

Revolutionary Groups will join in this, I will

at the earliest opportunity go on hungerstrike

in order to achieve that we are housed together

as groups of fifteen people. Important also is

the application of the Geneva convention. It

must be achieved that this power over life and

death that the State Security Forces have over

prisoners is put an enl to.

Each day counts.
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(regarding the separating glass panel

" ... since 1st June the visits are taking plnce behind a separat­

ing glass pane ... furthermore the Justice Minister has ordered

wlth Immediate effect, that all supervlsed visits nlso hnve In

tilke placc In the rooms witll separating glass pünes - not so the

relatives' visits. I'm saying this vcry coolly; earlier I had

tried to imagine what this thing with a cubic metre of bullct­

prnof qla',>, wnIJlr1IIt'Ijk(~. fllJl. wh'~11I r";illy W;,~. '"'hind il, ;,'.

I really experienced it with my senses, I knew that it was far

beyond my power of imagination. You have to experience it.

Co nc rc 1.cIy y0 1I c;i n des c rilJ e jt thc f0 1I0 wirHJ wa y: a <;cPJ ra l.i r)Cj

wall between two cells, fitted into a thick steel frame, per­

fora ted with thousands of little holes, carrying the double pane

of glass of about 5 cm thickness. The gl ass doesn' t allow thc

voice to pass through, because the holes absorb it. The voice

comes from somewhere, is very distorted and to understand one

another you have to shout. Even when it's completely silent,

you have to talk loudly. A talk between two deaf people.

the consequences of the conditions of imprisonment - something

you surely know, since they are more or less the same everywhere."

stammhelm, 1.7.78

You are in front of each other as in an aquarium without water ­

the last realised impression is distorted, cut off - you bow

forward, you try to speak through the holes. Automatically you

look at the place in the windOw, where you speak to, and when

~ the other one answers, you can't really look at him while you are

bending your ear towards him and while he is speaking and looking

through the pane.

But that's enough now.

Vou can't really describe how it works in reality.

Only when the talk is over you suddenly realise its dimension:

when you stand up and are not able to go to the visitor, and

when your hand hits the glass instead of touching another hand.

Not another word on this theme - because this separating glass

is only ONE part of the whole concept, much more important are

ci"
c:,
."
."
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'-'
'"



V
3.

•..

4.

(
5.

6.

"-'

'\,. ..,,.,,,11 Jt 40
Barr1ater-at-lav Michael Obervlnder, lav)'erof Ulrike Melnhof

Document of evidence for the cri.inal case Baader, Ensslin,

"einhot and RasDe. 4. mav 1976

1. The tormer head ot the Central Intelllgence Agenc)' (CIA)

of the Unlted States of Amerlca Kr. Wlllla. E. Colb)'. to

summon over State Department of the US, Washlngton:

2. the former head and agent of the Central Intelllgence Agen­

e)'In the Federal Republlc of German)', Hr, Riehard Helms to

summon over State Department ot the UI. Washington:

the Journalist and former emplo)'ee of the Central Intelll­

gence Agency of the U. S. of Ameriea. Hr. Barton Osborne.

Bureau 403. 2000 P-Street, NW Washington DC 20036: USA:

the journalist and former employee of the National Securit)'

Agenc)' (N5A) of the United States ot America.'Kr. Winslov

Peck. same adress as above under 3.

the writer and former employee of the Central Intelligence

Agency of the United States of America, Hr. Philip Agee.

1 Hale Avenue. Cambridge. Great Britain:

the writer and former employee of the Central Intelligence

Agency of the United States of America. Kr. Victor Harchetti.

same adress as above under 3.

7. the journalist and former employee of the Central lntelligence

Agency of the United Statss of Ameriea, Kr. Gary Thomas. sa.e

adress as above under 3.

to summon and to Interrogate as competent vitnesses for the

proof

1. that the territory of the Federal Republie of Germany. since

its foundation has been a strategie basis for the expansion

policy of the US vhich is against international law and aggres­

sive towards third vorld states, against constitutional go­

vernments of third world states and against liberation move­

ments in third world regions vhich. are anti-colonial. national

and anti-imperialistie. in so far as all relevant open and

covered mllltary and Intelligence servlce actlons of the U.S.

agalnst countrles of the Warsa", Pact, ag.inst parlamentary

~

~
(
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legltlmized change. of governments in West-European at.tes.

agalnst anti-imperialistic liberatlon movements In the Hear

Mlddle East. in Afrlca and South-East Asia from U.S •• ecret

service bases have been planned. organized. accompanied,

aupported respectively eontrolled on the territory of the

Federal Republie of Germany

espeeially

a. that the IG-Farben Haus in Frankfurt, Halnm has funetloned

as a head-quarter for the entire length of the U.5. aggression

in lndochina. whlch was contrary to international law.

b. that the U~S. head-quarters In the IG-Farben Haus in Frank­

furt, Hain. had military-strategic functions In planning,

adminlstration. coordination and control not only In opera­

tional but also In logistic tields for the U.S. military

quota supply in lndochina and for the realization of secret

operation of the U.S. intelligence servJ~J In lndochlna:

2.'that the constitution of the Federal Republlc of Germany

as astate after 1945 was realized and developped by the

U.S. as a proJect of her expansive world power strategy:

especially

that the CIA which was established after the second Worl~

War as an illegal part of the American foreign poliey

financially supported resectively through eivil ~ivns

reep. through organisations for economy, trade- d' culture

and student purposes during the period of the Cold war ahd

afterwards parties and trade unions in the Federal Republic

of German)' as also the training. finaneial support and pro­

motion of politicians and officials of all relevant political

economical and cultural institutions in the Federal Republie
of Germany.

3. that because of open and covered, direet and indirect means

of pressure through interference in the internal affaires of

the Federal Republic of Germany. comtrary to international ~

law, through the complete economical, military and ploitical /gc
I .~~~~~~~

'<

~.
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I.furthermore propos. the aummona and interrogation of the

following aaaeasora to the topiea to proof aa mentioned aboveJ

1. the seientiat Oavid Horrowitz, Washington OC, USA

2. the seientifie assistant of the Institute of Peaee Research

SIPRI. Stockholm, Sweden, Hr. Galtung.

J. the seientifie assistant of the Institute of Peaee Research

in Frankfurt/Hain, Hr. Senghaas.

. \

r

r
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U.S. hegemony over the Federal Republie of G.rmany the govern­

ments of Kiesinger/Brandt and Brandt/Sehesl were involved in

the open and eovered aggreasion and mass-murder strategie.

againat the liberation movements and countries of the third

world, espeeially in Indoehina;

a. through pölitieal, eeonomieal and propaganda support of the

aggression resp. the possible usage of military U.S. army

bases from th. terri tory of the Federal ReDubl1e of Germany.

b. beeaua. of her development of poliey of interferenee. whieh

eontravened international law, in the innsr afeaire of the

third world, .apeeially Indoehina and the European periphery

aa a subeentre of the Ameriesn imperialism through her own

intelligenee services, her export of police and military.

weapons, training, teehnology and logistieal support through

the finaneial support of p~rties, politieians ete. and through

eeonomic pressure.

4. tha~ the Federal Repiblic of Germany

a. through requirements of her establishment as a produet of

the allied military government's dictatorship under the

leadership of the U.S.

b. through the condition and injunetions on the basis of whieh

the rights of the allied powers under the leadershlp of the

U.S. were handed over to German authorities.

e. through the proviaso elause of German treaty of 1956 and its

later modifications,

espeeially

U.8. dependaney controlled by the eIA through the (eIA eontrol-

led dependancy) of the State ~f the Federal Republie of Ger-

,many - without being her eolo~i aeeording to international

law- '

the Federal Republic of GermanJihas no national sovereignity

in relation to the U.8.A.

5~ that she therefore is and will be foreed to aeeept the mili­

tary doetrin of an oeeupying power (the U.S. army) whieh im­

plies as its strategie premise the total extermination of

her. population and the nuelear destruetion of her territory

by the nuelear weapons situated on the bases of the occupying

U.S. army
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The submitted ev1dence ~ill prove 1n particular the follow1ng:

A·
1. The lG-Farben Haus 1n f'rnnkfurt/f-'n1n1s the nerve center for

US Activit1es 1n the Near and "iiddle Esst during the lndochina

war also partly for the Far East.

2. 1he operations pentaining to the so-called provocative action

proßram were directed and controlled from the lG-Farben Haus

in FrailKrurt/~ain , bcginning with the U 2-Fliehts over Enst

Europe and the USSR in the 1950's, up till the Tonk1ng erisode,

with whieh the USA wanted to justify the bombing of Korth

Vietnam.

~. The eornplete strategic and taetieal provisions for ~ATO and the

world-wide aetivities of the USA were coordinated in the IG­

Farben Haus in Frankfurt/Main.

4. The lG-Farben Haus in Frankfurt/Nain is the most important eor­

nerstone for that part of the US-intelligence network whose task

is to supply information by means of highly developped radio­

teehnology, and also for the radiotechnieal direction and control

of world-wide intelligenee and military operations of the USA
and the NATO.

5. The lG-Farben Haus in Frankfurt/Main was the headquarters of the

Kational Security Agency (NSA) of the USA during the lndochina
war •

6. The funetion of the NSA loeated in the lG-Farben Haus in Frank­

furt/Main was to control the entire world-wide international

diplomatic, military, commercial and eivil radio communications,

in order to provide, deeode and compute information.

7. The headquarters of the HSA in the IG-Farben Haus in Frankfurt

Main maintains stations in eve:'y large city in Europe, and is

connected with a ehain of espionage agencies throughout the Federal

Republie of Germany, whose main function since the1950's con­

sists in supervising and sporadic jamming of the entire diplomatic

,..
(

~
(

t> • --:73s--
military, comme~cial and eivil radio eommunieations 1n East

Europe and the USSR, as far as the ~rals.

8. During the whole Indoehina war the NSA's outstanding priority

through the interception and speedy decoding of radio messages

between friendly governments and their diplomati~ represen­

tatives, was to discern international reactions to specific

phases of US aggression and theptanning of peaee initiatives

by foreign governments in this context, e. g. the Swedish

government, in order to countersct these measures throur,h

pressure on the government or by influencing public opinion.

9. The military intelligence agencies of the USA (Army Counter

Intelligence Corps (CIC) and the Kavy and Air Force intelligenee

agencies) bave maintained interrogation centers in the ~ederal

Republic of Germany, since the late 1940's under civilian dis­

guise, in which so-called subversive elements, in partieular,

from g~oups of Russian emigrants were subject tö solitary con­

finement and other methods of torture and partial elimination.

These secret prisons served as a model for the so-ealled

provincial interrogation centers which were later set up by

the US intelligence agencies in South Vietnam.

10.The NSA in the IG-Farben Haus in Frankfurt/~ain supervised the

communications during the Paris peace negotiations betw~en the

delegates of the De~cratic Republic of Vietnam, the National

Liberation Front of South Vietnam and Ranoi. This was done to

enable th US government, through exact knowledge of the inter­

nal discussion and of the military position of the Vietkong, to

prolong the peace negotiations and to gain yet another military

victory.

11.In the Federal Republic of Germany irithe late 1940's and 1950'5

the above mentioned intelligence agencies finaneed and super­

vised, under the codename of Ohio, the liquidation campaign of

two Russioan emigrant organisatrions among their fellow eountry­

men, and undermok the removal of the corpses.
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12.Thi~ operation, directed at suppose~ eRst block agents a~ong

the emigranta, was the model for oper~tion Phoenix, initiated

in 1Q68 in South Vietnam by the CIA, whose aim it wos to cut

off the support by the civilian population for the Vietkong,

whereby approximately 20,000 Vietnamese were murdered.

B

The submitted evidence will prove further:

1. The real function of the CIA is not to gather secret informa­

tion, rather it is to intervene in the afIairs of foreign

states, by means of intelligence operations, in order to

secure the success of the aims of US power politics.

2. Outside of the USA the CIA maintains its largest field of opera­

tions in the Federal Republic of Germany.

3. The powerful presence of the CIA, parallel to the powerful

official presence of US troops in the Federal Republic of Ger­

many, is not a result of strategy of reconnaisance, resistance

and deterrance against the alledged plans of aggression from

Warsaw Pact countries. The appropiate influenee of public opi­

nion is aimed exclucively at disguising the enforcement of US

power pOlitics, with th goal of expanding their influence, es­

pecially in the third world, from West German territory.

4. Tbe powerful presence of the CIA in the Federal Republic of

Germany, in reality, serves these two goals:

a. the guarantee of the retention of present political structures

in the Federal Republic of Germany in order to exclude from the

first any possibility of a change of course in a direction not

in the interests Of, in other words antagonistic to the US

pOlitics. This serves the purpose of:

b. securing the strategic use of West Ge~man territory as a base

for open and covered operations by the USA against foreign

states (both Warsaw Pact and third world ,ountries).

't
(
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5. A fundamental difference exiats between the presence of the CIA

in the Federal Republic of Germany end in other states, in order

to carry out their activities in other stetes, even in those,

which belong to the NATO, the CIA has to penetrate existing,

independent politicsl structures, e. g. political perties,

unions etc. In the GFR, however, the political, economical,

and social structures after 1945 were established as a project

of US imperialism. Even before the end of the war the authori­

ties behind this pOlicy had drawn up plans for sovereibfi state,

after the shattening of the German Reich, as a seat of

government for their economfc and political interests, on their

conditions, and under their supervision.

Whereas in other states the CIA is an intelligence service

which acquires certain influence through infiltration, by

means of intelligence operations, in the GFR it acts rather

as a kind of controlling secret police in the interests of US

imperialism, dominating the crucial institutions

11.

The evidence to be submitted here, leads to the following, relevant

processural conclusions

1. The CIA conducted covered operations against foreign states from

West German territory.

2. The CIA and other US intelliEence agencies are providing secu­

rity and support for open and covered military operations by

the USA aeainst other states from their bases on West Gerrnan

territory, and did so during !\:11i:1-' Indochina war.

3. The politically responsible people in the GFR were aware of,

tolerated and supported these activities.

4. In order to secure the acuivities mentioned in 1;0 • 3, the CIA

supervised, and i9 still supervising the political, economic

and cultural constitution and further development of the GFR,

85 a seat of government for the interests of US imperialism.



From the above mentioned points it
9 ­
ensues: -33~-

1. During the lndochina war the GFR was at no time willing or in

the position, as a result of their historic ally, closely inter­

woven associotion with the o~gressor USA, to intervene in the

use of their territory for permanent logistic activities and

operations.

2. The citizens of the GFR, who recognized the character of US

intervention as being crimina1, and as contravening internati­

na1 1aw, were doomed to tai1ure trom the beginning in their

attempts to move the po1itica1 authorities, right up to govern-

~~ ment level, through the int1uence of the so-ca11ed process of

bui1ding-up po1itica1 awareness. to intervene against the active

aggressor on West German territory •
••l

3. Vio1ence was the final, permissab1e argument, according to the

standards of international law, against the aggressor operating

from the West German territor,y.

"(
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The n~ced subjeets of evidence are not ai~ed at finding the truth

with rerrerd to those offences the defendants are charged with:

multiple accomplished end atternpted murder - amongst others in Frank­

furt - but ere aimed at attacking the politics of the USA in the

world and the participation of the FRG in this under the pretence of

witness-hearings for reasons of agitation.

Thus the defendants ha~e oo1y "formally" followed even this applicatiol

of the1r defence counsel, but the defendant Raspe has added immediateI:

I~
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As the reason for the ehellenge against the presiding judge he was

characteristically reproofed th~t he would try

'to reduce the trial to a debate on criminal facts and prevent the

sing ~f the issue of the role of the Federal Government of Germany

the international relation of capital and the specific role of the FR

- 2 -

cri~e:::)

-:3 t!-1 -

'3ut of course we don't see our politics ~itr.in the eete~ories of ir.ter­

~ati~nal l~w. ~e dan't see the~ ~ithin any kind of cate~ory exeept aB

the politics of the RAF,ermed proletarien politics, etc •••• '

Im~ortant is the criteria of revolutionp.ry morelity.

A~art fron: thet the defendants heve left no doubt from the beginning the

their aim in this trial is to eontinue with their politieal aims and

to meke cropagenda. According to the nunerous statements by the defen­

dants end thair lawyers these aims are

'political-~~litary fights egainst the imerialist soeial system of the

FRG' ,

'doesn't interest us in the least ••• that doesn't concern us.'

In an a,plication of challenge by the defendants against the presiding

judge et the beginning of the trial it was po1nted out by the defendants

that the eonstitutional law of the FRG

'will be radically ner,ated at its roots'.

the 'weakening of the imperialist world system',

the fi~ht ~ainst the

'impe~iaIism of internatio~al capital anc its agents',

~he 'worldwide antiimperialist liberation struggle, i.e. the leadership

of the struögle',

and the strengthening of

'the urban guerilla'.

A judieie! judgement of those offences they are charged with the de~en­

d2r.ts eo~pletely reject:

'the RAF, the guerilla, is not judiciable'.

Already in e eell-circular from the year 1974 they say with regard to th.

pending trial:

'We are only interested in this performance if we can turn it 'around.'

This coineides with a re~8r~ by one of the defendants:

( 'The criminological part'

. (which means the hearing of witnes~es with regard to the committed

the USA has eommitted ille­

the territory of the

- 1 -
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'Prot'oeol-extraet StR:r.mheim

~2 •. ]u:-;e 1976

The 2. sen?te et the court in Stuttgart refuses the qUEstioning of

witnessee ng~ed by th~ c~unsel for th~ defenee in their g~plieation,

dated 4. "·Po:-' 76.

As Pr:nzine ean not argue egainst the eonelusiveness of the epplieat~~r.

he has t~ ~ontruet the refusal out of feldfied quotes froe the state­

ments by the prisoners.

Prin~ing: We eontinue with the session.

The eourt has eo~e to the following eonelusion:

The ~uestioning of witnesses to the above mentioned topies is not

pern:isfiable.

Reasons:

Baader's defenee eounsel, lawyer Oberwinder, has asked Mr. Winslow

Peek to appear as witness - obviously w~th the eonsent of the other

defendants.

The witness has turned up. As topies, on whieh the witoess is meant to

be questioned, lawyer Oberwinder has named no. lA 1, 4 - 9 of his

application, dated 4.5.1976 (sound-recording 9438/39).

The defence counsel is of the opinion that

gal erimes in the Vietnam war and has UBed

Federel Government for this.

Should they be fo~~d guilty of the offences they are eccused of then

the defendants had the right of self defence, heIyin need and the

right to resistanee on their side aecording to international law, whic!'

would justify their aetions according to the internal state rights of

~. the Federal Republic.

The court has refused this applieation and expläined that a right for

resistance, wh1ch would justify such attacks, does not exist.

1.
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in relation to US-i~perialism. To sum up: the subjects for the

p~litical attacks of the RAF.'

In another ~,nge oretk. of the defendants chp.~ecterizes es essential

!o~ the ~~F

'the radic~l negation, the rejection of any other power and norm, of

eny other lew except that of human power based on a critical con­

sciousness an1 revolutionary power.

The process of insurrection' (the construction of a political-milttary

front in the metropolis) 'is the.kind of fair trial which we want.

This is t~e only kind of trial we ere responsible for and any other

doens't interest us.'

To the hearine of witnesses'with regard to the Tietnarn war one of the

defendants rernarked that this hearings would establish

'the subject of this triel, precisely ·what can only be the subject

of judicial deliberations in this case, namely the complete determina­

tion, control and order of this stete internally end externally; the

availability of this state internally and externally to the world

internal politics of hegemony, the OS-capital. This means the central

strategical function of the FRG as e~onomical, political and military

sub-centre of American imperialism, here developed in its function

1) for the open aggression against 3. world countries, concrete Viet­

nam and 2) the hidden aggressions against the states of the W.Euro­

pean periphery.'

These quotes - which can be multiplied arbitarily - are proof cf what

was enlerged on above: the defendants are not interested in presenting

evidence and finding the truth in this trial, but instead they are

only interested in political agitation with a eIear aim. Thet the

Vietnam war is pushed into the forefront is more by chance. One of

the applications put forward in this trial: to treat the defendants

according to martial law and to move them to a prisoner-of-war camp

confirms this additionally. There they. talk about the

'weakening of the i~erialist world-system',

es exarnple~s for 'international resistance' they name

'Vietnao, Kambodscha, Laos, Guinea-Bissau, Vozambique, Sao Thome,

Frincipe'

as allies of the R4F as weIl as the (Arabic) PlO and the (Irish) IRA.

The same is dernonstrated in the witness-application mentioned at the

beginning, which had been refused by the court. According to this the

witness Peck Was named to ~ive evidence

<"
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't~at the territory of the FRG hes since its existence been stretegi<

b~se for the illegal eggresEive expansion-politics of the USA agains~

3. cou-"ltries',

'th~t the fJunding of the FRG as a stete after 1945 was carried out

end d6veloped by the USA as a project of their expansive worldpower­

!:'trategy'•

All this 15 not accessi ble for inquiry proceedings (compage BGH st l~

p. 28,31) end also in so far as it is rneant to demonstrate that the

US-headquarters in Frankfurt - tErget of one of the explosion

attacks - has harb~ured depart~ents which have pleyed en important

part for the US-~litary in this war; in this cese as weIl an

inquiry would only be a starting ~oint for the mentioned political­

revolutionary agitation.

The court is obliged to c~nfine the inquiry proceedings to that

which furthers facts.

The facts are missing in an inquiry subject if "under the appearance

of inquiry proceedings an objective is being pursued which devietes

from the object of the trial" ( Supreme Court, criminal ceses Bd. 66,
page 15), if theyere "only meant to serve the hindrance of procee­

dings" (~H St Bd. 2, page 284). Inquiries are also inadmissable

according to § 245 StPO if they are "wi thout relation to the subject

of the trial end do not contri bute to the factua1 evidence" (BGH

StBd. 17, page 343 and Bd. 17 page 28). This is the case here. It

doean' t change the character of i t if it 1s done for the reason tha t_,

the defendants might posfibly in a subjective way have acted from the

assumption that everl~hing happens in this world in the way they have

presented it: because such a superficial view and condernnation of

everything that they understand under 'US-imperialsm' and such-like

is unfau~liar to the law - apart from the fact that the witness would

not be able anyway to contribute anything to this. The defendants

know this as they have ShO\VD in their statements: it is not the

valid jurisdiction that they feel bound to or to which they want to

justify or defend the:selves. The defendant Baader steted that it

was 'really just stupid demagogy to talk in terms of political mo­

tives in thefece of these objective dimensions'.

The court cen therefore not allow the questioning of this witness

with regard to the named topics.




